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Group Overview, Strategy
and Business Mode

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A. (ESFG or ‘the Company’) is a
publically listed company with its shares listed on the Luxembourg,
Lishon and London stock exchanges. It provides a wide range of
banking services, centred on Banco Espirito Santo {‘BES’), and Life
and Non-Life insurances services through Tranquilidade and
through bancassurance operations at BES.

ESFG's primary strategy is to further develop its ability to cross-sell
the full range of banking and insurance services offered by its
subsidiaries, while taking advantage of further cost reduction
opportunities afforded by a more efficient integration of its inter-
related businesses.

ESFG follows a strategy of organic growth with localised
acquisitions coupled with greater international revenue outside of
its traditional market of Portugal. ESFG's international investments
focus on countries with strong cultural and economic ties with
Portugal or the ‘Strategic Triangle”; this includes Iberia, South
America and Africa. The Company further invests in countries such
as Switzerland, the United Kingdom and France, the United States
of America and the United Arab Emirates, amongst others,

ESFG remains open to pursuing means of ensuring that it will
continue to play a key role in banking and insurance operations in
these markets.

Espirito Santo Financial Group 5.4 Annusl ke

JUT5 01




ESFG global
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FSFG structure

ESFG Banking structure (As at 31 December 2013}
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Commercial and Investment Banking  BESV - Bangue Espirito Santo et de la Vénétie BPES - Banque Privée Espirito Santo
Wealth Management ESBD - ES Bankers {Dubai} Limited ESBP-ES Bank Panama
BEST - BEST Bank

ESFG Insurance structure (As at 31 December 2013}
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‘Tranquﬂk%daée Tranquilidade
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“ Non-Life Insurance Banking *Europ Assistance operations in Portugal, Brazil, Argentina and Chile
= Life Insurance ¥ Assisted Service Provider

Notes: On 14 February 2014 ESFIL sold its stake in BESV to BES. As of that date BES holds 87.5% of BESV. On 2 April 2014 ESFG sold its remaining 9.0% stake
inBanco BEST to BES. Asof that date BES holds a 75.0% stake in BEST
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Chairman’s Report

Dear Shareholders

ESFG's 2013 consolidated annual results come at a time of great
changetoboththe Espirito Santo Financial Group and the economic
and requlatory environment in which it operates,

2013 was marked by arecovery in global economic activity: growth
in the United States accelerated in the second half of the year,
driven by the rebound in the labour and housing markets and the
strong monetary policy stimuli implemented, while sentiment in
the Eurozone also improved.

In Portugal, ESFG’s principal economic exposure, the strong
performance of exports and the stabilising trend of domestic
demand supported an upturn of economic activity as from the
second quarter, even if growth remained constrained by the
deleveraging process under way across the various sectors, GDP
registered an annual contraction of 1L.5% in 2013, however it is
forecast to grow by close to 1.0% in 2014,

ESFG'sconsolidated netresultsforthe fullyear2013, attributable
to equity holders of the Company feli to -EUR 864.0 million from
EUR 313.6 millionin 2012,

As well as the consolidation of the BES full year losses, positive
results from its other banking and insurance operations, ESFG’s
2013 results include a EUR 700.0 million extraordinary provision
that refates the current exposure to certain non-financial assets
of Group Espirito Santo {'GES’) and a guarantee to certain
banking subsidiaries.

The provision has impacted negatively on ESFG's core capital
position. As a financial holding company, and regulated entity,
ESFG will continue to work with its regulator to improve on its
consolidated solvency position through particular focus on its
principal banking assets.

Results of ESFG's core operations were constrained by the
challenges of the Eurozone crisis and the impact of the Financial
Adjustments’ Programme adopted by Portugal. The performance
of ESFG's principal banking investment, BES, was affected by the
rise of insolvencies in Portugal, impacting onimpairment levels and
the need to provide adequate provisions. Recent guarterly banking
income results however show clear improvements. Consolidated
contributions from ESFG’s other banking operations remain
positive, though reduced when compared to 2012, ESFG's
consolidated life and non-life insurance results, through BES and
Tranguilidade, improved during the reporting period.

The results of ESFG's banking subsidiary, BES, in which it holds a
27.4% economic stake, reflect the difficult operating environment
of its principal market of Portugal. Results for the full year 2013 fell
to -EUR 517.6 million from EUR 96.1 million a year earlier. The
results come at a time when the Bank is strengthening its balance
sheet through continued deleveraging, resuiting in a reduction in
banking income, and reinforcement of its provisions on loans.
Commercial banking income declined by 14.0% year-on-year to EUR
1.73 Lillion from EUR 2.00 billion in FY12. Net funding from the ECB
however fell to EUR 5.4 billion from EUR 6.9 billion a year earlier. The
course of reducing funding from the ECB contributed to a decline in
NIM. Further improvements in macro conditions are expected to
support the Bank's improved performance through 2014,

ESFG’s insurance operations contributed positively to ESFG's full
year results for 2013 despite continued economic difficulties in
Portugal. ESFG’s consolidated operations remain the largest
privately owned insurance group in Portugal with a consolidated
market share, by premiums, of 19.2%, ranked only by the state
insurer, and which compares favourably with the Group’s market
share in 2012 of 18.0%. ESFG's market share in the non-Life sector,
through Tranguilidade Group and BES Seguros reached 10.6%. The
combined market share in the Life business of T-Vida and BES Vida
stood at 22.8%. Outside of Portugal ESFG’s insurance operations
are present in Spain, Angola, Mozambigue, Cape Verde, Brazil,
Argentina and Chile.

Consolidated Staff Costs and General Administrative Expenses fell
by 5.5% to EUR 1.21 billion from EUR 1.28 million in 2012. The
decline was helped by an 10.9% fall in staff costs resulted from
ESFG Group's strict control over variable salaries in Portugal.
Consolidated Costs due to Depreciation, Provisioning and
Impairments rose by 69.9% year-on-year to EUR 2.25 billion from
EUR 1.33 millionin 2012 reflecting provisioning both a the BES and
ESFG fevel,

ESFG, in 2013 and during 2014, continues in its programme of
simplification of its investment structure through the sale and/or
consolidation of banking and insurance assets. In the first quarter
of 2014, and as part of the simplification programme which began
in 2013, ESFG saw the following divestments:

= Thesale of its 44.81% stake in BES Vénétie to BES.

¢ Thesale of a 10.63% stake in Espirito Santo Salide, as part of
the healthcare company’s IPO. The sale, which included the
over-aliotment option, leaves ESFG with a 3.38% direct stake.
(ESFG holds, directly and indirectly, a total economic stake in
ESSof12.42%).

e The sale of ESFG's remaining 9.0% stake in Banco BEST.
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Chairman’s Report

continued

Total consolidated assets at ESFG declined by 3.1%, from EUR 87.57
billion at the end of 2012 to EUR 84.85 billion at the end of 2013
Consotidated Risk Weighted Assets at ESFG fell to EUR 60.60 billion
by the end of the period from EUR 65.06 billion a year earlier.

ESFG’s nominal external debt at the end of the period rose by EUR
59.6 million year-on-year to EUR 780.2 million {falling from a high
of EUR 1.3 billion in late 2011). ESFG continues to reduce interest
costs through liability management in recognition of reduced
dividend income from its subsidiaries. In November 2013 ESFG
announced the launch of EUR 200 million exchangeable into BES.
The coupon was set at 3.125% and matures in December 2018.
The proceeds were used to repurchase EUR 135.6 million of an
outstanding convertible into ESFG shares.

Finally,  would like to thank all ESFG's employees, the employees of
our subsidiaries and my colleagues on the Board of Directors
for their support, hard work and contribution to the Company's
in2013.

e

[ yes 4

Ricardo Espirito Santo Silva Salgado
Chairman
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Fconomic Environment

Economic Environment 2013

2013 saw a recovery in the global economic activity, most
noticeablein the principal developed economies. The United States
economy grew by 1.9%, slowing down from the previous year
{2.8%), but accelerating in the second half of the vear {annualised
quarterly rate of change of 3.2% in the 4th quarter). The weak first
six month’s reflected the impact of a tightened fiscal policy on
domestic demand. In the second half of the year, the improvement
of household and corporate balance sheets, the rebound of the
fabour market, the rise of housing prices and the good performance
of the equity market contributed to bolster private consumption
and investment and lead to an upsurge in econemic activity, This
rebound in turn permitted an improvement in the labour market,
with the rate of unemployment declining from 8.1% t0 6.7% of the
fabour force.

World GDP vs, Global PMI
28 Global PMI{LHS) &8 World GDP

70 6%

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2000 2010 2011 2012 2013

The US public deficit shrank from 9.3% 10 6.5% of GDP, underpinned
by restraint in public expenditure and the upturn in activity.
With fiscal policy on a consolidation path, it was up to the monetary
policy to maintain the economic stimulus instruments. Low
inflation {close to 1.5%) and the absence of inflationary pressures
warranted the Federal Reserve to pursue the guantitative easing
programme established in 2012, with monthly asset purchases of
USD 85 billion, keeping the fed funds target rate within the interval
of 0% - 0.25%. However, the improvement of economic activity
allowed the Fed to signal a tapering of quantitative easing and
its announcement in December 2013

improving sentiment in the Eurozone, with activity

returning to positive growth

The improved performance of the main EU economies was
stimulated by a recovery of activity in Europe. Despite instability in
Italy and the financial crisis in Cyprus, the year saw a stabilisation of
financial and economic conditions in the Eurozone. In the financial
markets, the stabilisation stemmed from a sharp decline of the
systemic risks associated to the sovereign debt crisis as well as a
progressive improvement in the outlook for economic growth.

10-year US Government Bonds vs. Germany Bonds (basis points)
B8 Germany & USA

2007

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

The Eurozone GDP contracted by 0.5% in 2013, This was due to a
sharp contraction in the first quarter, as the second guarter saw
positive growth and a pickup in activity with GDP growing by 0.5%
in the fourth quarter. Unemployment remained high, rising on
average from 11.4% to 12.1% of the labour force, Annual inflation
dropped from 2.5% in 2012, to 1.4% in 2013,

In May, the European Central Bank lowered the key benchmark rate
by 25 basis points, from 0.75% to 0.5%, and in November, in light of
a significant deceleration of prices {the year-on-year inflation rate
dropped by 0.7%), with a new cut of 25 basis points, bringing the
rate to a low of 0.25%. The ECB extended until mid-2015 {(at [east)
the liquidity unlimited provision through refinancing operations,
implemented an unprecedented monetary policy tool, ‘forward
guidance’, and indicated that key interest rates would stay low for a
fong time to come. However, the 3-month Euribor rose by 6 bps in
thefourthquarterand by 10 bps over the year, to 0.287%, reflecting
the shrinking of liquidity through an increase in banks'
reimbursements of LTROs. The EUR gained close to 4.5% to the
USD, reaching EUR/USD 1.3749.
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Economic Environment

continued

Positive signs in the Eurozone spread to the periphery

The economic recovery in the Eurozone spread to the peripheral
economies, which returned to positive growth, in the second half of
the year. Spain’s GDP still shrank by 1.2% at the year end, affected
by the tightened fiscal policy, the private sector continuing
deleveraging trend and the persistence of historically high
unemployment rates (26% of the labour force, at the end of the
year). Economic activity showed signs of a gradual stabilisation,
with GDP registering quarterly changes of 0.1% and 0.3% in the
third and fourth quarters, respectively, driven not only by the good
performance of net external demand, but also increasingly by signs
that domestic demand was picking up.

The fiscal consolidation measures in place enabled the Spanish
fiscal deficit to drop from 10.8% to 6.8% GDP in 2013, which
together with the deleveraging of the private sector and the
exports good performance, allowed the combined current and
capital account balance to improve from a deficit of 1.2% to a
surplus of ca. 1.2% GDP. The Spanish 10-year government bonds
appreciated in value, with the respective yields fell by 111 basis
points, to 4.15%, and the spreads against the German bunds shrank
from 395 to 222 basis points.

Larger monetary stimuli and currency devaluation improved
growth in the United Kingdom and Poland.

In the United Kingdom, the economy followed the recovery path
started the previous year, with GDP rising by 1.9% in 2013. Private
consumption was sustained by the decline in inferest rates on new
household loans and a faster than expected reduction of
unemployment, to 7% of the labour force, and also by the
deceleration of prices, with the year-on-year inflation rate reaching
1.9% at the end of the year. Given the still frail economic situation
in the Eurozone, the United Kingdom’'s main trade partner, British
exports’ growth slowed down sharply, from 5.8% to around 1.2%.

10-year US Government Bonds vs. Germany Bonds {basis points)
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The Bank of England maintained an expansionary stance, keeping
the key interest rate unchanged at 0.5% and maintaining a stock of
GBP 375 hillion in debt securities on the halance sheet, in line with
its monetary sasing policy. After declining up to May, the yields on
the public debt securities subseqguently trended upward during the
second half of the year, leading the rate on the 10-year bonds
to close the year at 3.022%. The British pound was volatile, starting
the year at EUR/GBP 0.81255, twice rising above EUR/GBP
0.87 and closing 2013 at EUR/GBP 0.83231, representing a 2.4%
annual depreciation.

Poland remained an outsider in the European context, posting
1.6% annual growth in 2013 {after growing by 2.0% in 2012), with
activity rebounding from the first quarter. Faced with a negative
start of the year and a still frail domestic demand, in the first half of
2013 the Central Bank made five cuts in the benchmark interest
rate, slashing it from 4.0% to 2.5%. The zloty devalued by 6.2%
against the euro also, in the first six months of the year, from EUR/
PLN 4.085 to EUR/PLN 4.357. The PLN recuperated in the second
half of the year, closing 2013 at EUR/PLN 4.156.

Equity markets increased by a combination of monetary

stimuli and growth recovery

inthe USA and Europe, the rebound of growth and confidence,ina
context of expansionary monetary policies, was particularly
favourable to the equity market. In the USA, the S&P 500 and
Nasdaq indices gained 29.6% and 38.3%, respectively, while in
Europe the DAX, CAC and IBEX advanced by 25.5%, 18% and
21.4%. With activity picking up and the Federal Reserve showing a
reduction in guantitative easing, the yields on the 10-year
Treasuries and Bunds also rose in 2013 from 1.758% to 3.029%,
and from 1.316% to 1.929%, respectively.

Emerging markets were penalised by the expected

reduction of monetary stimuli in the US and fears

of growth deceleration in China

Expectations of a hike in market interestratesin the US economy, a
riseinthe dollarand asqueeze onaccess to liquidity led toincreased
volatility in the financial markets as from May, which affected the
emerging markets in particular. In Brazil, the real loss was around
13% against the USD and 17% against the Euro, while the Bovespa
index decreased by 15.5%. With a buoyant domestic demand and
facing inflationary pressures {inflation rate close to 6%), the
Brazilian Central Bank lifted the SELIC interest rate from 7.25% to
10% in 2013 (10.5% at the beginning of 2014). The Brazilian
economy grew by 2.3% in 2013, but overall growth expectations
for 2014 steadily deteriorated steadily (close to 2%).

08 Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A Annual Report & Consol




Brazil's economic performance in 2013 was marked by a
deteriorationoftheimbalance caused byanupsurgeinconsumption
against an increase in production capacity. The margin between
the aggregate supply growth and demand kept the variation in
prices above the established targets, notwithstanding a drop in
electricity prices. Faced with the inadeguacies of domestic supply,
Brazilian consumers increasingly resorted to external suppliers,
increasing the current account deficit from 2.4% of GDP in 2012 to
3.7% in 2013, the worst on record in the last 12 years. Tied with
concerns about the direction of US interest rates, this performance
contributed to increase the depreciation of the BRL which added to
inflationary pressures.

The emerging markets were further penalised by fears of a
slowdown of the Chinese economy, especially during the first half
of the year. The Chinese authorities have heen trying to achieve a
more balanced, less credit-driven growth pattern, shifting
economic activity from investment and exports to private
consumption, thus implicitly accepting potentially lower growth
rates. However, the faster than expected deceleration of GDP in the
second quarter {from 7.7% to 7.5% in year-on-year ferms),
associated in June 1o fears of a credit crunch, forced the Chinese
government to announce a package of selective stimuli applied to
economic activities. The second half of the year saw a reversal in
the previous slowdown, with GDP rising by 7.8% and 7.7% in the
third and fourth quarters, respectively. In 2013 the Chinese
economy increased by 7.7%, repeating its growth rate from the
previous year,

Slight growth acceleration in Angola in a climate

of financial stability

Angola’s GDP grew by 5.6% in 2013, up from 5.2% in 2012,
benefiting from a slight increase in oil production, as well as from
growth acceleration in the non-oll sectors, mainly those linked to
agriculture, diamond and manufacturing industry. With an output
of 1.73 million barrels per day, Angola remained the second fargest
oil producer in Sub-Saharan Africa, after Nigeria. However, due to
the decrease in the price of oil exports from USD 111.0 per barrel to
close to USD 100.0 perbarrel. Angola’s external reserves registered
only moderate growth, reaching just over USD 33.0 billion. The
ADQA was stable during the year, trading within a variation of
USD/AGA 95.00-97.00. Inflation registered a positive evolution,
with the year-on-year rate of prices change dropping from 9.0%
to 7.7%. The National Bank of Angola cut the hase interest rate
from 10.25% t0 9.25% and the margin lending facility interest rate
from 11.5% 10 10.25%.

Portugal

GDP declined less than initially expected (1.4%), picking up in the
second half of the year. In Portugal, the good performance of
exports and the stabilising trend of domestic demand created an
upturn in the economy, from the second quarter. GDP fell by 1.4%
in the year, though registering positive quarterly changes, from the
second quarter (1.1%, 0.3% and 0.5%) and resuming year-on-year
growth in the fourth (1.6%, after 11 quarters of contraction). This
intra-annual performance of economic activity coincided with a
gradualimprovement of household and business confidence levels,
with the European Commission’s economic sentiment indicator
nearing its long-term average.

GDP growth, Portugal (Y-0-Y and Q-0-Q rates) %
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Fconomic Environment

continued

However, the Portuguese economy’s growth remained limited by
the deleveraging process under way, across the various sectors, At
the year end, private consumption and gross fixed capital formation
registered a significant fall (-1.7% and -6.6%, respectively}, even
smaller than in 2012 and tending to recover in the latter part of the
year. Paraliel to the private consumption development, the increase
in the households’ saving rates, close to 13.5% of disposable income,
increased net lending capacity to around 7.5% of GDP. Business, in
turn, once again reduced net borrowing needs, to less than 2% of
GDP, probably as a result of a new decrease in capital expenditure.

In this context, approximately 120 thousand jobs were lost in the
vear, keeping the rate of unemployment at a high level (16.3% of
the labour force, in average annual terms, up from 15.7% in 2012},
However, the evolution of the labour market kept pace with the
intra-annual profile of economic activity. From the first to the
fourth quarter of 2013 the rate of unemployment decreased from
17.7% to 15.3% of the labour force, with nearly 130 thousand jobs
created in the last three quarters of the year and also a decline in
the labour force numbers {partly due to high emigration rates).

EU 10-Year Government Bonds spreads
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Financial stabilisation and return to the long-term

sovereign debt market

Exports are estimated to have registered actual growth of 5.6% in
2013, underpinned by positive contributions from goods and
services, namely featuring an increase in fuels’ production,
exporting capacity and strong external demand in the tourism
industry. The performance of exports, allied to the increase in
domestic savings, permitted the combined current and capital
account balance to reach a surplus of 2.6% of GDP. The recovery of
economic activity and the fiscal consolidation measures
implemented contributed to lower the general government deficit
{adjusted to Troika's criteria) to around 4.5% of GDP, whichis below
the target of 5.5%. Portugal returned to the capital markets in
December with a debt exchange operation {EUR 6.6 billion},
immediately followed in early 2014, by 5 and 10 vear syndicated
bond issues for an overall total of EUR 6.25 billion. After hitting a
high of 7.5% in July, the yield on the 10-year treasury bonds closed
the vear at 6.13%, continuing to subside in the first months of 2014,
1o close to 5%. The PSI-20 index climbed by ca. 16% in 2013.
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Risks to ESFG

and 1ts subsidiaries

The risks below are not the only ones that the ESFG Group and its
subsidiaries (‘ESFG Group’) face. Additional risks, not presently
known to the ESFG Group, or that the ESFG Group currently deems
immaterial could yet impair business operations. All of these risks
could materially affect the ESFG Group's business, its revenues,
operating income, netincome, net assets and liquidity and capital
resources.

1. Deterioration of the financial markets and
economic environment

The performance of the ESFG Group is generally influenced by
conditions in the global financial markets and the macroecenomic
environment of the countries in which it operates. The global
financial system has operated under difficult circumstances since
August 2007 and the financial markets have performed negatively
following the insolvency of several international fnancial
institutions since September 2008. This has caused disruption in
the financial markets worldwide, and in particular, to liquidity and
funding in the international banking system. Furthermore, this has
put considerable pressure onthe core business of many investment
banks, commercial banks, and insurance companies worldwide.

2. ESFG is largely affected by the Portuguese economy

The core businesses of the ESFG Group are banking and insurance
{both life and non-life) businesses. As its operations are mainly
concentrated in Portugal, the state of the Portuguese economy
affects the performance of the ESFG Group. A continued downturn
in the Portuguese economy in particular could have a material
adverse effect on the ESFG Group's business, financial conditions
and the results of its operations. The ESFG Group's ability to grow
may be restricted by slower growth in the banking and insurance
markets in which it operates.

3. ESFGis exposed to Sovereign debt

As a consequence of the recent deterioration in their financial
condition, certain EU and other governments may be unwilling or
unable to repay principal or pay interest when due, either in full or
in part, on their respective debt obligations. In the event of default,
there may be limited or nolegal recourse. ESFG's fully consolidated
subsidiary, BES, is a market maker of Portuguese sovereign debt
and also takes risk positions in such sovereign debt with the amount
of its holdings and the portfolic’s average maturity varying from
time to time, as a result of its market making and risk taking
activities and its view regarding the attractiveness of such debt.

4. Regulatory environment, additional regulatory
restrictions or requirements
The ESFG Group is subject to banking, insurance and financial
services laws and government regulations in each jurisdiction
where it conducts its business. Regulatory agencies have broad
administrative powers over many aspects of the financial services
business, which may include liquidity, capital adequacy and
permitted investments, ethical issues, money laundering, privacy,
record keeping and marketing and selling practices.

At31 December 2013, ESFG’s Core Tier | ratio, Tier | ratio and total
solvency ratio were 9.2%, 9.0% and 10.9%, respectively, calculated
under Basel I, IRB Foundation Method and reported to the Bank of
Portugal. As at 31 December 2013, ESFG's Core Tier 1 capital ratio,
under the EBA guidelines, which includes the sovereign buffer,
reached 8.4%. Under BIS IH{CRD IV/CRR)}, which will be in force as
from 1 January 2014, the Common Equity Tier | ratio, considering
the effect of the provision and emploving the transitional provisions
is 8.5%, or 8.8% considering the waiver of Article 84 (5) and the
eligibility of the minority interests in BESPAR. This result is above
the Bank of Portugal’s requirement {minimum of 7.0%}. As a holding
company ESFG continues to work with its regulator to improve on
its consolidated solvency position through its focus onits principal
Banking assets.

Banco Espirito Santo’s Core Tier tratio for the same period reached
10.6%, exceeding the Bank of Portugal’s requirement {(minimum of
10.0%}; under the EBA calculation method, the Core Tier | ratio
stood at 9.8%, also above the minimum 9.0% established by the
European authority.

Financial institutions that fall under the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision have a transitory period from 1 January 2013
to 1 January 2019 to comply with the approved rules, aimed at
strengthening financial institutions and preventing new financial
crises in the future. Basel Il rules have established the following
regulatory framework to be gradually implemented by 1 January
2019, ESFG cannot ensure that there will be no further increases
to the demands set by its requiator(s). The failure to meet
new minimum Core Tier | ratfos may have a material adverse
effect on the ESFG's financial condition and results of operations
as the Bank of Portugal, or the EBA, could, among other
measures, restrict dividend payments by BES to ESFG and/or by
BES banking affiliates.
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Risks to ESF
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continued

Jbsidiaries

5. Compliance with anti-money laundering and
anti-terrorism financing rules

The ESFG Group is subject to rules and regulations regarding
money laundering and the financing of terrorism. Monitoring
compliance with anti-money laundering and anti-terrorism
financing rules can put a significant financial burden on banks and
other financial institutions and pose significant technical problems.
Although the ESFG Group believes that its current policies and
procedures enable it to comply with applicable rules and
regulations, the ESFG Group cannot guarantee that the group~
wide anti-money laundering and anti~terrorism financing policies
and procedures completely prevent the violation of anti~-money
faundering and anti-terrorism financing rules. Any violation of
anti-money laundering and anti~terrorism financing rules, or even
the suggestion of viclations, may have severe consegquerices,
notably reputational consequences, and could have a material
adverse effect on the ESFG Group’s business, financial condition
and results of operations.

6. Market risk

The ESFG Group faces the risk of possible losses resulting from an
adverse change in the value of financial instruments due fo
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, share prices
or commodities prices.

7. Creditrisk

Risks arising from changes in credit quality and the repayment of
loans and amounts due from borrowers and counterparties are
inherent in a wide range of the ESFG Group’s businesses. Adverse
changes in the credit quality of the ESFG Group's horrowers and
counterparties, a general deterioration in Portuguese or global
economic conditions, or increased systemic risks in finandial
systems, could affect the recovery and value of the ESFG Group’s
assets and require an increase in provision for bad and doubtful
debts and other provisions.

8. Insurance risks

Part of the ESFG Group's property and casually insurance business
involves covering losses from unpredictable events such as floods,
earthquakes, hurricanes, fires, industrial explosions, terrorist
attacks and other man-made or natural disasters. The ESFG Group
also maintains technical reserves, which include reserves for
unearned premiums, unexpired risks, outstanding claims {incurred
but not reported claims) and equalisation reserves to cover
potential claims inits life insurance business and sets up provisions
for claims inits property and casualty insurance business, based on
actuarial valuations. These provisions do not represent an exact
liability. Instead, they are based on statistical projections.
Therefore, the ESFG Group cannot ensure that actual losses on
claims will not differ from the initial estimates made and recorded
in the accounts. Even though the ESFG Group normally seeks to
reduce its exposure to such events through the purchase
of reinsurance, claims related to such events could adversely
affect the ESFG Group's business, financial condition and results
of operations.

9. Operational risks

Operational risk represents the risk of losses or of a negative impact
on the relationship with clients or other stakeholders resuiting
from inadequate or negligent application of internal procedures, or
from people behaviour, information systems, or external events,
Operational risk also includes business/strategic risk, which are the
risk of losses through fluctuations in volume, business, earnings,
prices or costs as well as legal risk. Legal risk represents the risk of
losses arising from non—-compliance with the regulations in force
{duetoinadequate documentretention, failure to change processes
as required by new legislation and/or differences in the
interpretation of the law) or resulting from legal action.

10. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from present or future inability to pay liabilities
as they mature without resulting in exaggerated losses. Banks, by
virtue of their business of providing long-term loans and receiving
short-term deposits, are subject to liquidity risk. In recent years
most banks have increasingly resorted to obtaining funds from
market sources instead of from thelr traditional sources {retail
deposits), especially in countries where savings are typically scarce
due to economic stagnation, asis the case in Portugal. itis therefore
important for banks to maintain a prudent and sound management
of their liguidity risk, particularly in times of market turmoil.
Although the ESFG Group puts great effort info liguidity risk
management, focusing on maintaining surplus liquidity in the short
term, the ESFG Group is exposed to the general risk of liquidity
shortfalls and cannot ensure that the mechanisms in place to
manage such risks will be suitable to eliminate liquidity risk.

11. Competition

Structural changes in the Portuguese economy have significantly
increased the strength and scope of competitionin the Portuguese
banking and insurance sectors. These changes principally relate to
the privatisation of several sectors of the economy, including
banking and insurance, as well as to the integration of the
Portuguese economy into the EU and the introduction of the Euro.

12. Funding risk

ESFG raises funds by issuing ordinary and preferred shares and
senior, subordinated and deeply subordinated notes in the
international capital markets. It uses these funds to fund
investments and to meetthe capital requirementsset and regulated
by the Bank of Portugal. ESFG Group’s banking subsidiaries
establishes a funding policy for all types of liabilities including
customer deposits. Increased funding costs or a prolonged
interruption in renewing funding would have a material adverse
effect on the ESFG Group's financial condition and results
of operations.
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13, Technological risk

The ESFG Group’s subsidiaries are increasingly dependent on
information technology systems, which may fail, may not be
adequate to the tasks at hand or may no fonger be available. Banks,
insurers and healthcare operators are increasingly dependent on
highly sophisticated information technology (1T} systems. IT
systems are vulnerable to a number of problems, such as software
or hardware malfunctions, malicious hacking, physical damage to
vitaliT centresand computerviruses. The ESFG Group'ssubsidiaries
could face fines from regulators if its 1T systems fail to enable it to
comply with applicable banking or reporting regulations.

14. Takeoverrisk

Espirito Santo Financial Group ('ESFG') is a public company with its
shares listed on the Luxembourg, Lishon and London stock
exchanges. ESFG’s stock is principally traded on the NYSE Euronext
Lishon stock exchange (‘Lishon Exchange’). During the reporting
period the daily volume of shares traded on the Lishon Exchange
was 48,928 shares. As at 31 December 2013, Espirito Santo
International and s wholly owned subsidiary Espirito Santo
Irmaos together held, directly or indirectly, 49.41 per cent. of the
issued share capital of ESFG which equatesto 102,312,636 shares.
There can be no assurance that the interests of the majority
shareholders of ESFG will coincide with the interests of other
shareholders of ESFG. On 22 lJanuary 2014 ES Irméos bought
39.23% of ESFG from ES International {'ESI'). As of that date ES
irmaos, a fully owned subsidiary of ESI holds 49.26% of ESFG, ESI
no longer holds a direct stake in ESFG.

15. Taxrisk

Changes in tax{aws or changes in the way tax laws are interpreted
or applied in the various jurisdictions in which the ESFG Group
operates, may impact the ESFG Group's future tax labilities.
Potential future policy measures by Governments in the
jurisdictions in which the ESFG Group operates, including but not
limited to, those of the Portuguese Government with respect to the
financing of a resolution fundis), set up to support the banking
sectorin Portugal or for any other reason, may directly or indirectly
impact the ESFG Group's netincome.

16. Guarantees to Subsidiaries

ESFG has provided guarantees to certain of its subsidiaries. The
most notable are the two guarantees to ESFG's fully owned
subsidiary, ESFIL — Espirito Santo Financiére S.A., relating to debt
issued off the joint EUR 2.0 biflion EMTN and EUR 1.0 billion ECP
programmes. As of the 31 December 2013 EUR 200.0 million of the
EMTN programme and EUR 174.5 million of ECP programme had
beenutilised. ESFG has also provided a EUR700.0 million guarantee
to Banco Espirito Santo ('BES’} and which reflects the current
exposure to certain non-financial assets of Group Espirito Santo
(‘GES') ESFG, asthe guarantor, will be liable under these guarantees
asifitwere the sole debtor and not merely a surety.
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ESFG's banking and insurance operations remain constrained by
the economic environment in which its principal investments
operate; Portugal. Recent indicators point to an improving picture
however, including a significant improvement in the exiernal
balance of credit in the latter part of the reporting period.

ESFG's unaudited consolidated net results for the full year
2013, attributable to equity holders of the Company fell to
-EUR 864.0 million from EUR 313.6 million in 2012. As well as the
consolidation of the BES full vear results, and positive results from
its other banking and insurance operations, ESFG’s 2013 results
include a EUR 700.0 million extraordinary provision that relates to
guarantees provided by ESFG and which reflects the current
exposure to certain non-financial assets of Group Espitito Santo
{'GES’). The guaranteed amount was finalised after extensive
discussions with both the regulators and auditors.

« Consolidated Commercial Banking Income at ESFG fell by
14.1% year-on-year to EUR 1.82 billion, {EUR 2.11 billion in
December 2012}

« Consolidated Net interest income reached to EUR 1.09 billion,
{EUR 1.27 billion in December 2012}, a 13.7% decline year-on-
year;

= Consolidated Net Fees and Commissions fell 14.9% year-on-
year to EUR723.1 million, (EUR 8459.6 million in December
2012y

+ Consolidated Market Results declined to EUR 86.9 million,
{EUR 489.9 million in December 2012,

« Consolidated insurance Earned Premiums (Net of Reinsurance)
increased by 70.4% year-on-year to EUR 694.7 million, (EUR
407.6 million in December 2012) and includes the full
consolidation of the BES life insurance business BES Vida;

« LConsolidated Claims Incurred {Net of Reinsurance) declined
by 23.5% to EUR 483.2 million, (EUR 631.9 millionin
December 2012);

« (onsolidated Operating Expenses rose by 27.6% year-on-year
to EUR 4.11 billion, (EUR 3.22 billion in December 2012}, as
provisioning increased;

+ Consolidated Staff Costs and General Adminisirative Expenses
decreased by 5.4% vear-on-year to EUR 1.21 billion, (EUR 1.28
billion in December 2012},

+ Asofthe 31 December 2013 ESFG's Core Tier 1ratio declined
t0 9.2% following provisioning requirements at both the Bank
and at ESFG. BES' Core Tier | however rose year-on-year to
10.6% (BIS 1) or 9.8% under EBA regulations.

Solvency and Liguidity

ESFG is approved by the Bank of Portugal to use the Internal
Ratings Based {'IRB’) method for calculating minimum core capital
requirements to cover credit risk. The authorisation covers ESFG
and its subsidiaries, BES and BES! and their respective subsidiaries.
ESFG provides information on regulatory capital and capital ratios
under the BIS ('IRB’) Il regulations. ESFG is authorised to use the
internal Ratings Based {'IRB’} approach for credit risk (and TSA ~
Standardised Approach ~ TSA method for oporational risk, since
the first quarter of 2009

ESFG’s capital ratios under Basel Il at the end of the reporting
period are estimated at: Core Tier 1: 9.2%, Tier 1. 9.0% and Totai
Solvency: 10.9%. Under the EBA method, ESFG's Core Tier 1 ratio
stood at 8.4%. ESFG's solvency position was weakened by its
consolidation of the Bank’s results and extraordinary provisioning
charges at ESFG relating to the guarantee provided by ESFG and
which reflects the current exposure to certain non-financial assets
of Group Espirito Santo (‘GES’). The nature of the provision is that
certain risks exist but are not certain to happen. There has been no
cash effect on ESFG at this time.

Under BIS HI (CRD IV/CRR) which will be in force as from 1 January
2014, the Common Equity Tier | ratio, considering the effect of the
provision and employing the transitional provisions is 8.5%, or
8.8% considering the waiver of Article 84 (5} and the eligibility of
the minority interests in BESPAR. This result is above the Bank of
Portugal’s reguirement (minimum of 7.0%).

The EUR 700.0 million provision impacted negatively on ESFG's
core capital position. As a financial holding company, and regulated
entity, ESFG will continue to work with its regulator to improve on
its consolidated solvency position through its focus on its principal
Banking assets. Banco Espirito Santo's capital position remains
unaffected by ESFG’s decision to include the provision in the full
year's accounts,

The capital increase at BES Angola, the BES Vida reinsurance of its
individual life risk portfolio, a sale of a large part of the Bank's stake
in EDP and other measures reinforces BES' capital position. The
Bank was also able o improve on its total solvency position by
issuing a benchmark Tier i subordinated debt instrument. Though
not incorporated into the Bank’s capital structure BES Angola
received a Sovereign guarantee from the Republicof Angolaas part
of the republics medium Term National Development Planfor 2013
until 2017,

14 Espirito Sante Financial Group S.A. Annsl Reoont & Consondated Financial Statemenis 2013




i

-

. Kﬁ

i
Do

p

Consolidatec
results, so
financial stre

financial
vency and
ngth

continued

ESFG summary

Solvency (Basel i {RB Foundation) FY11 FYiz FY1i3
Core Tier! 83% 10.1% 9.2%
Core Tier | (EBA} - 9.6% 8.4%
Tierl 8.6%  10.1% 9.0%
Total 94%  115% 10.9%
RWA (EUR million) 66,966 65063 60,603

Basel Hl

In the context of the Basel ll prudential framework, the Eurcpean
Parliamentand the Council approved Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013
and Directive 2013/36/EU which establish the applicable
prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment
firms in the European Union.

Within the scope of the Programme of Economic and Financial
Assistance to Portugal, a set of rules to be observed by the
Portuguese banks were agreed with the European Commission,
the European Central Bank and the International Monetary Fund
and laid downin Bank of Portugal’s Notice 6/2013, 6f 30 December,
namely establishing the following:

* A minimum common equity Tier of 7.0%;

» The coefficients and percentages to be used for the calculation
of own funds during the transitory periods, including:

BES Solvency

The Bank's Core Tier fratio improved to 10.6 %, exceeding the Bank
of Portugal's requirement {minimum of 10%); under the EBA
calculation method, the Core Tier | ratio is 9.8%, also above the
minimum 9.0% established by the European Banking Authority.
Under the BIS 1, which began in January 2014, the Bank estimates
its CETlat 10.1% (8.1% fully implemented, excluding DTA).

BoP Notice 6/2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2024
1. Deduction of unrealised losses on assets

measured at fair value! 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% - -
2. Exclusion of unrealised gains on assets

measured at fair value’ 100% 50% 40% 20% 0% - ~
3. Deferred tax assets {DTA) that rely on

futureprofitability 0%  10%  20%  30%  40%  50% > 100%
4. Items that do not qualify as the minority

interests’ 80% 60% 40% 20% 0% - -
5. Recognition in consolidated own funds of

minority interets and qualifying additional

Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% -~ -
6. Additional filters and deductions

(e.g. Securitised assets, cash flow hedges) 80% 60% 40% 20% 0% - -
7. Limits for grandfathering of items

within additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 items 80% 70% 50% 50% 40% 30% -
8. Other deduction items {e.g. intangible assets, ;

equity holdings, pension funds) 20% 40% 60% 80%  100% - -

! Do notinclude in any element of own funds unrealised gains or losses on exposures to central governments

classified in the “Available for Sale” category of EU-endorsed 1AS 39 until the {AS
Deduction calculated by multiplying the applicable % to the existing DTA on the balance sheetas of

[N

5 Determined by multiplying the % by the Minority Interests surplus,

@
3%isnotreplaced
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External debt
ESFG’s external debt at the end of the period rose by EUR 587

Developments during 2013 and subsequent events:
¢ On 2 April 2014, £SFG sold its remaining 9.0% stake in Banco

million year-on-year to EUR 780.2 million {falling from a high of
EUR 1.3 billion in 2011). ESFG continues to reduce interest costs
through lability management, recognising reduced dividend
income from its subsidiaries.

On 25 November ESFG announced the launch of EUR 200.0 million
exchangeable into BES. The coupon pays 3.125% and matures
in December 2018, The proceeds were used to repurchase
£UR 135.6 million on outstanding convertible intc ESFG.

ESFG’s EMTN and ECP programmes support and guarantee the
establishment of liquidity to its fully owned subsidiary Espirito
Santo Financiére (ESFIL). In 2013 ESFIL launched and priced the
sole senior EUR 200.0 million two-year note from the EMTN
programme. Atyear-end 2013, ESFIL had utilized EUR 174.5 million
of the EUR 1.0 billion ECP programme.

ESFG is rated by two international rating agencies; DBRS and
Moody's. The ratings are:

Short Term | Long Term Comment  Dateof Razmgé
DBRS R-Z {Middle) BBE {Low)  Neg. Outiook {}7/{)5;’13%
Moody’s | NP B2 Neg. Qutlook 05/12/13

BEST to BES.

On 18 March 2014, ESFG announced that it had sold 3 10.63%
stake in Espirito Santo Satde, as part of the healthcare
company's PO, launched on 6 February. The sale, which
included the over-allotment option, leaves ESFG with 2 3.38%
direct stake in the company.

On 7 March 2014, ESFG informed that Mr. Méario Mosqueira
de Amaral, a member of the Board, had passed away.

On 14 February 2014, ESFG announced the sale of its 44.81%
stake in BES Vénétie to BES.

On 25 November 2013, ESFG announces faunch of
EUR 200.0 million exchangeable bonds and simultaneous
tender offer on outstanding convertibles,

On 13 September 2013, ESFG appoints new Chief Executive
Officer; Roger Hartmann.

On 18 July 2013, Moody's confirmed ESFG's long term debt
rating at B2 (Neg).

On 27 June 2013, Banque Privée Espirito Santo 'BPES)
announced the acquisition of LATAM unit of Hyposwiss

Privatbank AG. Foliowing the acquisition BPES will open
a branch in Zurich.

On 7 May 2013, DBRS confirmed ESFG's long term rating
at BBB (low) and short term rating at R-2 {middle).

On 29 April 2013, ESFG announced the results of the AGM,
held in Luxembourg on 26 April 2013 which included the

approval Company’s audited annual accounts, published for
review by its shareholders onthe 28 March 2013,

On 23 April 2013, ESFG announced the successful issuance
of the EUR 200 million ESFG guaranteed ESFIL two year
senior note which will mature in June 2015,

On 18 March 2013, ESFG published its un-audited,
consolidated, annual accounts for 2012,
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Consolidated Balance sheet

as at 31 December 2013 and 2017

,,,,,, 31/12/2013  31/12/2012
Assets
Cash and deposits at central banks 1828674 1444831
Deposits with banks 1148934 1126853
Financial assets held for trading 2488465 3981845
Other financial assets at fair value through profitorloss 3564118 2603463
Available-for-sale financial assets 8929778 11041235
Loans and advances to banks 4827780 4548247
Loans and advances to customers 49270667 50692878
Held-to-maturity investments 1672068 1119047
Derivatives for risk management purposes 363 391 516520
Non-current assets held for sale 3567011 3280185
Propertyandequipment 974229 982617
Investment properties 719422 797323
Intangible assets 608 269 703210
Investments in associates 606473 640614
Technical reserves of reinsurance ceded 76 899 70773
Current income tax assets 40967 28811
Deferred income tax assets 1064883 760953
Other assets 3097613 3234655
Total assets 84849651 87574060
Liabilities
Deposits from central banks 9772244 10841325
Financial liabilities held for trading 1336768 2124225
Deposits from banks 50334584 5065980
Due to customers 38093 807 35625474
Debt securities issued 12615208 15952870
Derivatives for risk management purposes 130710 125199
Investment contracls 4473921 3844020
Non-current liabilities held for sale 153 580 175945
Provisions 917020 255601
- Technical reserves of direct insurance 2643156 2488328
Current income tax liabilities 122313 253 406
Deferred income tax liabilities 96572 154736
Subordinated debt 1403188 1176482
Other liabilities 1345833 1268442
Total liabilities 78138214 79452033
Equity
Share capital 207075 207075
Treasury shares (3 459; (35 965)
Share premium 884 456 884 456
Preference shares 51367 55978
Other equity components 26418 58 100
Capital reserves non distributable 700870 700970
Fair value reserve 13208 25771
Other reserves and retained earnings 284548 {16282}
- Profit for the year atiributable 1o equity holders of the Company (864031} 313633
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 12841386 2199736
Non-controlling interest 5427301 5922291
Total equity 6711437 §122027
Total equity and liabilities 84849651  B7574060
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Income Statement

as at 31 December 2013 and 2012

(EUR thousands) 31/12/2013 31/12/2012
Interest and similar income 3629256 4097681
Interest expense and similar charges 2536761 2832460
Net interestincome 1092 495 1265221
Dividendincome 58394 73187
Fee and commission income 926760 1035146
Fee and commission expenses (203 628) {185 532}
Net {losses) from financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (254 870} (54762)
Net gains / {losses) from available-for-sale financial assets 451649 605568
Net {losses) from foreign exchange differences {2 688) {18 369)
Net {losses) from the sale of other assets {67 063) (42573}
Insurance earned premiums net of reinsurance 694668 407632
Other operating income 74843 458 937
Operating income 2730460 3544435
Staff costs 692734 777707
General and administrative expenses 518076 502 760
Claims incurred net of reinsurance 483218 631943
Change on the technical reserves net of reinsurance o 153331 {336 660)
insurance commissions o (152256) 39256
Depreciation and amortisation 119458 145779
Provisions net of reversals 695651 57 251
Loans impairment net of reversals and recoveries 1005293 794291
Impairment on other financial assets net of reversals , 109978 106737
Impairment on other assets net of reversals 323877 223070
Other operating expenses 157969 276990
Operating expenses 4107 328 3219124
Gains on disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates 3 74050
Gains arising on business combinations achieved in stages - 87273
Share of profit of associates 8823 4756
Profit / {loss) before income tax {1368043) 451350
income tax
Current fax 157432 152159
Deferred tax (321625) {41 157}
{164 193) 111002
(1203 850) 380388
Discontinued operations B (30796) {8684)
Profit / {loss) for the vear {1234 648} 371704
Attributable to equity holders of the Compan ; (864 031) 313633
Attributable to non-controlling interest {370615) 58071
(1234646) 371704

18 Erplrito Santo Finandial Group S.A. Ao




ommercial Banking

Banco Espirito Sante

Capital: EUR 5,040,124 ,063.26
Economic Participation: 27.4%
Location: Portugal

Banque Espirito Santo et de la Vénétie S.A,

Capital: EUR 75.126,760.00
Economic Participation: 56.5%
Location: France

ES Bank Panama S.A.

Capital: US Dollars 30.0 million
Economic Participation: 100.0%
Location: Panama

The ESFG Group, through its commercial banking subsidiaries, has
developed a strategy for the development of services which focus
on the needs of its clients. The ESFG Group, acting as a universal
financial group, is able to serve the needs of individual, corporate
and institutional custormers, offering a full range of financial
products and services. ESFG recognises the increasingly
sophisticated and diverse requirements of its customers and
continues to adapt its strategy to meet ifs customers needs.

Banco Espirito Santo {('BES’} is the most international of the private
Portuguese banks, marking its presence in over 25 countries and 4
continents. The Bank’s operations are based on a number of key
segments: (i) Domestic commercial banking; including retail,
corporate, institutional and private banking (i) International
commercial banking; including retail, corporate, institutional and

BES ECB exposure (EUR billions)
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private banking; (ill} Investment banking; including M&A, project
finance, acquisition finance, equity and debt capital markets,
brokerage and private equity; {iv) Asset and wealth management;
(v} Market and strategic investments; and {vi) Corporate business,

The results of ESFG’s banking subsidiary, BES, reflect the difficult
operating environment of its principal market of Portugal. Results
for the full year 2013 fell to -EUR 517.6 million from EUR 96.1
million a year earlier. The results come at a time of harsh economic
conditions in Portugal and the continued financial adjustments
programme that has led the Bank to strengthen its balance sheet
through deleveraging, resulting in a reduction in banking income,
and reinforcement of provisions. In the last quarter of the vear
however the Bank noted signs of an improving situation.

Commercial banking income declined by 14.0% year-on-year to
EUR 1.73 billion from EUR 2.01 billion in 2012. Net funding from the
ECB fell to EUR 5.4 billion from EUR 6.9 billion a year eartier. The
course of reducing funding from the ECB contributed to adecline in
NIM. Further improvements in macro conditions are expected to
support the Bank's improved performance in 2014,

Fees and commissions decreased by 16.3% vear-on-yearin 2013 1o
EUR 693.4 million from EUR 828.4 million in 2012, Excluding the
cost of the guarantee provided by the Portuguese State and non-
recurrent international fees’ book in 2012 the decline was 6.1%.
Fees and commissions linked fo corporate business, namely
financings {collections andioans), project finance and documentary
credits declined however, reflacting the economic conditions as
well as the Group’s deleveraging programme. Commission income
from credit cards and account management {commissions on
current accounts, transfers, and payment orders) were also
impacted by the current austerity policies. Commissions on
bancassurance activity declined vear-on-year, though quarterly
improvements were noted.

L -EUR 8.3bn :
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ommercial Banking

continued

The Banks Capital Markets, and other, results totalled
EUR 172. 1 millionin 2013 from EUR570.2 millionreported in 2012
BES exposure, by the end of 2013 to both Portuguese and
Spanish sovereign debt, and to a smaller extent Haly, reached
EUR 4.3 billion. 36.0% of sovereign exposure was in T-bills and
a further 11.0% in debt of between 1 and 5 years; this reflects
the well-considered duration profile of the Bank’s asset allocation.
The Bank's sovereign portfolic contributed positively to
capital markets’ results but at a diminished rate when compared
against 2012 which saw significant rate reduction in peripheral
sovereign debt.

Despite negative results for the period at BES the Core Tier | ratio
improved to 10.6%, exceeding the Bank of Portugal’s requirement
{minimum of 10%}): under the EBA calculation method, the Core
Tier fratio is 9.8%, also above the minimum 9.0% established by the
European Banking Authority. Under the BIS I, which began in
January 2014, the Bank’s CETI stood at 10.1% (8.1% fully
implemented, excluding DTA)

At the end of the second quarter BES Life insurance subsidiary
BES Vida completed a monetisation transaction of its fife risk
portfolio which contributed to the Bank's ‘Other Results’. During
the fourth quarter BES benefited from the capital increase at BES
Angola, which contributed an additional 25 bps to the consolidated
capital position of the Bank. Further operations, which included
asale of astake in EDP and two synthetic securitisation operations,
improved the Bank's overall solvency position. Under BISH
RWA's at BES fell by EUR 4.35 billion from the beginning of the year
to EUR 57.33 milfion.

Evolution of funding mix
Capital & Sub. Debt

2%

2008

= Customer Deposits  # Bancassurance

The deleveraging programme, which began in 2010, and pre-
empted the Portuguese Government’s request for assistance, has
continued through the last quarter of 2013, ESFG's banking
subsidiary’s LD ratio atyear end of 2013 felito 121%, a decrease of
some 16 percentage points. The marked improvement in the LtD
ratiowas supported by theincrease inthe year's customer deposits.
Deposits reached EUR 36.83 billion, an increase of 6.6% year-on-
year. Overall customer funds, including deposits and other on and
off balance sheet products, rose by 4.0% year-on-year from EUR
44.8 billion to EUR 46.6 billion.

Loans to Deposits Ratio*
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At the end of 2013 deposits continued to be the main asset
financing source {57.0%, or 66.0% when customer funds include
life insurance products), accounted for medium and fong term
funding accounted for 21.0%. The increase in customer funds lead
to anotable increase in the Stable Funds Ratio to 95.0%. Despite a
marked decrease in issued debt, from 42.0% in 2009 to 21.0% in
2013, BES lead the Portuguese market by refinancing EUR 750.0
million of subordinated securities.

Although overall asset quality remained resilient, the economic
situation in Portugal has had its effect on the levels of overdue
loans both in Portugal and internationally, Non-Performing Loans
{'NPU) of over 90 daysrosefrom3.9% atthe end 0f 2012 t0 5.7% by
the end of 2013. NPL formation is slowing down quarter-on-
quarter. Negative new entries in the final quarter of 2013 led to a
fall in credit at risk. Overdue loans show the same trend. The
balance of provisions for credit increased by 25.8% during the same
period to EUR 3.39 hillion, 6.8% of gross loans.

Consolidated international operations play a key role in Espirito
Santo Financial Group’s strategy of diversification. Banco Espirito
Santo'sinternational operations in Spain, Brazil and Africa make up
the Group’s strategic banking triangle. When adding its other
international interests, namely the UK and the USA, international
contributions remain positive, but to a lesser degree when
compared 1o a year earlier. Results from the Bank’s international
operations reached EUR 21.9 million following a fall in capital
markets’ results and continued provisioning. International net
interest income rose by 31.8% year-on-year to EUR 470.9 million
driven by the Bank’s Angolan operations. Fees and Commissions
declined to EUR 192.0 million. Combined, international commercial
banking rose by 1.6% year-on-year.

The increase in international net interest income helped counter
the 31.6% decline in domestic Nil. Combined international and
domestic commercial banking income, at BES, fell by -12.4%.
Consolidated banking income at BES, including capital markets
and other results, fell to EUR 1.73 billion from EUR 2.01 billion in
2012, a decline of 14.0%. Developments at BES' international
operations include the recovery in the United Kingdom driven by
the expansion of wholesale funding; the positive evolution in
France and Luxembourg were countered by lower contributions
from African operations and the negative impact of the EU crisison
the Bank’s operations in Spain.

With historic links to Africa and South America, notably Angola,
Brazil and Venezuela, the internationalisation of Portuguese
companies, the growing economic interdependence of Iberia and
the large expatriate Portuguese communities, BES has continued
to expand its international operations. At Banco Espirito Santo de
Angola (BESAY, in which BES has a 55.7% stake and management
control, total assets reached EUR 8.24 billion, a year-on-year rise of
4.0%, and its credit portfolio rose by 9.0% to EUR 5.89 billion,
Customer funds at the Bank declined by 6.0% by the end of the year.

Net income reached EUR 40.3 million with NI rising by 66.0% to
EUR 235.0 million. Results were however affected by areductionin
fees and commission and a reinforcement of provisions.

BES reinforced its positionin Moza Banco during the firsthalf of the
year by acquiring 24.0% of the capital of Grupo Geocapital and now
holds 49.0% of the share capital of Moza Banco. The Mozambican
bank’s operations continued to grow during the year with deposits
rising by 72.0% year-on-year to EUR 360.0 million.

ESFG Group’s other commercial banking operations continue to
play an important role in the Company’s strategy of international
diversification within the commercial banking sector.

In France, Bangue Espirito Santo et de la Vénétie’s ('BESV')
net income fell to EUR 4.1 million from EUR 9.6 in 2012 (which
included non-recurrent items). gross operaing income rose by
26.9% however a 7.7% increase in operating costs weighed on
results. The Bank's reorganisation programme includes the reform
of commercial operations and the outsourcing of services.
The bank’s pre-tax profit for the perfod reached EUR 6.2 million. On
14 February 2014 ESFG announced that it has sold its full 44.81%
stake in BESVY to BES. As of that date BES holds an 87.5% stake in
the French bank.

Banking activity at Espirito Santo Bank of Panama ('ESBP’) remains
positive. Individual net income in 2013 fell to USD 18.5 million from
USD 21.3 million in 2012, a decline of 13.6%. NIi however rose by
9.5% to USD 20.7 million during the period. Fees and Commissions
declined from USD 1.3 million in 2012 to USD 1.3 million in 2013,
Banking Income remained relatively unchanged at USD 21.3 million.
Staff costs and general administrative expenses rose as ESBP
develops new business channels focusing on wealth management,

Structure of liabilities and equity (EUR billions)
Equity “ Lifeinsurance “ Debt securities
== Otherliabilities &8 Deposits
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Investment Bankin

Banco Espirito Santo de Investimento S.A.

Capital: EUR 326,269,0006.00

Economic Participation: 27.4%

Location: Portugal, United Kingdom, Spain, Brazil, Poland,
United States of America, Hong Kong, India, Mexico

ESFG's investment banking activities are performed by Bance
Espirito Santo de Investimento {'BES Investimento’) which
also operates internationally under the Espirito Santo Investment
Bank brand name. its aim is to provide services to the medium, and
large, business segment as well as the institutional client segment,
and in certain specific areas, individual clients in conjunction with
private banking.

BES Investimento offers a range of specialised products and
services including advisory services on M&A, access to debt and
capital markets, brokerage services and portfolic management,
structured finance including Project Finance and Acquisition
Finance, and Private Equity fund management.

Despite constraints on investment banking activity in 2013 BES
Investimento strengthened its operations in several major
emerging markets. The bank was lead underwriter on several
operations in Mexico, Poland and Brazil in turn helping mitigate a
reduced level of operations in more developed markets. Lower
momentum in some areas more exposed to the prevailing adverse
business environment, was to some extent offset by participation
in the Portuguese Privatisation Programme, resurgence in the
Portuguese financial markets and the strong dynamics of the
Capital Markets. In the latter more than 50 operations were
concluded for a total amount of some EUR 15.0 billion. Gross
income declined to at EUR 247.6 million, 5.2% below that reported
in 2012 while Operating Costs were down by 2.5% year-on-year.
increased impairment charges on Loans and Advances year-on-
year impacted heavily on Net Income, which was down 68.0% to
EUR 7.1 millionin 2013,

The international business of BES Investimento accounted for
59.0% of consolidated Gross income,

in Portugal, reflecting the investment bank’s leadership in i3
domestic capital markets, several senjor debt issues were
completed for large Portuguese enterprises. Of particular note
were those for the energy giant, EDP {two issues totalling EUR 1.35
billion), Portugal Telecom (EUR 1.00 billion), power grid operator
REN {EUR 300.0 million} and Banco Espirito Santo {EUR 500.0
million). BES Investimento sustained itskey positionin the domestic
privatisationprocess, concludingitsadvisoryrole to the Portuguese
State in the sale of a 100% stake in ANA ~ Aeroportos de Portugal,

S.A to Vind Concessions (EUR 3.10 billion) and acting as Co-Lead
Manager in the sale of 70.0% of CTT - Correios de Portugal, S.A
which was privatised by 1PO (EUR 579.0 million}. BES Investimento
maintained its leadership role in the M&A market (by number and
value of completed transactions, according to Bloomberg). Notable
highlights were its advisory role in the Zon merger with Optimus
{EV EUR 2.37 billion) and in the PT merger with Oi (a transaction
pending completion). The bank ranked in 3rd place in equity trading
on NYSE Euronext Lisbon, with a market share of 6.7%.

In Spain, benefiting from its growing international presence and
close connections with Banco Espirite Santo, BES Investimento
focused on the corporate segment with a design to intensify cross-
border activities and develop Capital Market and Mergers &
Acquisitions business. The adverse macroeconomic and financial
environment significantly restricted activity in this country in
2013, Nevertheless, the Bank acted as Joint Bookrunner in the
issue of Empark senior secured bonds (EUR 385.0 million} and as
Co-Lead Manager in the issue of senior secured bonds for NH
Hotels. It also retained its place as number two in Iberian M&A {in
terms of value of operations completed, according to Bloomberg)
and was ranked 9th in the Spanish brokerage market (4.1%
accumuiated market share) in 2013,

in Brazil despite a deterioration in the macroeconomic outlook,
BES Investimento continued to report positive business
development. The Bank participated in various key operations,
notably leadership of the BHG - Brazil Hospitality Group
{USD 278.0 million) follow-on operation; Joint Bookrunner for the
Rodovias do Tieté Project Bonds (USD 1.07 billion), IE Madeira
(USD 350.0million) and San Antonio (USD 420.0million) operations;
and leadership of various debenture and promissory note issues on
the local market. As a result the Bank ranked among the Top 10 in
2013 in ANBIMA Long Term Fixed Income Origination. The
highlight in Corporate Finance is the ongoing provision of finandial
advisory services to Portugal Telecom in its merger with Ol

BES investimento advised on varicus project finance transactions,
particularly in the energy and transport infrastructure sectors,
enhancing is position as advisor in several funding transactions and
auctions for various concessions. BES Investimento was placed
23rd in the Bovespa ranking in terms of Brokerage business with a
0.9% market share and continued to develop new business areas. It
focused in particular on Wealth Management and Private Equity. In
the latter the highlight was the conclusion of the arrangement of
BRL 405.0 million for investment by the 2bCapital managed Fund
{jointly-held by BES Investimento and Banco Bradesco), and
destined for the Brazilian market.
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in the UK, the Bank has focused on full integration of its
organisational unit. This included downsizing activities and teams;
directing the operations of the Pan-European Brokerage {research
and sale of shares in UK and Continental Europe); narrowing
sectors and continuing sale of certain non-core business
{reinsurance} and launch of new activities (Market Making and
Proprietary Trading). During 2013 the Capital Markets unit
completed several operations. Highlights include BES
investimento’s performance as Joint Bookrunner in the placement
of 56.9 million 1QE shares {(USD 26.4 millien), 131.6 million new
Vertu shares (GBP 50.0 million}, 17 million SportsDirect.com shares
(GBP 112.2 million} and acting as Co-Lead Manager in the Just
Retirement PO (GBP 343.2 million).

in Poland, BES Investimento concentrated on cross-border M & A
and capital markets activities and continued to support business
development for several of its local and international Clients. BES
Investimento ranked 3rd place inits leadership of IPOs in Poland (in
amount of transactions). Among highlights was its role as Joint
Bookrunner in the sale of existing shares through Accelerated
Book Building of 12.25% of the capital of PKO Bank Polski (PLN
5.24 billion) and 25% of the capital of KRUK, S.A. {PLN 2520
million}, the 1PO of the power utility Energa S.A. (PLN 2.41 hillion)
and Capital Park (PLN 136.0 million). BES Investimento heid 18th
place in the ranking of Polish brokerages, with a cumulative market
share of 1.6% in 2013,

In the United States, 2013 saw the development of advisory and
distribution activities, aimed at enhancing a role in this location as
a distribution platform for products originating in other markets
where BES Investimento operates. The Bank was mandated as
Lead Arranger in the financing of Goldwind, in an amount of USD
71.0 million to build a 55 MW wind power plant in Panama and
financial advisory services to Europastry SA in its acquisition of
24.0% of Wenner Bread Products Inc. USA.

In Mexico, BES Investimento strengthened its position with
establishment of Lusitania Capital. During 2013, BES investimento
acted as Issuer for a Standby Letter of Credit for a proposed road
building project by ICA (MXN 200.0 million) and as Lead Arranger
in financing Martifer, (MXN 131.0 million) for the construction of a
30 MW photovoltaic power plant. in the area of Capital Markets,
BES Investimento acted as Joint Bookrunner on the TV Azteca
bond issue {USD 500.0 million) and as Sole Lead Manager of issues
by Crediamigo (USD 30.0 million) and Famsa (USD 50.0 million).

In India, after launching Brokerage activity in 2012, BES
Investimento extended operations fo M & A and Capital Marketsin
2013, aimed at leveraging local capacity in the sourcing of business
via its international distribution platforms, particularly in London.

in Africa, BES Investimento continued efforts to strengthen its
presence in certain major markets particularly in Angola, where it
operates through an lnvestment Banking Office created at BESAL It
also aims to operate through a local broker dealer. In Mozambique,
it seeks to bulld an investment banking business.
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Asset and Wealth

Management

Bangue Privée Espirito Santo S.A.

Capital: Swiss Francs 30.0 million
Economic Participation: 100.0%
Location: Switzerland, Portugal, Poland, Luxembourg, Spain

ES Bankers {Dubai} Limited

Capital: US Dollars 30.0 million
Economic Participation: 95.0%
Location: Dubai

ESAF - Espirito Santo Activos Financeiros SGPS 5.A.

Capital: 11.75 million Euros
Economic Participation: 24.7%
Location: Portugal

Espirito Santo Wealth Management {Europe) S.A.

Capital: EUR 1.0 miflion
Economic Participation: 160.0%
Location: Luxembourg, Spain

The ESFG's asset management are primarily operated through
ESAF - Espirito Santo Activos Financeiros, SGPS, S.A. (ESAF) with
wealth management activities operated through Bangue Privée
Espirito Santo S.ALUBPES') and ES Bankers {(Dubal) Limited (ESBD’)
and ES Wealth Management based in Switzerland, Dubai and
Luxembourg respectively. Further private banking activities in
Portugal are through Banco Espirito Santo Private Banking (‘BES
Private’} and Banco Best (BEST'). In the United States wealth
management operations are undertaken through Espirito Santo
Financial Services Miami.

AuM/AuC (%)

= BES Group 72.5%
% BPES 20.5%

ESWM 0.9%
=% ESBD 6.4%

Assets under Management (AuM’} including assets under
custody at the Group’s wealth management subsidiaries, reached
EUR 26.0 billion by year end 2013.

ESAF, the fully owned subsidiary of BES, operates within Portugal,
Spain, Brazil, Angola, Luxembourg and the United Kingdom.
ESAF's product range covers mutual funds, real estate funds and
pension funds, as well as providing discretionary and portfolio
management services.

At the end of 2013 assets under management reached EUR 15.9
billion, a year-on-year increase of 3.0% which was mainly driven by
the strong growth in asset management volume, more than making
up for the reduction in mutual funds (-20.9%), while the volume of
real estate investment funds registered a small increase of 0.4%.
Following the review of the domestic offer of mutual funds in
previous years, in 2013 the number of funds under management
remained relatively unchanged while asset volume dropped by
29.1% year-on-year due to the liguidation of two ‘ES Rendimento
Fixo’ funds.

The sharp reduction in the volume of several bond funds and mixed
investment funds also impacted on asset volume. With regards to
domestic real estafe investment funds, assets under management
rose by close to 6.0% due to the increase in the number and volume
of closed-end funds under management, while the open-end funds’
volume dropped by close to a combined 5.4% due to a reduction in
assets under management of the ‘Gespatriménio Rendimento’
fund, which fell by -6.7%, and the stabilisation of the "Logistica’
fund (+0.9%). Assets under management in the domestic pension
funds increased by 7.0%, with volumes increasing in open-end
funds and remaining flat in closed-end funds. Domestic asset
management saw a sharp rise in volume in the portfolios of
insurance companies, individual clients, institutional clients and in
the multi-manager segment. Management mandateswerereceived
for two new funds, the ‘ES Fixed Income Flexible FUND and the ‘ES
Liguidy Fund’.

International assets under management reached EUR 2.7 billien, of
which approximately EUR 1.8 billion originates from Spain and
accounted, by the end of 2013 for close to 17.0% of total assets
under management. In Luxembourg assets under management
increased by 19.3%, to close EUR 600.0 million, while dropping in

Brazil by 30.6% year-on-year.

Banking income at ESAF increased by 1.9% year-on-year, operating
costs however also decline by 0.3%. Pre-tax profit declined by
10.1% to EUR 31.3 million from EUR 34.8 million in 2012, The
decline reflects an extraordinary gain in 2012, in a Spanish
subsidiary, flowing the receipt of anindemnity under the settlement
agreement signed with the distributor Banco Pastor.
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ESFG Private Banking & Wealth Management

BPES - Banque Privée Espirito Santo (Switzerland)

ESWM - Espirito Santo Wealth Management (Luxembourg)
ESBD - ES Bankers {(Dubal)

BES DPB ~ BES Domestic Private Banking (Portugal)

ESFG's Swiss private banking operations, Banque Privée Espirito
Santo (BPES'), reported a statutory net income of CHF 1.9 million
under Swiss GAAP down from CHF 4.8 million in the previous year,
However, due 1o IFRS adjustments, the net contribution to ESFG's
consolidated results was -CHF 11.4 million from CHF 6.2 million a
year earlier. Total revenues, however, grew year-on-year by 8.0% to
CHF 56.1 million. Increased provisioning, weighted on net resuits.
Thestrengthof the Bank’s commercial activityisreflected in Assets
under Management which now exceed CHF 5.5 billion, an increase
of 14.5% year-on-year. Net new money rose by CHF 217.0 million
from the beginning of the year. The positive performance in global
markets in 2013 compensated for the continued strength of the
Swiss Franc versus the Euro.

BPES strengthened its focus on wealth management in 2013 by
acquiring the LATAM unit of Hyposwiss Privatbank AG. The
Hyposwiss team joined BPES in a newly opened Zurich branch
office during the last guarter of 2013. ESFG considers this to be an
important step in BPES development strategy of expanding
operations within the European Union. The acquisition
brought a further 700 clients to the Swiss banking operations.
At Espirito Santo Wealth Management (Europe) S.A. {'ES Wealth
Management'), controlled through BPES, AuM has reached EUR
243 0millionand was grantedthe authorization to begin operations
in Spain with the first branch opened in Madrid.

BESDPB BESInt. BESE

BES Int. - BES International Private Banking
ESBM - Espirito Santo Bank {Miami)

BEST - BEST Bank {Portugal)
BESE-BESEspana

At ES Bankers {(Dubal) Limited {(‘'ESBD’), ESFG's 95.0% owned
wealth management operations in the Middle East, reached
USD 3.5 million against USD 7.3 million a year earlier, a decrease of
52.1% year-on-year. ESBD focuses on the provision of private
banking services to high net worth individuals. The number of
private accounts rising 1o 800 by yearend 2013 from 626 accounts
in 2012, The reduction in profitability reflects the Bank’s new
strategy and repositioning for the future. Fees and Commissions
rose by over 16.5% when compared to 2012, from USD 10.1 million
in FY1Z to USD 12.1 million by FY13. Financial resuits at the Dubai
bank fell to USD 4.2 million from USD 6.3 million in 2012, The
Bank's lending to customers declined sharply as the Bank focuses
on its core business, LtD ratio fell to 34.0% from 53% a year earlier.

ESBD closed the period with Total Equity of USD 40.9 million
generating a ROE of 8.92%. Total assets increased to USD 4103
million by the end of the year, a sharp increase from USD 254.6
million in 2012, Assets under Management {{AuM’), focusing on
high net worth individuals, rose by 21.3% vyear-on-year fo
USD 1.86 billion.

Banco BEST, principally owned through BES but in which ESFG
owns a 9.0% direct stake, reported a net individual full year net
income the year of EUR 10.2 million, a rise of 21.0% vear-on-year.
The internet banking operation focuses on the provision of online
trading and investment services. The Bank reported EUR 2.3 billion
of Assets under Custody by the end of 2013,

On 2 April 2014, ESFG sold its remaining 9.0% stake in Banco BEST
to BES.
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INnsurance

BES Vida, Companhia de Seguros S.A.

Capital: EUR 50.0 million
Economic Participation: 27.4%
Location: Portugal

Companhia de Seguros Tranquilidade S.A.

Capital: EUR 160.0 million
Economic Participation: 100.0%
Location: Portugal, Spain, Angola, Mozambigue

Seguros Logo, S.A.

Capital: EUR 20.0 million
Economic Participation: 100.0%
Location: Portugal

T-Vida 5.A.

Capital: EUR 65.0 million
Economic Participation: 100.0%
Location: Portugal

Income generated from the Group's insurance operations were
consolidated from both ESFG's fully owned Companhia de Seguros
Tranquilidade, S.As (' Tranguilidade’) operations and through BEY
recent, fully acquired, consolidation of its life business; BES Vida,
Companhia de Seguros (‘BES Vida').

ESFG's insurance activities comprise both life insurance and non-
life insurance. The Company conducts its Portuguese non-life
insurance business in the non-bancassurance segment through
Tranquilidade, S.A. and Seguros Logo, S.A. {'LOGO’), and its
Portuguese life insurance business in the non-bancassurance
segment through T-Vida, Companhia de Seguros, S.A. {T-Vida'.
ESFG conducts its Portuguese life insurance business in the
bancassurance segment through BES Vida, and its Portuguese
non-lifeinsurance business in the bancassurance segment through
BES, Companhia de Seguros, S.A.{'BES Seguros’).

ESFG's insurance operations contributed positively to ESFG's full
year results for 2013 despite continued economic difficulties in
Portugal. ESFG's consolidated operations remain the largest
privately owned insurance group in Portugal with a consolidated
market share, by premiums, of 19.2%, ranked only by the state
insurer, and which compares favourably with the Group’s market
share in 2012 of 18.0%. ESFG’s market share in the non-Life sector,
through Tranquilidade Group and BES Sequros reached 10.6%. The
combined market share in the Life business of T-Vida and BES Vida
stood at 22.8%. Outside of Portugal ESFG's insurance operations
are present in Spain, Angola, Mozambique, Cape Verde, Brazil,
Argentina and Chile.

Premiums (€m) Market share Dec 2013 (%)
Ranking | Company Life Non-life Total Life  Non-life Total
1 Group CGD 2.517 1.006 3.523 272 26.1 268
2 ESFG 2108 410 2518 228 10.6 19.2'
3 BCP Fortis 1486 239 1.725 16.1 6.2 13.2
4 BP 826 - 826 89 - 6.3
5 Allianz 232 312 594 25 8.1 41
6 Santander 545 1 546 59 - 42
7 CA 384 81 465 42 21 35
78 AXA 121 V 314 435 1.3 8.1 33
; i o - R 407 - ;5 S 53 31
10 Zurich 83 246 329 O§ 6.4 2.5
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Consolidated Insurance Earned Premiums (Net of Reinsurance)
rose by 70.4 % to EUR 694.7 miition in 2013 from EUR 407.6 million
a year earlier. Consolidated Claims Incurred (Net of Reinsurance)
decreased by 23.5 % to EUR 483.2 million from EUR 631.9 million
at year-end 2012, Results include the full consolidation of
both ESFG's direct investments in Tranquilidade and the BES
bancassurance businesses.

Tranquilidade acts as a holding company for ESFG's interests in
T-Vida, LOGO, BES Seguros and others. Tranquilidade’s net
individual income reached EUR 19.0 million, 3 year-on-year
increase of 3.0%. Technical results, net of re-insurance, felt during
the period by 7.5% to EUR 59.0 million. These results were affected
by storms in the first quarter of 2013 Financial results stood at EUR
78.4 million in 2013. Operating costs stood at EUR 66.9 million.
Tranguilidade’s individual market share stood at 83%.
Tranquilidade’s market share in workers’ compensation, fire and
other damage and motor stood at 10.8%, 8.3% and 8.4%
respectively by year end 20153,

At Tranguilidade insurance earned premiums (net of reinsurance)
declined by 4.8% year-on-year to EUR 279.2 million from EUR 293.2
million a year earlier. Individual claims at Tranquilidade and changes
on technical reserves and commissions reached EUR 285.4 million,
compared to EUR 294.9 million in 2012, a decrease of 3.2%.The
combined ratio at Tranquilidade rose from 94.3% to 95.2%. The
expense ratio stood at 30.9%. The marginal increase in the combined
ratic is explained by the fall in premiums by 1.0%.

Solvency ratios (%)
T-Vida
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2012 2013

T-Vida reported an individual net income of EUR 4.3 million, a year-
on-year decrease of 5.2%. Premiums however increased by 24.7%.
Risk products continue to be the main focus for ESFG's insurance
operations in its Life business though the largest growth was in
PPR’s products {retirement savings plans). The technical margin
increased by 5.6%, {from FUR 5.8 million to EUR 6.2 miffion), mainly
due to anincrease in premiums. Operating costs increased by 5.6%
year-on-year to EUR 6.1 million.

ESFG's Angolan and Mozambican insurance operations, through
Tranquilidade, which began in 2012, report individual results of
FUR 0.0 million and -EUR -0.9 million respectively but are expected
to contribute positively to full year results in 2014

Tranquilidade’s direct insurance business, LOGO, reported that its
customer hase had reached 116,335 clients and that gross written
premiums had amounted to EUR 19.8 million. LOGO is currently the
third largest direct insurer in Portugal. The motor claims ratio at
LOGO decreased hy 5.7 p.p. from 79.7% to 74.0%.

AdvanceCare, ESFG's managed care platform for healthcare
insurers provides the link between the Company's insurance
operations and healthcare providers, serving a total of 918.371
members. The care manager continues to provide strong results, in
the period ending 2013 its net individual income stabilized at EUR
2.2 million from EUR 2.3 million a year earlier. AdvanceCare is a
joint venture between Tranquilidade and United Health Group. in
2013 the managed care company is estimated to have handled one
third of healthcare claims made through all insurance companies in
Portugal. Tranquilidede maintains management control.
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Insurance

continued

Solvency ratios (%)
Bancassurance BES Seguros
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Tranquilidade’s assistance service provider, Europ-Assistance
{Portugal), jointly held with Europ Assistance Holding (France)
reported a44.4% increase in individual results to EUR 4.0 million by
yearend 2013 from EUR 2.8 million a year earlier. Tranquilidade hag
a 47.0% economic stake in the operations.

ESFG's assurfinance programme of cross-selling banking products
through its agents accounted for 19.1% of new clients at BES in
2013 and represents 9.5% of the total increase in retail Assets
under Management. Tranquilidade’s distribution network is made
up of more than 1,700 points of sale, of which 35 are own branches
and 173 tied agent stores.

Solvency ratios (%}
Bancassurance BES Vida
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At BES Vida, fully owned by BES, is the Group’s bancassurance
business which comprises of both traditional and unit-linked
insurance products as well as pension plans. Results at the Life
insurance operations were positively influenced by the reinsurance
of its life risk portfolio under which all the inherent risks were
transferred though BES Vida maintained the management of the
contracts and the relations with clients. The operation contributed
approximately EUR 150.0 million to the Company's individual
results of EUR 302.8 million by year end 2013.

The year was also marked by a sharp recovery of activity that was
driven by growth in production of unit-finked products and pension
plans. Results were strengthened by an increase in insurance
production, which reached EUR 2.0 billion in premium volume, a
40.9% increase year-on-year. Unit-linked products and pension
plans saw strong growth while claims’ volume fell sharply (-31.7%)
as finandial products’ redemption volume declined. The overall
effect was 24.9% increase in actuarial reserves to EUR 7,16 hillion,
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(Other subsidiaries

ESFIL - Espirito Santo Financiére S.A.

Capital EUR 135.0 million
Economic Participation: 100.0%
Location: Luxembourg

AdvanceCare ~ Gestdo de Servico S.A.

Capital: EUR 4.5 millien
Economic Participation: 51.0%
Location: Portugal

Associates

Europ Assistance - Companhia Portuguesa de Seguros de
Assistencia, S.A.

Capital: EUR 7.5 million
Economic Participation: 47.0%
Location: Portugal

Espiritc Santo SatGde S.A.

Capital: EUR 95,52,254.0
Economic Participation: 12.42%
Location: Portugal

Espirito Santo Financiére S.A. (ESFIL) is the fully owned subsidiary
of ESFG whose strategy is the acquisition of interests in other
Luxembourg and foreign companies and investments in industrial
or trading companies. It participates in the organisation and
development of industrial or trading companies by granting
assistance to such companies in the form of loans, guarantees.
in particular, ESFIL held ESFG's interests in BPES and the BESV.
On 14 February 2014 ESFG announced that it has sold its full
44.81% stake in BESV 1o BES. As of 14 February BES holdsan 87.5%
stake in the Bank. ESFiL is also engaged in the financing of certain
non-financial activities of the Espirito Santo Group. In 2013 ESFIL
contributed positively to the consolidated results of the Company
with an individual net income of EUR 11.9 million against
EUR 21.4 million at the end of 2012,

ESFG supports a European Medium Term Note (EMTN') and STEP
compliant European Commercial Paper (‘'ECP’). Through these
programmes ESFG guarantee the activities of its fully owned
subsidiary ESFIL within the two programmes,

In2013 Espirito Santo Salde (‘'ESS ) contributed to Other Operating
fncome. The health care unif operates 18 hospitals {of which it
owns 17), out-patient clinics, residential hospitals, senior care
residencies, aswelias participatinginthe Public-Private Partnership
at the Loures Hospital in Portugal.

The private healthcare sector proved resilient in 2013 in contrast
to the public healthcare sector in Portugal, which continues to
suffer from on-going budgetary constraints. The private healthcare
sector, in which ESFG's healthcare subsidiary ESS is a market
leader, saw anincrease intop-line growth as demand shifts towards
private healthcare services.

At year end 2013 ESFG held a 31.8% economic interest in ESS, or
42.9% voting rights when consolidating participations held by
ESFG’s subsidiaries. On 12 February 2014 Espirito Santo Salde
('E5S') began trading on the NYSE Euronext exchange foliowing a
successful PO launched on 6 February 2014, As part of the [PO
ESFG offered up for sale a stake of 14.01% in the company, which
included an over-allotment option. At the close of the share
stabilisation period, which ended on the 13 March 2014, ESFG
remained with a total of 3,225,283 shares. On 18 March 2014 ESFG
announced that it held a 3.38% direct stake in the healthcare
company. Management control is held by Espirito Santo Health
Care Investments (ESHC) which holds a stake of 51.0%. As of that
date ESFG holds a 17.7% stake in ESHCL
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orporate Governance

Report

The publication of a Corporate Governance Reportis arequirement
of Directive 2004/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 21 April 2604 and Luxembourg Law of 19 December
2002, Art 68,

The “Ten Principles of Corporate Governance’ issued by the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange recommend that listed companies
should publish a Corporate Governance Chapter in its annual
report, describing all the relevant events related to Corporate
Governance which took place in the preceding financial year.

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A. ('ESFG'} is a limited liability
company {société anonyme) incorporated under Luxembourg law
on 28 November 1984 for an unlimited duration. ESFG is a financial
holding company, holding and administering participatinginterests
in other companies. it does not conduct business of its own.

The ESFG Group ('ESFG and subsidiaries’) is engaged principally in
banking and insurance and its operations are concentrated mainly
in Portugal. Banking activities, which are conducted primarily
through Banco Espirito Santo S.A. ('BES ) and its direct subsidiaries
{'BES Group'), comprise commercial banking, investment banking,
asset management and stockbrokerage. Insurance activities
comprise life insurance, non-life insurance and direct insurance
and are conducted through the Companhia de Seguros
Tranquilidade S.A. and its direct subsidiaries and through its
bancassurance operations at BES.

Organisation

ESFG's structure is composed of a General Shareholders’ Meeting,
a Board of Directors, which comprises an Executive Committee and
2 Stock Option Committee, an Audit Committee, the External
Auditors and the Internal Control Functions: Risk Management,
Compliance and Internal Audit.

Board of Directors
Ricardo Espirito Santo Silva Salgado, Chairman

José Manuel Pinheiro Espirito Santo Silva, Vice Chairman
Antdnio Luis Roguette Ricciardi

Mario Mosqueira do Amarall

Manuel Fernando Moniz Galvdo Espirito Santo Silva
Jackson Behr Gilbert

Patrick Monteiro de Barros

Robert Studer?

Philippe Guiral

Manuel Antonio Ribeiro Serzedelo de Almeida’
José Maria Espirito Santo Silva Ricciardi

Pedro Guilherme Beauvillain de Brito e Cunha
Carlos Augusto Machado de Almeida Freitas

Anibal da Costa Reis Oliveira

Othman Benjelloun

José Pedro Torres Garcia Caldeira da Silva

Yves Alain Marie Morvan

Fernando Pedro Braga Pereira Coutinho

José Carlos Cardoso Castella

Bernard Basecqgz

Gherardo Laffineur Petracchini

Manuel Guerrero Péman

José Manuel Ruivo da Pena

Luls Antonio Burnay Pinto de Carvalho Daun e Lorena
Roger Henri Hartmann?®

Jodo Filipe Carvatho Martins Pereira®

iDiedinMarch 2014

2 Retired at AGM in April 2013
3 Retired in September 2013

4 Joined September 2013

5 Joined July 2013
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ESFG Banking structure
{As at 31 December 2013}

BESY BES Group ESBP

Commercial and Investment Banking  BESV - Banque Espirito Santo et de la Vénétie BPES - Banque Privée Espirito Santo

* Wealth Management ESBD - ES Bankers (Dubai} Limited ESBP - ES Bank Panama
BEST - BEST Bank

ESFG Insurance structure
{Asat 31 December 2013}

(el
5

: L 1000%
: ) ¥

)

! Trariguilidade BES Segﬁms

+ 100, :

i Tranquilidade  Tranquilidade

g Esumédica {(Angola)  (Mozambique) ;

Non-Life Insurance Banking *Europ Assistance operations in Portugal, Brazil, Argentina and Chile
Assisted Service Provider

= ife Insurance

ESFG Organisation structure

v

External Auditors

Notes: On 14 February 2014 ESFiL soldits s
inBanco BEST to BES. As of that date BES ho!

10 BES Asofthatdate BESholds 87.5% of BESY. On 2 Aprii 2014 £SFG sold its remalning 9.0% stake
% stake in BEST.

W
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Audit Committee

Fernando Pedro Braga Pereira Coutinho

José Manuel Ruivo da Pena

Luis Antonio Burnay Pinto de Carvatho Daun e Lorena

Executive Committee

Roger Henri Hartmann

Gherardo Laffineur Petracchini

José Carlos Cardoso Castella

José Pedro Torres Garcia Caldeira da Silva
Jodo Filipe Carvalho Martins Pereira

Stock Options Committee
Jackson Behr Gilbert
Bernard Basecqz

Accounts and Financial Reporting

Filipe Worsdeli — Chief Financial Officer and Investor Relations
Jean-Luc Schneider — Chief Accounting Officer

Jorge Penedo -~ Chief Prudential Reporting Officer

internal Control Function Representatives
Carlos Calvario - Risk

Nelson Martins - Internal Audit

Jodo Martins Pereira - Compliance

Company Secretary
Teresa de Souza

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of ESFG is responsible for defining general
strategy and policy and supervising the Executive Committee.

The Board of Directors is vested with all the powers to perform all
acts necessary or useful for accomplishing the corporation’s
objects. All powers not expressly reserved by law or hy the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation fo the general meeting of
shareholders are in the competence of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors is authorised fo issue shares in or several
tranches within the limits of the authorised capital on such terms
and conditions as it shall approve butincluding such issue premium
asitmay setforth. The Board of Directorsis in particular authorised
and empowered to issue such new shares against payment in cash
or kind, by conversion of clalms or in any other manner, more in
particular by the conversion into capital of convertible bonds or
notes that may from time to time be issued. The Board of Directors
is authorised to cancel or limit the preferential subscription rights
in case of an increase in capital within the limits of the authorised
capital. Such authorisation is valid for a period of five years from
the date of the publication of the minutes of the extraordinary
general shareholders’ meeting having decided to create an
authorised capital and may be renewed for further periods of five

years each by decision of a general meeting of shareholders, for
such portion of the authorised capital as shall at such time remain
unissued for any other amount determined by the general meeting
of shareholders. The Board of Directors may delegate to any duly
authorised person the duties of accepting subscriptions and
receiving payment for shares representing part or all of the issue of
new shares under the authorised capital,

The Board of Direciors is responsible for establishing the general
principies of risk management and control, defining the objective
risk profile for ESFG, including establishing both global and specific
risk limits and ensuring that the Company has the necessary
competences and resources for the purpose.

In accordance with the legislation on insider dealing and market
manipulation, the Board of Directorsimplements ‘Blackout Periods’
{generally two weeks before any results’ announcement) when
trading in ESFG’s shares is not permitted. It has established
procedures for notification on any transactions on the company’s
shares outside these blackout periods,

The Board of Directors meets at the request of its Chairman, but
a meeting must be convened if at least two directors so require.
Written notices of the meeting are given at least twenty four hours
before the date of the meeting. At a Board Meeting a resolution
is adopted by maiority of those directors present or represented
at the meeting. In case of an emergency, a written decision signed
by all directors as though the meeting was duly convened and held,
isvalid.

During 2013 Mr. Robert Studer and Mr. Manuel Ribelro Serzedelo
de Almeida retired, Mr. Roger H.Hartmann and Mr. Jodo Filipe
Carvatho Martins Pereira were appointed as directors.

The current Board of Directors is composed by twenty four
directors. Their present mandate, including those of the directors
whoformpartoftheExecutive, Auditand Stock Option Committees,
fasts for 6 years. It started on the 30th May 2008 and will expire in
April 2014, when the Annual General Meeting will be held. The
directors are elected by the shareholders’ meeting and are re-
eligible and may be revoked at any time by the General Meeting,
with or without cause. In the event of one or more vacancies in the
office of a director, the remaining directors may elect a director to
fill such a vacancy in accordance with the provisions of the faw. In
this case the general meeting ratifies the election in its next
meeting. The direclor so elected shall terminate the term of office
of the director he is replacing.

Some of the direcfors represent maior shareholders, others
are representatives of major subsidiaries and are independent. The
fact that the main subsidiaries are represented at board level
facilitates the process of supervision and is the principal link with
these subsidiaries.
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The remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors
is determined on a vearly basis by the annual general meeting
of shareholders.

During 2013 the Board of Directors met nine times with an average
of 71.31% attendance rate at the meetings.

information on the Directors

Ricardo Espirito Santo Silva Salgado, Chairman

Date of birth: 25/06/1944; Nationality: Portuguese; First
appointed: 28/11/1984; Independent: No.

Academic qualifications: Degree in Economics from Instituto
Superior de Ciéncias Econdmicas e Financeiras of the
Universidade Técnica de Lisboa.

Posts held in other listed companies

Chairman ~ Banco Espirito Santo de Investimento S.A.
Vice Chairman - Board of Directors of Banco Espirito Santo
and Chairman of its Executive Committee.

José Manuel Pinheiro Espirito Santo Silva, Vice-Chairman
Date of Birth: 02/05/1945; Nationality: Portuguese; First
appointed: 27/03/1987; independent: No.

Academic qualifications: Degree in Economics, specialising in
Company Administration and Management, Evora University.

Posts held in other fisted companies
Director - Banco Espirito Santo S.A., Banco Espirito Santo de
investimento S.A.

Antonio Luis Roquette Ricciardi

Date of Birth: 06/04/1519; Nationality: Portuguese;

First Appointed: 28/11/1984; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Degree from Faculdade de Ciéndias,
Lishon; Degree from Academia Naval, Lisbon, Degree from
Escola de Aviacdo Naval, Lishon,

No posts held in other fisted companies

Mario Mosgueira do Amaral®

Date of Birth: 14/11/1932; Nationality: Portuguese; First
appointed: 28/11/1984; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Degree in Economics from Instituto
Superior de Ciéncias Econdmicas e Financeiras, Lishon.

Posts in other listed companies
Director ~ Banque Marocaine du Commerce Exterieur.

Manuel Fernando de Moniz Galvao Espirito Santo Silva

Date of Birth: 20/07/1958; Nationality: Portuguese;

First Appointed: 08/11/1995; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: B.A Business Administration, Richmond
College, London International Bankers' Course at Barclays Bank
and Midland Bank, London; Inter Alpha Banking Course, INSEAD,
Fontainebleau.

Posts heid in other listed companies
Director - Banco Espirito Santo.

Jackson Behr Gilbert

Date of Birth: 13/09/1932; Nationality: American, First appointed:
12/06/1990; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Degree in Law, University of Virginia Law
School, USA.

No posts held in other listed companies

Patrick Monteiro de Barros

Date of Birth: 03/02/1945; Nationality: French and Portuguese;
First appointed: 24/12/1994; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Degree from Ecole Superieure de
Commerce et Administration d’Entreprise, Paris.

No posts held in other listed companies

Philippe Guiral

Date of Birth: 18/11/1948; Nationality: French;

First appointed:10/11/2000; independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Master in Economics, University
of Montpellier, LA E. (business administration) - Montpellier
Advanced Executive Program, Anderson School at UCLA,
Los Angeles.

Posts held in other listed Companies
Director {non executive) - Banco Espirito Santo de
Investimento S.A.

José Maria Espirito Santo Silva Ricciardi

Date of Birth: 27/10/1954; Nationality: Portuguese; First
appointed: 25/05/2001; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Degree in Sciences Economigues
Appliguées, Université Catholique de Louvain, Faculté des
Sciences Economigues, Sociales et Politiques, Institut
d’Administration et de Gestion, Belgium.

Posts held in other listed Companies

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and President of the
Executive Committee of Banco Espirito Santo de Investimento,
Director - Banco Espirito Santo S.A.
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Pedro Guilherme Beauvillain de Brito e Cunha

Date of Birth: 12/07/1951; Nationality: Portuguese:

First appointed: 25/05/2001; Independent: No.
Academic Qualifications: Degree in Business Studies from
College of Distributive Trades, London.

Director — Espirito Santo Satde S.A.

Carlos Augusto Machado de Almeida Freitas

Date of Birth: 19/02/1950; Nationality: Portuguese;
First appointed: 25/05/2001; Independent: No.
Academic Qualifications: Secondary Education.

No posts held in other listed companies

Anibal da Costa Reis Oliveira

Date of Birth: 24/09/1935; Nationality: Portuguese;

First appointed: 25/05/2001; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Course on General Commercial
Management, Porto; Degree in Chemical Engineering, Germany.

Posts held in other listed companies
Director - Banco Espirito Santo.

Othman Benjelloun

Date of Birth: 01/11/1932; Nationality: Moroccan:

First appointed: 31/05/2002; Independent: Yes.
Academic Qualifications: Engineer, Ecole Polytechnigue
de Lausanne, Switzerland.

Posts held in other listed companies
Chairman - BMCE Bank.

José Pedro Torres Garcia Caldeira da Silva, Member

of the Executive Committee

Date of Birth: 22/02/1959; Nationality: Portuguese;

First appointed: 31/05/2002; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: BA in Economics, Universidade
Catdlica Portuguesa MA Operational Research and Systems
Engineering - Universidade Técnica de Lishoa; MBA Insead,
Fontainebleau,

No posts heid in other listed companies

Fernando Pedro Braga Pereira Coutinho, Chairman

of the Audit Committee

Date of Birth: 26/12/1946; Nationality: Portuguese;
First appointed: 08/07/2005; independent; Yes.
Academic Qualifications: Degree in Economics, Instituto
Superior de Ciéncias Econémicas e Financeiras, Lishon.

No posts held in other listed companies

Yves Alain Marie Morvan

Date of Birth: 11/04/1939; Nationality: French; First Appointed:
08/07/2005; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Degree in Government Studies,

Harvard University; MA in International Affairs from John Hopkins
University, USA,

No posts held in other listed companies

José Carlos Cardoso Castelia, Member of the

Executive Committee

Date of Birth: 13/09/1949; Nationality: Portuguese; First
appointed: 25/05/07; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Degree in Business Administration,
Degree in Finance, ISCEF, Universidade Técnica de Lishoa.

No posts held in other listed companies

Bernard Basecqz

Date of Birth: 15/10/1945; Nationality: Belgian; First appointed:
30/05/2008; Independent: Yes.

Academic Qualifications: Doctor in Law, Université Catholique de
Louvain, Belgium; MBA ~ Finance, Michigan State University, USA.

Posts held in other [isted companies
Director (non-executive) - Banco Espirito Santo de Investimento.

Gherardo Laffineur Petracchini, Chief Executive Officer

and Chairman of the Executive Committee

Date of Birth: 18/12/1961; Nationality: French and Italian;

First appointed: 30/05/2008; Independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: Degree in Agricultural Engineering from
Ensia - Ecole Nationale Supérieure des Industries Agricoles et
Alimentaires, Paris; MBA from ESSEC — International Business
School, Paris.

No posts held in other listed companies

Manuel Guerrero Peman

Date of Birth: 27/11/1949; Nationality: Spanish; First appointed:
30/05/2008; Independent; Yes.

Academic Qualifications: Degree in Law, Universidad
Complutense de Madrid.

No posts held in other listed companies

José Manuel Ruivo da Pena

Date of birth: 05/11/1940

Independent: Yes,

Academic Qualifications: Degree in Corporate Management,
ISCTE, Lisbon; qualification from the International Advanced
Executive Program, JL Kellog Graduate School of Management,
Northwestern University, Chicago.

No posts held in other listed companies
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Luis Anténio Burnay Pinto de Carvalho Daun e Lorena
Date of Birth: 11/10/1944

Independent: Yes.

Academic Qualifications: 2nd Year of Law,

Lisbon Classical University,

No posts held in other listed companies

Roger Henri Hartmann

Date of Birth: 16/07/1957; Nationality: Swiss, Luxembourgish;
First Appointed: Aprit 2013; independent: No.

Academic Qualifications: master in Economics, Ecole des HEC,
University of Lausanne, Switzerland; Advanced Management
Program, The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania, USA.

No posts held in other listed companies

Joao Filipe Carvalho Martins Pereira

Date of Birth: 20/08/1957; Nationality: Portuguese;

First Appointed July 2013; Independent; No.

Academic Qualifications: Higher Degree in Management

and Business Administration, Instituto Superior de Economia,
Lisbon, Portugal; Registered Statutory Auditor, Registered
Statutory Accountant.

No posts held in other listed companies

Audit Committee

Fernando Pedro Braga Pereira Coutinho, Chairman
José Manuel Ruivo da Pena

Luls Antonioc Burnay Pinto de Carvalho Daun e Lorena

The current mandate of the members of the Audit Committee
expires on the date of the AGM in 2014 to coincide with that of the
other directors.

The powers, responsibilities, and functioning rules of the Audit
Committee are included in the Company’s Articles of Association
{articles 20, 21 and 22) which are available for public consultation
at the Company’s corporate site.

During 2013 the Audit Committee maintained regular contact
with ESFG's internal control functions - internal audit and risk
management, in particular — to follow their most relevant
activities, having also attended the Enlarged Executive Commitiee
meetings with representatives of the internal control functions
of BES Angola, Banque Privée Espirito Santo (Switzerland), Bangue
Espirito Santo et de la Vénétie (France), and BES Spanish Branches.
Atthose meetings, the ESFG’s Compliance, Risk Management, and
internal Auditrepresentatives have also made presentations on the
work carried out by each of the internal control functions at Group
fevel. These regular meetings contribute to a better understanding
of the internal control issues at selected subsidiaries level, as well
as to follow up the activity of the representatives of the internal
control functions at group level.

As requested by the Bank of Portugal (BdP’), in June 2013 the
AuditCommitteehasissueditsannualreportontheappropriateness
and effectiveness of the ICS {Internal Control System’} as a whole,
at group level, and confirming that the internal control systems in
place at the various subsidiaries, and coordinated at holding level,
remain coherent among them.

The Audit Committee keeps in regular contact with the Global Risk
Manager on ESFG funding and capital plans within the scope of
Basel f and Nl Furthermore, the Audit Committee continued to
monitor in 2013 the FATCA developments which affect the ESFG
subsidiaries, in close contact with both the ESFG and GBES FATCA
Group representatives.

Three internal audits at ESFG level were completed in the vear
covering (i) the internal control system minimum reguirements, (if)
the financial reporting process, and (i) the market discipline
reporting process.

in October 2013, the Bank of Portugal {'BdP") launched the so
called ETRICC GE, a special purpose audit exercise covering the
impairments in the credit portfolios as of September 30, 2013 of
the 12 major corporate groups in Portugal, including the non
financial sector of the Espirito Santo Group {'GES'), at the 8 major
financial entities supervised by the BdP, including the ESFG group.
Since that date the Audit Committee has been heavily involved (i in
direct discussions with the BdP on the subject, as well as (i} in
replying to specific requests from that supervisory entity, (i} in
following very closely the contacts between the ESFG Board of
Directors and the BdP, (iv) in ensuring that the results of those
discussions are properly reflected in the group consolidated

ccounts and its prudential capital ratios, and (v} in obtaining
timely information about the positions taken by the group External
Auditor regarding these matters.

The Audit Committee has been in permanent contact with the
group External Auditor throughout the financial year, Further to
the meetings to discuss in detail both the annual audit plan and the
annual audit closing summary, the Audit Committee reviewed the
External Auditor professional independence statement, and
discussed and approved the terms of their proposals for the
recurring audit services to be provided to the group worldwide,
and also the proposals for non audit services, as and when these
services are required. The non audit services, other than tax
consultancy, provided to the group worldwide in 2013 represented
some 10% of the total fees charged to the group as a whole in the
year {some EUR 6.6 million).

in the performance of its functions the Audit Committee analysed
the ESFG's financial statements, discussed these with the Chief
Accounting Officer and the External Auditor, and reported to the
Board its conclusions as appropriate,
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Concerningthe ESFG sinsurancesubsidiaries, namely Tranquilidade,
Tranquilidade Vida, and Logo, the Audit Committee had meetings
with both the Risk and Internal Control Officer, and the Internal
Auditor of these companies. The level of those companies
preparation for the Solvency Il was assessed. It is expected that
full implementation will take place as from January 2016.

in addition to the work carried out on a permanent basis by its
members to discharge their responsibilities, the Audit Committee
members met formally eight times in 2013, Except for one meeting,
which was attended by two members only, all three members were
present at the meetings, the related minutes being distributed to
the other Board members for information purposes.

Executive Committee

Roger Henri Hartmann, Chairman
Gherardo Laffineur Petracchini

José Carlos Cardoso Castella

José Pedro Torres Garcia Caldeira da Sitva
Jodo Filipe Carvalho Martins Pereira

Mr. Roger Hartmann joined the board of Directors in September
2014 and became Chairman of the Executive Committee on the
same date, succeeding Mr. Gherardo Laffineur Petracchini.

The Executive Committee assists the Board of Directors in the
performance of it duties, namely:

¢ The development and implementation of strategy, operational
plans, policies, procedures and budgets;

« The monitoring of operating and financial performance;

« The assessment and control of risk through the three appointed
functions of risk management, compliance and internal audit
functions;

e Making sure that the risk management system is effectively
and consistently implemented at ESFG and its subsidiaries,
to continuously monitor for adeguacy and effectiveness,
as well as monitoring the progress of corrective measures.

The Executive Committee met nineteen times during 2013
All members were present at 12 of the meetings, with 67% at 4
of the meetings, 83.3% at one, 40% at one and 80% at another
of the meetings.

Nomination Committee

The Board of Directors assessed the need to establish a nomination
committee to assist in the selection of directors. They did not
consider it necessary, given the specific logic prevailing in the
composition of ESFG's Board of Directors, where representatives
from major shareholders and major subsidiaries are represented
together with a sufficient number of independents.

Remuneration Committee

ESFG as a holding company does not have activities of its own.
The Board of Directors recognizes that its members include
representatives of some of its principal shareholders and of major
subsidiaries and as a consequence are remunerated by these
entities and not directly by ESFG. Seven directors are paid a fixed
remuneration by ESFG, including the three members of the Audit
Committee. The remuneration of other members of the board
consists of attendance fees. The remuneration of the directors is
determined by the general meeting of shareholders. The total
remuneration recefved by ESFG's board members in 2013 was
EUR 2,274,432 0.

Stock Option Committee
The Stock Option Committee is composed of two directors:
Jackson Behr Gilbert and Bernard Basecqz.

The Stock Option Commitiee meets whenever a request for the
exercise of an option is recelved and the primary function of the
Committee is to ensure that the rules put down in the Stock Option
Plan are complied with. The Commitiee did not meet in 2013,
No Stock Options were exercised in 2013,

internal Control and Risk Management

ESFG is a Luxembourg based company which, due to its primary
listing in Luxembourg, follows the Bourse de Luxembourg’s
recommendations to establish rules in the areas of financial
reporting, internal control and risk management.

The ESFG Group is supervised on a consolidated basis by the Bank
of Portugal. Bank of Portugal’s regulations require that institutions
under its supervision have in place an internal control structure
under the terms of Bank of Portugal's Notice no. 5/2008, to
guarantee effective compliance with the legal cobligations and
duties to which institutions are subject and the appropriate
management of the risks inherent to the activities developed.

Efficient risk management and control has played a fundamental
role in the balanced and sustained growth of the ESFG Group.

ESFG's appointed internal Audit and Compliance Officers are the
same who are responsible for these functions at the level of BES
Group, which includes some of its most important subsidiaries.

BES has in place an effective internal control system, managed
by its Compliance Depariment which has set up a separate
independent unit, the internal Control System Management Unit
responsible for all the assessment, systematisation, monitoring
and maintenance tasks required by the bank’s internal control
system. It also endeavours to guarantee an cverall perspective and
integrated management of the entire internal control system of the
BES Group as the guarantor of the reliability of the financial
information, the protection of assets and the adeguate prevention
of risks.
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At operational level the risk committee of each operating company
is responsible for monitoring the evolution of its integrated risk
profile, and for proposing methodologies, policies, procedures
and instruments to deal with all types of risk faced by that company.
In addition the ESFG Group relies on the senior management of
each subsidiary to help monitor risk. The senior management of the
ESFG Group of companies have extensive knowledge of the
markets and activities in which they operate.

ESFG's Board of Directors, through its Executive Committee, is
responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate and
effective internal control system. The Executive Committee is also
responsibie for the maintenance of asolid risk management system,
which within the framework of an adequate overall control
environment guarantees the adequacy and effectiveness of ESFG's
internal control system.

QOver the last three years the Executive Committee has organized
meetings with the internal control representatives at most of its
banking subsidiaries in order to obtain better knowledge of these
entities, better understanding of the issues they face and the
performance of the internal control representatives at the level of
these subsidiaries and relies on the assistance of the Internal
Control System Managementat BES for information as well. During
2013 meetings were held with representatives from BES Angola,
Bangue Privée Espirito Santo S.A., BES Spain and Banque Esplrito
Santo et de la Vénélie.

Risk Management Function
Head of the Risk Management Function: Mr. Carlos Calvério

The ESFG Group's risk management strategy is consistent with the
regulatory and economic vision implicit in the new regulatory
framework proposed by the Basel Committee. ESFG monitors and
evaluates risk on a group-wide basis, which enables management
to actively control the impact of the identified and measured risks
onthe results of the ESFG Group.

At the fevel of the BES Group the risk management function
operates independently from other areas and is organised in sucha
way as to manage the main risks to which the BES Group is exposed:
credit, market, liquidity; on-balance sheet interest rate and
operational risks. The management and monitoring of risk, at the
BES Group operational level, is centralised in the Global Risk
Department, whose activities are aimed at ensuring best practices
in risk management.

At the operating fevel, the risk committee of each operating
company is responsible for monitoring the evolution of its
integrated risk profile, and for proposing methodologies, policies,
procedures and instruments to deal with the types of risk faced
by each company.

in addition, the Risk Management Function must also ensure
consistency in the process of preparation of the internal risk
management reports of each subsidiary.

The Risk Management Function intervenes in the Group’s
subsidiaries either directly or by providing a functionai framework
to the subsidiaries that have in place their own structures to
perform the Risk Management Function.

The Risk Management Function at ESFG is responsible for:

s Ensuring that the risk management system is effectively and
consistently implemented at the level of ESFG and that of its
subsidiaries, monitoring the effectiveness of the measures
taken to correct any deficiencies in the system;

= advising the Board of Directors and preparing and submitting
at least once a year to this body and to the supervisory body a
report on risk management, indicating whether all appropriate
measures were taken tg correct possible deficiencies.

For a list of risks to ESFG and its subsidiaries please go to pages
11 to 13 of ESFG's Consolidated Report.

itdelivered to the Bank of Portugal the ICAAP ('Internal Assessment
Adequacy Processs’) Report as 31/12/12 as well as the Market
Discipline Report — Annuat information 2012,

Compliance Function

Head of the Compliance function: Mrs. Paula Gramaca was
nominated in September 2013. She is also in charge of Compliance
at International level at BES' Compliance Department. Before
that Mr. Jodo Martins Pereira the Coordinating Manager of
BES'Compliance Department, was the Head of the Compliance
Function. The Compliance Function has a particularly relevant role
in risk management as it ensures the day-to-day management
of the compliance activities as described above.

it monitors compliance with the legal obligations and regulatory
duties to which the ESFG Group is subject, being responsible for:

« regularly monitoring and assessing the adequacy and
affectiveness of the measures and procedures adopted to
detectrisks of non-compliance;

« advising the Board of Directors, preparing and submitting at
feast once a year to this body and to the Audit Committee,
a report identifying any instances of non-compliance and the
measures adopted to correct possible deficiencies.

in addition, the Compliance Function must also ensure consistency
in the process of preparation of the internal compliance reports and
Individual Internal Control Reportissued by the Board of Directors of
sach subsidiary, namely by providing guidance on the methodology
and structure that should be adopted in the drawing up of such
reports, in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements,
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The Internal Control Report was submitted to the Bank of Portugal
inJune 2013.

The Compliance Function intervenes in the Group’s subsidiaries
either directly or by providing a functional and consistent
framework to the subsidiaries which have in place their own
Compliance Function’s structure.

internal Audit Function
Head of the Internal Audit function: Mr. Nelson Martins
{Coordinating Manager of BES’s Infernal Audit Department)

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for assessing the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management, internal control
and governance processes with the objective of reducing risk
conditions.

Its responsibilities include:

* preparing and keeping updated an audit plan aimed at
examining and assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the
various components of the institution’s Internal Control
System, as well as of the Internal Control System as a whole;

® issuing recommendations based on the results of the
assessments made, and making sure they are followed:

* preparing and submitting at least once a year to the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee a report on audit issues
containing a summary of the main deficiencies detectad in
contral actions, including deficiencies that although immaterial
when considered separately may reveal a tendency for the
deterioration of the internal control system, as well as
indication of the recommendations that were followed:

In addition, the Internal Audit Function must also ensure
consistency in the process of preparation of the internal audit
reports of each subsidiary.

The Internal Audit Function intervenes in the ESFG Group’s
subsidiaries either directly or by providing a functional and
consistent framework to the subsidiaries which have in place their
own structures to perform the Internal Audit Function.

Inpractice asmentioned above the Internal Audit Function presents
a report on the deficiencies identified on their audits to the
Executive Committee in their periodic meetings.
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As at 31 December 2013 the main shareholders of ESFG were:

*Awholly owned subsidiary of Espirito Santo International S.A.

ESFG Share Performance

2013 was marked by arecovery in global economic activity: growth
in the United States accelerated in the second half of the year,
driven by the rebound in the labour and housing markets and the
strong monetary policy stimuli implemented, while sentiment
about the Eurozone also improved. In the second quarter the
Eurozone GDP return to positive quarterly growth, supporting
expectations foranincrease of around 1% in 2014, following a 0.4%
slump in 2013,

In Portugal, the good performance of exports and the stabilising
trend of domestic demand supported an upturn of economic
activity as from the second guarter, even if growth remained
constrained by the deleveraging process under way across the
various sectors. GDP registered an annual contraction of 1.5% in
2013, however it is forecast to grow by dlose to 1% in 2014,
Portugal returned to the capital markets in December with a debt
exchange operation (EUR 6.6 billion), immediately followed in
January 2014 by a EUR 3.25 billion 5-year syndicated bond issue.
After hitting a high of 7.5% in July, the vield on the 10-year treasury
bonds closed the year at 6.13%, continuing to subside in the first
months of 2014, to close to 5%. The PSI-20 index climbed by ca.
16%in 2013,

Performance of ESFG Shares

Price evolution 2013
BB ESFG 3 PS120

2 Stoxx 600 European Bank Index

30%

206%

10%

-10%

Jan Jun

Number of shares %
Espirito Santo International S.A. 317,600 0.15
Espirito Santo Irmaos SGPSS.A Y 101,895,636 49.26
Total 102,312,636  48.41

ESFG's shares are predominantly traded on the Lishon NYSE
Euronext exchange. ESFG shares make up part of the PSI20 with a
weighting of close to 5.0%. ESFG's share price during 2013 declined
from EUR 5.280 at the end of the year 2012 year to EUR 4.858 by
yearend 2013. The share price reached a high of EUR 5.65 per share
in late January point before its retracement to the year-end close.
The average daily traded number of shares was 122,521 in 2013
versus 48,928 shares a year earlier.

The market capitalisation of ESFG on the 31 December 2013
reached EUR 1.06 billion. During the reporting period no dividend
was paid to shareholders.

ESFG has its shares and other securities listed and admitted for
trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (primary listing), the
London Stock Exchange and NYSE Euronext Lisbon, as well as
being admitted to the official list maintained by the UK Listing
Authority and fo trading on the London Stock Exchange'sregulated
market (secondary listings),

Oct Nov Dec

Sep
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Luxembourg Takeover Law disclosure

Compliance with Articie 11 of the Luxembourg law of 19 May 2006,
transposing Directive 2004/25/EC of 21 April 2004 the ‘Law on
Takeover Bids'.

Inwhat concerns article 11.1a, Lband 1.i:
Shares, Capital and Shareholder Structure

Capital

ESFG's authorised capital is EUR 2.0 billion, represented by 2.0
billion shares with no par value. As at 31 December 2013,
207,075,338 shares have been issued, subscribed and fully paid,
representing an issued capital of EUR 207,075,338,

Of these 13,920,852 (6.7% of total issued shares} are registered
shares and 193,154,486 (93.3% of total issued shares) are bearer
shares.

Types of shares
ESFG’s shares are bearer or registersd, at the option of the
shareholder.

Bearer Shares — Bearer shares are represented by single or multiple
share certificates.

Registered Shares — The name, address and number of shares
of the holders of registered shares will be recorded in the
shareholders’ register. The shareholder register is kept at the
Company’s Registrar in Luxembourg.

Conversion of shares
Shares may be converted from one form to another, by order of
and at the expense of the shareholder.

Voting rights
Each share entitles its shareholder to one vote,

The Board of Directors is authorised to issue shares in one or
several tranches within the limits of the authorised capital on such
terms and conditions as it shall approve, including such issue
premium it may set forth. The Board of Directors is authorised and
empowered to issue such new shares against paymentin cash orin
kind, by conversion of claims or in any other manner, more in
particular by the conversion into capital of convertible bonds or
notes that may from time to time be issued.

Pre-emptive rights

The Board of Directors is authorised to cancel or limit the
preferential subscription right in case of an increase of capital
within the limits of the authorised capital. Such authorisation is
valid for a period of five years from the date of the publication of the
extraordinary shareholders’ meeting approving the authorised
capital and may be renewed for further periods of five yearseach by
decision of a general meeting of shareholders.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of securities,

ESFG's shares are listed on three exchanges and are freely
transferable.

Article 11.1h

Thedirectors are elected by a shareholder’s meeting for a period six
years and may be re-elected. The rules governing the appointment
and replacement of board members are covered in Art 10 of the
Articles of Association.

The Articles of Association may be changed at a shareholders’
meeting and in accordance with Luxembourg company law.

Some paragraphs of Article 11 are not applicable to ESFG:

+ There are no significant direct and indirect shareholdings
{including indirect shareholdings through pyramid structures
and cross-shareholdings. {(11.1¢)

» There are no holders of any securities with special control
rights. (11.1d}

s Thereis no employee share scheme. {11.1¢)
¢ There are no restrictions to voting rights. (11.1f)

¢ ESFG has no knowledge of any agreements between
shareholders which may result in restrictions on the transfer
of securities or voting rights. (11.1g)

¢ ESFG hasissued bonds {'notes’) which are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The prospecti prepared in
connection with the issuances of these bonds contain clauses
that refer to the change to the terms of these notes under
certain change of control conditions at ESFG. (11.1j)

+ There are no agreements between ESFG and its board members
or employees providing for compensation if they resign or are
made redundant without valid reason or if their employment
ceases because of a takeover bid. (11.1k)

ESFG's Articles of Association may be found in ESFG's internet
page www.esfg.com
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Directors and Officers

Ricardo Espirito Santo Silva Salgado
Chairman

José Manuel Pinheiro Espirito Santo Silva
Vice Chairman

Antdnio Luls Roguette Ricciardi

Méario Mosgueira do Amaral®

Manuel Fernando Moniz Galvao Espirite Santo Silva
Jackson Behr Gilbert

Patrick Monteiro de Barros

Philippe Guiral

José Maria Espirito Santo Silva Ricciardi
Pedro Guilherme Beauvillain de Brito e Cunha
Carlos Augusto Machado de Almeida Freitas
Antbal da Costa Reis Oliveira

Othman Benjelioun

José Pedro Torres Garcia Caldeira da Silva
Yves Alain Marie Morvan

Fernando Pedro Braga Pereira Coutinho

José Carlos Cardoso Castella

Bernard Basecgz

Gherardo Laffineur Petracchini

Manuel Guerrero Péman

José Manuel Ruivo da Pena

Lufs Antbnio Burnay Pinto de Carvalho Daun e Lorena

Roger Henri Hartmann
JoZo Filipe Carvalho Martins Pereira’

!DiedinMarch 2014
2 Resigned in February 2014
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Officers

Erich Dahler
Senior Vice President

Jorge Penedo
Senijor Vice President
Chief Prudential Reporting Officer

Jean-Luc Schneider
Senior Vice President
Chief Accounting Officer

Teresa de Souza
Senior Vice President
Company Secretary

Filipe Worsdell
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer




Declaration

Declaration by the Board of Directors on Responsibility

for the Information

The Board of Directors of Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A.
{'ESFG'} is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013 in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard as
adopted by the European Union as well as with the European
Transparency Directive (2004/109/£C).

The Board of Directors reviewed the consclidated financial
statements on 25 April 2014 and authorized their issue.

The Board of Directors of ESFG declares that:

I

The consolidated financial statements of Espirito Santo
Financial Group S.A. ('ESFG Group'), for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013, were prepared
under the International Financial Reporting Standards ('IRS),
as adopted by the European Union;

. Tothebestoftheirknowledge, the financial statementsreferred

to in point (D) reflect a true and appropriate situation of the
assets, liabilities, capital and resuits of ESFG, in accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the European Union;

. The management report reflects adeguately the business

development, performance and financial position of ESFG
Group during 2013 and contains a description of the main risks
and uncertainties that the Group faces.

Luxembourg, 25 April 2014

Board of Directors

Ricardo Espirito Santo Silva Salgade
Chairman

Roger Henri Hartmann
Director - Chief Executive Officer
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Principal addresses

Luxembourg BES Vida, Companhia de Seguros S.A.
- .. Avenida Columbano Bordalo Pinheiro
n°75-11°andar

1070-061 Lishoa

Espirito Santo Financial Group 5.A.

22/24 boulevard Royal )
e bt
T:+352 2747 3028 :

©4352 7
Fi+352 2747 3047 BEST - Banco Electrénico de Servico Total 5.A.

Praca Marqués de Pombal, 3A, 3° andar

ESFIL-Espirito Santo Financiére S.A, 1250-161 Lisboa

22/24 boulevard Royal T.+351 218839310

1-2449 Luxembourg F.+351 218839370

T +352 4349454

F1+352 4349454 Companhia de Seguros Tranquilidade S.A.
Av. da Liberdade, 242

Espirito Santo Wealth Management (Europe} S.A. 1250-149 Lishoa

22/24 boulevard Royal T:+351 213503500

1-2449 Luxembourg F:+351213584232

T:+352 434 9454

Fi+352 434 9454 ESAF - Espirito Santo Activos Financeiros, 5GPS, S.A,

 Av. Alvares Cabral, 41

Portugal 1250-015 Lishoa

T.+351 213810800
F.+351 213810838

AdvanceCare - Gestdo de Servicos de Salide, 5.A.

Praca Jose Queirds, 1-4° Espirito Santo Capital - Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A.

1800-237 Lishoa Edificio Quartzo

T:+351 213228000 Rua Alexandre Herculano, 38

F:+351 213228008 1269-161 Lisboa

F X T.+35121351584
%%% Banco Espirito Santo S.A. E +3§; 21351 5?42

Av. da Liberdade, 195

1250-142 Lisboa Espirito Santo Saiide SGPS, S.A,

T:+351 21350 1000 Edificio Amoreiras Square,

F1+351213593474 Rua Carlos Alberto da Mota Pinto, 17-9.°
1350-264 Lisboa

Banco Espirito Santo de Investimento S.A,, T:+351 21313 8260

Edificio Quartzo F:+351 213530292

Rua Alexandre Herculano, 38

1269-161 Lisboa Europ Assistance Portugal

T:+351 213196800 Av. Columbano Bordalo Pinheiro, 75 - 10°

F:+351 213309500 1070-061 Lisboa
T:+351 21 386 0003

Banco Espirite Santo dos Acores S.A. F;+35121 3860308

Rua Hintze Ribeiro, 2 -8

9500-049 Ponta Delgada Seguros Loge S.A.

Sao Miguel D. Manuelil, 290

Acores 4001-809 Porto

T.+351 286 307 000 T +351 21 330 6605

F1+351296 307 054 F-+351 213585214
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Principal addresses

continued

Angola

Cayman Islands

Banco Espirito Santo Angola S.ARL.
Rua do 1° Congresso do MPLA, n° 27/31
Luanda

CP6459 Luanda

T 4244222693600

F+244 222 693698

Tranquilidade ~ Cooperacdo Angola de Seguros
Edificil ESCOM

Rua Marechal Brés Tito, 35- 15°A

Luanda - Angola

T +244 226 434 510

Brazil

BES Investimento do Brasil S.A. - Banco de Investimento
Av. Brigadeiro Faria Lima, 3729 - 9° andar

Htaim Bibi, 04538-905

Sao Paulo - SP, Brasil

T+55 1130747444

F+55 1130747469

BES Securities do Brasil S.A.

Av. Brigadeiro Faria Lima, 3729 - 9% andar
ftaim Bibi, 04538-905

Sdo Paulo - SP, Brasi|

T.+55 1130747051

FI+55 1130747562

Cape Verde Islands

Banco Espirito Santo, Sucursal
Financeira Exterior em Cabo Verde, S.A.
Av. Cidade de Lishoa, CP 35

Cidade da Praia - Santiago - Cabo Verde
T.+238 2601290

F:+2382601291

Banco Espirito Santo Cabo Verde, S.A.
Av. Cidade de Lisboa, CP 35

Praia~ Santiago - Cabo Verde

T.+238 260 2626

Fi+238 260 2630

Bank Espirito Santo {International) Limited
Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre

802, West Bay Road

P.O.Box 10507

Grand Cayman KY1-1005

Cayman Islands, BW.L

T.+345949 3128

Fi+345949 6911

China

Banco Espirito Santo, 5.A.
25th Floor, Suite 2509

161 China Merchants Tower
Lujiazui Dong (East) Road
PuDong

Shanghal 200120

P.R. China

T:+8621 5887 0016
F:+8621 58768213

France

Banque Espirito Santo et de la Vénétie S.A.
45 Avenue Georges Mandel

75116 Paris

T:+331443 44800

F1+331443 44880

Ireland

Espirito Santo Investment Plc.
4th Floor, Spencer House
71/73 Talbot Street

Dublin 1

ireland

T:+353 1856 0699

Fi+353 1813 4366

Espirito Santo Plc

77 Sir John Roggerson's Quay
Fitzwilliam Business Centre, Suite 217
Dublin 2

ireland

T:+353 1640 1991

Fi+353 1640 1992
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Libya

Poland

Aman Bank for Commerce
PO Box 91271

Tripoli

Libya

T-+218 021478 0025
4218021477 8182

Macao

Banco Espirito Santo do Oriente S.A.
Av. Dr. Mério Soares 323

Edificio Banco da China, 28th Floor
Macau

T.+853 28785222

F:+853 28785228

Mozambigue

#Moza Banco, 5.A.

Av. Kwame Nkrumah, 97
C.Postal 1012

Maputo

Mocambigue

T 4258 21342000
F:+258 21342001

Tranquilidade Mocambigue Companhia de Seguros, 5.A.

Av. Armando Tivane, 1212
Maputo

Mocambique
T.+25821483710/15
F:+258 21040140

Panama

ES Bank {Panama) S.A.

Oceania Business Plaza

Torre 2000, Piso 22, Oficinas Cy D
Apartado Postal No. 0832-0847
Punta Pacifica, Panamaé

Reptblica de Panamd

T:+507 282 6650

F+507 8307523

Banco Espirito Santo de Investimento, 5.A.

Spéika Akeyjna, Oddziat w Polsce
5Gth Ziota Street

FloorV

00-120 Warsaw

Poland

T.+48 22 347 4000

F-+4822 3474099

Banque Privée Espirito Santo S.A.
Spbtka Akeyina, Oddziat w Polsce
59th Ziota Street

FloorV

00-120 Warsaw

Poland

T +4822 347 4036

Spain

Banco Espirito Santo S.A. - Sucursal en Espana

Calle Serrano 88
28006 Madnd

T +34 91400 5000
F:+34 91364 8037

Banco Espirito Santo de investimento - Sucursal en Espafia

Calle Serrano 88, 47 Planta
28006 Madrid

T +34 91400 5400

F-+34 014319387

Espirito Santo Gestion
Calle Serrano 88, 5% Planta
28006 Madrid

T +3491-4005500
F+3491-3648077

Espirito Santo Pensiones
Calle Serrano 88, 5° Planta
28006 Madrid

T:+34 914005500

F+34 91364 8067
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Switzeriand

USA

Banque Privée Espirito Santo S.A.
70A Avenue Général Guisan

Case Postale 107

CH-1009 Pully

T:+41 21 619 5555

F:+41 216195557

United Arab Emirates

ESBD ~ Espirito Santo Financial Group
The Gate, West Wing, Level 12,

Dubai International Financial Centre,
P.0O.Box 506627

DUBA!

UAE

T:+9714 709 0000

Fi+97147090177

United Kingdom

Banco Espirito Santo 5.A.
10 Paternoster Square
London ECAM 7AL

T:+44 207332 4300
Fi+44207332 4340

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A.
10 Paternoster Square

London EC4M 7AL
T.+442034292100

Fi+4420 34292103

Espirito Santo Investment Bank
10 Paternoster Square

London EC4M 7AL

T.+44 2074569191

Fi+44 2073329188

Banco Espirito Santo S.A.
320 Park Avenue, 29th Floor
New York

NY. 10022

T +1212702 3400
F:+12129801777

Espirito Santo Bank

1395 Brickell Avenue, 4th floor
Miami

Florida 33131

T.+1 305347 8330
Fr+1305371 4556

Espirito Santo Financial Services Inc.

New York Branch

340 Madison Avenue, 12th Floor
New York, NY 10173

T:+1 212 3516000

Fr+1212 3516099
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Contacts

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A.
22/24 boulevard Royal
L-2449 Luxembourg

Investor Relations

Filipe Worsdel!

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A.
10 Paternoster Square

London ECAM 7AL

T:+44 2034292100
F:+44 2034292103
Email: fworsdell@esfg.com

Miles Chapman
Taylor Rafferty
2nd Floor

85 Fleet Street
London ECAY TAE

T.+44207614 2916
Email: miles.chapman@taylor-rafferty.com

Company Secretary

Teresa de Souza

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A.
10 Paternoster Square

London ECAM 7AL

For further information about the Company visit:
www.esfg.com

Websites of other Group companies:
www.bancobest.pt
www.bes.es

www.bes.pt

www.besa.ao
www.bescv.ov
www.besdosacores.pt
www.besinvestimento.com.br
www.bessecurities.com.br
www.besw.fr

www.esaf.pt
www.esbankersdubai.com
www.esbf.com
www.escapital.pt
www.esinvestment.com
WWW.ESPENSIoNes.com
www.espiritosanto.com
wiww.essaude.pt
www.es-ventures.com
www.europassistance.pt
www.logo.pt

www. tranqguilidade.pt

T.+44 2034292100
F:+44 2034252103
Email: tsouza@esfg.com
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

22 - 24 Boulevard Royal

[.-2449 Luxembourg RCS: Luxembourg B22.232



Report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises agréé

Consolidated Income Statement for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [ncome for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2013 and 2012

Statement of changes in Consolidated Equity for the vears ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
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F-3
F-4
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KPMIG Luxembourg S.arl
3 [agEN TS g

To the Sharcholders of

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A.
22724 boulevard Royal

1.-2449 Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D’ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Espirito Santo
Financial Group S.A., which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2013 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the vear then ended,

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Board of Director's responsibility for the consolidated financial stetements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as the Board of
Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibifity of the Réviseur d Entreprises agréé

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as
adopted for Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial are free from material
misstatement.

An audit tnvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
judgement of the Réviseur d”Entreprises agréé, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatermnent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or crror. In making
those risk assessments, the Réviseur d’Entreprises agréé considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.




Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consohdated financial position of Espirito Santo Financial Group S AL as of December 31, 2013,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the vear then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Emphasis of Maiter

Without qualifving our opinion included in the previous paragraph. we draw attention to Note
41 and Note 47 of the annual accounts, which describe the euro 700 million provision in relation
with the subscription by ESFG customers of debt instruments issued by Espirito Santo
International S.A. (CESI). The Board of Directors of ESFG believes that the reimbursement of
the debt instruments issued by ESI will be possible through implementation of the deleverage
program. the support of ESI shareholders, its capacity to obtain or renew credit lines in the
financial markets and, additionally. through the support from ESFG.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consolidated management report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, is
consistent with the consolidated financial statements. The accompanying Corporate Governance
Statement on pages 30 to 40 which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, is consistent
with the consolidated financial statements and includes the information required by the law.

Luxembourg, April 28, 2014 KPMG Luxembourg Sa .l
Cabinet de révision agréé

<. Rouault




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP SA

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

Interest and similar mcome

Interest expense and similar charges

Net interest income

Dividend income
Fee and commission income

Fee and commussion expenses

Net (losses) from financal assets and financs

-~sale finan

Net gamns from avat

Insurance earned premiums net of reinsur

Other operating income
Operating income
Staff costs

General and admmistrative expenses

1 incurred net of reinsurance

nge i technical reserves net of remsurance
Insurance commissions

Depreciation and amortisation

Provisions net of reversals

Loans impawment net of reversals and recaveries

Impairment on other financial assets net of reversals

mpairment on other assets net of reversal

Other operating expenses

Operating expenses

ssociates
ages

mtes

pr 25501
(Loss}/ profit be fore income tax
Income tax

Current tax

Deferred tax

(Loss)/ profit from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

{Loss)/ profit for the year

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Attributable to non-contrelling interest

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

ders of the Company

F-

habilities at fair value through proft or ioss

; hoiders o

2

Notes

[FEVS

o R

[

w f B

W
vy

n

31.12.2613

31.12.2012

{in thousands of euro)

3629256
2336761

1092 495

58394
926 760
(203 628)
(294 970)
451 649
(2688)
(67 063)
694 668

73 167
1035 146
(185 332)
(54 762)
605 568

74 843
2736 460 3 544 435
77T IO

105978
323877

157 969

502 766

631643

4 107 329 3219124
3 74 050

- 87273

8823 4756

(1 368 043} 491 390

(164 193)

{1203 850)

380 388

(30 796) (8684)
(1234 646) 371704
(864 031) 313 633
(370 6153) 58 071
(1234 646) 371 704
186

(4.19) Lo
(4.19) 9



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP SA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

(Loss) / profit for the year

Attributable to equity holders of the company ( 864 031) 313633
Attributable to non-controlling mterest (370 615) 58 071
(1234 646) 371 704
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
[tems that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Actuarial gains and (losses) from defined benefit obligation (Note 14) ( 107 130) ( 189 479)
Income taxes on actuarial gains and losses trom defined benefit obligation 1380 18 597
Total items that will not be reclassified to the income statement (105 750) (170 882)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the income state ment
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations (80274) (58581
Income taxes on exchange differences on translating foreign operations (6663) 3247
Other comprehensive income from associates 1975 ( 10 009)
( 84 962) (65343)
Fair value reserve {avaiable-for-sale financial assets):
Net change in fair value 175317 1274 898
Net amount transferred to the income statement (341219 { 506 230)
Deferred taxes on gains / losses of available-for-sale financial assets 42 699 (125 070)
(123 203) 639 578
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement (208 165) 574 235
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year, net of income tax (313 915) 403 353
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1548 561) 775 057
Attributable to equity holders of the Company (945 085) 445 317
Attributable to nen-controlling interest (603 476) 329 740
(1548 561) 775 057

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP SA

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 20613 AND 2012

Notes 21.12.2013 31.12.2612
{in thousands of eurc}

Assets
Cash and deposhs at cenral banks 0 1828674
Deposits with banks pat 1148 634
Financial assets held for trading 22 2486 463
Other financial assers at falr value through profir or loss 23 3564 118
Available-for-sale financial assets 24 §32% 77
Loans and advances to banks 23 4827 75¢ 7
Loans and advances te custemers 26 4G 275 667 30692 8§78
Held-to-maturity mvestments 27 3 19047
Derivatives for risk management purposes 28 516 520
Won-current assets held for sale 2% 3280 185
Property and equipment 3t 982 617
Trvestment properties 97323

Imangible assets 608 265

Investments i associates 806 473 646 614
Technical reserves of remsurance ceded 76 859 70
Currenf Income t2x assets 43 567 28811
Deferred ncome 1ax assets 42 1064 883 760 932
Other assets 3097 613 3234 653
Total assets 84 849 651 87 374 060
Liabilities

Deposits from central banks 36 27 10 641 323
Financial fabilides held for wading 22 1 2124223
Deposas from banks 37 3 5065980
Diue to customers 3% 38 35625474
Debt securfties issued 3% 12

Derrvatives for risk managemens purposes 28

Investment contracts 0 4

Non-current habiives held for sale 25

Provistons 41

Technical reserves of direct insurance 34 26

Current meome tax habilities

Deferred meome tax labiities

Subordmated debt 2 i

Other habilities 44 1

Total liabilities 78 138 214
Equity

Share capital 45

Treasury shares 45

Share premfum

Preference shares

Other equify Components

Capital reserve not avaiable for distribution
Far value reserve 45

Other reserves and retained earnings 43

{Losst ¢ profiz for the vear anributable to equiry holders of the Company

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1284 136
Non-controlling mterest 46 361 58227151
Total equity 6711 437
Tetal equity and liabilities 84 840 651

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP SA

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

Notes 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

{in thousands of euro)
Cash flows from operaiing aciivities

Interest and similar income received 3416463 4117818
Interest expense and similar charges paid (2 298 066) {2859407)
Fees and commission received 928 480 1046330
Fees and commission paid (60519) {232 625}
Insurance premiums 698 064 435 608
Claims paid (501 148) (629 661)
Medical services income received 13816 338 201

Medical services expenses paid {196 622)
Recoveries on loans previously written off 21 063 21 900
Contributions to pension fund { 103 806) { 86 410)
Cash payments to employees and suppliers (1127 514) {1 230679}
Net cash from operating profits before changes in operating assets and liabilities 978 261 738 453
Deposits with central banks {1 821 5203 {2 836 014)
Fmancial assets at far value through profit and loss { 353 867y 1336341

Loars and advances to banks 284 582 T46 249
Deposits from banks (23 670) (1 247 339)
Loans and advances o customers (125G 761) { 326 951)
Due to customers 2445 089 458 336

Dertvatives for rsk manag rpOses 63 281 226 558
Other operational assets and | es {23 286) { 482 065)
Net cash from operating activities before income tax 1058 109 {1 386 422)
Income taxes paid {290 237) {31 189)
Net cash from operating activities 767 872 (1 437 611)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of subsidianes and associates {44 982) { 367 428)
Sale of subsidiaries and associates 80 079 202762
74217

Dividends received

ialas lable for sale

{70 323 809)
73 794 572

e for saje

contracts

068

4013273

Net cash (used in} / from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activi
C Pnerease

Rey
De
Debt securtties paid

rchase of preference shares
securtties ssued

Subordinated debt ssued
Subordinated debt paid

Iincrease of subsidiaries - 755 514

{2194 {1864}

(1673 {6329}

(10217 (15213

Net cash from financing activities {2965 034) {2 598 615}
ffect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equive { 74 3543 (2729%
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 387 521 {50 244)

1990928

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Cash acquired on change in seope of consolidation

387 821 (50244)
Cash and cash equivalent includes:
E 20 286 348 304 409
20 1339325 2

56 582)

2i {148 934

Deposits

Total 2 481 026

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

NOTE 1 - ACTIVITY AND GROUP STRUCTURE

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A. (ESFG or the Group) is a limited liability company headquartered in Luxembourg,
incorporated under Luxembourg law on 28 November 1984, and is the holding company of the banking and financial
activities of the Espirito Santo Group (GES) located in Luxembourg, Portugal and around the world. Most of the non
financial activities of the Espirito Santo Group, including real estate, tourism and other activities are managed by Rio Forte
Investments S.A.. a limited liability company headquartered in Luxembourg and a fully owned subsidiary of E.S.
International S.A. (ESI), a company headquartered in Luxembourg.

In December 2013, Espirito Santo Irmdos S.A., a fully-owned subsidiary (direct and indirect) of Rio Forte Investments
S.A.. acquired from ESI its participation in ESFG. Consequently, Rio Forte Investments S.A., became the indirect holder
of the interest of the Espirito Santo Group in ESFG. The terms and conditions of the agreement established between ES
Irmdos and ESI were met only during the month of January 2014, therefore control over ESEG was obtained by Rioforte
only in 2014. As a result, from 1 January 2014, ESFG wiil be fully consolidated by Rio Forte.

The ultimate parent company of ESFG remains Espirito Santo Control S.A. (ESC). a company headquartered in
Luxembourg, direct parent company of ESI.

Consolidated financial statements of ESFG are available at the Company’s registered office at 22-24 Boulevard Royal in
Luxembourg. There are no audited consolidated financial statements at the level of ESI or ESC.

Through its subsidiaries, the Group (ESFG and its subsidiaries) engages in a broad range of financial activities primarily
through Banco Espirito Santo S.A. and its insurance companies: Companhia de Seguros Tranquilidade S.A., BES Vida.

S.A. and T-Vida, Companhia de Seguros S.A.. Its operations abroad complement its Portuguese activities,

ESFG is listed on the Luxembourg, London and Lisbon Stock Exchanges.




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)

(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The following table describes the main activity of each of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates as at 31 December 2013

and 31 December 2012:

~

Subsidiaries
3LIL2613 31122012
Veting Economic Voting Eeonomic
Activity Lacation interest interest interest interest
Advancecars - Gestdo de Servigos de Sadde, S.A Managed care Portugal
Aman Bank for Commeree Commercial banking L
AQC Pammome Agsets management F

Areabada -
Atlantic
Atlantic Venwuses I Corporation
Avrsvar, SGPS SA

Banco Espirito Sante Angola, SARL

undo Especial de Investimento Imobiliario Fechado

enitures Corporation

Real Estate Fund

ding company
lolding company
iding cempary
ommarcial banking

Bance Espinte Sarto de Investmento, S5 stment banking
Bance Espinito Sarso do Onente, S.A Commercial banking
Barce Espinto Sante dos Agores, S.A Counercial benkmg
Banco Espiriro Santo North Americs Capital Lindred Financing vehicle

@
33

Banco Espirite Santo. $.A. {3}
o E;

Commersial banking Pornsgal
spitiro Sunro Cabo Verde Commarcial banking Cape Green
Hank Espitito Santo Intemational Lid. oial banking Cayman istends o
Banque Espitite Santo ot ds Lo Vinéte 5.4 Commercial banking France £.5%

Bangue Briviée Esplrite Sante, 4

Asset managament

erland

Activos Fmanceito Brazl
Africa, 30PS. 8.4 Pormgal
stedigungs, Gmbk Gazmaryy
§ Finance, Lid Cayman Istands
investimento do Brasil $.5 Brazil
E5-Vida, Compantia de Seguros, 8.4 Portugal
RinvestLrda Services provider Brant
B Consult Pasticipache Services provider Brazdl
SA Valonizagho - Fundo de Investiments Imobslidrio Fechado Asser management - Real Estare funds Angota
$ Secunities do Brasil, S.A. Brokerage house Brazl
S Asser sumagement - Mutual funds Angola

P

Pensoes - Seciedade Gestora de fundos de Peas
PE 84

SRy
HEaEn

etronico de Servige Total 8.4
International Bank Ltd
Capizal Mais -

ssonia Financera. §
Caravels Balanced Fund

Defensive Fund

Cara

Clear Capital Group Litested
Ciear Info- Analy
EST - Sociedade de t

Agser management - Pensions funds
Holding company

Intermnet banking

Commeecial banking

tmetit Fund

oidinz companty
ide
Real-estate

analytics sug

India

Espwite Santo Inv Services provider
ES Investmant Fund
E Commercial banking
ES Financial Servizes house
ES Recuperagdo de Cradite, A Debt collection Postugal
Espitito Santo Secunities India Private Lindred Brokerage house india
Teck Vanmures, GRS 5.4 SHolding company Portugal
entures - Sosiedade de G enture capital Portugal
Espirit LS Helding company Porugal
Espinto Santo Participagdss Intemacionais SGPS. 3.A Helding company Pormugal
Intzmational Distributors Associates FIGE Company B zin Islands

Cantact Tenter, (&

= Comercial d2 Lisbo

frito Sante Financial Portu;

Espinro Sante Finan:

pisito Santo Fundo de Pensdes, $.4

Fundos de Investimentes Inobdlidnos

tmentos Mobilidne:

rigdnios. S A

pinto Sante Informaticn, ACE

pinito Sante ntemational Maragen

Ading Linuted
S

t 5.3

olding company
olding company
ding company
Consultancy
Call center se

Representation offtce
Holding company

Helding company
ciditig company

F-7
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enture capital F;
olding company 2




AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 A

ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D 2012 — (Continued)

(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

Subsidiaries

spitito Sante Invesunents PLC
pirito Santo Pensiones, SUFP S A
Plane Dindmico

Wi

b
=]
£
3
g
&

o

paite Samte Prestagdo de Servigos, ACED
pirito Santo Representacdes, Lida
pirro Samte Servicios, $.A.

PO oo
o

spitito Santo Serviges Financeiros Disuthingdo de Tindas & V3
spirite Sante, PLC

pirito Santo Vanguarda, $1

pirite Sane W
ES81 Cormunicasdes, SOPS, 5.4
LBA

alth Europe 5.4

Zsumédica - Prestagdo de Cuddades Médicos $.4
Exscution Holding Limited
Ex

fong Kong) Limited
LLe

Execudon Noble Holdings

Execution Noble Research Limited
Multimercade Treasury
Funde BES Absolute Retum

Bes Funda de Investments Multinercado Moderado
Fines (uiente

#stimente nobilidro Fechads Corpus Chrisy
Funds de Capital de Risco - BES PAIE Capital Growth
Fundo de Capieal de Risce - ES Ventures
Fundo de Capiral d¢ Risco - ES Ventures
Fundo FCR PME -/ BEX

Fundo de Gestio de Patrinorio Imobiliaric - £
Fundo de Gestlo de Patrimordo Imobilidrio - ¥

ol

=
Mo

e

y

unde de Gestho de Patimonio Imobabiasia

Gespar Pasticipagle

Imbassal PartictpagSes, §.4.

imozestio — Funde de Inv Imotilidno Fechade
IMOENVESTIME timento Imobilidgrio Fechado

~ Fundo de Investimento Inobilidro ¥
pace Hungary Kit

Lirios §

Lusitama Capual §
Manignan Gestion §
Noble Advisors
Noble Financial
Fund Ads
Noble Group Holding
otle Group Lavdted
Nable Venture Finance Genera

riner Limited

Pradiloc Capral - Funde d
Righthour §.A4.
Cruima dos Cons

SLME - Sociaté Lyonn
Socibté Crvil i

T i

Tranguiidade CAS {Anzola

Tranquifidade Mogambigue C

Tranquilidade Mogambique Companhie d= Sezurs
npanhia de Seguros,

213122013

Vating Econamic

Activiey Losation interest interest
Brokerage house Ireland
Assets menggement - Fensions funds Spain
Investment Fund Porty
Invesunent Fund Pornugal
Shared services Porrugal
Reprecentation office Brazail
Inswrance Spaist
Brokerags house Brazit
Non-bunk finence company freland
Services provider Spain

Luvembourg

Portugal

Portugal

Pastugal

Portugst

Urrited Kingdom

United King

China

No activity
Invesment Fund

restment Fund
Iyvestment Fund
Invesiment Fund
Ventures

urism Development

vestment Fund

Vanture capival fund
Veature capital fund
Cennurs capital fimd

enture capital fund
PealEstars Fund
Real Estats Fund
Real Estats Fund
olding company
Holding company

Real-estate
Real

Helding €

state

General partner for fund

Software development
fvestment Fund

Irvestment compar
Holding company
Holding company

,,,
&

i
g

cvices provider
egl-gstate
Isurance
Assetnianag
Real-estate
Yoal-estate

e

o

Real-estate

nsuran

Insuran:
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United Kangdom
Urited Kingdom

Portugal
Portugal
Fostugal
Poringal

Porrugal
Spain

France




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

Associates
3LITIGIR 31172612
Vodng Economic Vating Economic
Activity Location interest interest interest interest
Adepa Global Services Fund adnanistration Luxembourg

Advance Ciclone Systems, .4 Treatment, elimanation of tert residues
Ascend Teuro - Estradas do Dowuro Intedor, § 4 Mlotorway concession

Apole Fiims, $1

artairnent

Ascendt Group. 628, 8.4 TOrEEY Concassion Porrugal
scendi Pinhal Intesior - Estradas do Pinhal Imterlor §.4. Aloterway concession Porragal

Consecioniana Autopista Perov

Motorxay concession

Autovia delog Videdos .4 Meterxay concession
Banco Drelle Tre Venszie, Spa Commercial banking
Campanbia d Insurancs
GENESH Holding company
3B Internacionel, $.A Entertatnment

Holding company
IT Seraces

dhis-Peof. Circusto Sist Eleet,

ratits § A, Helding company Lo aurg

Hoa - trdnica ¢ Inis SA Pormugal
BCapital, §.4. Brazil
ZBCapital Lusemburg S.C.A4. SICAR aninare capital Luxembours
ZBCapital Lusemburg eral Partners Sadd { Fund management actvities Luamibaurg
Edenred Portugsal, SA Services provider Pornatal
Empark - Aparcamientos v Servicios. §.4 nagement of parking
ENHROTTS A Water management and yeatment
ESEGUR - Empress de Seguranga, $.4, Sacurity

piriro Sants Intermnational Asses Management Lid
spirite Santo Satide SGPS. 8.4

olding company Islands
oldin
nsurance

Project finance
Espirito Sanve Ventures Inovag S Venture capital fund
Funde Bem Cotoum - Funido de Capital dz Rizco Venture capital fund
Funde Espifito Santo BERIA L Venture capitat fund
Global Aetive - Gestdo Part. Soc, SOPS, §.4 olding compans
Goupe CFCA BAR olding company
HLC - Centrais de Cogersglio, S.A Services provider
Algerie $P4

IMOCRESCENTE - Fundo de investimento imobilidio Fechiads

comgany

Bar Leass

asing
espment Fund

lecomnumnication

o - imagem Empresaniai, S Fom

> ; urniturs manufacnase
Polish Hotel Capital 7 Services provider

Sporting sosds wadi
Sefetal Indusuy
Services provider
Holding company
Holding compan

VRN

-

son Brown HSM Lunited United Kingdom 8
Windpart Lda Portugal pl
Portugal g

Partugal g

o, these activities

> Although the Group s voting fiterest o
Albhough the Group's voting nterss
Although the Group’

omparies are fulh
, the Groug

couschdated, as the Group controls 1

ficant wifluence aver these o

t
vating igerest fese compames are not controlled by the Group, but the Group =

ercises ¢ significant infhuence ov




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

Applying SIC 12 as described in Note 2.2. the Group consolidation scope includes, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
following special purposes entities:

31.12.2013

% economic Consolidation

Established Headquartered Activity interest me thod
Lusitano SMENo.1pic 2006 Ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Lusitano Mortgages No 6 ple\/ 2007 ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consclidation
Lusitano Project Finance No i FTC 2007 Portugal Special Purpose Entity 160% Full consolidation
Lusitano Mortgages No 7ple ¥’ 2008 ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Fundes 2008 Portugal Special Purpose Entity 99.30% Full consolidation
Lusitano Leverage Finance No. 1 BV 2010 Netherand Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Lusitano Finance No.3\ 2011 Portugal Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
IM BES Empresas | 2011 Spain Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
CLN Magnola Finance 2038 2008 Ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation

31.12.2012

Y economic Consolidation

Established Headquartered Activity interest me thod
Lusitano SMENo 1pk ©’ 2006 Ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Lusiano Morgages No6pic '’ 2007 Treland Special Purpose Entity H00% Full consolidation
50 Project Finance No i F1C 2607 Special Purpose Entity H00% Full consolidation
2008 Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
2008 Special Purpose Entity 99 10% Full consolidation
Lusitano Leverage Fine BY 2016 Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Lusitano Finance No.3*’ 2611 Portugal Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
IM BES Empresas | 2011 Spam Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
CLN Magnolia Finance 2038 2068 ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consoldation

(*) Entities set-up in the scope of securitisation transactions (See Note 50).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the consolidation of these entities had the following main impacts on the consolidated
balance sheet:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Deposits with banks 173 426 195 386
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 11204 71651
Loans and advances to customers (net of impairment) 3253477 3803 343
Debt securities issued 615 201 703 797
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The main changes in the Group structure that occurred during 2013 are highlighted as follows:

— Subsidiaries

In March 2013 was set-up the company Righthour, entirely held by BES PME Capital Growth fund and in April
2013 this company acquired 100% of the share capital of Imbassai Participac¢des. S.A., which from this date was
included in the consolidation perimeter;

In April 2013, ESSI SGPS, S.A. acquired 31.6% of Espirito Santo Investment Holding Limited for an amount of
17 125 thousand pounds, holding since this date 100% of the company s share capital;

In May 2013, ESSI SGPS, S.A. subscribed integrally the capital increase of Espirito Santo Investment Holding
Limited in the amount of 10 000 thousand pounds;

In July 2013, took place the merger of R Invest Ltda and R Consult Participagdes Ltda into Espirito Santo Servigos
Financeiros DTVM;

In August 2013, took place the merger of ESSI Comunicagdes, S.A. into Banco Espirito Santo de Investimento,
S.A..

— Associates (see Note 33)

In June 2013, following the sale of the business associated with BES A La Card meal banking card, the Group
acquired a 50% interest in Edenred Portugal, S.A., this company being currently included in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. The acquisition cost, amounting to euro 928 thousand, was
determined based on the fair value of the business transferred net of the elimination of the unrealised profit in the
extend of BES interest in Edenred;

As at 30 June 2013, BES Africa acquired 23.9% of Moza Banco share capital by an amount of euro 24 856
thousand, becoming to hold 49% of this associate. The acquisition generated an additional goodwill of euro 16 872
thousand. Following this transaction total goodwill amounts to euro 21 0635 thousand and is accounted under
associates:

In June 2013, ES Concessdes sold to Ascendi Group the participation it held in Concessionaria Autopista Perote-
Xalapa;

in December 2013, Banco Espirito Santo and Espirito Santo Capital, Sociedade de Capital de Risco sold its
shareholdings in Apolo Films, S.L., BRB International and Prosport — Comercializaciones Desportivas, S.A..

The main changes in the Group structure that occurred during 2012 are highlighted as follows:

— Subsidiaries

In April 2012, ESFG exchanged 2.2% of its direct holding in BES against 6.2% of BESPAR. This operation had no
effect on ESFG economic interest in BES (see Note 55);

In May 2012, BES acquired an additional 50% of the capital of BES Vida by an amount of euro 225 000 thousand,
becoming to hold the total share capital of the company and started to consolidate this entity under the full
consolidation method (see Note 35);

Following the acquisition of control of BES Vida in May 2012, the Group acquired an additional interest of 3% in
ES Satde SA;

In the second semester of 2012, Tranquilidade sold the participation it held in Pastor Vida generating a gain in the
amount of euro 11 206 thousand (see Note 33);
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In November 2012, BES acquired participation units in the real estate funds, Fungepi, Fungere and
Imoinvestimento, and started to consolidate those entities under the full consolidation method;

During 2012, the Group acquired an additional interest of 0.86% of the share capital of BES through the acquisition
in the market 0of 29 510 581shares (see Note 33);

In November 2012, following (i) the acquisition by Rio Forte Investments, S.A. of an additional 19.5% stake in ES
Forte of a call option over 5.5% of ES Satide share capital plus 1 share, currently exercisable; ESFG has lost control
over ES Satde. Consequently, this entity is no longer fully consolidated by ESFG, being classified as an associate
(see Note 33 and Note 33).

—— Associates (see Note 33)

In April 2012, ES Capital acquired 42.99% of 2BCapital Luxembourg S.C.A SICAR for the amount of euro 854
thousand. In May 2012, following the capital increase of the company, ES Capital invested an additional euro
15 619 thousand;

In June 2012, ES Concessdes transferred its shareholding in SCUTVIAS — Autoestradas da Beira Interior, SA and
Portvias — Portagem de Vias, SA to Ascendi Group, SGPS, SA., this operation generated a loss in the amount of
euro 2 170 thousand;

In December 2012, BESI sold the participation it held in Polish Hotel Company, Sp, generating a gain in the
amount of euro 2 509 thousand;

Following the loss of control over ES Satde in November 2012, this entity has been reclassified as an associate (see
Note 33 and Note 53).
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During the years 2013 and 2012, the movements on acquisitions, disposals and other investments in subsidiaries and
associated companies are as follows:

31.12.2013
Acquisitions Disposals / Liquid i Business
Gainiloss) on
i 8 pos: Net
o Other Other disposals etof non
Acquisition price ) Total Sale price . Total liquidation/ controlling
imestments reimbursements business interest
combination
{in thousands of euro)
Subsidiaries

36 266 (33283

50 -

[

207
38 3%
36356 38136 114992 {33283 ¢ 246 (33
23916 -
3 3
(
33¢ 350
3y

732 ¢ 83 (86181 3 3
66177 84192 150 369 (113363 { 329) (113697 3 3

7

F-13



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

31.12.2012
Acquisitions Dispossls / Liquidations / Business combination
Gaini(loss) on
disposal/ Netof
o 5 Other X Other o oot not
Acquisition price =1 Totaj Sale price . Total Hyuidation/ controlling
investments reimbursements business interest

combination

(in thousands of cure)

Subsidiaries

225 006 2607
- - - - - 45007

76 (102 RO5Y - {10289 -

38300 - - -
{40072} - A% 206

ADC 44 - 44 - . -
- 335016 {142 881y - {1AZERD) 13881 202820
ssociated companics
- 2991 291 .
913 250
- - 3083) {R43Y
jan2 1a62

- R &)

854 16473 - -
Sopr - 3 4
- € - -
M de Rodovias - B o -
Pol ny - - - - 680
N - - - 1203
9 31451 32418 ( (7250 2512 {308
335977 31451 367 428 {202 762) (7292) {210 834) 161323 264128
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

2.1. Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

In accordance with Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of 19 July 2002 from the European Council and Parliament, Espirito
Santo Financial Group S.A. ("ESFG” or “the Company”) is required to prepare its consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as adopted by the European Union (“EU™).

IFRS comprise accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™) and its predecessor
body as well as interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™) and its
predecessor body.

These consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013 were prepared in accordance with
the IFRS effective and adopted by the EU until 31 December 2013. The accounting policies applied by the Group in the
preparation of its consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2013 are consistent with the ones used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2012, except as referred to
in Note 56, which describes the impact in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December
2013, of the adoption by the Group of the accounting standards issued by IASB and IFRIC interpretations, effective since
I January 2013. The accounting policies used by the Group in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements,
described in this Note, were modified accordingly. The adoption of these new standards and interpretations had no material
effect in the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

The accounting standards and interpretations recently issued but not yet effective and that the Group has not yet adopted in
the preparation of its financial statements can also be analysed in Note 56.

Moreover and as referred to in Note 1, the Group acquired, in May 2012, an additional 50% interest in BES Vida and the
control over its activities. Therefore, from that date, BES Vida. which previously qualified as an associate and was
included in the consolidated financial statements up to 2011 under the equity method, is being fully consolidated by the
Group. Further details are provided in Note 33.

These consolidated financial statements are expressed in thousands of euro. except when indicated, and have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for the assets and liabilities accounted at fair value, namely, derivative
contracts, financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets,
investment properties and recognised assets and liabilities that are hedged, in a fair value hedge, in respect of the risk that
is being hedged.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the application of judgment and the use of
estimates and assumptions by management that affects the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results in the future may differ from those reported.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity. or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

These consolidated financial statements were approved in the Board of Directors meeting held on 25 April 2014. These
financial statements are subject to the sharcholders approval on the General Assembly, to be held on 30 May 2014,

2.2. Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the assets, liabilities, gains and losses of Espirito Santo Financial Group
S.A. and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), and the results attributable to the Group from its associates.
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These accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group companies, during all the periods covered by the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group exercises control. Control is presumed to exist when the Group owns more
than one half of the voting rights. Additionally. control also exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies of the entity, so as to obtain benefits from its activities, even if its shareholding
is equal or less than 50%. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group
until the date that control ceases.

Accumulated losses of a subsidiary are attributed proportionally to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interest even if this results in non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

In a business combination achieved in stages (step acquisition) where control is obtained, the Group remeasures its
previously held non-controlling interest in the acquiree at its acquisition date fair value and recognises the resulting gain or
loss in the income statement when determining the respective goodwill. At the time of a partial sale, from which arises a
loss of control of a subsidiary, any remaining non-controlling interest retained is remeasured to fair value at the date the
control is lost and the resulting gain or loss is recognised against the income statement.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence over the company’s financial and operating policies
but not its control. Generally when the Group owns more than 20% of the voting rights it is presumed that it has significant
influence. However, even if the Group owns less than 20% of the voling rights, it can have significant influence through
the participation in the policy-making processes of the associated entity or the representation in its executive board of
directors.

Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting from the date on which significant
influence is transferred to the Group until the date that significant influence ceases. The book value of the investments in
associates includes the value of the respective goodwill determined on acquisition and is presented net of impairment
losses.

In a step acquisition that results in the Group obtaining significant influence over an entity, any previously held stake in
that entity is remeasured to fair value through the income statement when the equity method is first applied.

If the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any medium and
long-term interest, the Group discontinues the application of the equity method, except when it has a legal or constructive

obligation of covering those losses or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

Gains or losses on sales of shares in associate companies are recognised in the income statement even if that sale does not
result in the loss of significant influence.

Special purpose entities ("SPE”’)
The Group consolidates certain special purpose entities (“SPE”). specifically created to accomplish a narrow and well

defined objective, when the substance of the relationship with those entities indicates that they are controlled by the Group.,
independently of the percentage of the equity held.
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The evaluation of the existence of control is made based on the criteria established by SIC 12 — Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities, which can be summarised as follows:

* In substance, the activities of the SPE are being conducted in accordance with the specific needs of the Group’s
business. so that the Group obtains the benefits from these activities;

® Insubstance the Group has the decision-making powers to obtain the majority of the benefits from the activities of the
SPE:

* In substance, the Group has rights to obtain the majority of the benefits of the SPE, and therefore may be exposed to
the inherent risks of its activities;

® In substance, the Group retains the majority of residual or ownership risks related to the SPE so as to obtain the
benefits from its activities.

Investment funds managed by the Group

As part of the asset management activity, the Group manages investment funds on behalf of the holders of the participation
units. The financial statements of these funds are not consolidated by the Group except in the cases where control is
exercised over its activity based on the criteria established by SIC — 12. It is assumed that there is control when the Group
owns more than 50% of the participation units.

Goodwill

Goodwill resulting from business combinations that occurred until 1 January 2004 was offset against reserves, according to
the option granted by IFRS 1. adopted by the Group on the date of transition to the [FRS.

Goodwill resulting from business combinations that occurred from 1 January 2004 until 31 December 2009 was accounted
under the purchase method. The cost of acquisition was measured as the fair value, determined at the acquisition date, of
the assets and equity instruments given and liabilities incurred or assumed plus any costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of acquisition and the fair value of the Group’s share of
identifiable net assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010, in accordance with IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, the Group measures
goodwill as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the fair value of any previously held non-controlling
interests in the acquire. less the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, all measured as of the acquisition date. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the non-controlling interest is measured at their proportionate interest in the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired and of the liabilities assumed, without the respective portion of goodwill. As a result, the
goodwill recognised in these consolidated financial statements corresponds only to the portion attributable to the equity
holders of the Company.

In accordance with IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, goodwill is recognised as an asset at its cost and is not amortised.
Goodwill relating to the acquisition of associates is included in the book value of the investment in those associates
determined using the equity method. Negative goodwill is recognised directly in the income statement in the period the
business combination occurs.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill recognised as an asset is reviewed annually, regardless of whether there is any
indication of impairment. Impairment losses are recognised directly in the income statement.

The recoverable amount corresponds to the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the respective value in use. In
determining value in use, estimated futures cash flows are discounted using a rate that reflects market conditions. time
value of money and business risks.
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Transactions with non-controlling interest

Acquisitions of non-controlling interest, that did not result in a change in control, are accounted for as transactions with
equity holders in their capacity as equity holders and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result of such a transaction.
Any difference between the consideration paid and the amount of non-controlling interest acquired is accounted for as a
movement in equity.

Similarly, sales of non-controlling interest and dilutions from which does not result a loss of control, are accounted for as
transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders and therefore no gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement. Any difference between the sale proceeds and the recognised amount of non-controlling interest in the
consolidated financial statements is accounted for as a movement in equity.

Gains or losses on a dilution or on a sale of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary, from which results a loss of control, are
accounted for by the Group in the income statement.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements of each of the Group entities are prepared using their functional currency which is defined as the
currency of the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in euro, which is ESFG’s functional and presentation currency.

The financial statements of each of the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the euro are translated
into euro as follows:

e Assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet
date;

s Income and expenses are translated into the functional currency at rates approximating the rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions;

e The exchange differences resulting from the translation of the equity at the beginning of the year using the exchange
rates at the beginning of the vear and at the balance sheet date are accounted for against reserves net of deferred taxes.
Similarly, regarding the subsidiaries and associates results, the exchange differences arising from the translation of
income and expenses at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions and at the balance sheet date are accounted for
against reserves. When the entity is sold such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as a part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Balances and transactions eliminated in consolidation

Inter-company balances and transactions, including any unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group
companies, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements, unless unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment loss that should be recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment loss.

2.3. Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to euro at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the
income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated to euro at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
The resulting exchange differences are accounted for in the income statement, except if related to equity instruments
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classified as available-for-sale. which are accounted for in equity, within the fair value reserve.
2.4. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Classification

Derivatives for risk management purposes include (i) hedging derivatives and (ii) derivatives used to manage the risk of
certain financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss that were not classified as
being hedging derivatives.

All other derivatives are classified as trading derivatives.

Derivatives traded in organized markets, namely futures and some options, are recognised as trading derivatives, being
marked to market on a daily basis and the resulting gains or losses recognised directly in the income statement. Once the
fair value changes on these derivatives are settled daily through the margin accounts held by the Group, these derivatives
do not present any fair value on the balance sheet. The margin accounts are included under the caption Other assets and
comprise the minimum collateral mandatory for the open positions.

Recognition and measurement

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into (trade date).
Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair value of derivative financial instruments is re-measured on a regular basis and the
resulting gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised directly in the income statement. except for derivatives
designated as hedging instruments. The recognition of the resulting gains or losses of the derivatives designated as hedging
instruments depends on the nature of the risk being hedged and of the hedge model used.

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices. in active markets, if available or are determined using valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate.

Hedge accounting

®  Classification criteria

Hedge accounting is used for derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments, provided the following
criteria are met:

(0 At the inception of the hedge. the hedge relationship is identified and documented, including the identification of
the hedged item and of the hedging instrument and the evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedge;

(ii) The hedge is expected to be highly effective, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis;

(iii) The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured. both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis;

(iv) For cash flows hedges. the cash flows are highly probable of occurring.

*  Fair value hedge

In a fair value hedge, the book value of the hedged asset or liability. determined in accordance with the respective
accounting policy. is adjusted to reflect the changes in its fair value that are attributable to the risks being hedged. Changes
in the fair value of the derivatives that are designated as hedging instruments are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the derivative financial instrument is transferred to the
trading portfolio and the hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative adjustment to the carrying
amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest rate method is used is amortised to the income statement over the
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period to maturity.
o Cash flow hedge

When a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in highly probable future cash flows, the
effective portion of changes in the fair value of the hedging derivatives is recognised in equity. Amounts accumulated in
equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect the income statement. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity at that time is recognised in the income statement when the hedged transaction
also affects the income statement. When a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
reported in equity is recognised immediately in the income statement and the hedging instrument is reclassified for the
trading portfolio.

During the periods covered by these financial statements. the Group did not have any transactions classified as cash flow
hedge.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives that are embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement.

2.5. Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers include loans and advances originated by the Group, which are not intended to be sold in
the short term. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers.

Loans and advances to customers are derecognised from the balance sheet when (i) the contractual rights to receive their
cash flows have expired, (ii) the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership or (iii) although
retaining some but not substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership, the Group has transferred the control over
the assets.

Loans and advances to customers are initially recorded at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses.

In accordance with the documented strategy for risk management, the Group contracts derivative financial instruments to
manage certain risks of a portion of the loan portfolio, without applying, however, the provisions of hedge accounting as
mentioned in Note 2.4. These loans are measured at fair value through profit or loss, in order to eliminate a measurement
inconsistency resulting from measuring loans and derivatives for risk management purposes on different basis (accounting
mismatch). This procedure is in accordance with the accounting policy for classification, recognition and measurement of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, as described in Note 2.6.

Impairment

The Group assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there is objective evidence of impairment within its loan portfolio.
Impairment losses identified are recognised in the income statement and are subsequently reversed through the income
statement if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment losses decreases.

A loan or a loan portfolio, defined as a group of loans with similar credit risk characteristics, is impaired when:
(i) there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after its initial recognition and
(i) that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the loan or of the loan portfolio, that can be
reliably estimated.
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The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for each loan. In this assessment the
Group uses the information that feeds the credit risk models implemented and takes into consideration the following
factors:

o the aggregate exposure to the customer and the existence of non-performing loans;

o the viability of the customer’s business model and its capability to trade successfully and to generate sufficient cash
flow to service their debt obligations;

the extent of other creditors’ commitments ranking ahead of the Group;
the existence, nature and estimated realisable value of collaterals;

the exposure of the customer within the financial sector;
o the amount and timing of expected recoveries.

When loans have been individually assessed and no evidence of loss has been identified, these loans are grouped together
on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics for the purpose of evaluating the impairment on a portfolio basis
(collective assessment). Loans that are assessed individually and found to be impaired are not included in a collective
assessment for impairment.

If an impairment loss is identified on an individual basis, the amount of the impairment loss to be recognised is calculated
as the difference between the book value of the loan and the present value of the expected future cash flows (considering
the recovery period), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of impaired loans is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring the
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract rules.

The changes in the recognised impairment losses attributable to the unwinding of discount are recognised as interest and
similar income.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised loan reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and seliing the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, loans are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics, taking in consideration the Group’s credit risk management process. Future cash flows in a group of loans
that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the loans in the
Group and historical loss experience. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group with the purpose of reducing any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

When a loan is considered by the Group as uncollectible and an impairment loss of 100% was recognised, it is written off
against the related allowance for loan impairment. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the loan impairment loss recognised in the income statement.

2.6. Other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its other financial assets at initial recognition in the following categories:

*  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category includes: (i) financial assets held for trading. which are those acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or that are owned as part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking and (i) financial assets that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss at inception.
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The Group classifies, at inception. certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss when:
¢ Such financial assets are managed, measured and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis;
¢ Such financial assets are being hedged (on an economical basis). in order to eliminate an accounting mismatch; or
e Such financial assets contain an embedded derivative,

The structured products acquired by the Group corresponding to financial instruments containing one or more embedded
derivatives meet the above mentioned conditions, and, in accordance, are classified under the fair value through profit or
loss category.

e Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold until its maturity and that are not classified, at
inception, as at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale.

*  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets (1) intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time, (ii) designated as available-for-sale at initial recognition or (jii) that are not classified in the other categories referred
to above.

Initial recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Purchases and sales of: (i) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, (ii) held-to-maturity investments and (iii)
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised on trade date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, in which case these transaction costs are directly recognised in the income statement.

The best evidence of the fair value of the instrument at inception is deemed to be the transaction price. However, in
particular circumstances, the fair value of a financial instrument at inception, determined based on a valuation technique.
may differ from the transaction price, namely due to the existence of a built-in fee, originating a day one profit.

The Group recognises in the income statement the gains arising from the built-in fee (day one profit), generated. namely,
on the trading of derivative and foreign exchange financial products, considering that the fair value of these instruments at
inception and on subsequent measurements is determined only based on observable market data and reflects the Group
access to the wholesale market.

Financial assets are derecognised when (i) the contractual rights to receive their cash flows have expired, (ii) the Group has

risks and rewards of ownership, the Group has transferred the control over the assets.
Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value and gains and losses arising from
changes in their fair value are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets are also subsequently carried at fair value. However, gains and losses arising from
changes in their fair value are recognised directly in equity, until the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement. Foreign
exchange differences arising from equity investments classified as available-for-sale are also recognised in equity, while
foreign exchange differences arising from debt investments are recognised in the income statement. Interest, calculated
using the effective interest rate method and dividends are recognised in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. net of any impairment
losses recognised.
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The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. For unlisted securities the Group
establishes fair value by using (i) valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models and (ii) valuation assumptions based on market information.

Reclassifications between categories

The Group only reclassifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities, from
the available-for-sale financial assets category to the held-to-maturity investments category, if it has the intention and
ability to hold those financial assets until maturity.

Reclassifications between these categories are made at the fair value of the assets reclassified on the date of the
reclassification. The difference between this fair value and the respective nominal value is recognised in the income
statement until maturity, based on the effective interest rate method. The fair value reserve at the date of the
reclassification is also recognised in the income statement, based on the effective interest rate method.

Impairment

The Group assesses periodically whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after their initial recognition, such as: (i) for equity securities, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost, and (ii) for debt securities, when that event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

For held-to-maturity investments, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (considering the recovery period) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate and are recognised in the income statement. The carrying amount of the
impaired assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account. If a held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. For held-to-maturity investments if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets has been incurred. the
cumulative loss recognised in equity — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income statement — is taken to the income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through the income statement up to the acquisition cost if the increase is objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, except in relation to equity instruments, in which case the reversal is
recognised in equity.

2.7. Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) at a fixed price or at the sales price plus a lender’s return are not
derecognised. The corresponding liability is included in amounts due to banks or to customers. as appropriate. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest rate method.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse repos’) at a fixed price or at the purchase price plus a lender’s
return are not recognised. being the purchase price paid recorded as loans and advances to banks or customers, as
appropriate. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the
agreements using the effective interest rate method.
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Securities lent under lending agreements are not derecognised being classified and measured in accordance with the
accounting policy described in Note 2.6. Securities borrowed under borrowing agreements are not recognised in the
balance sheet.

2.8, Financial liabilities

An instrument is classified as a financial liability when it contains a contractual obligation to transfer cash or another
financial asset, independently from its legal form.

Non-derivatives financial liabilities include deposits from banks and due to customers, loans, debt securities, subordinated
debt and short sales. Preference shares issued are considered to be financial liabilities when the Group assumes the
obligation of reimbursement and/or to pay dividends.

The financial liabilities are recognised (i) initially at fair value less transaction costs and (ii) subsequently at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method. except for short sales and financial labilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

The Group designates, at inception, certain financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss when:
¢ Such financial liabilities are being hedged (on an economical basis), in order to eliminate an accounting
mismatch; or
* Such financial liabilities contain embedded derivatives.

The structured products issued by the Group meet the above mentioned conditions and, in accordance, are classified under
the fair value through profit or loss category.

The fair value of quoted financial liabilities is based on the current price. In the absence of a quoted price, the Group
establishes the fair value by using valuation techniques based on market information. including the own credit risk of the
issuer.

If the Group repurchases debt issued, it is derecognised from the balance sheet and the difference between the carrying
amount of the liability and its acquisition cost is recognised in the income statement.

2.9, Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument, namely the payment of principal and/or interests.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee is issued.
Subsequently financial guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the fair value recognised on initial recognition or (i)
any financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantees at the balance sheet date. Any increase in the liability relating
to guarantees is taken to the income statement.

The financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group normally have a stated maturity date and a periodic fee, usually paid
in advance on a quarterly basis. This fee varies depending on the counterparty risk. the amount and the time period of the
contract. Therefore, the fair value of the financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group. at the inception date, equal the
initial fee received, which is recognised in the income statement over the period to which it relates. The subsequent
periodic fees are recognised in the income statement in period to which they relate.
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2.10.  Equity instruments

An instrument is classified as an equity instrument when it does not contain a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another financial asset, independently from its legal form, being a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are recognised under equity as a deduction from
the proceeds. Amounts paid or received related to acquisitions or sales of equity instruments are recognised in equity, net
of transaction costs.

Distributions to holders of an equity instrument are debited directly to equity as dividends, when declared.

Preference shares issued are considered as equity instruments if the Group has no contractual obligation to redeem and if
dividends. non cumulative, are paid only if and when declared by the Group.

2.11. Compound financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments that contain both a liability and an equity component (e.g. convertible bonds and
bonds issued with warrants) are classified as compound financial instruments. For these instruments to be considered as
compound financial instruments, the number of shares to be issued upon conversion is determined at the date of issue and
does not vary with changes in their fair value. The liability component corresponds to the present vatue of the future
interest and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable to similar liabilities that do not have a
conversion option. The equity component corresponds to the difference between the proceeds of the issue and the amount
attributed to the liability. The interest expense recognised in the income statement is calculated using the effective interest
method.

2.12. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.13. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups {groups of assets to be disposed of together and related liabilities that include at least
a non-current asset) are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale
(including those acquired exclusively with a view to its subsequent disposal), the assets or disposal groups are available for
immediate sale and is highly probable.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current assets or all assets and liabilities ina
disposal group, is brought up to date in accordance with the applicable IFRS. Subsequently, these assets or disposal group
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. determined annually in accordance with
the applicable IFRS.

In the scope of its activity. the Group incurs in the risk from failure of the borrower to repay all the amounts due. In case of
loans and advances with mortgage collateral, the Group acquires the asset held as collateral in exchange for loans. In
accordance with the requirements of Regime Geral das Instituicbes de Crédito e Sociedades Financeiras (RGICSF).
Portuguese banks are prevented, unless authorised by the Bank of Portugal. from acquiring property that is not essential to
their daily operations (no. 1 of article 112 of RGICSF) being able to acquire, however, property in exchange for loans
granted by the Group. This property must be sold within 2 years, period that may be extended by written authorization
from the Bank of Portugal and in conditions to be determined by this authority (no. 114 of art of RGICSF).
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It is Group’s objective to immediately dispose all property acquired in exchange for loans. This property is classified as
non-current assets held-for-sale and is initially recognised at the lower of its fair value less costs to sell and the carrying
amount of the loans. Subsequently, this property is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and the corresponding fair
value less costs to sell and is not depreciated. Any subsequent write-down of the acquired property to fair value is recorded
in the income statement.

Property valuations are performed in accordance with one of the following methodologies, which are applied in
accordance with the specific situation of the asset:
a) Market Method
The Market Comparison Criteria takes as reference transaction values of similar and comparable property to the
property under valuation, obtained through market searching carried out in the zone.
b) Income Method
Under this method, the property is valued based on the capitalization of its net income, discounted for the
present moment, through the discounted cash-flows method.
¢) Cost Method
This method separates the value of property on its basic components: Urbane Ground Value and Urbanity
Value: Construction value; and Indirect Costs Value.

The valuations are performed by independent specialized entities. The valuation reports are analysed internally with the
gauging of processes adequacy, by experts.

2.14. Property and equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. At the transition date to
IFRS, 1 January 2004, the Group elected to consider as deemed cost, the revalued amount of property and equipment as
determined in accordance with previous accounting policies of the Group. which was broadly similar to depreciated cost
measured under IFRS, adjusted to reflect changes in a specific price index. The value includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. In relation to the insurance activity, the Group decided to consider as deemed
cost of its buildings for own use the fair value at transition date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group. All other repairs and

maintenance are charged to the income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Number of years

Buildings 3510 50
Improvements in leasehold property 10
Computer equipment 4035
Furniture 4t0 10
Fixtures S5to 12
Security equipment 41010
Office equipment 41010
Motor vehicles 4
Other equipment 5

When there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. [AS 36 requires that its recoverable amount is estimated and an
impairment loss recognised when the net book value of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement.
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The recoverable amount is determined as the greater of its net selling price and value in use which is based on the net
present value of future cash flows arising from the continuing use and ultimate disposal of the asset.

2.15. Investment properties

The Group classifies as investment property the property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
property is recognised initially at cost, including transaction costs that are directly attributable expenditures, and
subsequently at their fair value. Changes in the fair value determined at each balance sheet date are recognised in the
income statement. Investment property is not amortised.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that it will give rise to future economic benefits in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the asset.

2.16. Intangible assets

The costs incurred with the acquisition, production and development of software are capitalised, as well as the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of their expected useful
lives, which is usually between three to six years.

Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable specific software applications, and that will probably
generate economic benefits beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. These costs include employee costs from
the Group companies specialised in [T directly associated with the development of the referred software.

All remaining costs associated with IT services are recognised as an expense as incurred.
2.17. Leases

The Group classifies its lease agreements as finance leases or operating leases taking into consideration the substance of
the transaction rather than its legal form, in accordance with IAS 17 — Leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement in the period to which they relate.

Finance leases

o Aslessee

Finance lease contracts are recorded at inception date, both under assets and liabilities, at the cost of the asset leased.
which is equal to the present value of outstanding lease instalments. Instalments comprise (i) an interest charge, which is
recognised in the income statement and (ii) the repayment of principal, which is deducted from liabilities. Financial
charges are recognised as costs over the lease period, in order to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of liability for each period.

®  Aslessor

Assets leased out are recorded in the balance sheet as loans granted. for the amount equal to the net investment made in the
leased assets. Interest included in instalments charged to customers is recorded as interest income, while repayments of
principal, also included in the instalments, is deducted from the amount of the loans granted. The recognition of the interest
reflects a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net outstanding investment.

F-28




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

2.18. Employee benefits
FPensions

To cover the liabilities assumed by the Group within the framework stipulated by the ACT “Acordo Colectivo de
Trabalho™ and subsequent amendments resuiting from the 3 tripartite agreements as described in Note 14 for the banking
sector in Portugal and by the CCT “Contrato Colectivo de Trabalho™ for the insurance sector in Portugal, pension funds
were set up to cover retirement benefits, including widows and orphans benefits and disability for the entire work force and
also health-care benefits for employees.

The pension liabilities and health care benefits are covered by funds that are managed by ESAF — Espirito Santo Fundos de
Pensdes, S.A., a Group’s subsidiary.

The pension plans of the Group are classified as defined benefit plans, since the criteria to determine the pension benefit to

s be received by employees on retirement are predefined and usually depend on factors such as age, years of service and
[ -
L level of salary.

k.

The pension liability is calculated semi-annually by the Group, as at 31 December and 30 June for each plan individually,
using the projected unit credit method, and reviewed annually by qualified independent actuaries. The discount rate used in
this calculation was determined with reference to market rates associated with high-quality corporate bonds issues,
denominated in the currency in which benefits will be paid and with a maturity similar to the expiry date of the plan
obligations.

The Group determines the net interest expense (income) for the period on the net defined benefit liability (asset) by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the annual period, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Consequently, the net interest
expense (income) includes interest cost on the defined benefit obligation net of a theoretical return on the plan assets, both
calculated using the discount rate applied in the determination of the defined benefit obligation.

Remeasurements determined semi-annually and resulting from (i) actuarial gains and losses arising from the differences
between actuarial assumptions used and real values obtained (experience adjustments) and from changes in the actuarial
assumptions and (ii) gains and losses arising from the difference between theoretical return on plan assets and actual
investment returns, are recognised in Other comprehensive income.

At each period, the Group recognises as a cost in the income statement an amount that comprises (i) the service cost, (ii)

period.
ESFG and its subsidiaries make payments to the fund in order to maintain its solvency and to comply with the following
minimum levels: (i} the liability with pensioners shall be totally funded at the end of each year. and (ii) the liability related

1o past services cost with employees in service shall be funded at a minimum level of 95%.

The Group assesses at each reporting date and for each plan separately. the recoverability of any recognised asset in
relation to the defined benefit pension plans, based on the expectation of reductions in future contributions to the funds.

Health care benefits

The Group provides to its banking employees health care benefits through a specific Social-Medical Assistance Service.
This Social-Medical Assistance Service (SAMS) is an autonomous entity which is managed by the respective Union.

SAMS provides to its beneficiaries services and/or contributions on medical assistance expenses, diagnostics. medicines,
hospital confinement and surgical operations, in accordance with its financing availability and internal regulations.
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The annual contribution of the Group to SAMS amounts to 6.5% of the total annual remuneration of employees, including,
among others, the holiday and Christmas subsidy.

The measurement and recognition of the Group’s liability with post-retirement healthcare benefits is similar to the
measurement and recognition of the pension lability described above.

These benefits are covered by the Pension Fund which at present covers all responsibilities with pensions and health care
benefits.

Long term service benefits

In accordance with the ACT "Acordo Colectivo de Trabalho" for the banking sector. BES Group has assumed the
commitment to pay to current employees that achieve 15, 25 and 30 years of service within the Group, long-term service
premiums corresponding, respectively. to 1. 2 and 3 months of their effective monthly remuneration earned at the date the
premiums are paid.

At the date of early retirement or disability. employees have the right to a premium proportional to what they would earn if
they remained in service until the next payment date.

These long term service benefits are accounted for by the Group in accordance with IAS 19 as other long-term employee
benefits.

The liability with long term service benefits is calculated semi-annually, at the balance sheet date, by the Group using the
projected unit credit method. The actuarial assumptions used are based on the expectations about future salary increases
and mortality tables. The discount rate used in this calculation is determined based on the same methodology described
above for pensions.

In each period, the increase in the liability for long term service premiums, including actuarial gains and losses and past
service costs is charged to the income statement.

Share based payments — Stock option plan

In 2008, ESFG set-up a stock option plan that allows certain employees to acquire ESFG shares, or alternatively to require
a cash payment equivalent to the appreciation of ESFG share market price above the strike price.

The options granted to employees may be exercised after their first anniversary and during a ten year period.

This share based payment plan is within the scope of IFRS 2 — Share based payments and corresponds to a cash settlement
share based payment.

The fair value of this benefit plan at inception, determined at its grant date, was taken to the income statement as staff costs
over a period of one year. The recognised liability under the plan is re-measured at each balance sheet date, being the fair
value changes recognised in the income statement under the caption staff costs.

Variable remuneration pavment plan on financial instruments (PRVIF)

Following the recommendations of the Supervising and Regulatory authorities, on the BES shareholder’s General Meeting,
held in 6 April 2010 it was approved a new remuneration policy for BES Executive Committee members. This new
remuneration policy is described in Note 14,

The component of the variable remuneration paid in cash is accounted for following IAS 19 — Employee benefits, in the
period to which it relates.

The component of the variable remuneration paid with equity instruments is accounted for in accordance with [FRS 2 —
Share based payments. The fair value of this benefit plan at inception, determined at its grant date, is taken to the income
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statement as staff costs over the vesting period. The recognised liability under the plan is re-measured at each balance sheet
date, being the fair value changes recognised in the income statement.

Bonus to employee

In accordance with [AS 19 — Employee benefits, the bonus payment to employees are recognised in the income statement
in the year to which they relate.

2.19. Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. Income tax
recognised directly in equity relating w fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale financial assets and cash flow
hedges is subsequently recognised in the income statement when gains or losses giving rise to the income tax are also
recognised in the income statement.

Current tax is the tax expected to be paid on the taxable profit for the year, calculated using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date at each jurisdiction.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax basis, and is calculated using the
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in any jurisdiction and that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except for goodwill, not deductible for tax
purposes, differences arising on initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that probably they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be deducted.

The Group offsets deferred taxes assets and liabilities for each subsidiary, whenever (i) the subsidiary has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and (ii) they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority. This offset is therefore performed at each subsidiary level. being the deferred tax asset presented
in the consolidated balance sheet the sum of the subsidiaries® amounts which present deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liability presented in the consolidated balance sheet the sum of the subsidiaries” amounts which present deferred tax
liabilities.

2.20. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: (i) the Group has present legal or constructive obligation, (ii) it is probable that settlement
will be required in the future and (iii) a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

When the effect of the passage of time (discount) is material. the provision corresponds to the net present value of the
expected future payments, discounted at an appropriate rate considering the risk associated to the obligation.

Restructuring provisions are recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan and such
restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are
{ower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligation under the contract. The provision is measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net costs of continuing with the

contract.

2.21. Interest income and expense
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Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement under interest and similar income and interest expense
and similar charges for all non-derivative financial instruments measured at amortised cost and for the available-for-sale
financial assets, using the effective interest rate method. Interest income arising from non-derivative financial assets and
labilities at fair value through profit or loss is also included under interest and similar income or interest expense and
similar charges, respectively.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The effective interest rate is calculated at inception and it is not subsequently revised, except in what
concerns financial assets and liabilities with a variable interest rate. In this case the effective interest rate is periodically
revised, having in consideration the impact of the change in the reference interest rate in the estimated future cash-flows.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
all fees and commissions paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts.

[n the case of financial assets or groups of similar financial assets for which an impairment loss was recognised, interest
income is calculated using the interest rate used to measure the impairment loss.

For derivative financial instruments, except for derivatives for risk management purposes (see Note 2.4), the interest
component of the changes in their fair value is not separated out and is classified under net gains/(losses) from financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The interest component of the changes in the fair value of
derivatives for risk management purposes is recognised under interest and similar income or interest expense and similar
charges.

2.22. Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognised as follows:
¢ Fees and commissions that are earned on the execution of a significant act, as loan syndication fees, are
recognised as income when the significant act has been completed;
* Fees and commissions earned over the period in which the services are provided are recognised as income in the
period the services are provided;
® Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument are
recognised as income using the effective interest rate method.

2.23. Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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2.24.  Fiduciary activities

Assets held in the scope of the fiduciary activity are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Fee and commissions arising from this activity are recognised in the income statement in the period to which they relate.

2.25. Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk, financial risk or a combination of both insurance and financial risk.
A contract. under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk from another party. by agreeing to compensate that
party on the occurrence of a specified uncertain future event, is classified as an insurance contract.

A contract issued by the Group without significant insurance risk, but on which financial risk is transferred with
discretionary participating features is classified as investment contract recognised and measured in accordance with the
accounting policies applicable to insurance contracts. A contract issued by the Group that transfers only financial risk,
without discretionary participating features, is classified as an investment contract and accounted for as a financial
instrument.

The financial assets held by the Group to cover the liabilities arising under insurance and investment contracts are
classified and accounted for in the same way as other Group financial assets.

Insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participating features are recognised and measured as
follows:

Premiums

Gross written premiums are recognised for as income in the period to which they respect. in accordance with the accrual
accounting principle.

Reinsurance premiums ceded are accounted for as expense in the period to which they respect in the same way as gross
written premiums.

Unearned premium reserve

The reserve for unearned gross written premiums and reinsurance ceded premiums reflects the part of the written
premiums before the end of the period for which the risk period continues after the end of the period. This reserve is
calculated using the pro-rata temporis method applied to each contract in force.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs that are directly or indirectly related to the selling of insurance and investment contracts with
discretionary participating features are capitalized and deferred through the life of the contracts. Deferred acquisition costs
are subject to recoverability testing at the time of the insurance policy or investment contract is issued and subject to
impairment test (liability adequacy test) at each reporting date.

Claims reserves

Claims outstanding reflects the estimated total outstanding liability for reported claims and for incurred but not reported
claims (IBNR). Reserves for both reported and not reported claims are estimated by management based on experience and
available data using statistical methods. Additionally, claims reserve also includes an estimation related with future costs

with claims settlement (“expense reserve’”).

The mathematical reserves relating to obligations to pay life pensions resulting from workmen's compensation claims is
calculated by using actuarial assumptions. with reference to recognised actuarial methods and current labour legislation.

Claims reserves are not discounted, except life pensions arising from workmen’s compensation claims.
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Unexpired risk reserve

The reserve for unexpired risks represents the amount by which expected claims and administrative expenses likely to arise
after the end of the period, from contracts concluded before that date, exceeds the unearned premiums reserve, any
expected future premiums expected to be written under those contracts and from premiums renewed on January next year.

Life assurance reserve

The life assurance reserve reflects the present value of the Group's future obligations arising from life policies (insurance
contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participating features) written and is calculated in accordance with
recognised actuarial methods within the scope of applicable legislation.

Reserve for bonus and rebates

The reserve for bonus and rebates corresponds to the amounts attributed to policyholders or beneficiaries of insurance or
investment contracts, in the form of profit participation, which have not vet been specifically allocated and included in the
life assurance reserve.

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, the Group performs a liability adequacy test to the insurance and investment contracts with
discretionary participating features liabilities. The assessment of the liabilities is performed using the best estimate of
future cash flows under each contract. The liability adequacy test is performed product by product or aggregate basis when
contracts are subject to broadly similar risks and managed as a single portfolio. Any deficiency determined, if exists, is
recognised directly through income.

Shadow accounting

I accordance with [FRS 4. the unrealised gains and losses on the assets covering liabilities arising out from insurance and
investment contracts with discretionary participating features are attributable to policyholders, to the extent that it is
expected that policyholders will participate on those unrealised gains and losses when they became realised in accordance
with the terms of the contracts and applicable legislation, by recording those amounts under liabilities.

2.26. Segment reporting

The Group adopts [FRS 8 - Segmental reporting, for the disclosure of the financial information by operating segments (see
Note 4).

An operating segment is a component of an entity (i) that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity);
(il) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and (iif) for which discrete financial information is
available.

The results of the operating segments are periodically reviewed by the Management for decisions taking purposes. The
Group prepares on a regular basis, financial information regarding the operating segments, which is reported to the

Management.

A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and return that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.
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2.27. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income available to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, excluding the average number of ordinary shares purchased by
the Group and held as treasury stock.

For the diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as convertible debt and share options granted to employees.
Potential or contingent share issuances are treated as dilutive when their conversion to shares would decrease net earnings
per share.

2.28. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the inception date. including cash and deposits with banks.

Cash and cash equivalents exclude restricted balances with central banks.

NOTE 3 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

[FRS set forth a range of accounting treatments and require management to apply judgment and make estimates in
deciding which treatment is most appropriate. The most significant of these accounting policies are discussed in this
section in order to improve understanding of how their application affects the Group’s reported results and related
disclosure. A broader description of the accounting policies applied by the Group is shown in Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Because in many cases there are other alternatives to the accounting treatment chosen by management, the Group’s
reported results would differ if a different treatment were chosen. Management believes that the choices made by it are
appropriate and that the consolidated financial statements present the Group’s consolidated financial position and results
fairly in all material respects.

3.1, Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group determines that available-for-sale financial assets are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost or when it has identified an event with impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the assets. This determination requires judgement, based on all available relevant information, including the normal
volatility of the financial instruments prices.

Therefore. for equity securities. considering the high volatility of the markets. a decline (i) over 30% in market value in
relation to the acquisition cost generally is regarded by the Group as significant and (ii) that persists for more than 12
months is generally regarded as prolonged. Debt securities are considered to be impaired if there is objective evidence that
one or more events have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of these assets.

In addition. valuations are generally obtained through market quotation or valuation models that may require assumptions
or judgment in making estimates of fair value.

Alternative methodologies and the use of different assumptions and estimates could result in a higher level of impairment
losses recognised with a consequent impact in the income statement of the Group.
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3.2, Fair value of derivatives and other assets and liabilities at fair value

Fair values are based on listed market prices if available; otherwise fair value is determined either by dealer price
quotations (both for that transaction or for similar instruments traded) or by pricing models, based on net present value of
estimated future cash flows which take into account market conditions for the underlying instruments, time value, yield
curve and volatility factors. These pricing models may require assumptions or judgments in estimating fair values.

Consequently. the use of a different model or of different assumptions or judgments in applying a particular model may
have produced different financial results from the ones reported.

3.3, Impairment losses on loans and advances
The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a regular basis, as described in Note 2.5.

The evaluation process in determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement is subject to
numerous estimates and judgments. The frequency of default, risk ratings, loss recovery rates and the estimation of both
the amount and timing of future cash flows, among other factors, are considered in making this evaluation.

Alternative methodologies and the use of different assumptions and estimates could result in a different level of
impairment losses with a consequent impact in the consolidated income statement of the Group.

3.4.  Goodwill impairment

Goodwill recoverable amount recognised as an asset of the Group is revised annually regardless the existence of
impairment losses.

For this purpose, the carrying amount of the business units of the Group for which goodwill has been recognised is
compared with the respective recoverable amount. A goodwill impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of
the business unit exceeds the respective recoverable amount.

In the absence of an available market value, the recoverable amount is determined using cash flows/ dividends predictions.
applying a discount rate that includes a risk premium appropriated to the business unit being tested. The determination of
future cash flows to discount and the discount rate involves judgement.

Changes in the expected cash flows and in the discount rate may lead to different conclusions from those that led to the
preparation of these financial statements.

3.5, Securitisations and special purpose entities (SPE)

The Group sponsors the formation of special purpose entities (SPEs) primarily for asset securitisation transactions and for
liquidity purposes.

The Group does not consolidate SPEs that it does not control. As it can sometimes be difficult to determine whether the
Group does control an SPE, it makes judgements about its exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about its ability to
make operational decisions for the SPE in question (see Note 2.2).

The determination of the SPEs that needs to be consolidated by the Group requires the use of estimates and assumptions in
determining the respective expected residual gains and losses and which party retains the majority of such residual gains
and losses. Different estimates and assumptions could lead the Group to a different scope of consolidation with a direct
impact in net income,

3.6, Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of 1AS 39 on classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
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In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant
amount close to maturity — it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments would
therefore be measured at fair value instead of amortised cost.

Held-to-maturity investments are subject to impairment tests made by the Group. The use of different assumptions and
estimates could have an impact on the income statement of the Group.

3.7. Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant interpretations and estimates are required in
determining the worldwide amount for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.

Different interpretations and estimates would result in a different level of income taxes, current and deferred, recognised in
the period.

The Tax Authorities are entitled to review the Portuguese Group entities” determination of annual taxable earnings. for a
period of four years or six years in case there are tax losses brought forward. The determination of annual tax earnings by
other Group entities (located outside Portugal) can also be subject to similar reviews by their respective tax authorities.
Hence, it is possible that some additional taxes may be assessed, mainly as a result of differences in interpretation of the
tax law. However, the Board of Directors of the Company and those of its subsidiaries, are confident that there will be no
material differences arising from tax assessments within the context of the financial statements.

The Company itself is subject to the general tax regulations applicable to Luxembourg commercial companies. The
applicable tax rate is 29.22% (31 December 2012: 29.22%).

3.8.  Pension and other employees’ benefits

Determining pension liabilities requires the use of assumptions and estimates. including the use of actuarial projections,
estimated returns on investment, and other factors that could impact the cost and liability of the pension plan.

Changes in these assumptions could materially affect these values.
3.9 Insurance and investment contracts liabilities

Insurance and investment contracts liabilities represent liabilities for future insurance policy benefits. Insurance reserves
for traditional life insurance, annuities, and workmen’s compensation policies have been calculated based upon mortality.
morbidity. persistency and interest rate assumptions applicable to those coverage. The assumptions used reflect the
Groups” and market experience and may be revised if it is determined that future experience will differ substantially from
that previously assumed. Insurance and investment contracts liabilities include: (i) unearned premiums reserve, (i) life
mathematical reserve, (iii) reserve for bonus and rebates, (iv) unexpired risk reserve, (v) liability adequacy test and (vi)
claims reserves. Claims reserves include estimated provisions for both reported and unreported claims incurred and related
expenses.

When claims are made by or against policvholders, any amounts that the Group pays or expects to pay are recorded as
losses. The Group establishes reserves for payment of losses for claims that arise from its insurance and investment
contracts.

In determining their insurance reserves and investment contracts liabilities, the Group’s insurance companies perform a

continuing review of their overall positions, their reserving techniques and their reinsurance coverage. The reserves are
also reviewed periodically by qualified actuaries.
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The Group maintains property and casualty loss reserves to cover the estimated ultimate unpaid liability for losses with
respect to both reported and not reported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting year.

Claims reserves do not represent an exact calcufation of liability, but instead represent estimates, generally using actuarial
valuations/techniques. These reserve estimates are expectations of what the ultimate settlement of claims is likely to cost
based on an assessment of facts and circumstances then known. a review of historical settlement patterns, estimates of
trends in claims severity, frequency, legal theories of liability and other factors. Variables in the reserve estimation process
can be affected by both internal and external events, such as changes in claims handling procedures, economic inflation,
legal trends and legislative changes. Many of these items are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis.
Additionally. there may be significant reporting lags between the occurrence of the insured event and the time it is actually
reported to the insurer. Reserve estimates are continually reviewed in a regular ongoing process as historical loss
experience develops and additional claims are reported and settled.

NOTE 4 - SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Group activities are focused primarily on the banking and insurance sectors and are directed to companies, institutional and
private customers. The Group’s principal operating subsidiaries are located in Portugal, which makes it its privileged
market. The historical link with Brazil and Africa, the globalization of the Portuguese companies and the Portuguese
emigration to several countries, led to an internationalisation of the Group, which already has an international structure
contributing significantly to the Group’s activities and results. The Group is also active in Portugal in the health-care
management business.

The Group’s products and services include deposits, loans to retail and corporate customers, fund management, broker and
custodian services, investment banking services, as well as the issuance and commercialisation of life and non-life
insurance products. Additionally. the Group makes short, medium and long term investments in the financial and currency
exchange markets with the objective of taking advantages from the prices changes or to have a return from its available
resources.

The Group has BES as its main banking operating unit - with 636 branches in Portugal and with branches in London, New
York, Spain (25 branches), Nassau, Cayman Islands, Cape Verde, Venezuela, Luxembourg and Madeira Free Zone and 13
representation offices - with BES Investmento (investment banking), BES Angola (41 branches), BES Acores (18
branches), Banco BEST (11 branches), Espirito Santo Bank, BES Oriente, Aman Bank, BES Cape Verde. BES Vénétie,
Espirito Santo Activos Financeiros (ESAF), ES Bank Panama. ES Bank Dubai and Banque Privée Espirito Santo.
Tranquilidade. Logo and BES Seguros are the Group’s non-life operating unit while T-Vida and BES-Vida are active in
life-insurance.

When evaluating the performance by business area, the Group considers the following Operating Segments: (1) Domestic
Commercial Banking, including Retail, Corporate, Institutional and Private Banking: (2) Asset Management;
(3) International Commercial Banking including Private banking; {4) Investment Banking; (5) Capital Markets and
Strategic Investments: (6) Non-Life Insurance; (7) Life Insurance: (8) Health-care management and (9) Corporative
Centre. Each segment includes the Group structures that directly or indirectly relate to it, and also the other units of the
Group whose activities are most related to one of these segments. The performance of each operating unit of the Group
(considered as an investment centre) is evaluated individually.

Complementary, the Group, uses a segmentation of its activities and results according to geographic criteria, segregating

the activity and the results generated from the units located in Portugal (domestic activities) from the units located abroad
(international activities).
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4.1, Operating Segments Description
Each of the operating segments includes the following activities, products, customers and Group structures:
Domestic Commercial Banking

This operating segment includes all the banking activity with corporate and institutional customers developed in Portugal,
based in the branch offices network, corporate centres and other channels and includes the following:

a) Retail: corresponds to all activity developed by BES in Portugal with private customers and small business,
fundamentally originated by the branches network, agent network and electronic channels. The financial information of the
segment relates to, among other products and services, mortgage loans, consumer credit, financing the clients® activity,
deposits repayable on demand and term deposits, retirement plans and other insurance products to private customers,
commissions over account management and electronic payments, the investment funds cross-selling and brokerage and
custodian services.

b) Corporate and Institutional: includes BES activities in Portugal with small, medium and large companies, through its
commercial structure dedicated to this segment, which includes 24 corporate centres. Also includes activities with
institutional and municipal customers. The main products considered on this segment are: discounted bills, leasing,
factoring and short and long term loans; includes deposits and guarantees, custodian services, letters of credit, electronic
payments management and other services.

¢) Private Banking: includes private banking activity in Portugal, all profit, loss and assets and liabilities associated to
customers classified as private by the Group in Portugal. The main products considered on this segment are: deposits;
discretionary management, selling of investment funds, custodian services, brokerage services and insurance products.

Asset Management

This segment includes the asset management activities developed by ESAF in Portugal and abroad (Spain, Brazil, Angola,
Luxembourg and United Kingdom). ESAF’s products include all types of funds - investment funds, real estate funds and
pension funds, and also includes discretionary management services and portfolio management.

International Commercial Banking

This operating segment includes the units located abroad, which banking activities are focused on corporate, retail
customers and private banking, excluding investment banking and asset management, which are integrated in the
corresponding segments.

Among the units comprising this segment are BES Angola and Spain, London and New York Branches of BES, ES
Bankers Dubai, ES Bank Panama and Banque Privée. The main products included in this segment are deposits, credit,
asset management fees, leveraged finance, structured trade finance and project finance operations.

Investment Banking

This segment includes assets, liabilities. profits and losses of the operating units that consolidate in BES Investimento,
which comprises all the investment banking activities of the Group originated in Portugal and abroad. In addition to the
lending activity. deposits and other forms of funding, it includes advisory services. mergers and acquisitions, restructuring
and debt consolidation, initial public offerings (shares and bonds). brokerage and other investment banking services.
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Capital Markets and Strategic Investments

This segment includes the financial management of the Group, namely the investments in capital markets instruments
{equity and debt), whether they are integrated in trading, fair value, available for sale or held to maturity financial assets
portfolios. Also included in this segment is the Group’s investment in non-controlling strategic positions, as well as all the
activity inherent to interest rate and exchange rate risk management. long and short positions on financial instruments
management, which allow the Group to take advantage of the price changes in those markets where these instruments are
exchanged.

Non-Life Insurance

This segment includes the activities of Tranquilidade and Logo in the non-life insurance sector as well as the Group’s
participation in the activities of its associated companies, BES-Seguros and Europ-Assistance.

Life Insurance

This segment includes the activities of T-Vida and BES Vida in the life insurance sector.

Health-care management

This segment includes the Group’s activities in the management of hospitals, outpatient clinics, residential hospitals and
senior citizen residences through ES Sadde. Considering the loss of control over ES Satide occurred in 2012 (see Note 33)
this segment was discontinued on ESFG perspective.

Corporative Centre

This area does not correspond to an operating segment. It refers to an aggregation of corporative structures acting
throughout the entire Group, such as Representative Office in London. areas related to the Board of Directors, Compliance,
Financial and Accounting, Risk management, Investor Relations. Internal Audit. Organization and Quality, among others.
It also includes the corporate borrowings of the Group.

4.2. Allocation criteria of the activity and results to the operating segments

The financial information presented for each segment was prepared in accordance with the criteria followed for the
preparation of internal information analysed by the decision makers of the Group. as required by IFRS.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial information related with the operating segments are
consistent with the ones used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. which are described in Note 2,
having been adopted the following principles.

Measurement of profit or loss from operating segments

The Group uses net income before taxes as the measure of profit or loss for evaluating the performance of each operating
segment.

Autonomous Operating Segments
As mentioned above. each operating unit (subsidiaries and associated entities) is evaluated separately, as these units are

considered investment centres. Additionally, considering the characteristics of the business developed by these units, they
are fully included in one of the operating segments, assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses.
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ESFG structures dedicated to segments

The activity of BES, ESFG’s main subsidiary, comprises most of its operating segments and therefore its activity is
disaggregated.

For the purpose of allocating the financial information, the following principles are used: (i) the origin of the operation.
(ii) the type of product or service rendered; (iii) the segment to which the commercial and central structures are dedicated
to; (iv) the Cost Based Approach (CBA) model and other specific drivers in the allocation of indirect cost (central support
and IT services); (vi) the impairment model in the allocation of credit risk; (vii) total equity is allocated to the capital
markets and strategic investments segment.

The transactions between the independent and autonomous units of the Group are made at market prices; the price of the
services between the structures of each unit, namely the price established for funding between units, is determined by a
margin process (which vary in accordance with the strategic relevance of the product and the balance between funding and
lending); the remaining internal transactions are allocated to the segments in accordance with CBA without any margin
from the supplier.

The interest rate risk. exchange risk. liquidity risk and others, except for credit risk, are included in the Financial
Department, whose mission is to make the Group’s financial management. The related activity and results are included in
Capital Markets and Strategic Investments segment.

Interest and similar income/expense

Since the Group’s activities are mainly related to the financial sector and the majority of the segments revenues are from
interest, the Group relies primarily on net interest revenue to assess the performance of the segment and to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment. As such and as permitted by IFRS 8 paragraph 23, the Group reports
segments interest revenue net of its inferest expense.

Consolidated Investments under the Equity Method

Investments in associated companies consolidated under the equity method are included in the operating segment they
relate to. Associates not directly related to a specific operating segment are included in the Capital Markets and Strategic
Investments segment.

Non current assets

Non current assets. according to [FRS 8, include Other Tangible Assets and Intangible Assets. BES includes these assets
on the Capital Markets and Strategic Investments segment; the non current assets held by the subsidiaries are allocated to
the segment in which these subsidiaries develop their business.

Income taxes

Income tax is a part of the Group net income but does not affect the evaluation of most of the Operating Segments.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the Capital Markets and Strategic Investments segment.

Post Employment Benefits
Assets under post employment benefits are managed in a similar way to deferred income taxes assets, and are included in
the Capital Markets and Strategic Investments segment. The factors that influence the amount of responsibilities and the

amount of the funds’ assets correspond, mainly, to external elements; it is Group’s policy not to include these factors on
the performance evaluation of the operating segments, which activities relate to customers.
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Domestic and International Areas

In the disclosure of financial information by geographical areas, the operating units that comprise the International Area
are: BES Angola and its branches, BES Oriente, Espirito Santo Bank. ES Bankers Dubai, ES Bank Panama, Banque Privée
Espirito Santo, Espirito Santo Vénétie, Banco Delle Tre Venezie. ESFIL, London, Spain. New York and Cape Verde,
Venezuela and Luxembourg branches of BES, and the operating units located abroad from BES Investimento and ESAF.

The financial elements related to the International Area are presented in the financial statements of those units with the
respective consolidation and elimination adjustments.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

NOTE S5 - NET INTEREST INCOME

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.1z.2012

Assets / Assets /
PR Assets / Assets /
Liakilities at

iy Liabilities at T
s Liabilities at . Liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost

N fair value Total . fair value Totai
and available- through profit and available- through profit
for-sale for-sale
. or loss . or oss
financial assets financial assets
{in thousands of curo)
Interest and sinrilar income

ioans and advances 2431191 14 187 2445378 2675102 8367 2683 469
deposits with banks 47 499 807 27023 36772
ofit orloss - 2553526 - 236 548
383617 - 333233
33303 - - 34813
rom derivatives forrisk mana, - 395474 - 439612 439012
Otherinterest and similar income 33350 37814 - 37814
2963 262 665994 3629256 3370005 727676 4097681

Interest expense and similar charges
Interest from debt se

(799351) (866 485) (836 649)

(971471) (1020 792)
(330 736) 34993
rom subordinated debt {57 733) - {97 735) (95 36%) - {95 363)
mderivatives for risk - (195 462) { 193 462) - (343332 {343 532)
Other interest expe (13 688) - { 13688} {7292y - {7292y
{2213 001) {323 760) {2536 761) (2 487 255} {425205) {2 832 460)
750 261 342234 1092 498 962 750 362471 1265221

Interest from loans and advances includes an amount of euro 103 082 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 78 290
thousand) related to the unwind of discount regarding the impairment losses of loans and advances to customers that
are overdue (see Note 26).

Interest from derivatives for risk management purposes includes, in accordance with the accounting policy described
in Notes 2.4 and 2.21, interest from hedging derivatives and from derivatives used to manage the risk of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the
accounting policies described in Notes 2.5, 2.6 and 2.8.

NOTE 6 - NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Fee and commission income

From banking services 489 804 604 676
From guarantees granted 258 469 233432
From transactions with securities 73 154 64287
From commitments assumed to third parties 28 942 38774
Other fee and commission income 76 391 93 977
926 760 1035 146
Fee and commission expenses

From banking services rendered by third parties (83 749) (79 555)
From transactions with securities (21 489) 26 571
From guarantees received (70 054) (59 819)
Other fee and commission expense (28 336) (19 587)
(203 628) (185 332)

723 132 849 614

Fee and commission expenses from guarantees received includes as at 31 December 2013, the amount of euro 60.6

million (31 December 2012: euro 38.5 million) related with the guarantees received from the Portuguese
government in relation with the debt issued by the Group.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)
NOTE 7 - NET (LOSSES) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Gains Losses Total Gains Losses Total
{in thousands of euro)
Trading assets and liabilites
Securities
Bonds and other fixed income secunties
Issued by govemnment and public entities 96 728 { 164 298) (73570) {723 240) 220043
Issued by other entities 206787 {12604) 8183 (26 149) (12 906)
Shares 43638 {62 182) {18544 43947 (47 763) (3816}
Other variable income securities 1167 (13552 { 385) 1185 (1149} 36
156 320 {240 636) (84316) 1001 658 {798 301) 203 357
Derivative financial mstruments
Exchange rate contracis 2813 561 (2815 009) (1448) 1040 084 (1 038 856)
Interest rate contracts 5408 069 (3353 884) {145815) 4956 739 (4911 210)
Equity/Index contracts 2152763 (2 167 803} (15100 1342619 {1325590)
Credit default contracts 506019 { 539289 (33270) 753 554 {783 848)
Other 31183 (22206) 8977 107 646 42 859
10911 535 (11098 191) {186 656) 8200642 (8016 645)
11 067 835 (11338827) (270 972) 9202300 (8814946} 387354
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
(375933 64 358 61704
(2020 370) 187 507 { 75988
{263 270) {3787;

(2 420 908) 51271

(68816)

4 855 885 {4742 141) 113744 374 589 (309 500) 63 089
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 36 603 (15779) 26826 8768 (9 406) { 638)
36605 (15779 20826 8 758 (9400} { 638)
Fmancial
Depo £ b 887 (25228)
Due to customers 508 { 168 007)
Debt securities 1ssued {30 056) {267 331
acts (167507) (247 914)
ubordinated debt - - - (1739
218207 (376 775) (158 568) (710439) (506 567)
5110697 (5134 695) (23 998) (1029 345) (442 116)
16 178 552 (16 473 522) (294970} 9 789 529 {9844 291) {34 762)

=%

ssets and I

s

4

wdes the fair valy of hed

sc

[

profit or loss

As at 31 December 2013, this balance includes a negative effect of euro 73.3 million related to the change in fair
value of financial labilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. attributable to the Group’s credit risk

component (31 December 2012: negative effect of euro 35.2 million).

In accordance with the accounting policies followed by the Group. financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value. The best evidence of the fair value of the instrument at inception is deemed to be the transaction price.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

However, in particular circumstances, the fair value of a financial instrument at inception. determined based on a
valuation techniques, may differ from the transaction price, namely due to the existence of a built-in fee, originating
a day one profit.

The Group recognises in the income statement the gains arising from the built-in fee (day one profit), generated,
namely. on the trading of foreign exchange financial products, considering that the fair value of these instruments at
inception and on subsequent measurements is determined only based on observable market data and reflects the
Group access to the wholesale market.

In 2013, the gains recognised in the income statement arising from the built-in fee amounted to approximately euro
13 691 thousand (2012: euro 14 387 thousand) being substantially related to foreign exchange transactions.

NOTE 8 - NET GAINS FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Gains Losses Total Gains Losses Total

(in thousands of euro)
Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by government and public entities 384 609 (21 815) 362 794 821775 (24937} 796 838
Issued by other entities 21 863 (19618) 2247 81219 {66115} 15104
Shares 84 706 {17 055 67 651 46 541 (250272) (203731
Other variable income securities 31657 { 12700 18957 14282 (16925} {20643)
522 837 (71 188) 451 649 963 817 (358249) 605 568

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group sold at market prices through the stock exchange, 77.4 million
ordinary shares of EDP, this transaction generated a realised net gain of euro 33.7 million (euro 14.7 million net of
non-controlling interest) (see Note 24).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group sold at market prices through the stock exchange, 96.4 million
ordinary shares of EDP and 260.7 million ordinary shares of Portugal Telecom. These transactions generated a
realised net loss of euro 224.9 million (euro 61.5 million net of non-controlling interest) (see Note 24).

E

NOTE 9 - NET (LOSSES) FROM FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

This balance is analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Gains Losses Total Gains Losses Total

(in thousands of euro)

Foreign exchange translation 943 107 (945 793) (20688) 1048 822 (1067 191) ( 18369)

943 107 {945 795) (2688 1048822 (1067 191) (18369)

This balance includes the exchange differences arising on translating monetary assets and liabilities at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.3.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

NOTE 10-  NET (LOSSES) FROM THE SALE OF OTHER ASSETS

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Loans and advances to customers (20 738) (39507)
Non-current assets held for sale (52261 (6382)
Other 5936 3316

(67 063) (42573

As at 31 December 2013, Loans and advances to customers include a loss of euro 0.1 million related to the sale of

euro 63 million of credits realised within the deleverage program of the Group (31 December 2012: loss of euro 29.6
million related to the sale of euro 262 millions of credits).

NOTE 11 -  INSURANCE EARNED PREMIUMS, NET OF REINSURANCE

The insurance eamned premiums, net of reinsurance, can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Gross premiums written 814 756 468 168
Reinsurance premiums ceded (122 122) (63 990)
Net premiums written 692 634 404 178
Change in the provision for unearned premiums,

net of reinsurance 2034 3454
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance 694 668 407 632




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
{Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The direct insurance written and earned premiums are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Written Earned Written Earned
premiums premiums premiums premiums
(in thousands of euro)
Life 469118 468 292 114780 114 079
Non-life:

Direct Business

Accident and health 101 363 100 067 100 660 101 281

Fire and hazards 64 203 64 754 64 100 63 563

Motor 144 410 148 904 153773 156 705

Maritime, airline and transportation 7 794 7621 6878 6672

Third party liability 11499 11384 11080 11162

Credit and surety ship 51 42 40 43

Other 15715 16 049 16 086 16 039

Total 814 355 817 113 467 397 469 544

Reinsurance accepted 401 368 771 764

814 756 817 481 468 168 470 308

The reinsurance ceded premiums are analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Written Earned Written Farned
premiums premiums premiumns premiums
(in thousands of euro)
Life 64 294 64 293 8 681 8118
Non-life:

Direct Business

Accident and Health 4097 3744 3348 3420

Fire and hazards 29411 29 900 28 744 28 180

Motor 1 887 211 1972 1959

Maritime, airline and transportation 4384 4153 3757 3687

Third party lability 1430 1421 1 401 1396

Credit and surety ship 16 15 14 17

Other 15229 16 066 15 701 15594

Total 120 748 121703 63618 62 371

Remsurance accepted 1374 1110 372 305

122122 122 813 63 990 62676
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

Gross written premiums from life insurance business are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Annuities 9 861 5733
Risk contracts 77 124 71290
Saving contracts with profit sharing 382 133 371757
469 118 114 780

In accordance with IFRS 4, the contracts issued by the Group for which there is only a transfer of financial risk, with
no discretionary participating features, are classified as investment contracts and accounted for as financial
liabilities.

The increase in gross written premiums in 2013 is essentially due the significant increase in the capitalization
products and retirement plans.




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 —~ (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

NOTE 12- OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

These balances are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

{in thousands of euro)
Other operating income arising from:

Medical services business 13 944 262 514
Insurance business 6873 14 745
IT related business 1720 5 689
Cali center business 11969 13117
Fair value adjustment on investment properties (see Note 31) 8372 2 900
Gains on repurchase of Group debt securities (see Notes 39 and 43) 14 118 113721
Non recurring gains on advisory services 3671 4299
Other 13976 41952

74 843 458 937

Other operating expenses arising from:

Direct and indirect taxes (22921) (22261)
Contributions to the depositors guarantee fund ( 12 865) ( 10 370)
Membership and donations (6 930) (8 870)
Medical services business (2339 (155 685)
Insurance business (16 657) (24 700)
Fair value adjustment on investment properties (see Note 31) (2627) (18611)
Contribution to banking sector (27 289) (27 910)
Contribution to funds ofresolution (11 813) -
Losses on repurchase of Group debt securities (see Notes 39 and 43) (7343) -
Other (47 165) (8383)
(157 969) (276 990)

(83 126) 181 947

s 4 The decrease in other operating income - Medical services business relates to the acquisition by Rio Forte

Investments, S.A. of an additional 19.5% stake in ES Salde. ESFG has lost control over ES Satde in 2012.
Consequently, this entity is no longer fully consolidated by ESFG, being classified as an associate.

As at 31 December 2012, Other operating income includes a gain of euro 21.8 million related with the negative past
service cost (gain) which arose from the change introduced by Decree Law 133/2012 to the calculation method for
the death allowance (see Note 14).

Also under Other operating income, as at 31 December 2012, is included the gain of euro 10.3 million arising from
the termination of the exclusive distribution agreement established between ESAF (through Gespator) and Banco
Pastor, following the change of control of Banco Pastor occurred in the first semester of 2012 as explained in Note
32.



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

NOTE 13-  STAFF COSTS

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Wages and salaries

Remuneration 520 736 598 078
Long term service benefits (see Note 14) 4560 3002
Pension costs (see Note 14) 14 826 8779
Other mandatory social charges 111 188 127 808
Other costs 41424 40 040
692 734 777707

As at 31 December 2013, other costs include the amount of euro 923 thousand related to the variable remuneration
plan on financial instruments (PRVIF) of BES in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18 (31
December 2012: euro 489 thousand). The details of this scheme implemented by BES Group are analysed in
Note 14.

An amount of euro 183 thousand negative (31 December 2012: euro 97 thousand positive) is included in other costs
related to the stock options plan set-up by ESFG, in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18
(see Note 14).

The salaries and other benefits attributed to the key management personnel of Group are analysed as follows:

Board of Other key

i Audit Committee Total
Directors management
31 December 2013
Salaries and other short tenms benefits 3288 441 26 161 29 890
Bonus 234 - 3349 3783
Stock-option plan - - - -
Sub total 3523 441 29719 33674
Pension costs and social charges 422 - 11420 11842
Long term service benefits - - 698 698
Total 3945 441 41 827 46213
31 December 2012
Salaries and other short terms benefits 4008 634 24009 28671
Bonus 594 - 6454 7048
Stock-option plan 42 - 58 100
Sub total 4 644 654 30521 35820
Pension costs and social charges 739 - 6288 7027
Long termservice benefits - - 72 72
Total 5383 654 36 881 42918

Other key management personnel include board members of ESFG subsidiaries and ESFG senior management.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the loans granted by the Group to key management personnel amounted to euro
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

25.8 million and euro 38.4 million, respectively.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the number of employees of the Group is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Banking sector employees 10624 10 309
Health sector employees 358 366
Insurance sectoremployees 732 709

Employed by other companies essencially providing
services to customers outside the Group 568 652
12282 12036

By professional category, the number of employees of the Group is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Senior management 1292 1254
Management 1398 1289
Specific functions 4767 4778
Administrative functions and others 4 825 4715

12 282 12 036

NOTE 14- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension and health-care benefits

As described in Note 2.18, the Group’s companies operate defined pension and health-care plans for their employees
and their dependants under which the benefits vest on the earlier of retirement, death or incapacity.

However, it should be noted that in what concerns the banking subsidiaries, the employees hired after 31 March
2008 are covered by the Portuguese Social Security scheme.

Additionally. with the publication of Decree-Law n.1-A / 2011 of January 3, all banking sector employees
beneficiaries of “CAFEB - Caixa de Abono de Familia dos Empregados Bancdrios™ were integrated into the
General Social Security Scheme from 1 January 2011, which assumed the protection of banking sector emplovees in
the contingencies of maternity, paternity and adoption and even old age, remaining under the responsibility of the
banks the protection in sickness, disability, survivor and death.

Retirement pensions of banking employees integrated into the General Social Security Regime from I January 2011,
continue to be calculated according to the provisions of ACT and other conventions. Banking employees, however,
are entitled to receive a pension under the general regime, which amount takes into account the number of years of
discounts for that scheme. Banks are responsible for the difference between the pension determined in accordance
with the provisions of ACT and that the one that the banking employees are entitled to receive from the General
Social Security Regime.

The contribution rate to the Social Security Regime is 26.6%. 23.6% paid by the emplover and 3% paid by the

employees, instead of Caixa de Abono de Familia dos Empregados Bancérios (CAFEB), abolished by the same law.
In consequence of this change. the pension rights of active employers is to be covered under the terms defined by the
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

General Social Security Regime. taking into account the length of service from 1 January 2011 until retirement. The
differential required to support the guaranteed pension in terms of the ACT is paid by the Banks.

At the end of 2011 following the third tripartite agreement established between the Portuguese Government, the
Portuguese Banking Association and the banking sector employees unions, it was decided to transfer to the Social
Security Regime the banks liabilities with pension in payment as at 31 December 2011.

The tripartite agreement established, provides for the transfer to the Social Security sphere of the liabilities with
pensions in payment as of 31 December 2011 at constant values (0% discount rate). The responsibilities relating to
updates of pensions value, other pension benefits in addition to those to be borne by the Social Security, health-care
benefits, death allowance and deferred survivor pensions, will remain in the sphere of responsibility of the banks
with the correspondent funding being provided through the respective pension funds.

The banks pension funds assets, specifically allocated to the cover of the transferred liabilities, were also be
transferred to the Social Security.

Being thus a definitive and irreversible transfer of the Habilities with pensions in payment (even if only on a portion
of the benefit). the conditions set out in TAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ underlying the concept of settlement were met,
as the obligation with pension in payment as at 31 December 2011 extinguished at the date of transfer.

The actuarial valuation of pension and health-care benefits for the Group companies is performed every half-year,

with latest valuation performed as at 31 December 2013. On annual basis, the actuarial valuation is reviewed by an
independent actuary.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the main assumptions considered in the actuarial valuation, to determine the
defined benefit obligation of pension and health-care benefits for the Group employees are as follows:

Insurance sector Banking sector

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
31.12.2013 31.12.2012 1" through

st

m . th
4 and subsequent 1" through 5 and subsequent

I

d th
3 year years 4 vyear years

Financial assumptions

S 075% 0.00%
1.75%
nts pensions increase rate
irn of plan assets 4.00% 4.50%
4.00% 4.50%

Demographic assumptions
Mortality table
Men GKF 95 TV 73/77 (adjusted)
Women GKF 95
Actuariai method Project Unit Credit Method

{*} Pension fund of Board of Directors

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18. the discount rate used to calculate the actuarial
present value of the pensions and health care defined benefits, was determined at the balance sheet date considering
(i) the evolution of the main indexes related with high quality corporate bonds and (if) the duration of the liabilities.
The expected return on plan assets is based on the long term expected return for each asset class within the portfolio
of the pension funds and takes in consideration the investment strategy determined for the funds.

During 2013. the legal retirement age in Portugal. for active employees under the Social Security Regime, went
from 65 years to 66 years of age. However, the Group plan remained unchanged with retirement age at 63 years old.
Therefore, the change in the legal retirement age has an impact in the amount of the Group defined benefit
obligation due to the reduction of the participation of the Social Security Regime.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The contributions to SAMS as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 corresponded to 6.5% of total wages. ’
of contribution is established by SAMS, and no changes are expected for 2014.

The number of persons covered by the plan is as follows:

['he percentage

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Employees 5921 6337
Pensioners and widows 6013 5908
Total 11934 12 245

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet following the application of IAS 19 as at 31 December 2013 and 2012

are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)

Assets / (liabilities) recognised in the balance sheet
Defined benefit obligation

Pensioners (487 491) {448 265)

Employees {858518) (792 037)

(1 346 009) (1240 302)

Coverage

Fair value of plan assets 1346019 1259117
Net assets in balance sheet (see Note 35} 10 18 815
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 1196 453 1089323

Additionally, for the insurance entities of the Group, Tranquilidade and Esumédica have transferred part of their
liabilities to BES Vida. through the acquisition of the life insurance policies. The number of pensioners covered by

these policies is 359 (31 December 2012: 388), and the total liability amounts to euro 11.2 million
2012: euro 11.8 million).

In accordance with accounting policy described in Note 2.18 and following the requirements

(31 December

of TIAS 19—

Employees benefits, the Group assesses, when applicable, at each balance sheet date and for each plan separately,
the recoverability of the recognised assets in relation to the defined benefit pension plans based on the expectation of

reductions in future contributions to the funds.



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 - (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The changes in the defined benefit obligation can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Defined benefit obligation as at 1 January 1240302 1117094
Service cost 13659 14 325
Interest cost 55775 58994
Plan participants' contribution 3260 3259
Remeasurements:

- changes in actuarial assumptions 94 593 65 148

- experience adjustments (24641 42 066
Pensions paid by the fund (34 116) (31288)
Benefits paid by the Group ( 104) (118
Settlement of the defined benefit obligation for insurance employees - (5044)
Negative past service costs \ - (21 813)
Exchange differences and other (2719) (2321
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 1346 009 1240 302

In accordance with the labour agreement for the insurance employees, in force since 1 January 2013, a curtailment
of the defined benefit plan has been determined and a defined contribution plan has been established. The related
defined benefit obligation recognised as at 31 December 2012 was settled by the fund’s through an initial
contribution to the defined contribution plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, following the amendment to Decree Law 133/2012 which determines the
calculation method for the death allowance, there was a reduction on the defined benefit obligation with this benefit,
in the amount of euro 21.8 million. which qualifies as a negative past cost (a gain). On this basis and in accordance
with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18. this gain should be recognized in the income statement during the
vesting period. Considering that this benefit is already vested (given that the employee or retiree is entitled to the
benefit in full without the need to comply with any service condition), the Group recognized the gain in the income
statement.

Based on the position as at 31 December 2013, for certain changes in actuarial assumptions, the following impacts
would occur:

* Anincrease in the discount rate by 25 basis points would reduce the benefit obligation by approximately eutro
51 million; a decrease of equal magnitude would increase the benefit obligation by approximately euro 58
million;

* An increase of 25 basis points in the growth of salaries and pensions would increase the benefit obligation by
approximately euro 62 million: a decrease of equal magnitude would reduce the benefit obligation by
approximately euro 51 mitlion;

+ The use of mortality tables with increase of another year would increase the benefit obligation by
approximately euro 44 million; with a reduction of one year the benefit obligation would decrease by
approximately euro 37 million.
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The change in the fair value of the plan assets in 2013 and 2012 is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Fair value of plan assets as at 1 January 1259117 1226 393
Actual retumn on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets 54 146 64 328

Actuarial gains/ (losses) (37250) (82 946)
Group contributions 103 806 86 410
Plan participants’ contributions 3260 3259
Pensions paid by the fund (34 116) (31288)
Settlement of the defined benefit obligation for insurance employees - (5044)
Exchange differences and other (2944) (1995)
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December 1346 019 1259117

On the presumption that actuarial and financial assumptions used in 2013 for the calculation of the defined benefit

obligation are verified, the Group does not anticipate the need to make significant additional contributions for the
pension fund in 2014.

Pension fund assets are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Shares and other variable income securities 22%

15%

Fixed income securities 25% 27%
Real estate 32% 30%
Other 21% 28%
100% 100%

The real estate assets rented to the Group and securities issued by Group companies which are part of the pension
fund assets are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Shares and other variable income securities 2925

1200
Fixed income securities 1 839 6 603
Realestate 227 469 208 022
Total 232233 305 825
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fund holds participation units of ES Ventures [l Fund, which is fully

consolidated in the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Group acquired 49 779 and 37 115 thousand units of Fungere Fund
and Fungepi Fund to the Group pensions funds, by an amount of euro 158.1 million and euro 87.2 million,

respectively (see Note 49).

The changes in the remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income in 2013 and 2012 are analysed as

follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income as at 1 January 1 089 323 899 844
Remeasurements:
- changes in actuarial assumptions 94 593 65 148
- experience adjustments 12 609 125012
Other (72 ( 681)
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income as at 31
December 1196 453 1089323
The net benefit cost can be analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Service cost
Net interest expense / (income)
Other

Net benefit cost

(in thousands of euro)

136359 14325
1629 (5334)
1167 (212)

16 455 8779

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18, since 1 January 2013, due to the change in IAS 19 —
Employee Benefits. the net interest expense/ income is recognised in the income statement under Interest and similar

income or Interest expense and similar charges, as applicable.
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The changes in the assets recognised in the balance sheet can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 18 815 109 299

Net periodic benefit cost (16455 (8779)

Negative past service cost - 21813

Remeasurements recognised on other comprehensive income (107 130) ( 189 479)

Contributions of the year and pensions paid by the Group 103 910 86 528

Other 870 ( 567)

Balance as at 31 December 10 18 815
Historical information regarding pension plan is as follows:

31.12.2013 31122012 31122011 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
(in thousands of euro)
Defined benefit obligation {1346 009) (123630 {17059 {2250 196y (2172293) (2 110400y
Fair value of pian asssels 1346019 1239147 £226353 22361218 2244926 2101303
{Un)/over funded liahilities 10 18818 109 299 22 72633 (9 095)
{CeinsYiosses fro {24641 42066 {130y 24639 31938
37230 82 946 2740 146 68 387 (92355

{(mins)iosses fromepe
Stock options plan

On 1 October 2008, the Company established a stock-option plan that entitles key management personnel to
purchase ESFG shares. Alternatively, the Company may settle these options in cash by an amount equivalent to the
appreciation of ESFG share market price above the exercise price. Under the program. the Company may grant
options to its employees up to 3 000 000 ordinary shares. The exercise price of each option equals the market price
of ESFG share on the date of grant and an option’s maximum term is of 10 years. Options are granted at the
discretion of the Board of Directors and have a vesting period of 1 year.

As at 31 December 2013, all options under the plan have vested.
Considering the terms and conditions of the plan and ESFG’s informal practices of settling the options granted to

employees in cash, it is accounted for as cash-settled share-based payment arrangement, in accordance with the
accounting policy described in Note 2.18.
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The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
(in Euro) (in Euro)
Outstanding as at 1 January 13.20 2 650 000 13.20 2650 000
Outstanding as at 31 December 13.20 2 650 000 13.20 2 650 000

Exercisable as at 31 December 13.20 2 650 000 13.20 2 650 000

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 have a remaining contractual life of approximately 5 years (31
December 2012: 6 years).

The plans’ initial fair value was calculated using an option valuation model with the following assumptions:

Initial reference date 01.10.2008
Final reference date 01.10.2018
Number of options 2 940 000
Exercise price (in EUR) 13.20
Interest rate 427%
Initial spot price (in EUR) 10.33
Volatility 26.47%
Initial fair value of'the plan (in thousands) 4783

The assumptions used in the valuation of the outstanding options as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were the
following:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Initial reference date 01.10.2008 01.10.2008
Finalreference date 01.10.2018 01.10.2018
Number of options 2 650 000 2 650 000
Exercise price (in EUR) 13.20 13.20
Interest rate 1.24% 0.94%
Spot price (in EUR) 4.86 5.26
Volatility 15.47% 24.34%

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18. the initial fair value of the plan. amounting to euro
4 783 thousand, was recognised during the 12 month-period comprised between the grant date and its first
anniversary. In 2013 change in the plans’ fair value of the benefit granted to employees has been recognised in the
income statement, as a decrease in staff costs. for an amount of euro 183 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 97
thousand increase in staff costs).

The fair value of the liability recognised is remeasured at the balance sheet date. amounting as at 31 December 2013
to euro 2 thousand (2012: euro 185 thousand) (see Note 44).
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Variable remuneration payment plan on financial instruments (PRVIF)

Following the recommendations of the Supervising and Regulatory authorities, on the BES shareholders General
Meeting, held in 6 April 2011 it was approved a new remuneration policy for the Executive Committee members.
This policy consists in giving to the Executive Committee members a fixed remuneration, which should represent
approximately 45% of the total remuneration, and a variable component representing around 33% of the total
remuneration. The variable remuneration shall have two components: one associated with short-term performance
and another with medium-term performance. Half of the short-term component must be paid in cash and the
remaining 50% should be paid over a three years period, with half of these payments to be made in cash and the
remaining through the attribution of shares. The medium-term component has associated a share options program
with the exercise of the options set at 3 years from the date of its attribution.

Regarding the first scheme, the attribution of PRVIF shares to the beneficiaries is performed on a deferred basis
over a period of three years (Ist year: 33%: 2nd year: 33% and 3rd year: 34%) and is subject to the achievement of a
Return on Equity (ROE) greater than or equal to 5%.

Regarding the attribution of options to the beneficiaries is also performed by the Remuneration Committee, and the
exercise price is equal to the single average of the closing prices of BES shares on NYSE Euronext Lishon during
the 20 days preceding the day of attribution of the options, plus 10%. The option can only be exercised at maturity
and the beneficiary may choose between the physical settlement or the financial settlement of the options.

The plans initial fair value was calculated using an option valuation model with the following assumptions:

1" attribution 2" attribution
Initial reference date 12.04.2011 12.10.2012
Final reference date 31.03.2014 15.01.2016
Rights granted to emplovees 2250 000 6280 045
Reference price (in EUR) 3.47 0.67
Interest rate 2.31% 0.67%
Volatility 40.0% 65.0%
Initial fair value of the plan (in thousands of euro) 1130 1940

PRVIF is accounted for in accordance with the applicable IFRS rules (IFRS 2 and IAS 19). During 2013, the Group
registered, against liabilities, a cost of euro 923 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 489 thousand) related to the
amortization of the initial options premium granted.
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Long term service benefits

As referred in Note 2.18. for employees that achieve certain years of service, the Group pays long term service
premiums, calculated based on the effective monthly remuneration earned at the date the premiums are due. At the
date of early retirement or disability, employees have the right to a premium proportional to that they would eamn if
they remained in service until the next payment date.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s liabilities regarding these benefits amount to euro 30 376 thousand
and euro 28 691 thousand, respectively (see Note 44). The costs incurred in the year with long term serv ice benefits
amounted to euro 4 560 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 3 002 thousand) (see Note 13).

The actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the liabilities are those presented for the calculation of pensions

(when applicable).

NOTE 15- GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Rental costs 85261 80 804
Communication costs 47 966 50 190
Traveling and representation costs 38437 39752
Advertising costs 39436 42 848
Maintenance and related services 29 353 27 656
Insurance costs 10276 8711

Specialised services
IT services 67329 70 617
Professional services 21351 15928
Temporary work 5146 5550
Electronic payment system 10172 11711
Legalcosts 23 008 20910
Consultants and external auditors 33 844 32198
Other specialised services 3033 3756
Water, energy & fuel 14 044 13 491
Current consumption material 5376 5726
Transports 7538 7 899
Other costs 76 306 65013
518076 502 760

The balance “Other specialised services” includes, among others, costs with security. information services and
databases. The balance “Other costs” includes costs with training and external suppliers.
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The fees billed to the Company by KPMG Luxembourg S. r.l. and other member firms of the KPMG network
("KPMG™) during the year are analysed as follows (excluding VAT):

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Audit fees 3708 3786
Audit related fees 1871 13508
53579 5294
Tax consultancy services 644 773
Other services 688 504
6911 6571

The outstanding lease instalments related to the non-cancellable operational lease contracts are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 1 year 2 803 8903
1to 5 years 11263 10 451
14 066 19 354

NOTE 16 - CLAIMS INCURRED, NET OF REINSURANCE

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Claims incurred for the life business 301 490 434 248
Claims incurred for the non-life business 181 728 197 695
483218 631943
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Concerning the life business, the claims incurred, net of reinsurance are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Claims paid

Gross amount 304 724 439 480
Reinsurance share (14 388) (3239
290 336 436 241
Change in claims outstanding reserve

Gross amount 12938 (1532)
Reinsurance share (1784) ( 461)
11 154 (1993)

301490 434 248

Concerning the non-life business, the claims incurred, net of reinsurance are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Claims paid
Gross amount 234 802 224 071
Reinsurance share (22957) (14 527)
211 845 209 544
Change in claims outstanding reserve
Gross amount (30 8355) (6851)
Reinsurance share 738 {4998)
(30117 (11 849)
181728 197 695
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The gross amount of claims paid and change in claims reserve for the non-life business are as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
- . Change in . . Change in
Claims paid claims reserve Total Claims paid claims reserve Total
(in thousands of euro)
Direct business
Accident and health 73335 13335 86 670 75 145 7108 82253
Fire and other hazards 44 134 (8149) 35985 28957 12 403 41360
Motor 109 603 (35617) 73986 111609 (28283) 83326
Maritime, airline and transportation 23562 134 2696 3124 (175 2949
Third party liability 3437 (1897 1 540 4085 1966 6051
Credit and suretyship 23 { 38) (15} {13) 44 31
Other 1361 1401 2762 [ 159 27 1186
Reinsurance accepted 347 { 24) 323 3 39 64
F Total 234 802 (30 855) 203 947 224 071 (6851) 217220
NOTE 17- CHANGE IN THE TECHNICAL RESERVES, NET OF REINSURANCE
The change in the technical reserves, net of reinsurance is analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Life business 150757 (333 638)
Non-life business 2574 (3022)
153 331 (336 660)
Concerning the life business, the changes in the technical reserves are analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
%@ Change in life assurance reserve
- Gross amount 154 689 (332 486)
Reinsurance share (H 402
154 688 (332084)
Reserve forbonus and rebates
Gross amount 3719 4623
Reinsurance share (8395 (3213)
(4 676) 1410
Change in other life insurance reserve
Gross amount 745 (2964)
745 (2964)
156 757 (333 638)
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Concerning the non-life business, the changes on the technical reserves are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Change in non life insurance reserve
Change in unexpired risk reserve 2574 (3022

2574 (3022)

NOTE 18- INSURANCE COMMISSIONS

The insurance commissions are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Direct insurance commissions

Acquisition commissions and other costs 43739 45295
Change in deferred acquisition costs 733 567
Collection commissions 1912 1959
Reinsurance commissions {(a) (198 640) (8 565)
(152 256) 39256

{a) Commissions and reinsurance profit sharing includes the net upfront fee, resulting from the signing of a
reinsurance treaty in which BES Vida reinsures the life insurance risk portfolio at 100%. including all
insurance policies in force as at 30 June 2013.

From this date, BES Vida will cede to the reinsurer all premiums and claims associated with the policies
included in this treaty. The Company will perform the servicing of these contracts, as well as the distribution of
the respective products.

Under this treaty, BES Vida received an upfront fee, having transferred all the risks and benefits associated
with these contracts. On that basis. the risk of (i) life, (ii) disability, and (iii) cancellation of contracts were
transferred. As such the upfront fee is recognized on the present date, net of the respective in force value of the
portfolio recognized as an asset. at the date of acquisition of BES Vida (see Notes 32 and 35).
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NOTE 19- EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share, is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Consolidated result attributable to equity holders of the Company ( 864 031) 313633

(-) Dividends on preference shares (5169) (59635
(-) Remuneration of perpetual bonds ( 600) { 519)
(+) Realized gains and losses recognized in Reserves 3481 11524
Adjusted consolidated result attributable to equity holders of the Company (866 319) 318673

Avérage number of oustanding shares 207075 338 174 813 327
Average number of treasury shares (2 179 856) (3736 030)
Average number of shares in circulation 204 895 482 171077 298
Basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company (in euro) 4.23) 1.86
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations attributable to the equity (4.19) 191

holders of the Company (in euro)

The weighted average number of shares outstanding was calculated taking in consideration the capital increase
occurred in the year as described in Note 45.

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is caleulated considering the profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

The diluted earnings per share are not different from the basic earnings per share.
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NOTE 26- CASH AND DEPOSITS AT CENTRAL BANKS
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Cash 289349 304 410
Deposits at central banks

Bank of Portugal 32414 26 799

Other central banks 1506911 1113622

1539325 1 140 421

1828674 1444 831

The deposits at Central Banks include mandatory deposits intended to satisfy legal minimum cash requirements,
for an amount of euro 496 582 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 39 599 thousand). According to the European
Central Bank Regulation no. 1348/2011, of 14 December 2011, minimum cash requirements kept as deposits with
the Bank of Portugal earn interest and correspond to 1% of deposits and debt certificates maturing in less than 2
years, excluding deposits and debt certificates of institutions subject to the European System of Central Banks’
minimum reserves requirements. During 2013, these deposits have earned interest at an average rate of 0.55%
(2012: 0.89%).

The fulfilment of the minimum cash requirements for a given period of observation is monitored taking into
account the value of bank deposits with the Bank of Portugal during the referred period. The balance of the bank
account with the Bank of Portugal as at 31 December 2013, was included in the observation period from 11
December 2013 to 14 January 2014, which corresponded to an average minimum cash requirements of euro 265.1
million.
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NOTE 21- DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Deposits with banks in Portugal

Repayable on demand 214761 371794
Uncollected cheques 85 164 107 354
Other 73 352 57010
373 477 536 158
e Deposits with banks abroad
. Repayable on demand 740 603 547 823
Uncollected cheques 3564 8962
Other 31290 33910
775 457 590 695
1148934 1126853

Uncollected cheques in Portugal and abroad were sent for collection during the first working days following the
reference dates.

Other deposits with banks. in Portugal and abroad, mature within 3 months.
Deposits with banks include the amount of euro 173 426 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 195 586 thousand)

related to deposits held by securitisation vehicles consolidated by the Group and that collateralise the debt issued in
the scope of the respective securitisation transactions (see Note 1),
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NOTE 22- FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Financial assets held for trading

Securities
Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by government and public entities 955 951 1395583
Issued by other entities 105279 265 057
Shares 30963 52281
Other variable income securities 1701 2 181
1093 894 1715102

Derivatives
Derivative financial instruments with positive fair value 1394571 2266 743
2 488 465 3981 845

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivatives
Derivative financial instruments with negative fair value 1322284 2123429
Short selling 14 484 796
1336768 21242258

During the vear 2008, the Group has reclassified from financial assets held for trading an amount of euro 244 530
thousand to held-to-maturity investments (see Note 27), following an amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement issued in October 2008 and adopted by the European Union in that year.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amounts that would have been recognised in the year if the reclassifications
were not made are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Net gains / (losses) from financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss (217 947
Taxeffect 147 (73
( 70) 874
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the analysis of the securities held for trading by the period to maturity, is

presented as follows:

Up to 3 months
3to 12 months
Ito 5 years

More than 5 years
Undetermined

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

42 034 139 663
106 046 173 705
611659 765 803
301 485 577774

32670 58 157

1093 894 1715102

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6, securities held for trading are those which are
bought to be traded in the short-term, regardless of their maturity.

The balance Financial assets held for trading includes securities pledged as collateral by the Group as described in

Note 47.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the exposure to peripheral Euro zone countries public debt is analysed in Note

53.

Regarding quoted and unquoted securities, the balance financial assets held for trading is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total
{in thousands of euro)

Bonds and other fixed income securities
[ssued by government and public entities 955 951 - 955 951 1349 307 46 076 1395583
Issued by other entities 85283 19996 105279 100 506 164 551 265037
Shares 30 894 69 30 963 40 505 11776 52281
Other variable income securities 1598 103 1701 2181 2181
1073726 20168 1093 894 1492699 222 403 1715102

Valuation techniques are described in Note 52.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, derivative financial instruments can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12,2012
Notional Fair \alue' . Notional Fair wxlue‘ __
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

(in thousands of euro)

Exchange rate contracts

Forward
-buy 2019 187 1336 880
o 25972 0152 7 688 12871
-sell 1863 106 7 ! 1226 020
Cutrency Swaps
- buy 1361513 - 3070 568
757 2198 97 2019
-sell 1638 391 ! : 3352944 Lo
Currency Futures 2771 168 - - 278 317 - -
Currency Interest Rate Swaps
-buy 61108 118 945
y 14945 283 25690 18 343
- sell 63040 4 12839 {15 406 >
Currency Options 2813981 27316 25 144 2414 534 41 437 46 868
12791 454 69 990 50 333 11933614 76 786 80 101
Interest rate contracts
Forward Rate Agreements 310000 79 - 200 000 - 16
Interest Rate Swaps 24 204 535 1202 350 1070 130 31000 723 1954 183 1814293
Swaption - Interest Rate Options 2000 28 286 - 363 000 13556 1356
Interest Rate Caps & Floors 3378 746 - 26 877 4918557 40 843 38562
Interest Rate Futures 4436 679 - - 3784 771 - -
Interest Rate Options 870288 330 328 1903 388 1341 1341
33202 248 1231045 1097 33 42 170 441 1997925 1 855768
Equity/index contracts
Equity / Index Swaps 581628 23273 42538 664 516 86202 24936
Equity / IndexOptions 1107223 35423 113 691 2715219 60917 131 146
Equity / IndexFutures 53113 - - 96 383 - -
Future Options 395 420 - - 82234 - -
2137384 58 696 156 229 3558552 147 119 156 082
Credit default contracts
Credit Default Swaps 1264 196 34 840 18387 2774779 44913 31478
49395 322 1394571 1322284 60 437 386 2266743 2123429

As at 31 December 2013 the fair value of derivative financial instruments included the amount of euro 4.2 million
(asset) (31 December 2012: asset for an amount of euro 21.1 million) related to the positive fair value of the
embedded derivatives, as described in Note 2.4.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of trading derivatives by the period to maturity is presented as
follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Notional Fair value Notional Fair value

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 3 months 9360 505 (25 628) 13 785 652 71 751
From 3 to 12 months 7 894 937 17 071 10093 874 (46 802)
From 1to 5 years 16 739 075 { 15 908) 19 607 557 21130
More than 5 years 15 400 805 96 752 17 550 303 97 235

49 395322 72287 60 437 386 143 314

NOTE 23-  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by government and public entities 1234 847 516 859
Issued by other entities 1229 467 956 370
Other variable income securities 1 099 804 1130234
3564 118 2603463

In light of IAS 39 and in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6, the Group designated these
financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss. in accordance with the documented risk management and
investment strategy, considering that these financial assets (i) are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis and/or
(i) have embedded derivatives.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss by the
period to maturity is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 3 months 599 455 355219
3 to 12 months 1029 134 203 772
1 to 5 years 335 141 226 286
More than 5 years 522334 738358
Undetermined 1078 054 1079 828

3564118 2603463

Regarding quoted or unquoted securities, the balance financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, is presented
as follows:
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31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

(in thousands of euro)

Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by govemment and public entities 1234 847 - 1234847 516 839 - 316859
Issued by other entities 493 999 735 468 1229 467 240984 715386 956370
Shares and other variable income securities 620293 479511 1099 804 566 440 363 794 1130234
2349 139 1214979 3564118 1324283 1279 186 2603 463

NOTE 24 - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

Cost (1) .Fa.ur value res evrve : ) Book value
Positive Negative Impairment

(in thousands of euro)

Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issue by govermnment and public entities 4098 171 26 568 (24942 - 4099 797

Issue by others entities 2255951 61187 (44 473) (33953) 2238712
Shares 1394322 83075 (84 184) (213 301) 1179712
Other securities 1472 944 18 353 (9 149) (70391) 14113557
Balance as at 31 December 2013 9221388 189 183 (162 748) (318 045) 8929778
Bonds and other fixed income securnities

Issue by government and public entities 4297879 201930 (1801 (e} 4497 997

fssue by others entities 4273021 62 357 {91219 (18208} 4225951
Shares 1357620 82412 (59579 (200 299) 1380 154
Other securities 961 638 16 562 (5444 (35623) 937 133
Balance as at 31 December 2012 11090 158 363 261 (158 043) (254 141 11041235

Acquisition cost relating to shares and other variable income securities and amortised cost relating to debt securities.

As at 31 December 2013, the exposure to debt of peripheral countries in the euro area is analysed in Note 33

The balance Available-for-sale financial assets includes securities pledged as collateral by the Group as described
in Nete 47.

During the year 2008, the Group has reclassified from available- -for-sale financial assets an amount of euro 522 715

thousand to held-to-maturity investments (see Note 27), following an amendment to 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement issued in October 2008 and adopted by the European Union in that year.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amounts that would have been recognised in the year if the reclassifications
were not made are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Net change in fair value reserve (1014 (3780
Taxeffect 294 1191
( 720) (2589)

During the second quarter of 2011, taking in consideration the new solvency rules applicable to the insurance
industry in Portugal. in-force from 1 January 2011, the insurance entities of the Group have reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets an amount of euro 150 253 thousand to held-to-maturity investments (see Note
27), in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amounts that would have been recognised in the year if the reclassifications
were not made are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Net change in fair value reserve 22 090 18 901
Taxeftfect ( 6 406) (5481
15684 13 420

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6, the Group assesses periodically whether there is
objective evidence of impairment on the available-for-sale financial assets, following the judgment criteria’s
described in Note 3.1.

The changes occurred in impairment losses of available-for-sale financial assets are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Balance as at I January 254 141 192 073
Charge for the year 121 608 103 261
Charge off (44 300) (36 163)
Write back for the year (11178 (3943)
Exchange differences and other (2226) (1087
Balance as at 31 December 318 045 254 141
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of available-for-sale assets by the period to maturity is presented as

follows:

Up to 3 months
From 3 to 12 months
From I to 5 years
More than 5 years
Undetermined

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

1284223 2 841838
729 897 1244222
1681503 1475813
2 688229 3188324
2545926 2291038
8929778 11041235

The main equity exposures that contribute to the fair value reserve, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, can be

analysed as follows:

31.12.2013
Amortised Fair value reserve
Impairment Market value
cost Positive Negative
(in thousands of euro)
Portugal Telecom 346 678 (62407} (37) 234
EDP 20121 4999 - - 25120
Banque Marocaine du Commerce Extérieur 81004 2424 - - 8342
447 803 7423 (62 407) (37) 392782
31.12.2012
Amortised Fair value reserve
mortise Impairment Market value
cost Positive Negative
(in thousands of euro)
Portugal Telecom 346 637 (10757 335 880
EDP 173 826 24 447 - - 198273
Banque Marocaine du Commerce Extérieur 81 004 {15813) - 65 191
601 467 24 447 (26 570) 599 344

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group sold at market prices 77.4 million ordinary shares of EDP,
which generated a realised net gain of euro 53.7 million (euro 14.7 million net of non-controlling interest) (see Note

8).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group sold at market prices 96.4 million ordinary shares of EDP and
260.7 million ordinary shares of Portugal Telecom. These transactions generated a realised net loss of euro 224.9
million (euro 61.5 million net of non-controlling interest) (see Note §).

Following the market transactions with Portugal Telecom shares. the portfolio average price has reduced
significantly. The unrealised losses presented in the fair value reserve at year end. represent a recent decline in value
that occurred after the Group having recognised positive fair value reserves in the first and second quarter of 2013.
The unrealised losses recorded at year end represent 18% of the investment.
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The analysis of the available-for-sale financial assets by quoted and unquoted securities, is presented as follows:

31,12.2013 31.12.2612
uoted Unquoted Total uoted Unguoted Total
qu

{in thousands of euro)
Securities
Bornds and other fixed income securities

Issue by government and public entities 2 960 469 i139328 4099 797 3204 546 1293 454 4 497997
Issue by other entities G932 457 1306255 2238712 988 414 3227537 4225635]
Shares 541885 637827 1179712 788 266 561 888 1380 154
Other variable income securities 707 943 703614 1411557 376 639 560474 937133
5142754 3787 024 8929778 5367885 3673 350 110412338

Valuation techniques have been disclosed in Note 32.

NOTE25-  LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Loans and advances to banks in Portugal

Deposit to Bank of Portugal 3987961 3350 000
Deposits 169 508 44 372
Loans 20 037 127 581
Very short term deposits - 34 085
Other loans and advances 1165 84 474
4178 671 3640512

Loans and advances to banks abroad
Deposits 101 421 271281
Loans 457 978 533798
Very short term deposits 12976 32 696
Other loans and advances 77014 70 324
649 389 508 099
Overdue loans and interest 398 398
4 828 458 4549 009
Impairment losses ( 668) { 762)
4827790 4 548 247

The main loans and advances to banks in Portugal, as at 31 December 2013 bear interest at an average annual
interest rate of 1.46% (31 December 2012: 1.73%). Loans and advances to banks abroad hear interest at an average
annual interest rate of 0.24% (31 December 2012: 0.88%).
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of loans and advances to banks by the period to maturity is

presented as follows:

Up to 3 months
3to 12 months

1 to Syears

More than 5 years
Undetermined

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

4508 241 4178 481
225 381 96 657
27 569 79 623

66 867 193777
400 471

4828 458 4549 009

The changes occurred during the year in impairment losses of loans and advances to banks are presented as follows:

Balance as at 1 January

Charge for the year
Write back for the year
Exchange differences and other

Balance as at 31 December
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31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

762 617
306 1366
{ 386) (1207)
(14) (14
668 762
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NOTE 26 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Domestic loans

Corporate
Loans 12 946 588 12675007
Commercial lines of credits 4635722 5247 361
Finance leases 2215135 2360 541
Discounted bills 306 776 4534 624
Factoring 1048 434 1412 114
Overdrafts 53618 78 057
Other loans 154 406 102 193
Retail
Mortgage loans 9693 399 10 067 167
Consumer and other loans 1 509 100 1750 980
32563178 34 348 044
Foreign loans
Corporate
Loans 11636269 11130067
Commercial lines of credits 2061 420 2 181087
Discounted bills 87 107 145 877
Finance leases 62 424 69 732
Overdrafts 910 399 679 516
Other loans 457 106 795 230
Retail
Mortgage loans 1012412 964 525
Consumer and other loans 825 057 831483
17052394 16 797 517
Overdue loans and interest
Up to 3 months 254 551 293 307
From 3 months to 12 months 713612 608 171
From1to 3 years 1357024 793912
More than 3 vears 775983 586 553
3101170 2281943
52716742 53427 504
Impairment losses (3446 075) (2734 626)
49 270 667 50692 878
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As at 31 December 2013, the balance loans and advances to customers (net of impairment) includes an amount of
euro 3 253.5 million (31 December 2012: euro 3 803.3 million) related to securitised loans following the
consolidation of the securitisation entities (see Note 50), according to the accounting policy described in Note 2.2.
The liabilities related to these securitisations are booked under Debt securities issued (see Notes 39 and 50).

As at 31 December 2013, loans and advances include euro 5 552.6 million of mortgage loans that collateralise the
issue of covered bonds (31 December 2012: euro 5 603.1 million) (see Note 39).

The fair value of loans and advances to customers is presented in Note 52.

As at 31 December 2013, loans and advances include a portfolio of loans granted which are under a sovereign
guarantee, in the amount of euro 4 133 million.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of loans and advances to customers by the period to maturity is
presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 3 months 8 107 983 9234034
3 to 12 months 6 465 614 6824 493
1to 5years 10722 354 10 602 697
More than 5 years 24 319 621 24 484 337
Undetermined 3101170 2281943

52716 742 53427504

The changes occurred in impairment losses of loans and advances to customers are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 2734 626 2212 144
Charge of the year 1462574 1021570
Charge off (211811) (212173)
Amounts recovered during the year previously charged-off 21063 21500
Write back of the year (457 281) (227279
Unwind of discount ( 103 082) (78 290)
Exchange differences and others (14 (3 246)

Balance as at 31 December 3446 075 2734 626

The unwind of discount represents the interest on overdue loans, recognised as interest and similar income, as
impairment losses are calculated using the discounted cash flows method.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, loans and advances to customers and impairment losses can be analysed as

follows:
31.12.2013
Loans with impairment losses Loans with impairment losses Total
calculated on an individual basis calculated on a portfolio basis
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment Gross Impairment Net amount
amount
{in thousands of euro)
Corporate loans 13 547 509 2869601 25 806 654 181 726 39354 163 3051327 36 302 836
Mortgage loans 2348 771 175325 8465935 10538 10814726 185 863 10628 863
Consumer and other loans 599 765 199316 1948088 9569 2547853 208 885 2338968
Total 16 496 045 3244242 36220697 201 833 52716742 3 446 075 49270 667
31.12.2012
Loans with impairment losses Loans with impairment losses Total
caleulated on an individual basis calculated on a portfolio basis
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment Gross Impairment Net amount
amount
(in thousands of euro}
Corporate loans 12617103 2231936 2689833 150917 39515437 2382853 37132584
Mortgage loans 23623525 160 135 8771297 6884 11133822 167019 10 966 803
Consumer and other loans 387892 172563 2190353 12191 2778245 184754 2593491
Total 15567520 2564634 37859984 169992 53427 504 2734626 50692 878

The impairment calculated on an individual basis corresponds to the impairment related to loans with objective
evidence of impairment and to loans classified as "Higher Credit Risk". The objective evidence of impairment
occurs when there is a default event, i.e., from the moment that a significant change occurs in the lender-borrower
relationship and the lender is subject to a loss. The "Higher Credit Risk" corresponds to loans without objective
evidence of impairment but that present higher risk signs (e.g. customers with overdue loans for more than 30 days
and less than 90 days; litigations: higher risk rating / scoring; allocated to the Companies Monitoring Department:
and restructured loans due to financial difficulties of the borrower and which are not classified as default).

The interest recognised as interest and similar income during the year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to these
= loans amounted to euro 717.9 million (31 December 2012: euro 825.4 million), which includes the effect of the
unwind of discount in connection with overdue loans.

As at 31 December 2013, loans and advances, excluding overdue loans and interest, includes euro 282 696
thousand of renegotiated loans (31 December 2012: euro 221 416 thousand). At the same date, the impairment
regarding these renegotiated loans amounted to euro 6 190 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 16 363 thousand).
The related interest recognized in the income statement amounted to euro 10 950 thousand (31 December 2012:
euro 9 940 thousand).

The Group requires that some credit operations be collateralised. in order to mitigate credit risk. The more common
types of collateral held are mortgages and securities. The fair value of these collaterals is determined at the date the
loan is advanced to customers, being periodically updated when the credit is classified as having an impairment
trigger. The periodicity of the update considers the risk and size of each loan.
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The collateral received regarding credit operations can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Loan C(%Hateral Loan Colllateml
fair value fair value

(in thousands of euro)

Mortgage loans

M ortgages 10 600 588 10578 354 10951 831 10930 789
Pledges 3691 3512 4739 4570
Non-collateralized 210 447 - 177252 -

10 814 726 10 581 866 11133822 10935 359

Retail loans

Mortgages 305 840 287 164 310 561 291 897
Pledges 540 367 535 666 735255 349718
Non-collateralized 1705129 - 1732429 -

2551336 822 830 2778 245 8416135

Carporate loans

Mortgages 9593792 8 553238 9812810 9122921
Pledges 7181725 5315025 9281917 6 104 860
Non-collateralized 22575163 - 20420710 -

39 350 680 13 868 263 393515437 15227781

loans and advances to customers

M ortgages 20 500220 19418 756 21075202 20 345 607
Pledges 7725783 5 854 203 10021911 6639 148
Non-collateralized 24 490 739 - 22 330 391 -

52716 742 25272959 53427 504 27 004 755

Under the contracts relating to collateral held, the Group cannot sell the underlying assets until these are acquired in
exchange for loans. The terms and conditions of these contracts are in line with the market practice relating to credit
granting.
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The amounts relating to loans renegotiated due to financial difficulties of the borrower, are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013

(in thousands of euro)

Corporate 4 113938
Mortgage loans 201 541
Consumer and other loans 115 445
Non-residents 1415421

5 846 365

The Group carries out a renegotiation of a loan in order to maximize its recovery. A loan is renegotiated in
accordance with selective criteria, based on the analysis of the overdue circumstances or when there is a high risk
that the loan will became overdue, and the client has made a reasonable effort to fulfil the contractual conditions
previously agreed and is expected to have the capacity to meet the new terms agreed. The renegotiation normally
includes the maturity extension, changes in the payment dates defined and / or amendment of the contracts’
covenants. Whenever possible, the renegotiation includes obtaining new collaterals. The renegotiated loans are still
subject to an impairment analysis resulting from the revaluation of the new expected cash flows, based in the new
contract terms, updated at the original effective interest rate and taking into account the new collaterals,

Loans and advances to customers by interest rate type are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Variable interest rate 41581173 43 417 949
Fixed interest rate 11135569 10 009 555
52716 742 53427504
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An analysis of finance leases by the period to maturity is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Gross investment in finance leases, receivable

Upto 1 year 364 545 432202
From1to Syears 1022263 1130447
More than 5 years 1186455 1373116
2573263 2935765
Unearned finance income on finance leases

Up to 1year 61705 68 859
From1to Syears 136 182 157217
More than 5 years 97 817 79 416
295 704 305492

Present value of minimum lease payments, receivable
Up to tyear 302 840 363 343
From1to Syears 886 081 973 230
More than 5 years 1088 638 1293 700
2277559 2630273
Impairment (175 104) ( 144 097)
2102 455 2486176

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 there are no finance leases which represent individually more than 5% of the
total minimum lease payments. There are no finance leases with contingent rents.
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NOTE 27-  HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

The held-to-maturity investments, can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by government and public entities

437778 404 393

Issued by other entities 1247711 753 765
1685489 1158 158

Impairment losses (13421 (39111
1672068 1119047

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of held-to-maturity investments by the period to maturity is
presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Up to 3 months

596 845 20 561

3 to 12 months 66715 198 989
1 to Syears 496 697 355029
More than 5 vears 525232 583579
1685 489 1158 158

The analysis of the held-to-maturity investments by quoted and unquoted securities is presented as follows:

31.12.2013

31.12.2012
Quoted Ungquoted Total Quoted Ungquoted Total
(in thousands of euro}
Bonds and other fixed income securities
Issued by government and public entities 435277 2561 437778 401 800 2593 404 393
Issued by other entities 208 735 1038976 1247 711 233033 320732 753 763
644 012 1041477 1 685 489 634 833 523 325 1158158
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The changes occurred in impairment losses of held to maturity investments are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 39111 34278
Charge of the year - 7260
Charge off (25317) (2 429)
Write back for the year ( 372) -
Exchange differences and other (H 2
Balance as at 31 December 13 421 39111

During the year ended 31 December 2008. the Group has reclassified non-derivative financial assets to the held-to-
maturity investments category for an amount of euro 767.2 million, as follows:

Reclassification date Amortisation of
Acquisiti Market value as fair vala
Acquisition o ctiv ir value
st Fair value reserve Future Effective at 31 December i
cost Book value . interest 2008 reserve unti
Fositie.  Negative  cash-flows rate @ 311220139
{in thousands of euro)
Available-for-sale financial assets 551897 522715 424 {25607y 71 07C 3,75% 485 831 26774
Financial assets held-for-trading 243114 244 530 - - 408976 11,50% 237293 -
Bonds and other fixed income securities 795 611 767 2458 424 {29 607) 1110046 723 126 26774

date, if applicable and

The reclassification of financial assets held-for-trading as held-to-maturity investments was performed following the
amendment to IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement and IFRS 7 Financial instruments:
disclosures, adopted by the Regulation (EU) n® 1004/2008 issued in 15 October 2008.

This reclassification was made due to the market conditions following the international financial crises that
characterised the year 2008, which was considered to be one of the rare circumstances justifying the application of
the amendment to [AS 39.

The effect in the 2013 financial statements that would have been recognised if the reclassifications were not made in
2008 is presented in Notes 22 and 24.

Following the publication by the Bank of Portugal, in May 2011 of Notice no. 3/2011, which has established new
minimum levels for the Core Tier 1 ratio (9% at 31 December 2011 and 10% in 31 December 2012) and bearing in
mind the need to achieve, from 2014 onwards. a stable funding ratio of 100%, according to the Memorandum of
Economic and Financial Policies established between the Portuguese Government, the European Commission (EC),
the European Central Bank (ECB) and the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the Group has decided during the
second half of 2011 to sell a significant portion of the held-to-maturity investments portfolio. Under this decision,
the securities to be sold were transferred to the available-for-sale financial assets portfolio and valued at market
value.
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Taking into account that the reclassification and subsequent sale of those securities is attributable to the significant
increase in the industry regulatory capital requirements. it qualifies as an exception to the tainting rules as
established under paragraph AG 22 of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. On these basis
and once the Group has the intention and ability to hold the remaining securities until their maturity, they remained
classified on the held-to-maturity investments portfolio.

The effects of the securities reclassification in the Group consolidated financial statements, at the transfer date, can
be analysed as follows:

From held-to-maturity investments To available-for-sale financial assets
Acquisition Fair value Impairment Balance Acquisition Fair value Impairment Balance
cost reserve {a) cost reserve
584 923 {6 138) ( 50) 578 735 584923 (13 590) { 50) 571283

(a) Remaining value of the fair value reserves at the transfer date for the held-to-maturity investments portfolio occurred with
reference to 1 June 2008.

During the second quarter of 2011, taking in consideration the new solvency rules applicable to the insurance
industry in Portugal, in-force from 1 January 2011, the insurance entities of the Group have reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets an amount of euro 150 253 thousand to held-to-maturity investments (see Note
24), in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, as follows:

Reclassification date Amortisation of
P T — Market value as .
Acquisition Fair value resenve Effective fair value
e Future R at 31 December .
cost Book value . ] , X o interest P reserve until
Puositive Negative cash-flows rate 1 261 31.12.2013
{in thousands of euro)
355ets 172337 (22083 210 664 G.09% 129724 12767
Bonds and other fixed income securities 172 337 150 253 - {22 083) 210964 129 724 12707

It should be noted that this reclassification was made exclusively taking in consideration the solvency rules
applicable to the insurance industry and has no impact in terms of ESFG regulatory capital. In accordance with the
Bank of Portugal rules, the investments held by ESFG in insurance subsidiaries. are measured for the purposes of
the regulatory capital, in accordance with the equity method and are deducted from consolidated own funds as
explained in Note 33.
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NOTE 28 - DERIVATIVES FOR RISK MANAGEMENT PURPOSES

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value of the derivatives for risk management purposes can be analysed

as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Other Other
Hedging dern-afwes for Hedging dern\ﬂf!ses for
N risk Total e risk Total
derivatives derivatives
management management
purpoeses purposes
(in thousands of curo)
Derivatives for risk management purposes
Derivatives for risk management purposes -assets 131 641 231756 363 391 153 897 362623
Derivatives for risk management purposes - Habilities { 68 305) (62 405) {136710) {43 381) {81 618)
63 336 169 348 232681 110 316 281 G605
Accumulated change in the fair value component of
assets and liabilities being hedged
Financial assets
Loans and advances (o customers 43 102 - 43102 22391 - 22391
43 102 - 43 102 22391 - 22391
Financial liabilities
Deposits frombanks (S0 10Y9) 133t (48778) {67 996) - {67 996y
Due to customers { 561 {48 110} (48 611) { 787y (95 099) { 90 BRG)
Debt securities issued { 19636} (97t {29 347) (38472) 47 631 9139
{70 246) {56 490) (126 736) (107 258) {42 468) (149 723)
{27 144) (56 490) {83 634) (84 864} (42 468) (127 332)

As mentioned in the accounting policy described in Note 2.4, derivatives for risk management purposes includes

hedging derivatives and derivatives contracted to manage the risk of certain financial assets

and financial liabilities

designated at fair value through profit or loss (and that were not classified as hedging derivatives).

Hedging derivatives

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value hedge relationships present the following features:

31.12.2813

Changes in the

fair salue of the

derivative in the
Year @

Fair value of

Derivative Hedged item Hedged risk Notional derivative ?'

Accumulated
changes in fair Changes in the fair
value of the salue of the hedged

hedged item ™ itemin the year™

(in thoasands of cure)

{26763

2611879 {67 876)

(27 148)
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31.42.2012

Chuanges in the Accumulated
fair value of the  changes in fair  Changes in the fair
Fair value of derivative in the value of the value of the hedged
Derivative Hedged item Hedged risk Notional derivative @ year @ fhedged item item in the year®

{in thousands of eurs)

329 897

o5 Lo customers

23650691 116316 18478 (84 864) {16 016}

Changes in the fair value of the hedged items mentioned above and of the respective hedging derivatives are
recognised in the income statement under net gains / (losses) from financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2013, the ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge operations amounted to a loss of euro 8.2
million (31 December 2012: euro 2.5 million gain) and was recognised in the income statement. ESFG Group
evaluates on an ongoing basis the effectiveness of the hedges.

Other derivatives for risk management purposes
Other derivatives for risk management purposes includes derivatives held to hedge financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss in accordance with the accounting policies described in Notes 2.5, 2.6

and 2.8 and that the Group did not classify as hedging derivatives.

The book value of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss can be analysed as
follows:

31.12.2813
Derivative Assets / Liabilities associated
o Financial assets / liabilities
Derivative N . . . . "
ceonomically hedged Changes in the Changes in the Carrvi Redemption
.- e X . A arrying .
Notional Fair Value fair value Fair Value fair value sant amount at
ame «
during the year during the year matarity O
{in thousands of cure)
Assets
Credit Default Swap 268 000 %059 (43 380 - . - 268 G0
Liabilities
9298 367

386 507
Credin Defa .
Equity Sw

11368 362 169 345 (193 2563 (36 494} {34274 10655092 16 883 699
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31.12.2012

Derivative

Assets / Liabilities associated

Financial xssets / Habilities

Dertuative “hanges i anges in the cde mpti
e ccanomically hedged Changes in the Changes in the Carrying Redemption
Notional Fair Value fair value Fair Value fair value - amonnt at
N N amount o
during the year during the vear maturity
{in thousands of curo)
Assets
Credit Default Swap Loans and advances (o cusiomers 84 600 1375 (500721 84 000
Liabitities
Interest Rute Swap 67 206 (1o RT9L TR
In Rate Swap/FX Forward (53029
C Defaull Swap 336 845 5810 {53 860)
Equity Swap 405 155 (3667 7
Equity Option 82525 2727 5 125874
9944 153 281 405 156 551 (41 468) (247 509) 9536 598 10 615 206

i Corresponds 10

The credit default swaps associated to loans to customers are part of synthetic securitisation operations, as

mentioned in Note 50.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, includes a
positive cumulative effect of euro 93.8 million (31 December 2012: positive cumulative effect of euro 167.1
million) attributable to the Group’s own credit risk. The change in fair value attributable to the Group’s own credit
risk resuited in the recognition, in 2013, of a loss amounting to euro 73.3 million (31 December 2012: loss of euro

35.2 million).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of derivatives for risk management purposes by the period to

maturity is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Notional Fair value Notional Fair value
(in thousands of euro)

Up to 3 months 1329792 17714 1674024 13571
3to 12 months 6725 633 16 069 2361702 25 889
1to 5 years 45316 609 89 180 7205 288 205 686
More than 5 years 1408 147 109 718 1068 230 146 175

13 980 181 232 681 12309 244 391321
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NOTE 29-  NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE
This balance as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilies

(in thousands of euro)

Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries 671862 153 580 731767 175 945
acquired exclusively for resale purposes

Property held for sale 3387737 - 2846 023 -
Equipment 16 114 - 23524 -
Other tangible assets 4164 - 3501 -
3408015 - 2852048 -

Impairment losses (512 866) - (303 630) -
2 895 149 - 2548418 -

3567011 153 580 3280 185 175945

The amounts presented refer to (i) investments in entities controlled by the Group, which have been acquired
exclusively with the purpose of being sold in the short term, and (ii) assets acquired in exchange for loans and
discontinued branches available for immediate sale.

As at 31 December 2013, the assets of subsidiaries acquired for resale purposes are presented as follows:

Vaiues incorported by ESFG Group

Economic

{in thousands of euro)
Interest %

Assets Liabilities Net Result

Greenwoods Ecoresorts empreendimentos ir rios, SA i 97.66% 226760 516 (4570
Sealion Holdings Limited 37,00% 188 036 135158 { 19562y
Portucale - Sociedade De Desenvolvimento Agro - Turistico, S.A 97, 24% 33989 8 699 {1320)
Autodril - Sociedade Imobiliara, SA 60,31% 48 983 i 125
Ribagoife - Empreendimentos de Goife, SA 7,16% 22522 5776 -
Febagn-Actividades Agropecuarias e [mo 60,31% 11891 284 ( 30}
Guinta'da Avrela - Scciedadé Imobiliaria, SA 100,00% 11950 5 34
Odebrecht Engenharia Ambiental 6,55% 10750 -

Herdade da Boina - Sociedade Imobiiiaria 100.00% ic 114 50 64
JCN -IP - Investimentos Imobilidrios e Participacdes, S.A 97,24% G 659 64 { 1624)
Herdade Vale da Mata 106,00% 8121 131 -
Sociedade Imobiliaria Quinta D. Manuel I, SA 100,00% 2 899 4 {35
Sociedade Agricola Turistica e Imobiliaria da Vérzea da Lagosa, SA 100,00% 5886 - (2914
EMSA -~ Empreendimentos e Exploragio de Estacionamentos SA © 160,060% 5456 333

Other - 17720 1436 {993
Total 634 746 153 580 ( 30 796)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)

(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The changes occurred in impairment losses are presented as follows:

Balance as at 1 January

Change in the scope of consolidation
Charge for the year

Charge off

Exchange differences and other

Balance as at 31 December

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

303630 181 449
- 116 654

294 452 40 178
(101 757) (29 664)
16 541 (4987)
512 866 303 636

In addition to the losses related to impairment, the Group recognised in profit and loss the following amounts,

related to these assets:

o Losses in real estate, equipments and other assets in the amount of euro 11.5 million (31 December
2012: euro 9.1 million) and gains in the amount of euro 10.8 million (31 December 2012: euro 3.2

million); and

e Losses in the amount of euro 29.6 million from the appropriation of results of the subsidiaries held for

sate (31 December 2012: euro 8.7 million loss).

The changes occurred in non-current assets held for sale during 2013 and 2012, are presented as follows:

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

Property and

Assets of
subsidiaries

Property and

Assets of
subsidiaries

other R Total other R Total
. acquired for . acquired for
equipment equipment
resale resale
{in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 2 852048 731767 3583818 [ 836 884 291 248 1828132
Change i the scope of consolidation 116067 - 116 667 530343 530343
Additions 832914 73628 506 542 998 905 454 151 1453056
Sales {455 297) (61392) { 546 689) (218 735) - (218 735)
Other 62283 (42141 20 142 4651 (13632) (8981

Balance as at 31 December 3408015 671862 4079 877 71852048 731767 3583818

Assets / liabilities of subsidiaries acquired for resale primarily reflect assets and liabilities of companies acquired
by the Group on loan restructuring operations and that the Group intends to sell within one vear. However, given
the current market conditions it was not possible to sell them within the expected time frame, but the sales effort
and, in some cases, negotiations with potential buyers are still ongoing.

The sales effort that is being made by the Group includes (i) a web site specifically designed for the sale of real
estate assets; (i) the setup and participation in real estate events in Portugal and abroad; (iii) the setup of contracts
with several real estate agents: (iv) the regular sponsorship of auctions; and (v) campaigns in the major emigration
centres. The Group, despite its intention to sale these assets, regularly request to the Bank of Portugal the
authorisation, under article 114 of RGICSE, the extension of the period of time the Banks have to hold these assets.

The analysis of the real estate assets held for resale by aging is as follows:
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31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Gross amount Impairment Gross amount Impairment

(in thousands of euro)

Held for
less than a year 833 104 64 191 1299 639 158 987
for one to two years 1142133 231323 327267 26 186
more than two years 1412 500 177 449 1219117 115820
Total Balance 3387737 473 163 2846 023 300993

Real estate assets are included in this caption, at the acquisition date in exchange for loans, by its market value
considering an immediate sale scenario. These assets are revaluated periodically, being recognised an impairment
loss when necessary.

As at 31 December 2013, the amount of property held for sale includes euro 21 260 thousand (31 December 2012:
euro 21 598 thousand) related to discontinued branches. in relation to which the Group recognised an impairment
loss amounting to euro 10 925 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 11 193 thousand).
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NOTE 30 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Property
Land and buildings 536 205 512493
Improvements in leasehold property 238 999 228 930
Other 374 1139
775578 742 562
Equipment
Computer equipment 342 117 348 663
Furniture 143 876 139792
Fixtures 143279 146 077
Security equipment 44 893 42 469
Office equipment 40 545 39917
Motor vehicles 17 400 14 693
Other 10 595 13 675
742 705 745 286
Other 6615 13029
1524898 1500877
Work in progress
Land and buildings 389 342 401 044
Improvement in leasehold property 416 344
Equipment 2823 2170
Other 67 56
392 648 403 614
Accumulated depreciation (942 928) (921 485)
Impairment losses ( 389 { 389
(943 317) (921 874)
974 229 982 617

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.14. the Group concluded that there was an indication
of impairment in relation to certain property and equipment. Therefore it has performed impairment tests for these
assets and has recognised an accumulated impairment loss of eurc 389 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 389
thousand).
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The movement in this balance was as follows:

Work in
Property Equipment Other progress Total
(in thousands of euro)
Acquisition costs
Balance as at 31 December 2011 1007089 847 901 25262 333835 2214087
Change in the scope of consolidation (b) (279 558) { 130 836) (12737 (345]) (426 602)
Acquisitions 5615 30298 511 116 764 153 188
Disposals (20 688) (13607) ( 61) ( 850y (35206)
Transfers (a) 22 859 5009 - (34 592) (6724)
Exchange differences and other (¢} 7245 6 541 54 (8092) 5748
Balance as at 31 December 2012 742 562 745 286 13 029 403 614 1904 491
Acquisitions 5108 29 404 433 86 427 121372
Disposals (6412) (27327 - ( 81) {33820)
Transfers (a) 38123 1353 (6 663) (41 438) (8627
Exchange differences and other {3 803) {6011 (182 (55874 (65870}
Balance as at 31 December 2013 775578 742 765 6615 392 648 1917 546
Depreciation
Balance as at 31 December 2011 347 428 675793 14014 - 1037235
Change in the scope of consolidation (b) (59832) ( 104 098) (11 075) - { 175 005)
Depreciation 30749 54929 2864 - 88 542
Disposals (19087) (8781 ( 45) - (27913
Transfers (a) (11 ( 413) - - (13523
Exchange differences and other (¢} (521 614 56 - 149
Balance as at 31 December 2012 297 627 618 044 5814 - 921 485
Depreciation 22474 41463 878 - 64 815
Disposals (6 396) (26 667} - - (33063}
Transters (a) 4012 (1516) (4511 - (2013)
Exchange differences and other (917 (7238 { 139 - {8294
Balance as at 31 December 2013 316 800 624 086 2042 - 942 928
Impairment
Balance as at 31 December 2011 389 - 917 - 1306
Impairment losses - - { 917) - (917
Balance as at 31 December 2012 389 - - - 389
Balance as at 31 December 2013 389 - - - 389
Net balance as at 31 December 2013 458 389 118619 4573 392 648 974229
Net balance as at 31 December 2012 444 546 127242 7215 403 614 982 617

(a) Relating to discontinued branches, transferred to the balance Non-current assets held forsale
(b) Relating to the change in the consolidation method of ES Satde, from full consolidation to the equity method, as well as the sale of Pastor

Vida and the acquisition of Tranquilidade Angola

(¢) Relating to the acquisition of BES Vida
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The balance Equipment — Motor vehicles includes equipment acquired under finance lease agreements, whose
payment schedule is as follows:

31.12.2013  31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Gross investment in finance leases, payable

Up to 1 year 69 106
From 1 to S years 73 138
142 244
Interest
Up to 1 year 4 10
From 1 to Syears 4 5
8 15
Principal
Up to 1 year 65 96
From 1 to 5 years 69 133
134 229
NOTE 31 - INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Insurance activity 621 000 676 853
Real estate activity 98 422 120 470
719 422 797 323

F-98



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The movement in investment properties for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 can be analysed as

follows:

Insurance Real estate
activity activity Total

(in thousands of euro)

Net balance as at 31 December 2011 315393 2 645 318038
Change in the scope of consolidation (a) 391418 122 759 514 177
Acquisitions 62 2754 2816
Improvements 946 - 946
Disposals (12 503) - (12 503)
Other (2 899) (4896) (7795)
Unrealised gains / (losses) (15 364) ( 147 (1571

Net balance as at 31 December 2012 676 853 120 470 797 323
Change in the scope of consolidation (b) - (21574) (21574
Acquisitions 350 628 78
Improvements 4932 - 4932
Disposals (21 646) - (21 646)
Other (46 556) 20 (46 536)
Unrealised gains / (losses) 7067 (1122) 5945

Net balance as at 31 December 2013 621000 98 422 719 422

(a) relating to the consolidation of BES Vida, Fungere. Fungepi, Fundo de Investimento Imobiligrio Fechado
Corpus Christi, Imocrescente and Imoprime

(b) relating to the deconsolidation of Imocrescente

The carrying amount of investment property is the fair value of the property as determined by a registered
independent appraiser having an appropriate recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the
location and category of the property being valued. Fair values were determined having regard to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the same location as the Group’s investment property when available.

Investment property includes a number of commercial properties that are leased to third parties. Most lease contracts
do not have a specified term being possible for the lessee to cancel at any time. However. for a small part of
commercial properties leased to third parties on average the leases contain an initial non-cancellable period of 10
years. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee.

The increase in fair value of investment property of euro 6.1 million (31 December 2012: decrease of euro 15.7
million) is recognised in Other operating income and expenses. Rental income from investment property of euro
12.7 million (31 December 2012: euro 13.2 million) is recognised in Other operating income.

The direct operating expenses including repairs and maintenance arising from investment property that generated
rental income during the year reached 4.2 million euro (31 December 2012: euro 5.3 million). The direct operating
expenses including repairs and maintenance arising from investment property that did not generate rental income
during the year reached euro 0.2 million (31 December 2012: euro 0.7 million).
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NOTE 32 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Goodwill 454 089 441 504
Value in force - 107 768
Internally developed
Software 130 691 107 437
Acquired from third parties
Software 712 049 680 960
Other 5484 i 870
717 533 682 830
Work in progress 37835 40 028
1340 148 1379 567
Accumulated amortisation (721 813) (666 578)
Impairment (10 064) (9779)
608 269 703210
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Goodwill, recognised in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.2, is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
BES Vida 234 374 234 574
PARTRAN 61123 61123
BES 38336 58 336
BESPAR 5960 5960
MARIGNAN GESTION 3613 3613
BEST 2349 2349
CONCORDIA 1722 1736
ES Investment Holding (a) 47 540 48 567
ES Gestion 24359 2439
AMAN BANK 16 046 16 046
Imbassai 13526 -
Other 6 841 6721
454 089 441 504
Impairment ( 10 064) (9779)
444 025 431725

(a) Holding company of Execution/Noble

In May 2012, BES acquired from Credit Agricole the remaining 50% of share capital of BES Vida becoming to hold
the entire share capital and the management control over its activities. Goodwill and Value in Force of BES Vida, in
the amount of euro 234.6 million and euro [07.8 million, respectively, were calculated at the date of acquisition on a
provisional basis, in accordance with paragraph 45 of IFRS 3.

Considering the reinsurance contract signed during 2013 and described in Note 11, which reinsures 100% of the life
insurance portfolio, including all the policies in force in BES Vida as at 30 June 2013, transfetring to the reinsurer
all risks and rewards associated to these contracts, the respective value in force in the amount of euro 137.5 was
derecognised. The value in force of the remaining contracts, in the net amount of euro 25.4 million at the date of the
reinsurance contract, have a liability nature and, as such. were accounted in Other liabilities. As at 31 December
2013 the amount was amortised in euro 3.5 million amounting as at date to euro 21.9 million (see Note 44).

BES Vida

The value of BES Vida was determined considering the Embedded Value and the Goodwill. The Embedded Value
consists in adding (i) the company’s equity (adjusted of unrealised gains and losses, net of tax) and (i) and the
expected present value of flow of distributable future profits from the policies in force at valuation date (adjusted by
the cost of the solvency margin. the time value of options and guarantees and by the cost of residual risks that are
not coverable). Goodwill consists in the value of new business to be developed by the company in the future.

For valuation purposes, it was used the business projections for the next 30 vears and was applied a discount rate of
9.5%. which included an appropriate risk premium for the estimated cash-flows. Based in these assumptions the
recoverable amount of the investment exceeds the book value, including Goodwill.
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The projections for a 20 year period are based in the long term nature of the insurance business, where either risk
and financial investment contracts have long term maturities.

Partran

Partran is the holding company for Tranquilidade Sub-Group. The recoverable amount of Partran was determined
based on (i) the value of Tranquilidade business stand-alone and (ii) the value of each of its subsidiaries.

The valuations performed used a Dividend Discounted Methodology and were back tested based on market
multiples considering a control premium.

Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill.

BES

The recoverable amount of BES was determined based on appropriate market multiples taking in consideration (i)
historical earnings estimates for the sector, discounted using an adequate discount rate which includes a risk
premium appropriated for the estimated future cash-flows and (ii) adequate control premiums.

Based on the above analysis, the recoverable amount of the investment in BES exceeded the respective carrying
amount including goodwill.

ES Investment Holding Limited

The recoverable amount of ES Investment Holding Limited has been determined using cash flow/dividends
predictions based on (i) the financial budget approved by management covering a nine-year period. (ii) a terminal
growth rate of 3%, in line with the estimated nominal growth for the country where the company is located and (iii)
a discount rate of 9.0% including a risk premium appropriated to the estimated future cash-flows.

The nine-year period for estimating the future cash-flows reflect the fact that the company was acquired in late 2010
and its business strategy is being redefined. It is expected that the company achieves a maturity stage only at the end

of that time period.

Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill.

Aman Bank

On 31 December 2011, the Group recognised an impairment of euro 8 023 thousand in goodwill related with the
acquisition of Aman Bank. The impairment reflects the changes of the estimated future cash flows expected by the
Group in this entity as a result of the political situation lived in Libya during 201 1.

[n 2012 and 2013, this entity showed a positive trend, thus there was no need to reinforce the impairment loss

recognised.

The balance of internally developed software includes the costs incurred by the Group in the development and
implementation of software applications that will generate economic benefits in the future (see Note 2.15).
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The movement in this balance was as follows:

Goodwill and
Value in Work in
Force Software Other progress Total

(in thousands of euro)
Acquisition costs

Balance as at 31 December 2011 404 067 742 370 1236 32798 1180471
Acquisitions:

Internally developed - 373 - 8257 8 63
Acquired from third parties (a) 346 696 12 999 4 30326 390
Disposals (182 383) (2998) (81 { 103) (1853

Transfers - 32 440 - (32454 ( 14y
Exchange differences and other (b) (¢) (19 108) 9594 35 1204 (8275)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 549272 788 397 1870 40028 1379567
Acquisitions:
Internally developed - 252 “ 9147 9399
Acquired from third parties 13 526 14 393 3650 29 189 60 758
Disposals (d) (137 476) ( 460) 5 - (137941
Transfers {d) 21989 39 741 - (39741 21989
Exchange differences and other 6778 417 (30 { 788) 6376
Balance as at 31 December 2013 454 089 842 740 5484 37 835 1340 148
Amortisation
Balance as at 31 December 2011 5756 614 777 1114 - 621 647
Change in the scope of consolidation - (6312) (10 098) - (16 410y
Amortisation 4322 52616 299 - 57237
Disposals (10078) (2875) ( 81) - (13034
Exchange differences and other (e) {2 169) 9 180 49 - 7060
Balance as at 31 December 2012 {216%9) 667 386 (8717) - 656 500
Amortisation - 54317 326 - 54 643
Disposals - { 461) (35 - ( 466)
Exchange differences and other 2169 (1042) 10011 - 11138
Balance as at 31 December 2013 - 720200 1615 - 721 815
Impairment
Balance as at 31 December 2011 9628 - - - 9628
Exchange differences and other I51 - - - 151
Balance as at 31 December 2012 9779 - - - 9779
Impairment losses 362 - - - 362
Exchange differences and other 77 - - - (77
Balance as at 31 December 2013 10 064 - - - 10 064
Net balance as at 31 December 2613 444 025 122 540 3 869 37 835 608269
Net balance as at 31 December 2012 541662 121011 10 587 40028 713 288

(a)relating to the acquisition of BES Vida and Tranquilidade Angola

(byincludes euro 19 683 thousand relating to the de-recognition of goodwill on Gespastor
(c)includes euro 8917 thousand relating to the acquisition of BES Vida

(d) BES VIF - Other labilities

(e)includes eurc 8 791 thousand relating to the acquisition of BES Vida
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NOTE 33 - INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The financial information coneerning associates is presented in the following table:

Assets Liabitities Equity Income Profit/{Loss) of the vear

31122013 31.12.2012 3112.2013 3112.2012 31122013 3112.26012 3112208 31122612 31122013 31122012

(in thousands of caro}

BES SEGUROS 116 330 120 243 89 (39 3138y 31204 73933 66 337 7142 5971
EUROP ASSISTANCE 49 186 30 033 15323 15008 35396 4040 2797
ESSAUDE 477 747 452 447 143212 128 432 374 285 344 801 {28631
LOCARENT 244 335 283740 231 418 94 336 84 420 94213 2598
ESEGUR 36 790 39321 24 498 10593 5112382 30980 998 343
NDO ESIBERIA 15286 04 169 182 13723 422 166 {148 {1063
TERNACIONAL - - 12307 - 176 - 1243 - ( 389y
ITOPISTA PEROTE-XALAPA - - 521167 - 29012 - - - { 6634
ASCEND! GROUP 4314000 G OO0 3636006 A0 000 $58 GO0 140 600 21800 28 040
EMPARK 768 332 643 693 651 074 131798 163 833 166 394 { 3008 {71TH
JVISA - AUTOVIA DELOS W 208 484 213 8us 222000 ( 6500y 14841 13000 {2930} {4006}
UNICRE 315 88% I8R5 723 PR 1230663 197 189 231070 9 785 11236
MOZA BANCO 361 146 327 396 32036 36 091 1760 924 (3289
RODI SINKS & IDEAS 43 084 19 138 22809 17268 19528 1324 1609
Acquisition cost Voting interest Book value Share of profit of associates
31.12.2013 322612 31122013 3112.2612 3112.2013 3n12.2012 3L12.2013 3ni2.2012
(in thousands of euro)
BES SEGUROS 7501 7 501 15695 3571 3486
EUROP ASSISTANCE 2344 2344 5792 1 899 1314
ESSAUDE 143 747 143 747 120 580 H 5234 { 604}
LOCARENT 2 967 2 967 & 869 4478 P 201 1298
ESEGUR G 634 9 634 12 254 i1 506 439 62
FUNDO ESIBERIA 8 (81 7087 7312 5649 658 261
BRB INTERNACIONAL - 106659 - 119 101 { 216)
AUTOPIST A PEROTE-XALAPA . 36 678 - 36 802 - 3647
ASCENDI GROUP 179772 15C 388 186 955 & 566
EMPARK 32 429 47331 30090 (2193)
AUVISA - AUTOVIA DE LOS VINEDOS 41 036 34792 34792 - { 2531
UNICRE 11497 2277% 21 886 i 1976
MOZA BANCO 12 791 37603 12234 669 { 826)
ROD! SINKS & IDEAS 1240 %387 8129 257 194
Others 160 044 151 G33 136 891 138 478 { 3473) { 16633}
658 019 670 435 606 473 640 614 8 823 4756
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The movement occurred in this balance is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance at the beginning of the year 640614 578 327
Change in the scope of consolidation 10017 47047
Disposals (79 839) (60 026)
Acquisitions and capital increases (See Notel) 35377 32 966
Share of profit of associates 8823 4756
Fair value reserve from investments in associates 979 44770
Dividends received (6253) (3305
Exchange differences and other (3245) (3921

Balance at the end of the year 606 473 640 614

The changes in consolidation scope in 2013, arise from the full consolidation of the Fund Imoprime.
The changes in consolidation scope in 2012, arise from (i) the full consolidation of BES Vida from 1 May 2012,
which in 2011 was included in ESFG consolidated financial statements following the equity method: and (ii) the loss

of control over ES Satide in 2012, this entity being currently included in these consolidated financial statements
following the equity method.

NOTE 34- TECHNICAL RESERVES

The direct insurance and reinsurance ceded technical reserves are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Direct Reinsurance Direct Reinsurance
insurance ceded Total insurance ceded Total

{ in thousands of euro)

Uneamed premiums reserve 111940 { 19739) 92 201 114019 { 19651) 94 368
Life mathematical reserve 1999952 (7510} 1992452 1831673 ( 634) 1831041
Claims outstanding reserve 499 490 {48 738) 450 752 317407 (47692) 469715
Unexpired risks reserve 22040 - 22040 19476 - 19476
Reserve for bonus and rebates 9724 { 912) 8812 5751 {2796y 2955

2643 156 (76 899) 2566257 2488328 (70773 2417558
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(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The life mathematical reserve is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Direct Reinsurance Direct Reinsurance
insurance ceded Total insurance ceded Total

( in thousands of euro)

Annuities 113102 (7509 105593 114286 ( 634) 113652
Saving Contracts with Profit Sharing 1 886 860 (hH 1886 859 1717389 - 1717389
1999962 (7510) 1992452 1831675 ( 634) 1831 041

In accordance with IERS 4, the contracts issued by the Group for which there is only a transfer of financial risk. with
no discretionary profit sharing, are classified as investment contracts and accounted for as financial liabilities.

The claims outstanding reserve by line of business is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Direct Reinsurance Direct Reinsurance
insurance ceded Total insurance ceded Total

{in thousands of eure)

Life 48163 {3657y 44 506 35225 {1873} 33352
Workers compensation (mathematical reserve) 136293 { 52%) 135768 128 630 {1002 127628
Workers compensation (not related to life pensions) 65 559 (3245 62314 56740 (1374) 58 366
Accidents and ht 10126 { 188) 9938 16273 { 243) 10030
Fire and other hazards 35172 (16 287) 18885 43321 (18742) 24579
174997 {16 150) 158 847 210614 (14 206) 196 408

6737 (3100 3636 6603 (2815 3788

19408 (2945 16463 21368 (6133 18172

42 (12 30 80 ( 40) 40

2993 (2628) 36% 1616 (1264) 352

499 490 {48 738) 450752 517407 {47 692) 469718

The claims outstanding reserve represents unsettled claims occurred before the balance sheet date and includes an
estimated provision in the amount of euro 22 850 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 22 106 thousand), for claims
incurred before 31 December 2013, but not reported (IBNR).

Included in the amount of claims outstanding for workers® compensation is euro 136 293 thousand (31 December
2012: euro 120 883 thousand), relating to the mathematical reserve for workers’® compensation.

The mathematical reserve for workers” compensation includes an amount of euro 0 (31 December 2012: euro 0
thousand) as a result of the liability adequacy test (see Note 33).

Additionally. mathematical reserve for workers™ compensation also includes an accrual related to the present value
of the future contributions to Workers Compensation Fund (FAT) for an amount of euro 8 832 thousand (31
December 2012: euro 7 668 thousand).

The claims outstanding reserve also includes an estimation of future costs related to the settlement of pending claims

{expense reserve), both-declared and non-declared, for an amount of euro 26 473 thousand (31 December 2012: euro
22 168 thousand).

F-106

>
M&?



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The movements on the claims outstanding reserve of direct insurance business are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Balance at the beginning of the year

517 407 499 462
Change in the scope of consolidation - 26328
Plus incurred claims
Current period 569 278 695 230
Prior periods (47 669) (40 062)
Less paid claims related to
Current period (422 706) (548 278)
N Prior periods (116 820) (115273)
L 4
Balance at the end of the year 499 490 517 407

The reserve for bonus and rebates corresponds to the amounts attributed to policyholders or beneficiaries of

insurance and investment contracts with profit sharing, in the form of profit participation, which have not yet been
specifically allocated and included in the life mathematical reserve.

The movement in the reserve for bonus and rebates for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Balance at the beginning of the period

5751 5933

Change in the scope of consolidation - (1326)

Amounts paid (2 609) (2 099)
Estimated attributable amounts 6582 3243
Balance at the end of the period 9724 5751

As at 31 December 2013, life mathematical reserve includes an amount of euro 0 (31 December 2012: euro 0

thousand) as 2 result of the liability adequacy test. This test was performed based on the best estimate assumptions
(see Note 53).
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NOTE 35- OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balance other assets is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Collateral deposits placed 1483337 1 664 467
Derivatives 927 066 1438953
Collateral CLEARNET, VISA and EBA 30 701 33597
Collateral related to Letters of Credit 44 797 26 694
Collateral Deposits for litigations 54 956 33 000
Collateral Desposits in relation with reinsurance operations 334677 -
Other 91 140 112 221

Recoverable government subsidies on mortgage loans 30426 38 658

Public sector 191 978 152428

Debtors from the banking business 680 299 631951

Debtors from the insurance business 23 945 24 101

Debtors from medical services business 380 452

Sundry debtors 11488 21158

2422033 2533212

Impairment losses on debtors (156 976) (236 196)

2265077 2297016
Debtors arising out of direct insurance op erations 63 996 67170
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 8 558 10814
72 554 77984

Impairment losses on debtors arising out of direct
insurance and of reinsurance operations (7336) (7228}
65218 70 756

Accrued income 66 852 54 497

Prepay ments and deferred costs 121453 119 749

Gold, other precious metals, numismatics and other liquid assets 10247 11127

Other assets 233 448 264 282

243 695 275 409

Deferred acquisition costs 21201 21954

Qther sundry assets

Stock exchange transactions pending settlement 256 333 154 257
Other transactions pending settlement 57774 222202
314 107 376 459

Assets recognised on pensions (see Note 14) 10 18 815
3097613 3234 655
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
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The caption collateral deposits placed includes deposits made by the Group as collateral in order 1o be able to
perform certain derivative contracts in organized markets (margin accounts) and in over the counter markets (Credit
Support Annex — CSA). This caption also includes a collateral deposit made following the reinsurance agreement
between BES Vida and New Re. in favour of the reinsurer to protect the reinsurer against the credit risk of BES
Vida under the reinsurance agreement.

Loans to companies in which the Group has a non-controlling interest include:

— euro 100 million related with loans to Locarent - Companhia Portuguesa de Aluguer de Viaturas, S.A. (31
December 2012: euro 100 million);

= euro 78.7 million of loans to entities within the Group’s venture capital business, of which euro 49.5 million
are provided for (31 December 2012: euro 67.2 million, of which euro 30.7 million were provided for); and

—  87.2 million of loans and junior securities following the transfer of loans/assets to companies and specialized
funds, of which euro 83.4 million are provided for (31 December 2012: euro 94.3 million. of which euro 87.7
million were provided for).

As at 31 December 2013, the balance prepayments and deferred costs includes the amount of euro 76 745 thousand
(31 December 2012: euro 64 901 thousand) related to the difference between the nominal amount of loans granted to
Group’s employees under the collective labour agreement for the banking sector (ACT) and their respective fair
value at grant date, calculated in accordance with IAS 39. This amount is charged to the income statement over the
lower period between the remaining maturity of the loan granted, and the estimated remaining service life of the
employee.

The stock exchange transactions pending settlement refer to transactions with securities on behalf of third parties,
recorded on trade date and pending settlement, in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6.

Deferred acquisition costs relate to the insurance business and can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Non-life insurance business 21201 21954

2120t 21954

The movements on the deferred acquisition costs for the non-life business are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance at the beginning of the year 21954 22517
Acquisition costs of the year 21201 21954
Acquisition costs amortisation (21 946) (22517)
Others (8 -

Balance at the end of the year 21201 21954
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The balance of impairment losses is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Debtors 136 976 236 196
Debtors arising out of direct insurance and reinsyrance operations 7336 7228
164 312 243 424

As at 31 December 2012, the impairment losses on debtors caption included also an amount of euro 86.6 million
related to the impairment of international assets in the carbon market.

The movements occurred in impairment losses are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 243 424 67597
Change in the scope of consolidation (101 (12726)
Charge of the vear 32 690 196 374
Write back of the year (3627) (13482)
Charge off (95289) (1104)
Transfers 4335 -
Other (17 120y 6765

Balance as at 31 December 164 312 243 424

NOTE 36 - DEPOSITS FROM CENTRAL BANKS
The balance deposits from central banks in analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

From the European System of Central Banks

Deposits 202 469 129382
Other funds 9 150 000 10 130 000
9352 469 10279 382

From other Central Banks

Deposits 419 775 661 943
419 775 661 943
9772 244 10 941 325
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, Other funds from the European System of Central Banks includes eurc 9 157
million and euro 10 156 million, respectively. covered by securities pledged as collaterals in the amount of euro 18.8
billion and euro 19.6 billion, respectively (see Note 47).

As at 31 December 2013, the balance Deposits from other Central Banks — Deposits includes the amount of euro 3
million related to deposits with Angola Central Bank (31 December 2012: euro 431 million).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of deposits from Central Banks by the period to maturity is

presented as follows:

Up to 3 months
Ito Syears

NOTE 37-  DEPOSITS FROM BANKS

The balance deposits from banks is analysed as follows:

Domestic
Loans
Deposits
Very short terms funds
Repurchase agreements

Other funds
& :
- International
Deposits
Loans

Very short terms funds
Repurchase agreements
Other funds

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

642 604 852 635
9129 640 10 088 690
9772244 10 941 325
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

1927 36
336 062 378 864
82 111 40172

- 66 579

2078 4 486
422 178 490 137
716 344 378 345
2775812 2433985
91 049 194 475
817 624 1311087
210 487 257 951
4611316 4575 843
5033494 5065980

As at 31 December 2013, the balance deposits from banks includes the amount of euro 224 109 thousand (31
December 2012: 612 277 thousand) related to deposits recognised on the balance sheet at fair value through profit or

loss.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the analysis of deposits from banks by the period to maturity is presented as

follows:

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 3 months 2721882 2318 791
3 to 12 months 886 607 1335967
1to Syears 869 486 683 935
More than 5 years 555519 727 287
5033494 5065980
NOTE 38- DUE TO CUSTOMERS
The balance due to customers is analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Repayable on demand

(in thousands of euro)

Demand deposits 11379879 11100 769
Time deposits
Time deposits 23 822634 22213 567
Notice deposits 18 000 3144
Other 21175 77 327
23 861 809 22294 038
Savings accounts
Pensioners 295 146 28022
Emigrants 18 041 3521
Other 2093 436 1645970
2 406 623 1677513
Other funds
Repurchase agreement 275603 204 847
Other 170 493 348 307
445 496 353154
38093 807 35625474

This balance includes the amount of euro 9 446 million (31 December 2012: euro 8 797 million) of deposits
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss.
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The analysis of the amounts due to customers by the period to maturity is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Repayable on demand 11379 879 11 100 769

With agreed maturity:
Up to 3 months 13 798 298 11503 648
3to 12 months 9351420 6516402
1to Syears 3358727 6 133 519
More than 5 years 205 483 371 136
38 093 807 35625474

NOTE 39- DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

The balance of debt securities issued is analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Debt securities

Euro Medium Term Notes 8745475 10087 137
Certificates of deposit 342 539 620 235
Covered bonds 901 122 864 100
Debt bonds issued 1356727 1409 773
Other 1269 345 2971625

12615208 15952 870

As at 31 December 2013, the debt securities issued includes the amount of euro 4 750 million of debt securities
issued with a guarantee from the Portuguese Republic (31 December 2012: euro 4 750 million).

As at 31 December 2013, this balance includes euro 3 723 million (31 December 2012: euro 2 660 thousand).of debt
securities issued at fair value through profit or loss.

On 15 November 2005, ESFG issued the euro 500 000 000 Fixed Rate Step-Up Notes due 2025 with 10 000
warrants. Each of these Notes bearded interest at the rate of 3.55% until 15 November 2011 and 5.05% from then
on. Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe euro 50 000 to acquire fully paid up shares of ESFG at an initial
exercise price of euro 24.50 per share. This exercise price has been adjusted following the terms the contractual
conditions to euro 21.24 in 2012. The rights under the warrants are exercisable from and including 26 December
2005 up to the close of business on 8 November 2025.

In the light of IAS 32, the warrants issued correspond to an equity instrument and therefore are recognised in equity
and the Notes correspond to a debt instrument and are recognised as a liability.

The value attributable to the warrants upon the initial recognition was calculated by deducting. at inception. the fair
value of the Notes from the par value of the instrument as a whole, the fair value atiributable to the Notes being
calculated as the present value of the contractual future cash flows discounted at a rate of interest, determined at
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inception, based on comparable Notes providing substantially the same cash flows. on the same terms. but without
the detachable warrants. On this basis, the Group recognised in equity the amount of euro 118 570 thousand related
to the warrants and an amount of euro 381 430 thousand as a lability, corresponding to the respective fair value at
the date of issue.

After its initial recognition, the liability accrues interest at an effective interest rate of 6.7%, which was the rate used
to fair value the liability at the inception.

During 2013, took place an exchange offer of euro 135.6 million of the Notes for euro 122.0 million bonds
exchangeable into ordinary shares of Banco Espirito Santo. S.A.. This exchange offer resulted in a decrease in other
equity instruments by the amount of euro 32.5 million and in a loss recognised in income statement of euro 7.3
million.

Unless previously redeemed, or repurchased and cancelled, the Notes will be redeemed at their principal amount on
15 November 2025. Following the cancellation of the Notes and Warrants exchanged by ESFG pursuant to the
exchange offer (i) the principal amount outstanding is euro 45.8 million in terms of nominal value and euro 38.7
million in terms of book value as at 31 December 2013, and (ii) the number of Warrants outstanding is 915 with a
book value of euro 10.5 million.

On 19 December 2011, ESFG issued euro 130 416 000 Convertible Bonds due 2025, as a result of the Exchange
Offer of the Euro 500 000 000 Fixed Rate Step-Up Notes described above. Each bond bears interest at the rate of
9.75 and entitles the holder to convert such Bond into new and/or existing fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of
ESFG. The initial Conversion Price is Euro 17 per Ordinary share. Unless previously redeemed, or repurchased and
cancelled, the Notes will be redeemed at their principal amount on 19 December 2023.

In the light of IAS 32, the conversion option issued corresponds to an equity instrument and therefore is recognised
in equity and the Notes correspond to a debt instrument and are recognised as a liability.

The value attributable to the conversion option upon the initial recognition was calculated by deducting, at
inception, the fair value of the Notes {rom the fair value of the instrument as a whole, the fair value attributable to
the Notes being calculated as the present value of the contractual future cash flows discounted at a rate of interest,
determined at inception, based on comparable Notes providing substantially the same cash flows. on the same terms,
but without the conversion option. On this basis, the Group recognised in equity the amount of euro 17.0 million
related to the conversion option.

Under the covered bonds programme, which has a maximum amount of euro 10 000 million, BES Group issued
covered bonds for a total amount of euro 4 040 million.

The covered bonds are guaranteed by a cover assets pool, comprised of mortgage credit assets and limited classes of
other assets, that the issuer of mortgage covered bonds shall maintain segregated and over which the holders of the
relevant covered bonds have a statutory special creditor privilege. These conditions are set up in Decree-Law no.
39/2006, Regulations 5/2006, 6/2006, 7/2006 and 8/2006 of the Bank of Portugal and Instruction 13/2006 of the
Bank of Portugal.
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The main characteristics of these issues are as follows:

Nominal value Book value (In Issue date Maturity date Interest payment Interest rate Rating
Description {In thousands of thousands of e ——
curo} eurn) Movdy's DBRS
BES Covered Bonds 3.373% 1066 000 839 681 172009 17.62.2015 Baa3 AL
BES Covered Bonds DUE JUL 17 1600 006 - 087672050 049.07.2017 Ve Baa3 AL
BES Covered Bonds 21/67/2017 1000 600 - 21072010 216720617 Euribor 6 Month + 0.60% Baa3 AL
BES Covered Bonds DUE 4.6% 40000 41 441 18.12.2010 26.61.2017 d rate 4.6% Baa3 AL
BES Covered Bonds HIPOT 2018 1 000 060 - 25612011 25.61.2018 r6 Month + 0.60% Baal AL
4040 000 991 122

As at 31 December 2013, the mortgage loans that collateralise these covered bonds amounted to
euro 5 552.6 million (31 December 2012: euro 5 605.1 million) (see Note 26).

The changes occurred in debt securities issued during the year ended 31 December 2013 are analysed as follows:

Other

31.12.2012 Issues Repayments Netrepurchase N
movements

, 31.12.2013

(in thousands of euro)

Euro Medwmum Term Notes 10087137 14337906 (2412267 (351917 {11274) 8 745 475
Certificates of deposit 620 235 1207116} {396 027) - (2380) 342 339
Covered bonds 864 100 - - 49 627 {12905) 901 122
Debt bonds 1ssued 2470593 433 862 (1482201 { 14 861) { 50 656) 1356727
Other 1910805 4627193 (5259297) - {9356) 1269345

15952 870 6615562 {9 549 792) (316 851) {86 581) 12615208
“Other movements include acerued interest, fair value adju xchange differeaccs

*'Certificates of deposit are presented at the net value, considering their short te
In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.8, debt issued repurchased by the Group is
derecognised from the balance sheet and the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and its
acquisition cost is recognised in the income statement. Following the repurchases performed in 31 December 2013
and in 31 December 2012, the Group has recognised a gain (already including the gains relating the exchange offer
for the Fixed Rate Step-Up Notes described above) of euro 2.2 million and of euro 74.1 million, respectively (see
Note 12).

maturity

The analysis of debt securities issued by the period to maturity is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 3 months 1403 799 2604 374
1 to 12 months 2684613 1538 996
[ to Syears 5144 220 7331056
More than 5 years 3382576 4478 444

12615208 15952 870
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The main characteristics of debt securities issued are presented as follows:
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NOTE 40 - INVESTMENT CONTRACTS
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the liabilities arising from investment contracts are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Fixed rate investment contracts 2754 110 1407 677
Investment contracts in which the financial risk is bome by the policyholder 1719811 2436343
4473 921 3844 020

In accordance with IFRS 4, the insurance contracts issued by the Group for which there is only a transfer of financial
risk, with no discretionary participating features, are classified as investment contracts.

The movement in the liabilities arising out from the investment contracts with fixed rate is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at | January 1407677 63973
Change in the scope of consolidation (a) - 376 975
Net deposits received 1480 556 1071426
Benefits paid (224 361) (156 647)
Technical interest charged 90 238 51950

2754110 1407677

Balance as at 31 December

(a) Related with the full consolidation of BES Vida from 1 May 2012.

The movement in the liabilities arising out from the investment contracts in which the financial risk is borne by the
policyholder is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 2436 343 84 791
Change in the scope of consolidation (a) - 1868 167
Net deposits received 255819 521017
Benefits paid (1116 456) (178 370y
Changes in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2 890 157227
Technical result 141215 (16 489)

1719 811 2436 343

Balance as at 31 December

(a) Related with the full consolidation of BES Vida from 1 May 2012.
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The deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 can be
analysed as follows:

Assets Liabilities Net

31.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2043 31.12.2012

{in thousands of eurso)

Available-forsale 69 956 83369 {63222} { 102 845) 6734 {22 476}
Loans and advances to customers 474 445 412572 - - 474 445 412572
Property and equipment 233 271 {8889 (8901) {8656) (8630)
gible assets 13354 G474 {4520} - $3834 9474
estments in subsidianies and associates - - (47823 {163 986) {47 823} { 163 986)
Provisions 58690 55302 (1638 {3516) 37652 45 788
Technical reserves - - {193h {183 {1930 (1851
Pensions 283 063 257 961 { 495) {35307 262 568 222 394
Long rvice benefits 8283 7726 - - 8283 7726
Debt securnities issued - - { 462) {1010) { 462) (1010}
Other 5427 18957 - {4199 5427 14 758
Taxiosses brought forward 203 440 87 163 - 295 203 440 87 460
Deferrved tax asset/ (liability) 1096891 929 737 (128 980} {323520) 967911 606 217
Deferred taxassets/} ties offset {32008} (168 784} 32008 168 784 . -
Deferred tax asset / (Hability}, net 1064 883 760 953 (96 972) {154 736) 967911 606 217

Gy

ted by Group enuty

The Group does not recognise the deferred tax liabilities on temporary differences of subsidiaries and associates for
which it controls the reversion period and that are realised through the distribution of tax-exempt dividends.

Additionally, the Group does not recognise deferred tax assets on tax losses brought forward by certain subsidiaries,

because it is not expectable that they will be recovered in a foreseeable future. A detail of the tax losses brought
forward for which no deferred tax assets were recognised. is presented as follows:

Deadline 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

to deduction Tax losses brought forward

(in thousands ofeuro)

2012 - 2850
2013 3063 3941

£ 2014 22793 27 499
et 2015 25554 34 123
2016 2493 2492

2017 5517 5474

2018 4744 -

Undetermined 205613 234 682

269779 311061
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The changes in net deferred taxes were recognised as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2612
{in thousands of euro)

Balance at the begining of the period (assets / (liabilities )) 606217 648 781
Change in the scope of consolidation - 1981
Recognised in the income statement 321625 41157
Recognised in fair value reserve (22621 ( 68 240)
Recognised in equity - other comprehensive income 1303 9601
Recognised in other reserves (7152) (24 881)
Amount paid under the Special Regime for Debt Payments 65375 -
Exchange differences and other 3164 (2 182)

Balance at the end of the period(assets / (liabilities)) 967911 606217

The current and deferred taxes recognised in the income statement and reserves, during 2013 and 2012 is analysed in
the following table. The amounts presented do not consider the effect of non-controlling interest.

31.12.2013 31.12.2612

Recognisedin the . i Recognised in the . 3
. Recognisedin i Recognised in
income statement income statement

. reserves . reserves
(income) /expense (income) /expense

(in thousands of euro)

Financial instruments ( 50 500) 21 355 ( 16679 68 240
Loans and advances to customers { 62719) - ( 69 646) -
Property and equipment 26 - ( 133) -
Intangible assets 640 - 551 -
Investments in subsidiaries and associates ( 116572 409 81 381 ( 3247
Provisions ( 6345) - ( 20402) -
Technical reserves 80 - 623 -
Pensions 3668 (1712) 4005 ( 6354)
Long term service benefits ( 337) - 459 -
Debt securities issued ( 548) - 1214 -
Exchange differences and other 9142 - ( 2950) ( 281)
Taxlosses brought forward ( 97 940) 8418 ( 193560) 25162
Deferred taxes ( 321 625) 28 470 ( 41 157) 83 520
Current taxes 157432 (66 589) 152 159 44973

(164193) (38119) 111002 128 493

The current tax accounted for in reserves during 2013 includes, a tax charge of euro 66 589 thousand (31 December
2012: euro 60 830 thousand) to the fair value reserve in relation to unrealised gains recognised. As at 31 December
2012 included also a tax credit of euro 5 553 thousand related with the pension benefits tax regime in accordance
with Article 183 of Law no. 64-B/2011, of 30 December and a tax credit of euro 7 773 thousand from negative
equity changes (primarily related to pension benefits).
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The reconciliation of the income tax rate can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Yo Amount Yo Amount

(in thousands of euroc)
3

Profit before minority interest and taxes (1398 839) 482 706
Contribution to the banking sector 27 289 27910
Profit before non-controlling interest and taxes for tax
reconciliation purposes (1371 550) 510616
Statutory taxrate 25.0% 31.5%
Income tax calculated based on the statutory taxrate ( 342 888) 160 844
Tax-exempt dividends 0.4% (5991 -4.0% (19327
Tax-exempt profits (off shore) 1.7% (24 429) -9.9% (47 949)
Net income in consolidated investment funds -2.4% 33063 - -
Tax-exempt/non-deductible realised gains/losses 1.3% ( 18039) 13.3% 64 191
Non-taxable share of (profit)/losses in associates 0.1% { 903 -0.3% ( 1498)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets related to

taxlosses generated in the year -15.9% 222 156 5.0% 24 124
Change in estimates 34% (47 6423 -12.4% { 59 684)
Non taxable gains on acquisition / sale of subsidiaries - - -9.4% (45 503)
Non deductible costs 1.5% (21011 51% 24643
Rates and taxbase changes resulting from IRC -2.3% 31508 - -
Other -0.7% 9585 2.3% 11161

12.1% (164 193) 21.2% 111 002

Y includes the amount of euro (30 946) thousand (31 December 2012: euro (8 684) thousand ) related to discontinued operations

The Portuguese Law No. 55-A/2010 of 31 December established a banking levy, which is not deductible for tax
purposes, and whose regime was extended by Law no. 64-B/2011, of 30 December. During the period ended 31
December 2013, the Group recognised a cost of euro 27.3 million (31 December 2012: euro 27.9 million, which was
included in Other operating income and expenses — Direct and indirect taxes (see Note 12).

NOTE 43 - SUBORDINATED DEBT
The balance subordinated debt is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013  31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Bonds 1329 161 1101032
Loans 9 896 10 107
Perpetual bonds 64 131 65343

1403 188 1176482
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The main features of the subordinated debt are presented as follows:

31.12.2013
Issuer Designation Carrency Issue date Amount issued Carrying Interest rate Maturity
amount
{in thousands of curo)
3.06% 2014 a)
4.50% 2015 a}
8.73% 2018
CDI 100%+1.3% 2014
CDI 100%+1.3% 2015
PCA 100%+8.3% 2015
CD! 100%+1.3% 2015
Euribor 3M + 0.95% 2015
indexed t¢ CMS 2033
Euribor BM + 1.25% 2014
Euribor 3M + 1% 2018
Euribor 3M + 8.5% 2019
Euripor 3M + 1.05% 2018
Fixed Rate 10% 2021
Fixed Rate 7.125% 2023
Euribor 3M + 2.20% 2022
Euriber 3M + 2.50% 2014 a)
5665 2.34% - b)
500 606 329717 6.88% 2018
2261 686 1403 188
The changes occurred in subordinated debt during the year ended 31 December 2013 are analysed as follows:
Net Other movements
31.12.2012 Issues Repayments Repurchases (a) 31.12.2013
(in thousands of euro)
Bonds 1101032 730 400 {1945} {511808) (8318) 1329 161
Loans 10 107 - - - (211 9 896
Perpetual Bonds 65343 - - (1318) 106 64 131
1176 482 750 400 (1945) (513 126) {8613) 1403188
sovements include accrued tnterest. fair value ady fferences
unts corresponding to debt e Group

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.8, debt issued repurchased by the Group is
derecognised from the balance sheet and the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and its
acquisition cost is recognised in the income statement. Following the repurchases performed in 2013 and 2012, the

Group has recognised a gain of euro 4.6 million and of euro 39.6 million, respectively (see Note 12).
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NOTE 44 - OTHER LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balance other liabilities is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Creditors
Public sector 119 409 145 296
Collateral deposit on negative exposures on derivative contracts 215617 173 955
Sundry debtors
Stock-option plan (see Note 14) 2 185
Creditors from transactions with securities 60433 89 357
Suppliers 67 195 56 457
Creditors from factoring operations 3044 3509
Other sundry creditors 280 821 234 868
Creditors from the medical business 761 548
Creditors fromthe insurance business 37099 8982
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 26410 25260
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 17759 17876
828 550 756 293
Accrued expenses
Long term service benefits (see Note 14) 30376 28 691
Other accrued expenses 214276 160 044
244 652 188 735
Deferredincome 35 451 25 492
Other sundry liabilities
Stock exchange transactions pending settiement 129 189 93 431
Foreign exchange transactions pending settlement 6933 19999
Other transactions pending settlement 101 058 184 492
237 180 297922
1345833 1268 442

As at 31 December 2013, the deferred income includes the amount of euro 21 989 thousand relating to the value of
the remaining in force contracts acquired of BES Vida, after reinsurance transaction of life insurance risk portfolio
held in the first half of 2013 (see notes 17 and 32). This amount will be amortised to income over the remaining life
of the respective contracts.

The stock exchange transactions pending settlement refer to transactions with securities on behalf of third parties,
recorded on trade date and pending settlement, in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6.
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NOTE 45- SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS, FAIR VALUE
RESERVES AND OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Share capital and share premium
As at 31 December 2013, the authorised share capital of Espirito Santo Financial Group, S.A., was represented by 2
billion shares without nominal value, from which 207 075 338 shares (31 December 2012: 207 075 338) held by

different shareholders were subscribed and fully paid as described below:

% Share capital

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Espirito Santo Irmos, Sociedade Gestora de Participagdes Sociais, S.A. 49.26% 10.03%
Espirito Santo International S.A. 0.15% 33.38%
Other 50.59% 56.59%

100.00% 100.00%

On 26 April 2012, ESFG issued 102 040 816 ordinary shares at an issue price of euro 4.9 each, totalling euro 500
million. From this amount, euro 398 million euro was allocated to the share premium. The costs incurred and
directly attributable to issuing the new shares, in the amount of euro 6.4 million, were also recognised under share
premium.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares as at 31 December 2013, in the amount of euro 3.5 million (31 December 2012: euro 36 million),
correspond to 6635 652 ESFG shares (31 December 2012: 6 811 569) with an acquisition cost of euro 5.2 per share
(31 December 2012: euro 3.28 per share).

Preference shares

In June 2007, ESFG International Limited (“issuer™), a fully owned subsidiary of ESFG, issued euro 400 million
series A non-cumulative guaranteed step-up preferred securities. These sccurities, with a face value of euro 50
thousand per security, are listed on the Luxembourg stock exchange. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group acquired euro 16 450 thousand preference shares for an acquisition price of euro 6 197 thousand, having
generated a gain net of taxes, recognised in Other reserves and retained earnings, in the amount of euro 10 253
thousand. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group acquired euro 325 750 thousand preference shares in
scope of the exchange offer over ordinary shares referred to above. The Group recorded a capital gain, net of taxes
in the amount of euro 81 803 thousand recognised in Other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 December 2013, there were euro 52 950 thousand outstanding preference shares (31 December 2012: euro
57 800 thousand) for a total nominal amount of euro 32 930 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 57 800 thousand).

These preferred securities pay non-cumulative preferred dividends, when, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors of ESFG International Limited, annually in arrears on 6 June in each year commencing on 6 June 2008 up
to and including 6 June 2017 at an annual rate of 5.753% p.a. of the respective nominal value. Thereafter, the
preferred dividends will be payable, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors of ESFG International
Limited, quarterly in arrears on 6 March, 6 June, 6 September and 6 December each year, commencing on 6
September 2017 at a rate of 2.130% above the 3 months Euribor.
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The preferred securities are perpetual securities and have no fixed redemption date. However, these securities may
be redeemed, at the option of ESFG International Limited, in whole but not in part, on 6 June 2017 or on any
preferred distribution payment date falling thereafter. Such redemption is subject to the authorization of ESFG and
the Supervisor Authority.

ESFG unconditionally guarantees, on a subordinated basis, the payment of distributions on the preferred securities
when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors of the issuer, and payments on liquidation of the issuer or on
redemption. By virtue of the scope of the guarantee the rights of the holders of these preference securities against
ESFG are equivalent to those which such holders would have had if they had instead held preference shares issued
directly by ESFG whose terms are identical to the terms of the preferred securities and the guarantee taken together.

Considering the features of these preferred securities, they were considered, following IAS 32, as equity instruments
of the Group. On that basis, the total proceeds from the issue, net of expenses incurred, totalling approximately euro
394.5 million, was taken to equity on the date of issue. The outstanding amount as at 31 December 2013, net of
expenses, is euro 51 367 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 55 978 thousand). In accordance with the accounting
policy described in Note 2.9, preferred dividends will be recorded as a deduction to equity when declared.

Other equity instruments

As described in Note 39, during the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired euro 135.6 million of the
euro 500 000 000 Fixed Rate Step-Up Notes due 2023 with 10 000 warrants, in scope of the exchange offer over
bonds exchangeable into ordinary shares of Banco Espirito Santo, S.A. As a result of this transaction, as at 31
December 2013 there were 915 outstanding warrants in the amount of euro 10 849 thousand (31 December 2012:
3 587 warrants in the amount of euro 42 509 thousand) which are recognised in equity net of expenses by an amount
of euro 10 339 thousand.

In addition, as described in Note 39, during 2011 ESFG issued euro 130 416 000 Convertible Bonds. Following this
issue, the Group recognised in equity the amount of euro 16 950 thousand related to the conversion option which
corresponds to an equity instrument in light of IAS 32.

Capital reserves non distributable

The capital reserves non distributable in the amount of euro 700 970 thousand relates to a special non-distributable
reserve account resulting from the cancelation, in 2011, of the nominal value of the shares and the subsequent
reduction of the accounting value of the authorised and issued share capital from euro 10 per share to euro 1.

Legal reserve

Under the Luxembourg law, a minimum of 5% of the profit for the year must be transferred to the legal reserve until
this reserve equals 10% of the issued share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents the amount of the unrealised gains and losses arising from securities classified as

available for sale, net of impairment losses recognised in the income statement in the year/previous years. The
amount of this reserve is shown net of deferred taxes and non-controlling interest.
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During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the changes in these balances, net of non-controlling interest,
were as follows:

Fair value reserve Other comprehensie income, other reserves and remined earnings
Acmarial . Total sther
Capital Ch
Availsblefor.  Defervedtax  Total fair gains and Exchange P OTTRITE reserves and
" Legalressrve  veserves non sud reiained b Toral
sale reserves value reserve {Iosses} net differences o B retained
distribarable earnings .
of taxes sarnings
(in thousands of eurss
Batance as t 31 Deceaber 2611 (194 633 25068 (isssry  (mTnan 15362 32384 56976 37448 581135 415499

Transfer to teserves

Costs with capitat increase of subsidiaries

Repurchase and exchan
msnuments

own ather equity

Teansactions on subsidsanes profersnc
Dividends ont prefer

e shares

fares
Dividends on peqetual bonds

Atruznal gains from defined benefls abligation
net of

< in fa vatus {
xchange differences - E . - {11 436)

Other equity movenients of associated o

Transastions with non-controlling interes:

Trhers

Balance 35 %t 31 December 2012 412389 {13338

{28278y Tie6 32364 TO0976 13048 850 658 716 439

Tet to reserves
tase and xchange of own other equity

ants

ctions on subsidiaries preference chares

{34218
3§ 885 8§75
hangs differences

Other squity sovements of associated comparies

Teansac th Hon-C g inrares:

Otherg HH
Batance a5 a2 31 Decenber 1913 2426 {2834y {3108 {187 407y {11 223} 22354 TR 8TH A5G 714
The fair value reserve is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands ofeuro)

Amortised cost of available-for-sale financial assets 9221388 11090 158
Accumulated impairment losses recognised (318045) (254 141
Amortised cost of available-for-sale financial assets, net of impairment 8903 343 10 836 017
Fair value ofavailable-for-sale financial assets 8929 778 11041235
Net unrealised gains (losses) recognised in the fair value reserve 26435 205218
Fair value reserves related to securities reclassified as held-to-maturity mvestments (Note 27) (11781 (16 635)
Income taxes (63835) (49 284)
Fair value reserve of associates 3207 2381
Net fair value reserve 11276 141660
Non-controlling interest (14484 (115 889)
Fair value reserve attributable to equity holders of the Company (3208) 25771
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The movement in the fair value reserve, net of deferred taxes, impairment losses and non-controlling interest, is
analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 25771 (165 624)
Changes in fair value 60 194 360204
Disposals during the year (131 292) (167 091)
Impairment recognised during the year 32 190 28123
Deferred taxes recognised in reserves during the year 9904 (45 166)
Transactions with non controlling interest 25 15325

Balance as at 31 December (3208) 25771

NOTE 46- NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, non-controlling interest can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Income Income
Balance sheet statement Balance sheet statement

(in thousands of euro)

BES Group 4554752 ( 379 120) 5006 540 (5178
Preference shares issued by BES Finance 159 342 - 193 289 -
Other equity mstruments issued by BES Group 29 162 - 29295 -
Bespar 605 261 (545 605 806 57328
BES Vénétie 33590 1488 53503 4198
ES Satde - - - ( 948)
Pastor Vida - - - 1431
Other 25194 7562 33858 1240

5427 301 ( 370 613) 5922291 58 071

% Preference shares issued by BES Finance

Preference shares issued by BES Finance correspond to 430 thousand non-voting preference shares, which were
issued and listed in the Luxembourg stock exchange in July 2003. In March 2004, 150 thousand preference shares
were additionally issued forming a single series with the existing preference shares. The face value of these shares is
euro 1 000 and are fully booked under non-controlling interest. The total issue (euro 600 000 thousand) is wholly,
but not partially, redeemable at its face value at the option of the issuer, as at 2 July 2014, subject to prior approvals
of BES and the Bank of Portugal. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired 18 624 preference
shares, having recorded a gain, net of taxes and non controlling interest, in the amount of euro 1 271 thousand
recognised in Other reserves and retained earnings. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired
33 947 preference shares, having recorded a gain, net of taxes and non controlling interest, in the amount of euro 1
668 thousand recognised in Other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 December 2013, there were 33 947 outstanding preference shares in the amount of euro 33 947 thousand
(31 December 2012: 193 289 and euro 193 289 thousand, respectively).

These preference shares pay an annual non-cumulative preferred dividend, if and when declared by the Board of
Directors of BES Finance, corresponding to an annual rate of 5.58% p.a. on the nominal value. This dividend is paid
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on 2 July of each year, beginning 2 July 2004 and ending 2 July 2014. If BES Finance does not redeem these
preference shares on 2 July 2014, the applicable rate will be 3 months Euribor plus 2.65% p.a.. with payments on 2
January, 2 April, 2 July and 2 October of each year, if declared by the Board of Directors of BES Finance.

These shares are subordinated to any BES liability, and are “pari passu” in relation to any preference shares that may
come (o be issued by the Bank. BES unconditionally guarantees dividends if previously declared by the Board of
Directors of BES Finance and principal repayments related to either of the above mentioned issues.

Considering the features of these preference shares, they were considered, in accordance with IAS 32, as equity
instruments of BES Group being classified as non-controlling interest at ESFG level. On that basis. and in
accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.9, the dividends related with these preference shares are
recorded as a deduction to equity when declared.

Other equity instruments issued by BES Group

The BES Group issued in 2011, perpetual subordinated bonds with non-cumulative discretionary interest in the total
amount of euro 320 million.

These bonds pay a non-cumulative interest, only if and when declared by the Board of Directors, at an annual rate of
8.5%. This discretionary interest is payable semi-annually. These securities are redeemable at the option of BES
Group in full, but not in part, after 15 September 2013, subject to the prior approval of Bank of Portugal.

Considering the features of these perpetual subordinated bonds, they qualify as equity instruments of BES Group in
accordance with IAS 32 being classified as non-controlling interest at ESFG level. On that basis and in accordance
with the accounting policy described in Note 2.9, the distributions related with these bonds will be recorded as a
deduction to equity when declared.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group paid interest in the amount of euro 2 191 thousand (31
December 2012: euro 1 864 thousand) resulting in a reduction in equity amounting to euro 599 thousand net on tax
and non-controlling interest (31 December 2012: euro 519 thousand). As a resuit of an exchange offer for BES
shares, occurred in 2012, Other equity instruments issued by BES Group reduced by an amount of euro 286 717
thousand.
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The movement in non-controlling interest in the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 can be analysed as
follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Non-controlling interest as at I January 5922291 4973023
Changes in the scope of consolidation 34020 (27 606)
Transactions with non-controlling interest (53214) (72 954)
Increase in share capital of subsidiaries 1538 702 758 336
Issuance/(repurchase) of perpetual preference shares (29519) (15417)
Dividends paid on perpetual bonds (135391 (1345)
Actuarial gains/(losses) from defined benefit obligation, net of taxes (71 540) (125 307)
Dividends paid (4 490) (6502)
Dividends paid on preference shares (5048) (4 388)
Treasury shares of subsidiaries 7702 -
Capital increase costs - ( 8730)
Changes in fair value reserve (94 224) 448 182
Other comprehensive income from associates 1211 (9 194)
Exchange differences and other (66 384) (43 878)
(Loss)/ profit for the year (370 615) 58 071

Non-controlling interest as at 31 December 5427 301 5922291

NOTE 47-  OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 off-balance sheet items, excluding the derivative financial instruments, can be
analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Contingent liabilities

Guarantees and stand by letters of credit 8031816 8427956
Assets pledged as collateral 20425200 21632555
Open documentary credits 4234 660 3780554
Other 278 586 531850

32970262 34372915

Commitments
Revocable commitments 7 107 506 5462 823
[rrevocable commitments 1 800 185 3461701

8907691 8924524

Guarantees and standby letters of credit are banking operations that do not imply any out-flow by the Group.
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As at 31 December 2013, the balance assets pledged as collateral include:

s Securities pledged as collateral to the Bank of Portugal in the scope of a liquidity facility collateralised by
securities for an amount of euro 18.8 billion (31 December 2012: euro 19.6 billion);

s Securities pledged as collateral to the Portuguese Securities and Exchange Commission (CMVM) in the
scope of the Investors Indemnity System (Sistema de Indemnizagdo aos Investidores) for an amount of euro
17.2 million (31 December 2012: euro 20.8 million);

o Securities pledged as collateral to the Deposits Guarantee Fund (Fundo de Garantia de Depésitos) for an
amount of euro 82.6 million (31 December 2012: euro 82.6 million);

s Securities pledged as collateral to the European Investment Bank for an amount of euro 1 340.0 million
(31 December 2012: euro 1 822.5 million).

The above mentioned securities pledged as collateral can be executed in case the Group does not fulfil its
obligations under the terms of the contracts.

Documentary credits are irrevocable commitments, by the Group, in the name of its clients, to pay or order to pay a
certain amount to a supplier of goods or services, within a determined term, against the exhibition of the expedition
documentation of the goods or service provided. The condition of irrevocable consists of the fact that the terms
initially agreed can only be changed or cancelled with the agreement of all parties.

Revocable and irrevocable commitments represent contractual agreements to extend credit to Group’s customers
(eg. unused credit lines). These agreements are, generally, contracted for fixed periods of time or with other
expiration requisites, and usually require the payment of a commission. Substantially, all credit commitments
require that clients maintain certain conditions verified at the time when the credit was granted.

Despite the characteristics of these contingent liabilities and commitments, these operations require a previous
rigorous risk assessment of the client and its business. like any other commercial operation. When necessary. the
Group require that these operations are collateralised. As it is expected that the majority of these operations will
mature without any use of funds, these amounts do not represent necessarily future out-flows.

Additionally, the off-balance sheet items related to banking services provided are as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Securities and other ftems held for

safekeeping on behalf of customers 62223 560 63285779
Assets for collection on behalf of clients 242383 294 295
Securitised loans under management (servicing) 2486012 2712022
Discretionary portfolio management 7209 297 9649908
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In the scope of the activity regarding the management of customers funds and considering the risk profile of each
customer, the Group offers a variety of investment solutions which include the direct subscription of debt
instruments issued by several entities, namely entities included in ESFG consolidation scope and other related
parties from the non-financial sector of Espirito Santo Group. In this context, the Group makes available to
customers information on the risks associated with the subscription of such instruments as it is required by the
applicable regulations. These debt instruments which are held under custody are accounted as an off-batance sheet
item under Securities and other items for the safekeeping on behalf of clients.

Under this activity, Group customers subscribed debt instruments issued by Espirito Santo International, S.A.
(‘EST’) and its subsidiaries Espirito Santo Property. S.A., Espirito Santo Industrial, S.A. e Espirito Santo Irmdos,
S.A.. in the amount of euro 4 745 million. of which euro 3 239 million were held. as at 31 December 2013, by
private and retail customers and euro 1 486 million were held, on the same date, by institutional customers (see Note
41).

Additionally Group retail and private customers subscribed debt instruments issued by Rio Forte lnvestments, S.A.,
Espirito Santo Satde, S.G.P.S., S.A., ESPART - Espirito Santo Participagdes Financeiras, S.G.P.S., S.A., Quinta da

~

Foz and Euroamerican Finance, S.A., in the amount of euro 479 million, euro 38 million, euro 24 million, euro {3
million and euro 9 million, respectively. with reference to 31 December 2013,

NOTE 48 -  ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amount of the assets under management of the Group is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Securities investment funds 4117 166 3190 265
Real estate investment funds 1079813 1075678
Pension funds 1906 717 1783 359
Bancassurance 159 965 89 662
Portfolio management 1694103 2875 827
Others 2 388 878 1378 639

11346 642 12393 430

The amounts recognised in these accounts are measured at fair value determined at the balance sheet date.
In accordance with the legistation in force, the fund management companies and the depositary bank are jointly

liable before the participants of the funds for the non fulfilment of the obligations assumed under the terms of the
Law and the management regulations of the funds.
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S

OTE 49-  RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIO!

Following the definition of related party established by 1AS 24, related parties to ESFG include associates, pension
funds, Board members and entities controlled or significantly influenced by any of these individuals.

The entities considered to be related parties to ESFG, as defined by IAS 24, are as follows:

Company Company {cont)
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the total amount of the assets and liabilities of the Group with associates or
related companies, is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Assets Liabifities Guarantees Income Expenses Assets Liabilities Guarantees Income Expenses

{in thousands of euro}

963

13 39%

44

1712 - 22t
4 664 14 842 i5374 -
1841 - 9873 11127
25677 4063 402 24 269 2
1104 - 3884 -
3iz 201 4
R 131 B
2371 157 225
iz 2478 72
B8R 38 -
- 12 386 684 236
2 78 24 235 4802
6 4187 22 - 16
5 3 i1 2
3 3 K83 - 1233
- - 06 -
7154 S0 3 -
T - 338 H
26 - 26
- 7147 345 2
118 - - 411 - 73
144 B33 11§ 283 23 988 9728 7140 117574 31283 28 289 H
2314 781 192 528 116263 139 916 33138 27298587 148219 195 818 163 864 37939

Balances and transactions with the above referred entities relate mainly to loans and advances and deposits in the
scope of the banking activity of the Group.

The costs with salaries and other benefits attributed to ESFG key management personnel, as well as the transactions
performed with ESFG key management personnel are presented in Note 13.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the total amount of the assets of the Group with associates or related companies,
by residual term is as follows:

More than §
3- 6 months 12 months 1-5 years years Total
(in thousands of euro)
2013 1406 551 444 266 76 093 387871 2314781
2012 1430353 500 171 342 390 447 943 2 720 857

The interest rate applied to loans and advances to associates and related parties range from 2.64% 10 6.43% in 2013
and from 2.2% to 7.19% in 2012. The collateral the Group received on some loans and advances to related parties
consists mainly of unquoted securities.

In 2012 the Group acquired:

(i) to the Group pension funds, 49 779 and 37 115 thousand units of the Fungere Fund and Fungepi Fund, by
the amount of euro 158.1 million and euro 87.2 million. respectively:

(i) to ESPART. 30% of the company Greenwoods, 100% of Quinta D. Manuel [ and 100% of the company
Vérzea da Lagoa by the amount of euro 50.7 million;

(iii) to OPWAY, 100% of the company Quinta da Areia and several properties by the amount of euro 43.1
million euros; and

(iv) to Rio Forte Investments, SA. 64 206 units of the Fimes Oriente Fund by the amount of euro 103.3 million.

In November 2012 following the acquisition by Rio Forte Investments, S.A. (Rio Forte) of an additional 19.5%
stake in ES Satde, ESFG and Rio Forte signed a shareholders’ agreement under which Rio Forte assumes control
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over ES Salide governing bodies and Rio Forte acquired from ESFG a call option, currently exercisable up to May
2013, over 5.5% of ES Satde sharecapital plus 1 share, giving Rio Forte the current ability to exercise control over
the majority of the voting rights of ES Satde (See Notes 1, 33 and 55).

In 2013 the Group did not acquire any relevant shareholdings/ assets from related parties.

NOTE 50 -  SECURITISATION TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding securitisation transactions performed by the Group were as follows:

Designation Initial date Original amount Current amount Assetsecuritised

(in thousands of euro)

Lusitano Mortgages No.1 plc December 2002 1000000 329803 Mortgage loans (subsidised regime)
Lusitano Mortgages No.2 plc November 2003 1 000 000 329098 Mortgage loans (subsidised and general regime)
Lusitano Mortgages No.3 plc November 2004 1200000 480 967 Mortgage loans (general regime)
Lusitano Mortgages No 4 ple September 2003 1200000 356 130 Mortgage loans (general regime)
Lusitano Mortgages No.5 ple September 2006 1400000 777 355 Mortgage loans (general regime)
Lusitano SMENo.1 plc October 2006 862 607 176 657 Loans to small and medium entities
Lusitano Mortgages No.6 ple July 2007 1 100000 721919 Mortgage loans (general regime)
Lusitano Project Finance No.1, FTC December 2007 1079 100 18810 Project Finance Loans

Lusitano Mortgages No.7 ple September 2008 1900000 1719046 Mortgage loans (general regime)
Lusitano Leverage Finance No. 1 BV February 2010 516534 @ 52395 Leverage Finance Loans

Lusitano Finance No. 3 November 2011 657 981 289678 Consumer Loans

IM BES Empresas | November 201! 483 000 272068 Loans to small and medium entities

N

In March 2011, the credit portfolio associated to this securitisation was partially sold, with the rem ¢ (domestic credit) been to "Lusitano Project Finance No ! FTC

@) This securitisati
1S securitsatior
ES Veénétie

hudes the amount of euro 382 062 thousand of mortgage loans from BES and an amount of euro 134 472 thousand of mortgage loans from BESI and

As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group has applied the derecognition requirements of IAS 39 for the transactions
entered into after 1 January 2004. Therefore. the assets derecognised until that date, in accordance with the previous
accounting policies of the Group, were not restated in the balance sheet.

The assets sold in the securitisation transactions Lusitano Mortgages No.3, Lusitano Mortgages No. 4 and Lusitano
Mortgages No. 5, performed after 1 January 2004, were derecognised considering that the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

In accordance with SIC 12, the Group fully consolidates Lusitano SME No. 1 ple, Lusitano Mortgages No. 6, plc,
Lusitano Project Finance No. 1 FTC, and Lusitano Mortgages No. 7 ple, as it retains the majority of the risks and
rewards associated with the activity of these SPE. Therefore, the respective assets and liabilities are included in the
consolidated balance sheet of the Group. The other securitization vehicles are not included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as it has not retained the majority of the risks and rewards of ownership.

In 2011 there were two securitisation transactions: loans to households (Lusitano Finance No. 3) with loan
originated by BES and other of corporate loans (IM BES Empresas 1) with loans originated by BES Spanish branch.
During 2010 it was set-up two securitization operations of corporate loans (Lusitano Leverage Finance No. 1) which
includes loans from BES London Branch, BESI and ES Vénétie and other of corporate loans and commercial paper
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(Lusitano SME No. 2). and the latter been repaid in March 2012. These loans were not derecognised considering
that the group has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had also two synthetic securitisation operations underway. In these operations
the Group contracted a credit default swap (CDS). with the objective of eliminating the credit risk of a portfolio of
loans. The loans related to this portfolio continue to be recognized in the Group balance sheet in the loans and
advances to customers caption.

The main characteristics of these transactions, as at 31 December 2013, can be analysed as follows:

Curcent smouns | Mtevestbelé Initial Rarings Acrual Rarings
Desigation Notesissaed  lssned amount Toar et by Group Macurity dare
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NOTE 51- TRANSFER OF ASSETS

As part of the restructuring process of the Portuguese real estate sector, several initiatives have been launched in
order to create financial, operational and management conditions to revitalize the sector. Accordingly, the
Government, in close liaison with the business and the financial sector (the banks), including the BES Group,
encouraged the creation of companies and specialized funds that, through merger, consolidation and integrated
management, would obtain the required synergies to recover the sector. Pursuing the goals established, were created
companies (parent companies), where BES Group has minority interests (in partnership with other banks that also
have a minority interest), and which in turn now hold almost all of the capital of certain subsidiaries (subsidiaries of
those parent companies) in order to acquire certain real estate bank loans.

During 2013 and 2012, BES transferred financial assets (mainly corporate loans) to the subsidiaries of the parent
companies. These entities are responsible for managing the assets received as collateral, which after the transfer of
loans are received in exchange for the loans, and have the goal to implement a plan to increase its value. Almost all
of the financial assets transferred in these operations were derecognised from the balance sheet of the Group, since a
substantial portion of the risks and rewards associated with these, as well as the respective control, were transferred
to those third parties.

These acquiring entities (the subsidiaries of the parent companies) have a specific management structure, fully
autonomous from the banks, selected on the date of their incorporation and have the following main responsibilities:

* define the entity’s purpose;

e administer and manage on an exclusive and independent way the assets acquired, determine objectives and
investment policy and the manner to conduct the entity’s management and affairs.

The acquiring entities are predominantly financed through the issuance of senior equity instruments fully
underwritten by the parent company. The amount of capital represented by senior securities equals the fair value of
the underlying asset, determined through a negotiation process based on valuations made by both parties. These
securities are remunerated at an interest rate that reflects the risk of the company holding the assets. Additionally,
the funding can be supplemented through banks underwriting of junior capital instruments equal to the difference
between the book value of the loans transferred and the fair value based on the senior securities valuation. These
junior instruments, when signed by BES Group will be entitled to a contingent positive amount if the assets
transferred value, when sold, exceeds the amount of senior securities plus its remuneration. Normally, the amount of
the junior security is limited to a maximum of 25% of the total amount resulting from the senior and junior securities
issued.

Given that these junior securities reflect a different assessment of the assets transferred fair value, based on
valuation performed by independent bodies and a negotiation process between the parties, they are fully provided for
in the Group's balance sheet.

Therefore, following transfer of assets occurred in 2012 the Group subscribed:

® equity instruments, representing the parent companies’ share capital on which the cash flows that will enable
its recovery come from a wide range of assets transferred by the various banks. These securities are recorded
under financial assets available for sale and are measured at market value with valuation regularly reported
by those parent companies whose accounts are audited at the end of each year;

* junior instruments issued by the acquiring companies (the subsidiaries of the parent companies), which are
fully provided for thus reflecting the best impairment estimation of the financial assets transferred.

The instruments subscribed by BES Group clearly resulted in a minority position in the capital of the parent
companies and of its subsidiaries.
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In this context, having no control but being exposed to some risk and rewards of ownership in relation to the
transterred assets through the securities subscribed as referred to above, the Group, in accordance with 1AS 39.21,
conducted an analysis in order to compare the exposure to the variability of risks and rewards of the transferred
assets before and after the operation and concluded that it has not retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership. Additionally, and considering that also no control has been retained, it proceeded in accordance with [AS
39.20c (i) to the derecognition of the assets transferred and the recognition of the assets received in return, as shown
in the following table:

Amounts at transfo

assets transierred Securities subscribed

Transfer Resuit of the Shares Juni . . .
N . . Total Impaimment Net amount
amount transfer {senior securities) SECU
{in thous ands of euro)
2612
Fundo Recuperagio Turismo, FCR 282121 - 256 892 34 906 201 798 (34 906y 256 892
FLIT SICAV 252 866 1681 235318 23247 258 565 (232473 23531
Discovery Portugal Real Pstate Fund 9% 196 93208 {2 988) 96 733 - 96733 “ 96 733
Fundo Valils Construction Sector 66272 66272 - 812 21992 102 994 (21 992) RE 062
Fundo Recuperagho, FCR 145 364 149 883 4319 148 787 36182 184 969 (23 000y 161969
In 2613
Fundo Vallis Construction Sector 18552 18352 - 1606 2874 4480 (2 874) 1606
FLIT SICAV 80769 80135 {634) 85 360 - 85 360 - 83360
overy Portugal Real Fstate Fund < o 6422y 51958 - 31955 - 31955
: 51809 45387
Fundo Recup 11066 11066 - - - - - -
Fundo Reeupe 52983 32963 {20y 726 - 726 - 726
Fundo Reestruturagio Fmpresaral 67 836 67 836 - 99 403 G &0 - 99 403
1126034 1121976 (4 864) 1057 782 119201 1176 983 (106 019) 1070 964

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's total exposure in operations related to transfer of loans/assets amounted to
euro 1 135.6 billion (euro 984.7 million, net of impairment).

As showed in the table above, the junior securities underwritten specifically as part of the transfer of assets are fully
provided for. Although the junior securities are fully provided for, the Group also maintains an indirect exposure to
the assets transferred through its minority interest in the parent companies capital and therefore, in all pool of assets
that resulted from the various assets transfers performed by the banks (shareholders of the parent companies).

There was however an operation with the company FLITPTREL VIII in which, as the acquiring company
substantially holds assets transferred by BES Group and considering the holding of junior securities, the variability
test resulted in a substantial exposure to all risks and rewards. In this circumstance, the operation, amounting to euro
60 million. remained recognized in the Group’s balance sheet under Loans and advances to customers.
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NOTE 52-  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities, for the Group, is analysed as follows:

Fair Vatue

Valuation models  Valuation models

Amortised Cost Quoted Market basedon based on nop- Book Vatue Fair Value
Prices abyervable observable
market market
information information
{in thousands of euro}

Balance as at 31 December 2013
Cash and deposits at central banks 1828674 - - 1828674 1828674
Deposits with banks 1148934 - - - 1148934 1148934
Financial assets held for trading - 141208 2688 2488 463 2488 463

Securities
Bonds issued by govermment and public entities - - - 933951
Bonds issued by other efities - 03279
Shares - - 30963
Othrer variable income securities - - s 1761
valves

Exchange rate contracis - - 699906 659 950 69990
Interest rate coniracts - - 1231045 - 231043 1231045
Credit defandt conivacis - - 34 840 - 34 840 34 840
- - 384656 - 38 6% 38 696
ough proftt orloss - 2349 139 742242 472737 3364118 3565118
rnment and public entities - P2 - P 234847 234847

efities

Shares and other vaviable income securities

492999
620293

1229 467
£099 804

1229467
1099 864

Available-for-sale fin assels 1344774 8925778 8929778
Bonds issued by government and public entities . . 4099 797 4099797
Bonds ed by wther etities - 12717 2238712 2238712
Shares 6347 341 883 IRY 6L 1179712 PIT9 T2
Crher variahle income securities - 77943 5 i 7 1411357

Loans and advances to banks 4827 750 - - - 4827 790

Loans and advances to

-maturity fnvest

ermment and public entities
ather elities

t purposes

Interest rate contracts

Credit default caniracts
Cthers

Financial assets

48 683 844
1672068
437778
£234 290

49275 667
1672068
437778

1234290

4827796

58167 857

8365617

74093 885

71332998

$ 772244

9772 244

$ 772244

- 7262 1329506 - 1336 768 1336 768
ange rate contracis - - -
Interest rate contracts - B -
Credit default conracts - - -
Others - - -
Other f id for trading - 7262 ~
Deposits 4809 383 - -
Due to custom 28 647 633 - -
9368 89% - -
Interest rate contracts - - - 79667 667
Crediv defawly contracts - - 9459 1949
Orhers - - - 38393 38393
Investment contracts 2864 498 - ! - 4473921
Subordinated debt 1ap9is - - 14403 188 3382
Financial liabilities 36 803 878 7262 16 046 503 - 71839340 74195 146
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Balance as at 31 December 2012
Cash and deposits at central banks
Deposis with banks
Financial assets held for tra
Securities
Bonds issued by governmeni and public entities

Bonds issited by other etities
Shares

Other variable income securities
Derivatives

Exchange raie contracts

Interest vate contracts

Credit default contracts

Grhers

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds issued by government and public entities
Bonds
Shares and other variable income securities

wed by other etities

Available-for-sale financial assets

wed by government and public entities
ssued by other etities

sariable income securities
Loaas and advances to banks

Loans and adva
Held-to-maturity

to customers

csiments

Bonds issucd by government and public entities
Bonds issued by other atities

Derivati nagenent purposes
Exchange rate coniracts
Interest rate contracis
Credit default contracts
Others

Financial assets

1 rale cortracts

it default conivacts

Derivatives for ois.

purposes

Exchange ra
Tt
Credit defauls contracts
Others

Investment con

Subordinated debt

S FQIE CORFPACES

Financial liahilities

Fair Value

Amortised Cost Quoted Market

Prices

Valuation medels  Valuation models

based on based on non-
observable observable

market market
information information

Book Value

Fair Value

B 1 490 879

{in thousands of euro}

2490966 -

1444831
1126
3987 845

- 1349507 46076 - 1393 583
. 166371 - 265 057
. 11776 . 52281
. - . 2181
. . 76786 . 76 786 76 786
- - 1997925 . 1997923 1997923
. 44913 - #e13 44913
. - 147 - 147119 147119
. | 3 997673 281 507 2603 463 2603 463
. 6859 . . 516859 516859
- 240 9%4 668 063 47321 936370 936 370
. 366 440 329608 234 186 1130234 1130234
8605 @ 5367 885 4705052 959 693 :
- ; 1293 - 4497997
. 998 414 3261 19 297 51
8605 788 266 74 593 508 688 4
. 376 639 128 766 431 708 3
- . . 4348247
. 512362 - 3 47 670 668
. . . 1119047 1669 283
. . . 404393
. B . 714 654
. . 516520 - 516520
. - 5356 - $356
. . 460692 - 360 692 460 692
- . 10216 . 10216 10216
. - 40236 . 40256 40236
58 428 099 8183647 9222573 1 241 200 77074919 74002 885
E . 10941 328
. 9 2123429 2124225
76 .
3453703 . 612277
26 828 492 . 796 982
13293 288 .
TG 3%G -
1176219 -
58422 417 796 75345139

The Group determines the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the following hierarchy:
Quoted market prices (level 1) — this category includes financial assets with available quoted market prices in

official markets and with dealer prices quotations provided by entities that usually provide transaction prices for
these assets/labilities traded in active markets.
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Valuation models based on observable market information (level 2) — consists on the use of internal valuation
techniques, namely discounted cash flow models and option pricing models which imply the use of estimates and
require judgments that vary in accordance with the complexity of the financial instrument. Notwithstanding, the
Group uses observable market data such as interest rate curves, credit spreads, volatility and market indexes.
Includes also instruments with dealer price quotations but which are not traded in active markets.

Valuation models based on non-observable market information (level 3) — consists on the use of internal
valuation techniques, mainly discounted cash flow models, or quotations provided by third parties but which imply
the use of non-observable market information.

The movements of the financial assets valued based on non-observable market information, during 2013 and 2012,
can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013
Financial assets held for Other financial assets at fair Available-for-sale
trading value through profit or loss financial assets Total

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January - 281 507 959 693 1241200
Acquisitions 25 660 36 008 360250 421918
Disposals - {54 797) (356 082) {110 879)
Transfer (22 772) 205748 117 021 299 997
Changes in value {200) 4271 (36 108} (32037)

Balance as at 31 December 2 688 472737 1344774 1820 199

31.12.2012
Fmancial assets held for Other financial assets at fair Available-for-sale
trading value through profit or loss financial assets Total

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at | January - 14 332 253 507 267 839
Acquisitions - 275819 7133523 989 342
Disposals - (2722) (17 604) (20 3263
Transfer - - 6 593 6593
Changes in value - (59223 3674 {2248)

Balance as at 31 December - 281 507 959 693 1241200

The main assumptions and inputs used in the valuation models are presented as follows:
Interest rates curves

The short term rates presented reflect benchmark interest rates for the money market, being that for the long term the
presented values represent the swap interest rate for the respective years:
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31.12.2013 31.12.2012

EUR USh GBP EUR USh GBP
(%)
Overnight 0.1100 0.1100 0.4100 0.0700 0.1000 0.4700
I month 0.1941 0.1600 0.4100 0.1759 0.2300 0.4600
3 months 0.2870 0.3300 0.5200 0.1870 0.4150 0.4800
6 months 0.3890 0.4100 0.7350 0.3200 0.4400 0.6200
9 months 0.3981 0.4500 0.8100 0.3178 0.5900 0.7900
I year 0.4130 0.3050 0.6412 0.3200 0.3260 0.5411
3 years 0.7715 0.8560 1.4342 0.4700 0.4765 0.7783
5 years 1.2580 1.7490 2.1337 0.7650 0.8260 1.0169
7 years 1.6820 24270 2.5770 1.1250 1.2435 1.3563
10 years 2.1550 3.0280 2.9876 1.5700 1.7500 1.8560
15 years 2.5809 3.5230 33160 20184 2.2800 24135
20 years 27139 3.7200 34170 2.1715 2.5020 2.7230
25 years 2.7399 3.8080 3.4380 2.2203 26240 2.8800
30 years 27309 3.8520 3.4360 22413 2.6880 29535

Credit spreads

The credit spreads used by the Group on the valuation of the credit derivatives are disclosed on a daily basis by
Markit representing observations constituted for around 85 renowned international financial entities. The evolution
of the main indexes, understood as being representative of the credit spreads behaviour in the market throughout the
vear, is presented as follows:

Index Series 1 year 3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

(basis points)

Year 2013

CDX USD Main 21 7.67 29.88 62.44 88.95 107.99
iTraxx Eur Main 20 - 35.17 70.15 96.97 118.17
iTraxx Eur Senior Financial 20 - - 87.06 - 135.18
Year 2012

CDX USD Main 19 33.02 58.73 95.39 118.68 136.14
iTraxx Eur Main i8 - 76.38 117.43 141.58 154.60
iTraxx Eur Senior Financial 18 - - 142.44 - 174.98

Interest rates volatility

The values presented below, refer to the implied volatilities (at the money) used for the valuation of the interest rate
options:
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31.12.2013 31.12.2012
ELR USD GBP EUR USb GBP
()

I year 112,77 75.90 49.18 197.18 66.60 54.10
3 years 65.30 72.76 55.78 84.70 72.90 64.90
S years 5330 50.62 45.99 67.50 63.22 60.80
7 years 45.20 38.21 38.55 52.90 5103 49.60
10 years 36.80 31.55 31.80 39.70 4233 37.20
IS years 30.68 3558 26.58 31.43 3580 27.80

Exchange rates and volatility

Presented below are the exchange rates (European Central bank) at the balance sheet date and the implied volatilities
(at the money) for the main currencies used on the derivatives valuation:

Volatility (%)
Exchange
Rates 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 1 month 3 months 6 months 9 months 12 months
EUR/USD 1.3791 1.3194 7.65 775 7.88 8.15 832
EUR/GBP 0.8337 0.8161 6.55 6.73 7.00 7.13 7.33
EUR/CHF 1.2276 1.2072 325 3.83 423 458 4.89
EUR/NOK 8.3630 7.3483 8.05 8.03 7.95 8.00 798
EUR/PLN 41543 4.0740 5.00 5.84 6.56 7.08 753
EUR/RUB 453246 40.3295 737 7.89 8.43 8.90 941
USD/BRLY 2.3621 2.0491 12.95 13.38 13.60 13.80 14.00
USD/TRY ” 2.1467 1.7850 14.50 13.80 13.60 13.60 13.60

@ Calculation based in EUR/USD and EUR/BRL exchange rates
®iCalculation based in EUR/USD and EUR/TRY exchange rates
Concerning the exchange rates, the Group uses in the valuation models the spot rate observed in the market at the

time of the valuation.
Equity indexes

In the table below, is presented the evolution of the main market equity indexes and the respective volatilities used
for the valuation of equity derivatives:

Quote Historical volatility Implied
31.12.2013 31.12.2012 % change 1 month 3 months volatility
DJ Euro Stoxx 50 3109 2636 17.95 14.90 1372 13.44
PSI 20 6559 5655 1598 12.91 13.65 -
IBEX 35 9917 8168 2142 1539 1534 -
FTSE 100 6749 5898 1443 10.11 9.83 10.69
DAX 9352 7612 25.48 1323 12.04 13.56
S&P 500 1 848 1426 29.60 874 1031 1121
BOVESPA 51507 60952 (15.50) 1934 2022 -
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The valuation adjustments which the Group has considered in the valuations of its derivatives and borrowings,
were (i) credit value adjustments (CVA), reflecting the counterparties credit risk embedded in the fair value of
derivatives, (ii) debit value adjustments (DVA), reflecting the Group’s own credit risk embedded in the fair value
of derivatives and own credit adjustments (OCA), reflecting the Group’s own credit risk embedded in the fair value
of non-quoted borrowings.

CVA per counterparty is calculated on the exposure per net counterparty exposure, to which is applied the
probability of default (PD) of the counterparty and the loss given default.

OCA is calculated using market observable CDS spreads, namely BES CDS spreads.

The methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the balance sheet are analysed as follows:

Fair Value

Valuation models  Valuation models
based on based on non-

Amortised Cost oted Market Fair value
Qu ; ,‘ e observable observable
riees market market
information information
Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3
(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 31 December 2013
Cash and deposits at central banks 1828674 1828674 - - 1828674
1148934 1148934 - - 1148934
Available-for-sale financial assets shares 6547 - - 6547 6347
Loans and advances to banks 4827790 - 4827 790 - 4827790
Loans and adv stomers 48 683 844 - 45 660 805 - 45 960 803
Held-to-maturity investmer 1672068 540 871 991 879 1468 1634218
Bonds issued by government and public entities 437778 134 500 6 - 437364
Bonds issued by ather etities 1234290 205971 1468 196 854
Financial assets 58 167 857 3618479 8015 55406 968
Deposits from central banks 9772244 G 772244 - 9772244
Deposits § 4 8G9 383 - - 4747 040
Due to custo 28 647 635 - - 28 647 635
Debt securities issued 9368 898 6289708 234 132 11818522
Investment contracts 2804498 - - 1712631
Subordinared debt 1402915 1206946 - 1443309
Financial liabilities 36 808575 17262 898 40 644 351 234132 58 141 381

Cash and deposits at central banks, Deposits with banks and Loans and advances to banks

Considering the short term nature of these financial instruments, carrying value is a reasonable estimate of its fair
value.

Loans and advances to customers

The fair value of loans and advances to customers is estimated based on the discount of the expected future cash
flows of capital and interest, assuming that the installments are paid on the dates that have been contractually
defined. The expected future cash flows of loans with similar credit risk characteristics are estimated collectively.
The discount rates used by the Group are current interest rates used in loans with similar characteristics.
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Held-to-maturity investments

The fair values of these financial instruments are based on quoted market prices, when available. For unquoted
securities the fair value is estimated by discounting the expected future cash-flows.

Deposits from central banks and Deposits from banks

Considering the short term nature of these financial instruments, carrying value is a reasonable estimate of its fair
value.

Due to customers

The fair value of these financial instruments is estimated based on the discount of the expected future cash flows of
capital and interest, assuming that the instalments are paid on the dates that have been contractually defined. The
discount rates used by the Group are the current interest rates used in instruments with similar characteristics.
Considering that the applicable interest rates to these instruments are floating interest rates and that the period to
maturity is substantially less than one year, the difference between fair vaiue and book value is not significant.

Debt securities issued and Subordinated debt

The fair value of these instruments is based on market prices, when available. When not available, the Group
estimates its fair value by discounting the expected future cash-flows.

NOTE 53- RISK MANAGEMENT

A qualitative outlook of the risk management at the Group is presented below:

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential financial loss arising from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its
contractual obligation. Credit risk is essentially present in traditional banking products — loans, guarantees granted
and contingent liabilities — and in trading products — swaps, forwards and options (counterparty risk). Regarding
credit default swaps, the net exposure between selling and buying positions in relation to each reference entity. is
also considered as credit risk to the Group. The credit default swaps are accounted for at fair value in accordance
with the accounting policy described in Note 2.4.

Credit portfolio management is an ongoing process that requires the interaction between the various teams
responsible for the risk management during the consecutive stages of the credit process. This approach is
complemented by the continuous introduction of improvements in the methodologies, in the risk assessment and
control tools, as well as in procedures and decision processes.

The risk profile of ESFG Group's credit portfolios is analysed on a regular basis by the risk committees at the
subsidiary level. In these meetings the Committees monitor and analyses the risk profile of the Group entities under
four major perspectives: evolution of credit exposures, monitoring of credit losses, capital allocation and
consumption and control of risk adjusted return.
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ESFG Group credit risk exposure is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Deposits with banks 3577359 3433052
Financial assets held for trading 2 455 801 3927384
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2464314 1473229
Available-for-sale financial assets 6338 509 8723948
Loans and advances (o customers 49 270 667 50692 878
Held-to-maturity investments 1672068 1119047
Derivatives for tisk management purposes 363 391 516520
Other assets 729 168 605 374
Guarantees granted and stand by letters of credit 8031 816 84279356
Open documentary credits 4 234 660 3780554
Irrevocable commitments 1800185 3461 701
Credit risk linked to the reference entities of credit derivatives 176 305 489 884

81114243 86 651 527

The analysis of the risk exposure by sector of activity, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, can be analysed as follows:

3L12.2013

impaiment losses

zge and fohacco

971 2% 7433 {3287

TOTAL 52716742 3446075 2488 465 3364118 9247823 {318 045 1685 489 {13420 #431816
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3122612

3 o customers ity imvest

ment osses

16

HI6 8%

1526 ) .
TOTAL 53427 504 (2731626} 3981 845 2603 463 11295376 (254141 1158158 (39111
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of the loan portfolio by rating is as follows:

Rating/Scoring models Internal scale 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
[¢3) Credit amount (%) Credit amount (%)
(in million of euro) (in million of euro)
faaa;a-] 8 0.02% 8 0.01%
bbb+ -bbb-] 2119 4.02% 2313 4.33%
Large companies fbb+;bb-] 4349 8.63% 4997 935%
[b+;b-] 7074 13.42% 8080 15.12%
ceet 1981 3.76% 1277 2.39%
89 488 0.93% 535 1.00%
10-11 403 0.76% 532 1.00%
12-13 353 1.05% 632 1.18%
14-15 467 0.89% 438 0.82%
Medium enterprises 16-17 502 0.95% 567 1.06%
18-19 380 0.72% 342 0.64%
20-21 468 0.89% 347 0.65%
22-23 231 0.44% 294 0.55%
24-23 1527 2.90% 1659 3.11%
A 62 0.12% 7 0.13%
B 334 0.63% 305 0.57%
C 556 1.05% 620 1.16%
Small enterprises
D 268 0.51% 31 0.58%
E 137 0.26% 251 047%
F 356 1.03% 557 1.04%
01 1220 231% 1196 2.24%
02 4398 8.34% 4341 8.12%
03 1427 2.71% 1492 2.7%%
04 680 1.29% 710 133%
Mortgage loans
03 506 0.96% 303 0.94%
06 496 0.94% 488 091%
07 617 1.17% 679 1.27%
08 712 1.35% 953 1.78%
01 74 0.14% 86 0.16%
a2 57 0.11% 66 0.12%
03 118 0.22% 130 0.24%
04 238 0.45% 312 0.58%
a3 118 0.22% 136 0.25%
Private ndividuals
06 176 0.32% 198 0.37%
07 149 0.28% 144 0.27%
08 132 0.25% 109 0.20%
09 183 0.35% 260 049%
10 2 - 4 0.01%
No intemal rating / scoring loans 18757 35.59% 17483 32.77%
TOTAL ESFG 52717 160.00% 53428 100.00%

" Internal scale established by the Group. The lower the number / letter the better is the rating
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Market Risk
Market risk is the possible loss resulting from an adverse change in the value of a financial instrument due to
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates or share prices, commodities prices, volatility and credit spread.

The market risk management is integrated with the balance sheet management through the Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO) at the Group entities level. These committees are responsible for defining policies for the
structuring and composition of the balance sheet, and for the control of exposures to interest rate, foreign exchange
and liquidity risk.

The main measure of market risk is the assessment of potential losses under adverse market conditions, for which
the Value at Risk (VaR) valuation criteria is used. Group's VaR model uses the Monte Carlo simulation, based on a
confidence level of 99% and an investment period of 10 days. Volatilities and correlations are historical, based on an
observation period of one year. As a complement to VaR, stress testing has been developed, allowing to evaluate the
impact of potential losses higher than the ones considered by VaR.

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

December Annual average Maximum Minimum December Annual average Maximum Minimum

{in million of euro)

11166 G192 16957 7371 33% 1272 13723 3399

5532 7i08 9342 3566 8793 18426 28532 8793
Shares &(Ommdw il 186 12640 21441 10538 15026 14439 127 15026
Volatility 3055 5817 4089 2857 7222 7173 712
redit Spread 16775 23944 33893 16941 13887 40212 71556 13887
Diversification effect (10901 {11023) (14773} (8725) (16105} (17030} {20347) {16 103)
36 813 47678 64 949 34548 38112 74 541 111 764 38112

Group has a VaR of euro 36 813 million (31 December 2012: euro 38 112 million), for its trading positions.

Interest rate risk

Following the recommendations of Basel Il (Pilar 2) and Instructions n.19/2005. of the Bank of Portugal, ESFG
Group calculates its exposure to interest rate risk based on the methodology of the Bank of International Settlement
(BIS). which requires the classification of non-trading balances and off-balance positions by repricing intervals.

3n122912

S 12 - Move thas 5
1w years
wenths vears

Elegitle Non Tpted 3106 fro12 - Morethan$  Elegile .
€ " Lo 5 years Non sensitive
ERSLRELS sensitive wonthy matths wondhs VRErS amounts

{in thousands of eurn)

T 883 548 2334313 4395701 11473338 1898 427 §882 234 4018 158

Tl 4720915 GE0ISE YSTIT 16234378 5285620 A27BTPIL 4460378 3994672 12366608 4088862

i2 482 649 761138

2 (4783124 (RS20 BID 18 682 1686 842 (1833 210y T3 148 {56818y (39242374 {7364

Seructural GAT
Accumalated GAP

{2483 616) 1086547
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The sensitivity of ESEG Group to interest rate risk, measured in accordance with Instruction no. 19/2005 of the
Bank of Portugal, which requires the calculation of the impact of a parallel shift of 200 basis points in the interest
rate curve, can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in million of euro)

Accumulated impact in equity:
Increase of 200 basis points (96) (65)
Decrease of 200 basis points 96 65

In addition. the model used to monitor the sensitivity of BES Group to interest rate risk is based on the duration
model, and consider parallel and non parallel scenarios.

31.12.2013 31122012
al aratl 1}
. Parallel Paraltel Increase of 80 Decrease of 50 . Paratiel Paraliel Increase of 50 Decrease of 50
increase of 100 decrease of bpafter { year  bpafter 1 year increase of 100 decrease of bpafter year  bpafter 1 year
bp 100bp ’ ¥ bp 100bp ’ lter ®3
(51 miilion of curos)
At 31 December (22} 22 [ ! { 85) 85 { 34) 34
Average for the year { 8 80 {24y 24 22) {1 1
Maximum for the year ( 110) 110 (38) 38 ( 125) 60 ( 60)
Minimum for the year ()] 71 {21 21 13 22 (22

The following table presents the average balances, interest and interest rates in relation to the Group’s major assets
and liabilities categories, for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

31122013 31122012
Average balance interest of the Average interest Average balance Interest of the Average interest
of the year year rate of the year year rate

(in thousands of euro)

Monetary assets 9833442 269 980 275% 8946 324 196774 220%
Loans and advances o customers 103634293 2445378 2.36% 104771 572 2683 469 2.56%
Securities 28725539 TG4 748 245% 20042776 866 614 2.98%
Financial assets 142193274 3420106 2.41% 142 763 872 3746 857 2.62%
Monetary habiitties 36970 140 342599 111% 35 0 422556 1%
Due to costumers 74 431 667 1020792 137% 69007319 1 (39585 151%
Other fmancial labilities 29510815 954 220 327% 34951702 1019485 292%
Other 3092195 - - 1281892 - -
Financial liabilities 138 004 817 2327611 1.69% 140 745 343 2 481 636 1.76%
Net interest income 1092 495 0.72% 1265221 0.86%
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Foreign Exchange risk
In relation to foreign exchange risk, the breakdown of assets and liabilities, by currency, as at 31 December 2013
and 2012, is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
. Other . Other .
S pot Forward Net exposure Spot Forward Netexposure
elements elements

{in thousands of euro)

USD  United States Dollars 384 142 { 467 092} 69 034 (13 896) { 738 046} 742 785 59 049 83 788
GBP  Great Britain Pounds 364 707 (491 941) 833 1362¢% 473 884 {472 979 { 974y { 6%)
BRL  Braziian real 149 020 (148 191y (218) 61l i87 801 { 183 686} {4738) { 623)
DKK Danish krone 3191 {3278) - { 87) 21947 {21 379) - 368
JPY  lapanese vene (13 404) 18623 {16 883) (11 664) 27819 4506 (40 166) (5841)
CHF  Swiss franc {73052 {20873y 97228 &1 444 (1357) {10 475) 69612
SEK  Swedish krona (13232 {29 74403 {77783 { 53 { 428)
NOK Norwegian krone {43 087) - 69 {49539y 49 807 69 337
CAD Canadian Dollar {1 048) 11728 - 10680 22 866 {23290y (7227 {7631)
ZAR Rand (14340) 14 287 - { 53) {5589) 4475 497 {597)
AUD Ausiralian Doliar {2022y 2760 - 738 {83510y 0124 i7 1631
AQA Kwanza { 156 583} - - { 156 383) {53208) - - (532083
CZK  Czech koruna 103 - - 1S 5 - 3
MXN Peso Mexican 42 900 {43 878) - ( 978) 63 789 {73772 9338 {2 645)
Other (63833} 35932 26 084 {1817y (26331 121789 26297 121733

949 568 {1 069 642} 58019 {62 055) (14 265%) 149 045 71638 206 418

Note:asset /(i

Exposure to peripheral Eurozone countries public debt

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the exposure to public debt from peripheral Eurozone countries which are
monitored by the Group is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013
Loans and Financial assets Derivative Available-for- Held-to-maturity
advances to held for trading ) i sale financial im'estv;letms i Total
customers and at fair value nstruments assets Y
(in thousands of euro)
Portugal 913 897 1310228 18 632 2 190 606 145167 4578 550
Spain 92 786 60312 ( 47 525101 - 678 152
Greece - 725 - 29451 - 30176
Ireland - - - - 2724 2724
Italy - 10402 - 160 409 - 170 811
1006 683 1381667 18 605 2905567 147 891 5460 413

(1) Net amounts: receivable/{pay able}
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31.12.2012
Loans and Financial assets . ) Available-for- .
N ) Derivative . Held-to-maturity
advances to held for trading ) 0 sale financial vestments Total
customers at fair value mstruments assets vestments
(in thousands ofeuro)

Portugal 935771 593 850 31143 251959 220041 4 300 401
Spain 11121 568 ( 76) 608278 - 719 891
(Greece - 3439 - - - 3439
Ireland - - - - 27483 27483
ltaly - 7926 - 21399 - 29 325
1046 892 605 783 31067 3149273 247 524 5080539

(1) Net amounts: receivable/(pay able)

All the exposures presented above, except loans and advances to customers, are recorded in the Group’s balance
sheet at fair value, which is based on market quotations or, in relation to derivatives, based on valuation techniques
with observable market data. Loans and advances to customers are recorded at amortized cost net of impairment
losses.
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A detailed exposure regarding securities recorded in available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets held for
trading and held-to-maturity investments can be analysed as follows:

Available-for-sale financial assets

Portugal
Maturity

Maturity

Spain
Maturity

Maturity
Greece

Maturity
Italy

Maturity

Maturity

Financial assets held for trading

Portugal
Spain

up to | year

exceeding 1 year

up to 1 year

exceeding | year

exceeding [ year

up to I year

exceeding | year

(in thousands ofeuro)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Portugal
Spain
Greece
Italy

Held-to-maturity investments

Portugal

Ireland

31.12.2013
Nominal Market Accrued . Fair value
. Book value Impairment
Amount value interest reserve

2294 141 2134526 56 080 2190606 - (2416)
252 551 251 119 56 251 175 - 225
2041590 1 883 407 56 024 1939 431 - (2641
498 655 515 385 9716 525101 - ( 676)
250 500 249 711 2 249 713 - 171
248 155 265 674 9714 275 388 - ( 847)
53003 28 552 899 29 451 - 938
53003 28 552 899 29 451 - 938
160 000 159 991 418 160 409 - 709
150 000 149 490 211 149 701 - 332

10 000 10 501 207 10 708 - 377
3005799 2838454 67113 2905567 - (1445)
100 127 94 591 1959 96 550 - -
45114 30674 2338 53012 - -
145241 145265 4297 149 562 - -
1244 006 1207 129 6549 1213678 - -
7290 7291 9 7300 - -
1219 705 20 725 - -

10 400 10 402 - 10 402 - -
1262915 1225527 6578 1232105 - -
157 440 136 731 2 131 145 167 - -
3000 3245 97 2724 - -

160 440 159976 2228 147 891 - -
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(in thousands of euro)

31.12.2012
Nominal Market Acerued . Fair value
. Book value Impairment
Amount value interest reserve
Available-for-sale financial assets
Portugal 2720736 2471421 48175 2519596 - 191 382
Maturity up to | year 195 431 194 133 249 194 382 - 485
Maturity exceeding 1 year 2525305 2277288 47 926 2325214 - 190 897
Spain 618792 600 096 8182 608278 - 2208
Maturity up to 1 year 389350 383 681 325 384 006 - 796
Maturity exceeding 1 year 229442 216415 7857 224272 - 1412
Greece 53003 28 552 899 29 451 - 938
Maturity exceeding 1 year 53 003 28 552 899 29 451 - 938
Italy 206 100 20975 424 21399 - 478
Maturity exceeding 1 year 20 100 20975 424 21399 - 478
3412631 3121044 57680 3178724 - 195 006
Financial assets held for trading
Portugal 158 946 141 676 3807 145 483 - -
Spain 304 302 - 302 - -
ltaly 1656 1667 34 1701 - -
160 906 143 645 3 841 147 486 - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Portugal 524 625 440 395 7972 448 367 - -
Spain 260 259 7 266 - -
Greece 129 635 3439 - 3439 - -
[taly 5969 6224 1 6225 - -
660 509 450 317 7980 458297 - -
Held-to-maturity inves tments
Portugal 239640 216703 3338 220041 - -
freland 27 000 26 542 941 27483 - -
266 640 243245 4279 247524 - -
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Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk derives from the potential inability to fund assets while satisfying the maturity dates of commitments
and from potential difficulties in liquidating portfolio positions without incurring excessive losses.

Liquidity risk can be divided into two types:

»  Asset liquidity (market liquidity risk) -— The inability to sell a particular asset due to lack of liquidity in the
market, which results in increasing the bid / offer spread or applying a haircut to market value;

«  Funding (funding liquidity risk) — The inability to, within the desired timeframe and currency, fund assets
in the market and / or refinance debt that comes due. This inability can be reflected by a significant increase
of financing cost or of collateral requirements in order to obtain funds. Difficulties of (re) financing can
lead to asset sales, even incurring in significant losses. The risk of (re) financing should be minimized
through adequate diversification of funding sources and maturities.

During 2013, the market sentiment continued to improve, with the reduction in the aversion risk levels and in the
sovereign debt yields of the peripheral countries supported in expansionist policies from central banks, although
there have been some political instability events during the year. In Portugal, the economic indicators have
improved, with the beginning of an economic recovery cycle. In December the Republic accessed the markets for a
switch operation of Treasury Bills and in January with a new five years issue of euro 3 250 million.

During the vear, a significant number of banks have reimbursed the LTRO (Long Term Refinacing Operation)
granted in December 2011, in the amount of approximately euro 446 000 million. The Group has repaid in advance
euro 1 000 million under this facility.

In order to take advantage of the favourable conditions, the Group accessed the international capital markets in the
beginning of the year with a senior debt issuance, not guaranteed, with a 5 years maturity, in the amount of euro 500
million, anticipating part of the reimbursements occurring during the year (euro 1.6 billion). In November the Group
issued subordinated debt in the amount of euro 750 million. These issues. combined with a good performance in the
client’s deposits and the reduction of the loan’s portfolio, allowed the Group to face the reimbursements of 2013,
rebuy debt and reduce the ECB financing. Taking advantage of the improvement in the economic sentiment. in
January 2014, the Group issued a 3 years debt in the amount of euro 750 million, with a 4% coupon, which
corresponds to a 285 b.p. spread over the 5 years mid-swap rate. This level of placement was equal to the 5 years
issue conducted in 2009.

At year end, assets eligible as collateral for rediscount operations were euro 20.9 billion, of which euro 18.6 billion
were eligible at the European Central Bank.

In order to evaluate the global exposition to liquidity risk. reports have been prepared which permit not only the
identification of negative mismatches, but also lead to the coverage of these situations.
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The following tables present details of the mismatch in the residual terms for each of the main categories of assets

and liabilities:

ASSETS

Cash and deposits with banks

Loans and advances to banks and central banks
Loans and advances 1o customers

Securities*

Other assets, net

Qff-balance sheet items (Cormmitments and Derivatives)
Total

LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks. central banks and other foans

Gther short-

Off*balance sheet tems {Co ents and Derivatives)

Total

GAP (Assets - Liabilities}
Accumulated GAP

Buffer > 12 months

* This caption in

ASSETS

ts and Derivatives)

ibanks and otherfoans

Debt secu
Other sho

Off-balance ts and Derwatives)

Total

GAP {(Assets - Liabilities)
Accumulated GAP

Buffer > 12 months

ndes securities held by the Group which can be rediscounted with the ECB for

by the Group which can be rediscoun

31.12.2013
L. - Fromé6
Eligible N From 7 days From1lto3 From3te6 More than 1
Upto 7 days ’ months to 1
amounts to 1 month months months year
year
{In million of earo}
378 378 - - - -
7241 6647 2069 104 162 47 43
4619 621 2075 1 841 i 684 2198 36200
11453 231 382 1924 {110 1930 13877
1882 705 68 4 123 982
2361 78 226 823 383 336 320
8660 2 886 4760 3343 4834 53422
14921 687 Gi4 103522
39062 576 934 33663
14048 70 3 608 9776
1390 1310 3 2 i 38
10363 ti6 306 486 352 7 946
5698 1642 4248 3231 3019 61947
2962 1244 512 112 1815
21962 4206 4718 4830 6 645
2127
Hguidity purposes
31.12.2012
L - , From6
Eligible R From 7 days From1to3 From3to6 More than 1
Upto 7 days ; months to 1
amousts to 1 month months months year
year
{In million of euro)
420 - . .
6381 204 81
46776 1847 2742
28m7 794 1259
85 - %
6374 39 435 4 886
9 529 3108 4 660 3301 46358 58 490
337 7i7 479 778 11373
960 2244 747 171 30633
561 2628 1469 488 12 666
12 4 - 2
201 417 624 326 8101
5074 2139 2411 2923 1937 63 308
4 4338 849 {784 378 2678
4 483 5304 4 553 4931 7669
700

HY pumoses

The table reflects the amounts of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items with defined or determinate cash-
flows classified by the period to maturity. In the event that no maturity is defined (such as for deposits, overdrafts,
current accounts and commitments with third parties). the Group used a behaviour model based on historical
information, which reflects the expected maturity of the cash flows. For deposits with stated maturities, the Group
also used a behaviour model to estimate expected maturity.
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The one vear cumulative gap went from euro 7 609 million in December 2012 to euro 6 645 million as of December
2013.

Additionally, and in accordance with Instruction 13/2009 of the Bank of Portugal, the liquidity gap is defined by the
indicator [(Net Assets - Volatile Liabilities) / (Assets - Net assets) * 100] on each residual cumulative maturity scale.
Net assets include cash and net securities and volatile liabilities include debt issued, commitments, derivatives and
other liabilities. This indicator allows a characterization of the wholesale risk of institutions.

As at 31 December 2013, the one vear liquidity gap was -0.6, which compares to -3.1 from the same period last
year.

It may be noted that the above liquidity gap figures, calculated in accordance with the determinations of Instruction
13/2009 of the Bank of Portugal, do not include the Group’s insurance companies, whose activity is regulated by the
Portuguese Insurance Institute.

In order to anticipate possible negative impacts to liquidity, ESFG considers different stress scenarios (moderate and
severe) in terms of liquidity, different time frames and different types of impact (systemic, Group specific or
combined). For example, in the systemic scenario, closure of the wholesale markets is simulated, while in the
scenario specific to the Group, a run off of customer deposits from retail and non-retail is simulated, with different
levels of severity.

From 1 January 2014 is in force the CRD/CRR, under the Basel Il framework. In what concerns Liquidity Risk, the
highlights are the mandatory requirements regarding the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and the Net Stable
Funding Ratio (NSFR). As at 31 December 2013, the Group had met the ratio the limit set for 2015 in what concerns
LCRA. In January the Bank of International Settlements published a document in connection with the NSFR
calculation review. The Group continues to follow every legislative change in order to comply with its regulatory
obligations.

Operational risk

Operational risk represents the risk of losses resulting from failures in internal procedures. people behaviours,
information systems and external events.

To manage operational risk, it was developed and implemented a system that standardises, systematises and
regulates the frequency of actions with an objective of identification, monitoring. controlling and mitigation of risk.
The system is supported at organizational level by a unit within the Global Risk Department of BES, exclusively
dedicated to this task, and by representatives designated by each of the relevant departments and subsidiaries.

Insurance risk

Insurance risk — inherent risk related to the selling of insurance contracts, underwriting policy. pricing, reserving,
claims management and reinsurance arrangements.

Pricing is based on actuarial methodologies, revised on a regular basis in order to ensure a rigorous policy
underwriting and risk acceptance.

Risks underwritten that require selective acceptance are analysed centrally. Evidence of the underwriting conditions
and identification of the decision maker are required.

The technical reserves, specifically the claims reserves, are analvsed on a monthly basis. The adequacy of the

insurance liabilities is reviewed on a regular basis. Regarding the evaluation of reserves, new models are being
developed internally by the Group’s Insurance companies based on stochastic methodologies.
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The table below reflects the claims reserves development, excluding pensioners arising out from workers
compensation claims:

(i thousands of euro}

2003 2004 2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Initial estimnate of clains labilities 305 512 328 733 363 800 373014 394 397 397 996 3G5 038 380 242 360 863 343377 303238
Cumulative pavmeats

One vear later 166724 91174 106 096 98 779 G 241 100 636 90 781 91 466

Two vears fater 149 683 141 326 145 308 135925 130042 129721 122 006

Three vea 5 171505 166955 156003 152241

Four years la 192 108 177757 166 142 167 347

Five vear]; 236833 206 571 189363 180263

244762 216254 261297
226 131
Ten vears later
e-estintated claims habilities

One vear later 366449 366 360 352 690 351804 317 106 290 364

Two vears later 3 349376 327 754 28 274 997

Three vear 316033

Fourvears 31642

Five vear later 313 127 )
Sixyears la 295 603
Seven years 284 072
(16 884) 36908 90942 115083 125771 122392 190 771 $5 866 55013

Longevity risk covers the uncertainty in the ultimate loss due to policyholders living longer than expected and can
arise for example. in annuity portfolios within the life Insurance and workmen’s compensation portfolios within
non-life insurance.

Longevity risk is managed through pricing, underwriting policy and by regularly reviewing the mortality tables used
for pricing and establishing reserves. Where longevity is found to be improving faster than assumed in the mortality
tables additional reserves are established and mortality tables are updated.

Any adjustments resulting from changes in reserves estimates are reflected in current results of operations. However,

because the establishment of claims reserves is an inherently uncertain process, there can be no assurance that
ultimate losses will not exceed existing claims reserves, and this risk is covered by the additional solvency capital.
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Regarding life line of business, the main actuarial assumptions defined in each contract, are as follows:

Mortality Table Technical rate
Retirements savings plans and capitalization products
Up to December 1997 GKM 80 4%
From January 1998 to February 1999 GKM 86 3.25%
From July 1999 to February 2003 GKM 80 2.25% and 3%
From Mars 2003 to December GKM 80 2.75%
After January 2004 GKM 80 Set per calendar year (*)
Insurance in case of life
Rents
Up to June 2002 TV73/77 4%
From July 2002 to December 2003 TV73/77 3%
From January 2004 to August 2006 GKF 93 3%
After January 2004 GKM -3 years 2%
Other msurance
Insurance in case of death
Up to December 2004 GKM 80 4%
After January 2005 GKM 80 0% to 2%
Insurance mixed
Up to September 1998 GKM 80 4%
After October 1998 GKM 80 3%

{(*}In 2013 the technical rate was 3% (2012: 2%)

For liability adequacy test purposes of the life business the mortality assumptions are based on best estimates
derived from portfolio experience investigations. Future cash flows are evaluated and discounted at government
bonds rate.

The main mortality assumptions are as follows:

Mortality Table
Annuities GRM 95
Savings and other contracts 30% GKM 80

For liability adequacy test purposes, the calculation of the present value of Workmen’s Compensation mathematical
reserves was performed with the mortality table TV 73/77 (2012: TV 73/77) and risk free rate.
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The maximum risk exposure per event after reinsurance and after deductibles per segment and product line is

summarised below:

Line of business

Type of reinsurance

Net retention

Maximum treaty liability

Personal Accident (Credit Protection)
Personal Accident

Workers Compensation

Motor - Third Party Legal Liability
Motor - Own Damage

Bonds - Bonds

Bonds - Fidelity

Engineering

Fire /M Risk/Lop (Simple Risks)

Fire /M.Risk/Lop(Condominium)

Fire /M.Risk/Lop(Comm&Indust Risks)
Fire /M .Risk/Lop - Cat Cover

Fire /M Risk/Lop - XOL Cover

Fire /M Risk/Lop - XOL Aggregate Cover
Property Stop Loss

General Third Party Liability
Environmental Liability

Director'S Liability Art 396

Marine Hull

Marine Hull- Fleets

Marine Cargo

Marine Cargo & Hull - Xol Cover
Health — Dread lilness

Health — Medical Expenses
Assistence

Life - Mortgage

Life - Group

Life - Individual Credit
Life - Mortgage 2.0
Life - Natural Disasters
Life - Working Cover
Life - Credit Protection
Life - Assistence

Capital Management and Solvency Ratio

Quota Share
Excess Of Loss
Excess Of Loss
Excess Of Loss
Excess Of Loss

Quota Share

Quota Share

Proportional

Proportional

Proportional

Proportional
Excess Of Loss
Excess Of Loss
Excess Of Loss
Excess Of Loss
Excess Of Loss

Quota Share

Quota Share

Proportional

Proportional

Proportional
Excess Of Loss

Quota Share
Excess Of Loss

Quota Share

Proportional
Proportional
Proportional
Proportional
Excess Of Loss
Excess Of Loss
Quota Share
Quota Share

(in thousands of euro)

300
500
1000
1000
20%
20%
1250
1 000
1000
1000
15000
2 000
250 AAL 1000
105% of NEP
150
20%
20%
250
325
200
400
209%
2

P

[

757100
757100
75/ 100
100
1000
100

100%
14 700
39500
49 000
14 000

400
200

13 750
20 000
35000
40 000
165 000

8000

1750

7500

4850

250
250

5000

6500

4600

3500

80%
325
100%

1000
1000
1000
1000

10 000 per disaster

1 500 per event
100%
100%

The main goals of capital management are (i) to allow adequate growth of activities through the generation of
enough capital to support the increase of assets, (ii) fulfilment of the minimum capital adequacy requirements as
defined by the supervisory authorities and (iii) to ensure the fulfilment of the Group’s strategic goals with respect to

capital adequacy.

The strategy for capital adequacy management is determined by the Executive Committee and is integrated into the

strategic goals of the Group.

The capital metrics are incorporated in the main management control instruments and monitoring is undertaken

frequently, thus permitting a quick response to fulfil the defined goals.
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The Group is subject to prudential supervision by the Bank of Portugal which. in accordance with the Capital
Adequacy Directive of the EU, establishes the prudential rules to be observed by the institutions under its
supervision. These rules determine a minimum ratio of Own funds to Capital requirements of risks assumed, which
institutions are required to fulfill.

Within the implementation of the Basel II capital accord and in accordance with Decree-Law 103/2007 and Decree-
Law 104/2007, the Group was authorized to employ. as from 31 March 2009, the Internal Rating Based Foundation
Approach — IRBF for credit risk and the Standardized Approach — TSA for operational risk.

The capital elements of ESFG are divided into: Core Tier I, Tier I, Tier [1 and Deductions, as follows:

e Core Tier I: This category includes share capital, share premiums, eligible reserves, the certified net profit to be
retained for the year and non-controlling interests. The fair value reserves are excluded except for deduction of
negative fair value reserves associated with shares or other equity instruments: additionally, deductible from
Core Tier I are the balance sheet amounts referring to goodwill, intangible assets, actuarial losses (above the
prudential corredor) arising from responsibilities for post-employment benefits to employees and, where
applicable, the net loss for the period. Excess Large exposures above a base amount set by the Bank of Portugal
are also deducted.

e Tierl: In addition to the amounts considered as Core Tier 1, this category includes preference shares and hybrid
capital instruments. Alternatively, half of: (i) investments of above 10% of the capital of financial and
insurance institutions; (2) investments of below 10% of the capital of financial and insurance institutions above
a given limit; and the difference between the expected loss calculated on exposures subject to IRBF treatment
and the corresponding loss provisions, are deducted from Tier .

e Tier II: Essentially incorporates the eligible subordinated debt and 45% of the positive fair value reserve
associated with equity securities. The other half of the amounts deducted 50% from Tier I are deducted from
Tier 1L

e Deductions: The base amount of excess Large exposures are deducted here as well as prudential amortization of
assets received in the recovery of non-performing loans.

The prudential rules determine, additionally, that the Tier II cannot exceed Tier | and that a component of Tier Il
(known as Lower Tier 1) cannot exceed 50% of overall Tier II.

In December 2008, the Bank of Portugal issued Notice 11/2008 which established a transition period of four years,
from December 2009 to December 2012, for the recognition of the actuarial gains/losses determined in 2008. This
transition period ended in December 2012.

In May 2011 and in the context of the negotiation of the Financial Assistance Programme to Portugal — with the
European Commission, the European Central Bank and the International Monetary Fund — the Bank of Portugal
issued Notice 3/2011, establishing new minimum levels of solvency to be observed by financial groups subject to its
supervision. It determined that Portuguese credit institutions reach a Core Tier I ratio of no less than 9% by 31
December 2011 and 10% by 31 December 2012.

At the same time. the European Banking Authority (EBA), using somewhat different criteria for Own funds and
Capital requirements determined that European banks must reach a Core Tier I ratio of' 9% by 30 June 2012.
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As at 2013 and 2012, the main movements occurred in Basic Own Funds (Tier I) are as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in million of euro)

Balance at beginning of the year 6594 5732
Capital increase (b 489
Increase/(decrease) in non-controlling interest ( 233) 596
Retained profit/(loss) for the year ( 864) 315
Changes on actuarial losses ( 95) ( 526)
Goodwill 116 ( 296)
Recognition of the impact of adopting IFRS 7N ( 12)
Variation of preference shares recognised as Tier | ( 39 ( 37
Exchange ofhybrid instrumets - -
Unrecognised losses on financial mstruments (24 186
Investments in banking and msurance entities (77 ( 119)
Risks deducted from basic own funds 67 299
Other effects 49 ( 33)
Balance at end of the year 5484 6594
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The capital adequacy of ESFG Group as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in million of euro)

A~ Capital Requirements

Share Capital, Issue Premium and Treasury Stock 1768 1753

Net Income, Legal and Statutory Reserves, and Retained Eamnings ( 596) 265
Non-controlling interest 5013 5326
Intangible Assets, actuarial losses, goodwill and other { 598) ( 696)

Risks deducted frombasic own funds - ( 67)

Al - Basic own funds excluding preference shares (Core Tier I) (A1) 5587 6 581
Preference Shares 2 282
Deductions of investments in Financial institutions, nsurance companies and others ( 347) ( 269)

A2 - Basic own funds (Tier ) (A2) 5484 6594
Positive Fair Value Reserves and Others (45%) 162 48

Hligible Subordinated Debt 1380 1158
Deductions of investments in Financial institutions, msurance conpanies and others ( 347) ( 269)
Complementary own funds (Tier ) 1195 937
Deductions ( 84 (7D
Flegible own funds (A3) 6 5958 7 460

B Risk Asset Equivalents (Basel Il - Standard)

Calculated according Notice 05/2007 (Credit Portfolio) 55891 59 634
Calculated according Notice 8/2007 (Trading Portfolio) 1209 1548
Calculated according Notice 9/2007 (Operational Risk) 3503 3881
Total Risk Asset Equivalent (B2) 60 603 65063

C Prudential Ratios Basel II

Ratio Core Tier | (Al /B2) 9.2% 10.1%
Ratio Tier 1 (A2/B2) 9.0% 10.1%
Solvency Ratio (A3/B2) 10.9% 11.5%

As at 31 December 2013 the Core Tier I ratio was 9.2% (31 December 2012: 10.1%).

In order to comply with the minimum defined by the Bank of Portugal under Basel Il rules, applicable as of 31
December 2013, ESFG is currently putting in place a plan which will allow achieving a Core Tier I ratio of at least
10%. This plan in being discussed with the Bank of Portugal and is in an advance stage. being expected to start its
execution during the first semester of 2014.

Under BIS I (CRD IV/CRR) which will be in force as from 1 January 2014, the Common Equity Tier [ ratio,
employing the transitional provisions, is 8.3%, or 8.8% considering the waiver of Article 84 (5) and the eligibility of
the minority interests in BESPAR. This result is above the Bank of Portugal’s requirement {minimum of 7.0%).
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Plans Financing and capitalization (2011 - 2015)

Following the signing of the Memorandum of Economic and Financial Policies, the Portuguese Government and the
European Commission (EC), European Central Bank (ECB) and International Monetary Fund (IMF), Portuguese
banks, and financial holding companies that consolidate Portuguese banking subsidiaries, have had to develop,
quarterly, financing and capital plans for the period from 2011 to 20153, in order to demonstrate the achievement of
the following objectives:

* The loan to deposit ratio should. preferably, be reduced to a maximum value of 120% as from December
2014;

® The stable funding ratio should be 100% as from December 2014;

® The Core Tier I ratio must be at least 9% as of 31 December 2011 and 10% as of 31 December 2012, as
established in Notice 3/2011 of Bank of Portugal.

Additionally, the dependence of their branches and subsidiaries abroad on domestic Portuguese funding should be
minimized: the institutions must reduce their dependence on funding from the ECB; and they should develop
policies to support sectors of the Portuguese economy, namely small and medium enterprises. The financing and
capital plans should consider moderate access to short-term markets and a gradual opening of medium and long term
markets from the fourth quarter of 2013.

In order to prepare the plans, projections of relevant domestic macroeconomic variables, of GDP growth in the
geographic areas of greatest relevance to the activities of the banks and further projections of interest rates and other
parameters necessary for drawing up the plans were provided by the Bank of Portugal after consultation with the
EC/ECB/IMF. Together with the plan for the period in reference, a stress test exercise is required, where the banks
should, in an extreme scenario, present a Core Tier | ratio higher than 6% during the period (2011-2015).
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NOTE 54 - CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

Securitization transactions

Following the downgrade by Moody’s of the Portuguese Republic in February 2012, this agency set the maximum
rating attributable to bonds issued in securitized operations as Baal. Consequently, the operation of securitization of
small and medium enterprises put together by BES in December 2010 — Lusitano SME No.2 — lost its eligibility as
collateral for rediscounting at ECB and as a result BES chose to exercise its call option on 23 March 2012.

Contract Support Annex (CSA)

BES has a set of contracts negotiated with counterparties with whom it deals in derivative in the OTC market. CSA
takes the form of a collateral agreement established between two parties negotiating derivatives with each other on
this market, with the main objective to provide protection against credit risk, establishing for that purpose a set of
rules regarding collateral. Derivatives transactions are regulated by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (ISDA) and have minimum margin requirements that may change according to the rating of the parties.

NOTE 55-  TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST AND CHANGES IN THE
SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

Transactions with non-controlling interest

As explained in Note 1, during the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group entered into several transactions with
non-controlling interest, the most significant being the transactions with non-controlling of BES, namely the net
acquisition of an additional interest of 0.86% through the acquisition in the market of 29 510 581 shares.

These transactions were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.2 as
transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. Therefore, the difference between the net
consideration paid and the non-controlling interest acquired, in the amount of euro 45 628 thousand as detailed
below, was recognised in equity.

The balance of the components of other comprehensive income, namely the fair value reserve and foreign exchange
differences were reallocated in order to reflect the new percentage held.

The impact of these transactions with the non-controlling interest occurred in 2012 is as follows:

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Net consideration paid 17525
Consideration paid by non-controlling interest (119
Net consideration paid attributable to ESFG 16 334
Non-controling interest acquired 58 498
42 164
Reallocation of components of other comprehensive income
Fair value reserve 6247
Exchange diferences 34
Gain recognised in equity resulting from transactions with BES non-controlling interest 48 445
Other transactions with non-controlling interest (2817)
Gain recognised in equity resulting from transactions with non-controlling interest 45628
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The transaction with non-controlling occurred in 2013 did not have a significant impact in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Loss of control over subsidiaries occurred in 2012
Pastor Vida

As referred in Note 32, in the first semester of 2012, Banco Popular acquired a controlling interest on Banco Pastor,
the tegal merger between these two entities having taken place on 5 July 2012

The change in control of Banco Pastor had a significant impact in the implementation of Group’s strategy regarding
Pastor Vida and therefore in the second quarter of 2012, the Group took the decision, as permitted within the
shareholders agreement established between Tranquilidade and Banco Pastor, to exercise its option to put Pastor
Vida shares back to Banco Pastor. The sale was completed during the second semester of 2012. Therefore, the
related goodwill and value in force, amounting to euro 23.1 million and euro 57.9 million, respectively, were
derecognised.

The impact of the loss of control over Pastor Vida in ESFG consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
2012 can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Net consideration received 40 072
Pastor Vida net equity at the date of the loss of control (1) 103711 (1)
Pastor Vida net equity at the date of the loss of control attributable to ESFG 51.856
Pastor Vida goodwill 23 110
Deferred and contingent consideration recognised (46 100)
Pastor Vida 28 866
Gain on the loss of control of Pastor Vida recognised in the income statement 11206

(1) includes value in force amounting to 57.9 million

ES Sande

As referred in Note 32. in November 2012 (i) Rio Forte Investments, S.A. (Rio Forte) acquired an additional 19.5%
stake in ES Satide. becoming to have a 44.5% shareholding in this company; (ii) ESFG and Rio Forte signed a
shareholders’ agreement under which Rio Forte assumes control over ES Salde governing bodies; and (iii) Rio
Forte acquired from ESFG a call option, currently exercisable up to May 2013, over 5.5% of ES Saide sharecapital
plus 1 share, giving Rio Forte the current ability to exercise control over the majority of the voting rights of ES
Satde.

As a result of the loss of control over ES Satide in 2012, this entity is no longer fully consolidated by ESFG and is
included in its consolidated financial statements following the equity method (see Note 33).
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In accordance with paragraph 34 of IAS 27 and with the accounting policy described in Note 2.2, the non-
controlling interest retained by ESFG in ES Satde following the loss of control, was remeasured to fair value and
the resulting gain was recognised in the income statement as follows:

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Retained interest in ES Sande 43%
Estimated fair value of ES Saude at the time control was lost 268 795
Attributable to ESFG 115313
Book value of ES Sande at the time control was lost
ES Satde net equity at the date ofthe loss of control 128 160
Attributable to ESFG 54981
Gain on the loss of control of ES Sadde recognised in the income statement (1) 60 332
Attributable to ESFG 45007
Attributable to non-controlling interest 15325
60 332

(1) arising from the remeasurement of the retained non-contrelling interest

The fair value of ES Satde at the time the control was lost, was estimated based on the transaction price between
Rio Forte and third parties occurred in November 2012, as it was considered as a recent comparable transaction.
Notwithstanding, this fair value was back tested, ESFG having prepared a valuation report based on a Discounted
Cash Flow methodology using the financial budget approved by management, an Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC) between 9.0% and 9.3% and a terminal growth rate of 2%.

Following paragraph 37 of [AS 27, the fair value of the non-controlling interest retained by ESFG in ES Satde, was
assumed as the cost on initial recognition of the investment in this associate for the purposes of the initial application
of the equity method in accordance with IAS 28.

Business combinations occurred in 2012
Acquisition of BES Vida

Until 30 April 2012, BES held a 50% interest in BES Vida. Companhia de Seguros, S.A. (BES Vida), a life
insurance company, which distributes its products in Portugal and Spain, through BES branch network. Crédit
Agricole owned the remaining 50 % and controlled its activities.

As referred in Note 1, in May 2012, BES acquired, from Credit Agricole. the remaining 50% of the share capital of
BES Vida with the objective of leveraging the marketing of BES Vida’s insurance products.

Following this acquisition, BES became to hold the entire share capital of BES Vida and has the management
control over its activities. Therefore, BES Vida. which qualified as an associate and was included in the consolidated
financial statements of BES following the equity method, has become a subsidiary and is being fully consolidated
since May 2011.

The total investment amounted to euro 225 million euro. paid in cash.
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This transaction was accounted for in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 42 of IFRS 3 related with
business combination achieved in stages, which requires any previously held equity interest in the acquire, to be
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and the resulting gain or loss to be recognised in the income
statement. The amounts recognised in the fair value reserve up to the date in which control in acquired, are required
to be recycled to the income statement.
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As at 1 May 2012, the balance sheet of BES Vida included in the BES Group consolidated financial statements can
be analysed as follows:

(in thousand of

euro)
Assets
Cash and deposits with banks 198 648
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2759 100
Available-for-sale financial assets 1917328
Held-to-maturity investments 159 551
Property and equipment 93 864
Intangible assets 76 641
Technical reserves of reinsurance ceded 2512
Income taxassets 112
Other assets 178 712
5386 468
Liabilities
Technical reserves 1 880 631
Investment contracts 3053344
Other financial liabilities 194 434
Income taxliabilities 2342
Other liabilities 40291
5171042
Equity
Share Capital 50 000
Other reserves and retained eamings 165 426
215 426
5386 468

The fair value of recognised identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed include, under Intangible assets, the
amount of euro 107 768 thousand related to the present value of the business in force acquired related to life
insurance contracts (Value in Force) (euro 76 515 thousand net of taxes). This asset will be amortised over the
remaining lifetime of the contracts.

It should be mentioned, however, that following the reinsurance treaty signed in 2013 by BES Vida, described in

Note 32, the net amount of euro 137 476 thousand in relation to the value in force acquired was derecognised,
having the remaining amount, been recognised under Other liabilities.
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The goodwill recognised as a result of this acquisition amounts to euro 234 574 thousand, as follows:

(in thousand of

% euro)

Goodwill as the excess of:
Consideration transferred 225000
Acquisition date fair value of the 50% interest previously hekd in BES Vida 225 000

450 000
Over:
Fair value ofidentifiable assets and liabilities acquired (1) 100 215426
Goodwill determined on a provisional basis 234574

(1) mensured on a provisional basis
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the potential growth of the market where BES Vida operates.

The impact in the 2012 income statement of measuring at fair value the previously held equity interest in BES Vida,
representing 50% of its share capital, following the requirements of paragraph 42 of IFRS 3, can be analysed as
follows:

(in thousand of

euro)

50% interest previously held in BES Vida

Fairvalue 225 000

Book value 66 931
Loss on remeas urement of the previously heldin Bes Vida 158 069
Recognition in the income statement of the accumulated fair value reserve

of BES Vida appropriated on the acquisition of control in Bes Vida ( 70 796)

Loss arising from the acquisition of control in BES Vida 87273

(1) Amount before non controling interest. After non controlling interest the fair value recvcled to the income statement

amount to euro 19.8 miilion.

The profit of BES Vida from the acquisition date to 31 December 2012 included in the profit for the vear
attributable to the equity holders of the Company, amounts to euro 32.8 million. If BES Vida had been consolidated
from 1 January 2012, the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company would have increased
by euro 0.7 million.
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NOTE 56 - RECENTLY ISSUED PRONOUNCEMENTS
56.1 Recently issued pronouncements already adopted by the Group

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group adopted
the following standards and interpretations that are effective since 1 January 2013:

IAS 19 Revised — Employee Benefits

In 2013, the Group adopted the amendments to “IAS 19 — Employee Benefits” issued in 2011 and effective (with
retrospective application) for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013. Those amendments were
endorsed by European Commission Regulation 475/2012, 5th June. The amendments to [AS 19, included the
elimination of the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets.

The Group made a voluntary change in the accounting police related to actuarial gains and losses arising from its
post employment benefits which from 2011 are charged to equity, under other comprehensive income, therefore the
adoption of IAS 19 (revised) had no impact in the Group’s financial statements in what concerns the recognition of
actuarial gains and losses.

However, as a result of 1AS 19 (2011), the Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to the basis for
determining the income or expense related to defined benefit. Under 1AS 19 (2011), the Group determines the net
interest expense (income) for the period on the net defined benefit liability (asset) by applving the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability
(asset) at the beginning of the annual period. Consequently, the net interest expense (income) includes interest cost
on the defined benefit obligation net of a theoretical return on the plan assets, both calculated using the discount rate
applied in the determination of the defined benefit obligation (see Note 14).

Previously, the Group determined interest income on plan assets based on their long-term rate of expected return.

IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair value
measurements, when such measurements are required or permitted by other IFRSs. In particular, it unifies the
definition of fair value as the price at which an orderly transaction to sell an asset or to transfer a liability would take
place between market participants at the measurement date.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement
guidance prospectively. The methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial assets and
liabilities are disclosed in Note 52.

Notwithstanding the above, the change had no significant impact on the measurement of the Group’s assets and
liabilities. once the major change in the calculation of the fair value was the inclusion of the credit value adjustments
(CVA) and debit value adjustments (DVA), which had no significant impact in the valuation of derivatives.

IAS I Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
As a result of the amendments to IAS 1, the Group has modified the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income in its consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, to present separately items that would be

reclassified to profit or loss in the future from those that would never be. Comparative information has also been re-
presented accordingly.
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The adoption of the amendment to IAS 1 has no impact on the recognised assets, liabilities and comprehensive
income of the Group.

IFRS 7 {Amended) - Financial Instruments: Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The IASB, issued on 16th December 2011, amendments to “IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods beginning
on or after st January 2013. Those amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation 1256/2012, 11th
Decembert.

These amendments required an entity to disclose information about what amounts have been offset in the statement
of financial position and the nature and extend of rights to set-off and related arrangements (c.g. collateral
arrangements).

The new disclosures are required for all recognized finaneial instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with IAS 32.

The adoption of the amendment to IFRS 7 had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to IFRS (2009-2011)

The annual improvements cycle 2009-2011, issued by IASB on 17th May 2012, introduce amendments, with
effective date on. or after, 1st January 2013, to the standards IFRS1, IAS1, JIAS16, IAS32, IAS34 and IFRIC2.

IAS I Presentation of Financial Statements
This improvement clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the minimum
required comparative information. Generally, the minimum required comparative information is the previous period.

IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment
This improvement clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment are not inventory

1AS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation and [FRIC 2
The improvement clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes, avoid any interpretation that may mean any either application.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments align the disclosure requirement for total segment assets with total segment liabilities in interim
financial statements. This clarification also ensures that interim disclosures are aligned with annual disclosures in
relation to the changes of profit and loss account and other comprehensive income.

The adoption of these improvements had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 20 - Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

The International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), issued on 19th October 2011, “IFRIC 20 -
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine”, effective (with retrospective application) for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013. Those amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation
1255/2012. 11th December.
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Give the nature of the Group’s operation, this interpretation did not have any impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

56.2 The Group decided to opt for not having an early application of the following standards endorsed by EU
but not yet mandatory effective

The new standards and interpretations that have been issued. but that are not vet effective and that the Group has not
vet applied, are analysed below. The Group will apply these standards when they are effective.

IAS 32 (Amended) - Financial Instruments.: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The IASB, issued on 16th December 2011, amendments to “IAS 32 ~ Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities™, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods
beginning on or after Ist January 2014. Those amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation
1256/2012, 11th December.

The IASB amended JAS 32 to add application guidance to address the inconsistent application of the standard in
practice. The application guidance clarifies that the phrase ‘currently has a legal enforceable right of set-off® means
that the right of set-off must not be contingent on a future event and must be legally enforceable in the normal
course of business, in the event of default and in the event of insolvency or bankruptey. of the entity and all of the
counterparties,

The application guidance also specifies the characteristics of gross settlement systems in order to be considered
equivalent to net settlement.

The Group is not expecting a significant impact from the adoption of the amendment to JAS 32.

14§ 27 (Revised) — Separate Financial Statements

The 1ASB, issued on 12th May 2011, amendments to “IAS 27 — Separate Financial Statements”, effective (with
prospective application) for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2014. Those amendments were
endorsed by EU Commission Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December.

Taking in consideration that IFRS 10 addresses the principles of controls and the requirements relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements, IAS 27 was amended to cover exclusively separate financial
statements.

The amendments aimed, on one hand. to clarify the disclosures required by an entity preparing separate financial
statements so that the entity would be required to disclose the principal place of business (and country of
incorporation, if different) of significant investments in subsidiaries, Joint ventures and associates and, if applicable,
of the parent.

The previous version required the disclosure of the country of incorporation or residence of such entities.

On the other hand, it was aligned the effective dates for all consolidated standards (IFRS10, IFRS11, [FRSI2.
[FRS13 and amendments to IAS 28).

The Group expects no impact from the adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.
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IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The 1ASB. issued on 12th May 2011, “IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements”, effective (with retrospective
application) for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2013. These amendments were endorsed by EU
Commission Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December, which allows a delayed on mandatory application for st
January 2014.

IFRS 10, withdraw one part of IAS 27 and SIC 12. and introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated.

The new concept of control involves the assessment of power, exposure 10 variability in returns and a linkage
between the two. An investment controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variability returns from its
involvement with the investee and is able to affect those returns through its power over the investee (facto control).

The investor considers whether it controls the relevant activities of the investee, taking into consideration the new
concept. The assessment should be done at each reporting period because the relation between power and exposure
variability in returns may change over the time.

Control is usually assessed over a legal entity, but also can be assessed over only specified assets and liabilities of an
investee (referred to as silo).

The new standard also introduce other changes such as: i) accounting requirements for subsidiaries in consolidation
financial statements are carried forward from 1AS 27 to this new standards and i) enhanced disclosures are requires.
including specific disclosures for consolidated and unconsolidated structured entities.

The Group has not carried out a thorough analysis of the impacts of the application of this standard. Given the
introduction of a new control model the Group may need to change its consolidation conclusion in respect of its
investees.

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

The TASB, issued on 12th May 2011, “IFRS 11 Joint arrangements™, effective (with retrospective application) for
annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2013. These amendments were endorsed by EU Commission
Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December, that allows a delayed on mandatory application for 1st January 2014.

[FRS 11, withdraw TAS 31 and SIC 13, defines “joint control” by incorporating the same control model as defined in
IFRS 10 and requires an entity that is part of a “join arrangement” to determine the nature of the joint arrangement

(“joint operations™ or “joint ventures™) by assessing its rights and obligations.

IFRS 11 removes the option to account for joint ventures using the proportionate consolidation. Instead. joint
arrangements that meet the definition of “joint venture” must be account for using the equity method (IAS 28).

The Group expects no impact form the adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.

JAS 28 (Revised) — Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The 1ASB, issued on 12th May 2011, “IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, effective (with
retrospective application) for annual periods beginning on or after st January 2013. These amendments were
endorsed by EU Commission Regulation 1234/2012, 11th December, which allows a delay on mandatory
application to 1st January 2014.

F-178




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 ~ (Continued)
{Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, IAS 28 has been renamed as IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint ventures, and describes the application of the entity method to investments in joint ventures and associates.

The Group expects no impact form the adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.

IFRS 12 — Disclosures of Interest in Other Entities

The IASB, issued on 12th May 2011, “IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities”. effective (with
retrospective application) for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2013. These amendments were
endorsed by EU Commission Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December, that allows a delayed on mandatory
application for Ist January 2014.

The objective of this new standard is to require an entity to disclose information that enables users of its financial
statements to evaluate: (a) the nature of, and risks associated with, its interests in other entities; and (b) the effects of
those interests on its financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities. including joint
arrangements, associates, special vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles.

The Group is yet assessing the full impact of the new IFRS 12 in line with the adoption of IFRS 10 and [FRS 11.

Investment Lntities — Amendements to IFRS 10, IFRS12 and IAS 8 (issued by IASB on 31st October 2012)

The amendments apply to a particular class of business that qualify as investment entities. The IASB uses the term
‘investment entity” to refer to an entity whose business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income or both. An investment entity must also evaluate the performance of its investments
on a fair value basis. Such entities could include private equity organisations, venture capital organisations, pension
funds, sovereign wealth funds and other investment funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirements in IFRS 10 and require investment entities
to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss, rather than consolidate them. The amendments

also set out disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2014 with early adoption permitted. This option allows investment
entities to apply the Investment Entities amendments at the same time they first apply the rest of IFRS 10.

The Group does not expect any major impact from the adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.

IAS 36 (Revised) — Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
The IASB issued on 29th May 2013, this amendment. effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods
beginning on or after Ist January 2014. These amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation

1374/2013, 19th December.

The objective of the amendments is to clarify that the scope of the disclosures of information about the recoverable
amount of assets. where that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal, is limited to impaired assets.
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148 39 (Revised) — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The 1ASB issued on 27th June 2013, this amendment, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods
beginning on or after Ist January 2014. These amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation
1375/2013, 19th December.

The objective of the amendments is to provide relief in situations where a derivative, which has been designated as a
hedging instrument, is novated from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or
regulations. Such a relief means that hedge accounting can continue irrespective of the novation which, without the
amendment, would not be permitted.

56.3 Recently Issued pronouncements that are not yet effective for the Group
IAS 19 (Revisedj — Defined Benefit Plans. Employee Contributions

The IASB issued on 21th November 2013, this amendment, effective (with retrospective application) for annual
periods beginning on or after Ist July 2014.

The Amendment clarifies the guidance on attributing employee or third party contributions linked to service and
require entities to attribute the contributions linked to service in accordance with paragraph 70 of IAS 19 (2011).
Therefore, such contributions are attributed using plan’s contribution formula or on a straight line basis.

The amendment addresses the complexity by introducing a practical expedient that allows an entity to recognise
employee or third party contributions linked to service that are independent of the number of years of service (for
example a fixed percentage of salary), as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered.

IFRIC 21 Levies

The IASB issued on 20th May 2013, this interpretation, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2014.

[FRIC 21 defines a levy as an outflow from an entity imposed by a government in accordance with legislation. It
confirms that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when - and only when — the triggering event specified in the
legisiation oceurs. IFRIC 21 is not expected to have any effect on the Group’s financial statements.

Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012)

The annual improvements cycle 2010-2012, issued by IASB on 12th December 2013, introduce amendments, with
effective date on, or after, Ist July 2014, to the standards IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, [AS16, IAS24 and
[AS38.

IFRS 2 — definition of vesting condition

The amendment clarify the definition of 'vesting conditions' in Appendix A of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment by
separate the definition of performance condition and service condition from the definition of vesting condition to
make the description of each condition clear.

IFRS 3 — Accounting for contingent consideration in a business combination

The objective of this amendment is to clarify certain aspects of accounting for contingent consideration in a business
combination, namely: classification of contingent consideration in a business combination and subsequent
measurement, taking into account if such contingent consideration is a financial instrument or a non-financial asset
or liability.
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IFRS 8 — Aggregation of operation segments and reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments ' assets 10
entity's assets

The amendment clarify the criteria for aggregation of operating segments and requires entities to disclose those
factors that are used to identify the entity’s reportable segments when operating segments have been aggregated.

To achieve consistency, reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments' assets to the entity's assets should be
disclosed, if that amount is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker.

IFRS 13 — Short-term receivables and pavables

IASB amends the basis of conclusion in order to clarify that, by deleting IAS 39AG79, in applying IFRS 3. IASB
did not intend to change the measurement requirements for short-term receivables and payables with no interest, that
should be discount if such discount is material, noting that IAS 8.8 already permits entities not apply accounting
polices set out in accordance with IFRSs when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

148 16 & IAS 38 — Revaluation method — proportionate restatement accumulated depreciation or amortization
In order to clarify the calculation of the accumulated depreciation or amortization at the date of the revaluation,
IASB amended paragraph 35 of IAS 16 and paragraph 80 of IAS 38 to clarify that:
a) the determination of the accumulated depreciation (or amortization) does not depend on the selection of the
valuation technique; and
b) the accumulated depreciation (or amortization) is calculated as the difference between the gross and the net
carrying amounts.

IAS 24 ~ Related Party Transactions — Key management personal services

In order to address the concerns about the identification of key management personal (KMP) costs, when KMP
services of the reporting entity are provided by entities (management entity e.g. in mutual funds), IASB clarifies
that, the disclosure of the amounts incurred by the entity for the provision of KMP services that are provided by a
separate management entity shall be disclosed but it is not necessary to present the information required in
paragraph 17.

Improvements to IFRS (2011-2013)

The annual improvements cycle 2011-2013, issued by IASB on 12th December 2013, introduce amendments, with
effective date on, or after, Ist July 2014, to the standards IFRS 1, IFRS 3. IFRS 13 and 1AS 40.

IFRS I — meaning of “effective IFRS"”
IASB clarifies that if a new [FRS is not yet mandatory but permits early application, that IFRS is permitted, but not
required, to be applied in the entity’s first IFRS financial statements.

IFRS 3 —~ Scope exceptions for joint ventures

The amendment excludes the formation of all types of joint arrangements as defined in IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
from the scope of IFRS 3. The scope exception only applies to the financial statements of the joint venture or the
joint operation itself.

IFRS 13 — Scope of paragraph 52 — porifolio exception

Paragraph 52 of IFRS 13 includes a scope exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis. This is referred to as the portfolio exception. The objective of this amendment was
to clarify that the portfolio exception applies to all contracts within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, regardless of whether they meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

IAS 40 ~ interrelationship with IFRS 3 when classify property as investment property or owner-occupied property
The objective of this amendment was to clarify that judgment is needed to determine whether the acquisition of
investment property is the acquisition of an asset, a group of assets or a business combination in the scope of [FRS 3
and that this judgment is based on the guidance in IFRS 3.
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments (issued in 2009 and revised in 2010)

IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
(2010) introduces additions relating to financial liabilities. IFRS 9 (2013) introduces the hedging requirements. The
IASB currently has an active project of additional disclosures requirements limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 and new requirements to address the impairment of financial assets.

The IFRS 9 (2009) requirements represent a significant change from the existing requirements in IAS 39 in respect
of financial assets. The standard contains two primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost
and fair value. A financial asset would be measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other
financial assets would be measured at fair value. The standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held-to-
maturity, available-for-sale and loans and receivables.

For an investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the standard permits an irrevocable election,
on initial recognition, on an individual share-by-share basis, to present all fair value changes from the investment in
OCI. No amount recognised in OCI would ever be reclassified to profit or loss at a later date. However, dividends on
such investments would be recognised in profit or loss, rather than OCI, unless they clearly represent a partial
recovery of the cost of the investment.

Investments in equity instruments in respect of which an entity does not elect to present fair value changes in OCI
would be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The standard requires derivatives embedded in contracts with a host that is a financial asset in the scope of the
standard not to be separated; instead, the hybrid financial instrument is assessed in its entirety for whether it should
be measured at amortised cost or fair value.

IFRS 9 (2010) introduces a new requirement in respect of financial liabilities designated under the fair value option
to generally present fair value changes that are attributable to the liability’s credit risk in OCI rather than in profit or
loss. Apart from this change, IFRS 9 (2010) largely carries forward without substantive amendment the guidance on
classification and measurement of financial liabilities from IAS 39.

IFRS 9 (2013) introduces new requirements for hedge accounting that align hedge accounting more closely with risk
management. The requirements also establish a more principles-based approach to hedge accounting and address
inconsistencies and weaknesses in the hedge accounting model in IAS 39.

The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 is not specified but will be determined when the outstanding phases are
finalised.

The Group has started the process of evaluating the potential effect of this standard but is awaiting finalisation of the

limited amendments before the evaluation can be completed. Given the nature of the Group’s operations, this
standard is expected to have a pervasive impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTE 57 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 2 April 2014 ESFG sold its remaining 9.0% stake in Banco BEST to BES.

On 18 March 2014 ESFG announced that it had sold a 10.63% stake in Espirito Santo Saude, as part of the
healthcare company’s IPO, launched on 6 February. The sale, which included the over-allotment option, leaves
ESFG with a 3.38% direct stake in the company.

On 14 February 2014 ESFG announced the sale of its 44.81% stake in BES Vénétie to BES.













Espirito Santo Financial Group (excluindo Grupo BES)

% interesse

econémico
Advancecare - Gestao de Servicos de Salde, S.A. 51,00%
AOC Patrimoine 56,52%
Banque Espirito Santo et de la Vénétie, S.A. 56,52%
Banque Privée Espirito Santo, S.A. 100,00%
BESPAR, SGPS, S A 73,60%
ES Bankers (Dubai) Limited 95,00%
ESFG International Ltd 91,00%
Espirito Santo Bank (Panama), S.A. 100,00%
Espirito Santo Contact Center, Gestao de Call Centers, S.A. 67,76%
Espirito Santo Financial (Portugal), SGPS, S A. 100,00%
Espirito Santo Financiére, S A. 100,00%
Espirito Santo Wealth Europe S.A. 100,00%
Esumeédica - Prestacdo de Cuidados Médicos, S.A. 100,00%
Fundo de Investimento Imobiliario Fechado Corpus Christi 100,00%
IMOPRIME - Fundo de Investimento Imobiliario Fechado 55,91%
Marignan Gestion S.A. 56,52%
BESV Courtage S.A. 56,52%
PARTRAN SGPS, S.A. 100,00%
Quinta dos Conegos- Sociedade Imobiliaria, S.A. 41,22%
SEGUROS LOGO S.A. 100,00%
SLMB - Société Lyonnaise de Marchands de Biens 56,46%
Société Civile Immobiliere du 45 Avenue Georges Mandel 49,97%
TRANQUILIDADE - Companhia de Seguros Tranquilidade, S.A. 100,00%
Tranquilidade CAS (Angola) 52,21%
Tranquilidade Mogambique Companhia de Seguros, S.A. 100,00%
Tranquilidade Mogambique Companhia de Seguros Vida, S.A. 100,00%

T-VIDA, Companhia de Seguros, S A. 100,00%






% interesse

economico
Adepa Global Services 40,00%
BES, Companhia de Seguros, S.A. 31,86%
Espirito Santo Saude SGPS, S A. 32,02%
Europ Assistance - Comp. Portuguesa Seguros Assisténcia, S.A. 47,00%
SCA Mandel Partners 27,24%
Goupe CFCA SAS 16,90%
IMOCRESCENTE - Fundo de Investimento Imobiliario Fechado 48,90%

Nota:
A estas endidades devem-se juntar as incluidas no Grupo BES (ver Anexo 2), uma vez que
as mesmas integram igualmente o perimetro de consolidacéo da ESFG.







